SUPPLEMENT
DATED JUNE 17, 2015

to

OFFICIAL STATEMENT
DATED JUNE 9, 2015

RELATING TO

$102,555,000
STATE OF MAINE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

Consisting of

$14,200,000 2015 Series A (Federally Taxable)
and
$88,355,000 2015 Series B

The State of Maine Official Statement dated Jur0a5 (the “Official Statement”) with respect
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Paragraph A of Appendix H of the Official Statemenhereby restated to read as follows (with
strikethrough text being deleted from the origiaatl underlined text being inserted):

“A. Within one year after the end of each fiscahyef the State, the State will provide to the
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRHB&f)ancial information and operating data, for the
prior fiscal year, of the type set forth in Apperel A through F-B-B-and E of this Official Statempe

This Supplement does not constitute an offer tbasehe solicitation of an offer to buy the
Bonds.
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Consisting of

$14,200,000 2015 Series A
(Federally Taxable)
and
$88,355,000 2015 Series B

Due: as showm on the inside cover

Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. See “RATINGS” herein.
Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services. See “RATINGS” here2in.

June 1 and December 1, commencing December 1, 2015.
The Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to maturityy.

The Bonds will be general obligations ofthe State of Maine € (“the State”) and the
full faith and credit of the State are pledged to the punctuall payment of principal
ofand interest on the Bonds, with the State Treasurer bein g obligated under the
Maine Constitution to set aside available General Fund reevenues to the extent
needed to make said payments if legislative appropriatioins are insutient, as
more fully described herein. See “DESCRIPTION OF THEE BONDS” herein.

In the opinion of Locke Lord LLP, Bond Counsel to the { State, interest on the
Series B Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes
under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Initerest on the Series B
Bonds is not a specilk preference item for purposes of tthe federal individual
or corporate alternative minimum taxes, although such unterest is included in
adjusted current earnings when calculating corporate @lternative minimum
taxable income. Interest on the Series ABonds is include«d in the gross income
of the owners of the Series A Bonds for federal income ttax purposes. Under
existing law, interest on the Bonds is excluded from grioss income for State
income tax purposes. Bond Counsel expresses no opinioin regarding any other
tax consequences related to the ownership or dispositiom of, or the accrual or
receipt of interest on, the Bonds. See “TAX MATTERS” hierein.

The Bonds are being issued to pay at maturity on June 330, 2015 the principal
amount of certain bond anticipation notes issued by the Sttate to_nance certain

capital expenditures of the State and to Chance certain additional capital

expenditures ofthe State. See “DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS" herein.

Maltialae s LT,
June 25, 2015.

The Bonds, when issued, vélregistered in the name of Cede & Co., as the
nominee of The Depository Trust Company (“DTC"), N&ark, New York.
DTC will act as securities depository (the “SecuwstiDepository”) of the
Bonds. Purchasers of the Bonds will not receivéiCeates representing their
interests in the Bonds purchased.

Locke Lord LLP. See “TAX MATTERS” héme
First Southwest Company, LLC. SEENANCIAL ADVISOR” herein.
Terry Hayes, Treasurer of State. BE®CELLANEOUS” herein.

Of(cial Statement dated June 9, 2015



MATURITIES, AMOUNTS, INTEREST RATES AND YIELDS

$102,555,000
State of Maine
General Obligation Bonds

$14,200,000
General Obligation Bonds, 2015 Series A
(Federally Taxable)

Maturity Principal Interest Price or CUSIF

(June 1) Amount Rate Yield No.
2016 $10,260,000 1.25% 0.35% 56052AYC4
2017 3,940,000 0.85 0.85 56052AYD2

$88,355,000
General Obligation Bonds, 2015 Series B

Maturity Principal Interest Price or CUSIF

(June 1) Amount Rate Yield No.
2017 $ 6,315,000 5.00% 0.69% 56052AYEOQ
2018 10,255,000 5.00 1.10 56052AYF7
2019 10,255,000 5.00 1.36 56052AYG5
2020 10,255,000 5.00 1.60 56052AYHS3
2021 10,255,000 5.00 1.87 56052AYJ9
2022 10,255,000 5.00 2.05 56052AYK6
2023 10,255,000 5.00 2.18 56052AYL4
2024 10,255,000 3.00 2.36 56052AYM2
2025 10,255,000 3.00 2.47 56052AYNO

No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorihed3tgte to give any information or
to make any representation, other than those contained in thisaDSteitement. If given or made, such other
information or representation must not be relied upon as having bdeorized by the State. This Official
Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitafian offer to buy nor shall there be any sale of the
Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful fothsperson to make such offer, solicitation or
sale. The information and expressions of opinions herein are stijebtinge without notice and neither the
delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereumddéirisder any circumstance create any implication
that there has been no change in the affairs of the State since the date hereof

" Copyright, American Bankers Association. CUSIPnbers have been assigned by an independent compaaffiliated with
the State or the Financial Advisor and are includektly for the convenience of the holders of trends. The State is not
responsible for the selection or uses of the CUifAbers and no representation is made as to the&atness on the Bonds or
as indicated above. The CUSIP number for a spetifiturity is subject to change after the issuaridbe Bonds as a result of
various subsequent actions including, but not &ohito, a refunding in whole or in part of such miaguor as a result of the
procurement of secondary market portfolio insurasrcether similar enhancement by investors that begpplicable to all or a
portion of certain maturities of the Bonds.
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$102,555,000
STATE OF MAINE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

Consisting of
$14,200,000 2015 Series A
(Federally Taxable)

and
$88,355,000 2015 Series B

INTRODUCTION

This Official Statement, including the cover page hereof and the Apmsnldéreto, sets
forth certain information in connection with the issuance by thes $ifaMaine (the “State” or
“Maine”) of its $14,200,000 General Obligation Bonds, 2015 Series A (Fed@aathble) (the
“Series A Bonds”) and its $88,355,000 General Obligation Bonds, 2015 Setties t5éries B
Bonds” and, together with the Series A Bonds, the “Bonds”). The Bondatrarized by, and
are being issued pursuant to, Article IX, Section 14, of the Constitofithe State and certain
laws of the State which were ratified by voters of the Stateng in elections thereon. See
Appendix D hereto. The Bonds will be general obligations of the State.

DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS

The Bonds will bear interest from the date of their delivery lplgyaemiannually on
June 1 and December 1 of each year, commencing December 1, 2015, untihtpaiyine
principal of the Bonds. Interest on the Bonds will be paid on theestt@ayment dates, and
principal of the Bonds will be paid at maturity, to The DepositonysTCompany, New York,
New York (“DTC”) or its nominee as registered owner of the Bonfis. long as DTC or its
nominee is the registered owner of the Bonds, disbursement of such paym®&iC is the
responsibility of the State, disbursement of such payments to thet Pa#icipants (as defined
under the heading “The Depository Trust Company” below) is the respogsdiilDTC, and
disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners (as defimdedl the heading “The
Depository Trust Company” below) is the responsibility of the Difearticipants or Indirect
Participants (as defined under the heading “The Depository Trust Compaloy) as more
fully described herein. See “The Depository Trust Company” below. Bohds will bear
interest at the rates and will mature on the dates and imtbends set forth on the inside cover
page hereof. Interest on the Bonds will be computed on the basgeday month and a 360-
day year.

The Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to maturity.

The Bonds are general obligations of the State and the full faith and crddit $tate are
pledged to the punctual payment of principal of and interest on the Bomtide X, Part Third,
Section 5 of the Constitution of the State provides that if saffifunds are not appropriated
to pay the principal of and interest on all bonded deitluding the Bonds), when due,



then the Treasurer of State is obligated to set afpam the first General Fund revenues
received an amount sufficient to make payment of ppaloof and interest on the Bonds as
such principal and interest become due.

The Bonds are being issued (i) to pay the principal of the State’s $38,1%BeD@0al
Obligation Bond Anticipation Notes which were issued to financeinertital expenditures of
the State and (ii) to finance certain additional capital experadi of the State. See Appendix D
hereto.

INFORMATION CONCERNING THE STATE

Certain information regarding the State is included in Appendix A dwer&éhe State’s
audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014réaid other selected
financial information pertaining to the State are included in AppendikeBeto. Certain
information with respect to revenues of the State is includeflppendix C hereto. Certain
information regarding authorized and outstanding debt of the State is ishcludgpendix D
hereto. Certain information derived from actuarial valuation regortthe retirement programs
administered by the Maine Public Employee Retirement System lisd@tt in Appendix E
hereto. Selected economic information pertaining to the State is included in AppenditoF here

LITIGATION

There is no controversy or litigation of any nature now pending or, to the kigevid
the Department of the Attorney General, threatened, seekingttaineor enjoin the issuance,
sale, execution or delivery of the Bonds, or in any way contesting atiaffehe validity of the
Bonds, or any law or other authorization with respect to the isswarsade of the Bonds, or the
payment of the Bonds, or the existence or powers of the State, otleéh® tiheir respective
offices of the present officers of the State who are responsibthd issuance, sale, execution or
delivery of the Bonds. See “Litigation” in Appendix A hereto.

TAX MATTERS
Series B Bonds — Tax Exempt Bonds

In the opinion of Locke Lord LLP, Bond Counsel to the State (“Bond CounseEgdba
upon an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings, and court decisionssanairag, among
other matters, compliance with certain covenants, interest onetles 8 Bonds is excluded
from gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 loteh®al Revenue
Code of 1986 (the “Code”). Bond Counsel is of the further opinion thaesiten the Series B
Bonds is not a specific preference item for purposes of the feeligidual or corporate
alternative minimum taxes. However, Bond Counsel observes that sedsins included in
adjusted current earnings when calculating corporate alternative minimum tevcainlee. Bond
Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other federal tax consequesiicgsivéh respect
to the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Series B Bonds

The Code imposes various requirements relating to the exclusion fom® igcome for
federal income tax purposes of interest on obligations such as tlkee BeBonds. Failure to
comply with these requirements may result in interest on thesSBrBonds being included in
gross income for federal income tax purposes, possibly from the datigiofl issuance of the



Series B Bonds. The State has covenanted to comply with sgeineraents to ensure that
interest on the Series B Bonds will not be included in federal gnossne. The opinion of
Bond Counsel assumes compliance with these requirements.

Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that, under existing law, interest ocBetines B
Bonds is excluded from gross income for Maine income tax purposes. (Bamsel expresses
no opinion regarding any other Maine tax consequences arising with réspbet Series B
Bonds. Bond Counsel also has not opined as to the taxability of the BeBends or the
income therefrom under the laws of any state other than Maineconfplete copy of the
proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel with respect to the Series B Borsas forth in
Appendix G hereto.

To the extent the issue price of any maturity of the Series B Bonds is less thaodme am
to be paid at maturity of such Series B Bonds (excluding amountsl $tatee interest and
payable at least annually over the term of such Series B Bothds)ifference constitutes
“original issue discount,” the accrual of which, to the extent properly allecaldach Beneficial
Owner thereof, is treated as interest on the Series B Bamdh is excluded from gross income
for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from Maine personalédnizoms. For this
purpose, the issue price of a particular maturity of the Seri&sn@s is the first price at which a
substantial amount of such maturity of the Series B Bonds is stieé foublic (excluding bond
houses, brokers, or similar persons or organizations acting in the tgaptainderwriters,
placement agents or wholesalers). The original issue discountesfibat to any maturity of the
Series B Bonds accrues daily over the term to maturity of seisesSB Bonds on the basis of a
constant interest rate compounded semiannually (with straight-lingpotdgons between
compounding dates). The accruing original issue discount is added wjubeed basis of such
Series B Bonds to determine taxable gain or loss upon disposition (inchad@gedemption, or
payment on maturity) of such Series B Bonds. Beneficial Ownetedb¢ries B Bonds should
consult their own tax advisors with respect to the tax consequenasgnefship of Series B
Bonds with original issue discount, including the treatment of purchedergio not purchase
such Series B Bonds in the original offering to the public at thiepiirse at which a substantial
amount of such Series B Bonds is sold to the public.

Series B Bonds purchased, whether at original issuance or otherarisa) famount
greater than the stated principal amount to be paid at maturity lofSarees B Bonds, or, in
some cases, at the earlier redemption date of such Series B @@retaium Bonds”), will be
treated as having amortizable bond premium for federal income taogas and for Maine
personal income tax purposes. No deduction is allowable for theizabe bond premium in
the case of obligations, such as the Premium Bonds, the irdaredtich is excluded from gross
income for federal income tax purposes. However, a Beneficial Gsvbasis in a Premium
Bond will be reduced by the amount of amortizable bond premium properhalaldoto such
Beneficial Owner. Beneficial Owners of Premium Bonds should cotisit own tax advisors
with respect to the proper treatment of amortizable bond premiumheir particular
circumstances.

Bond Counsel has not undertaken to determine (or to inform any persomewhay
actions taken (or not taken) or events occurring (or not occurring)théelate of issuance of
the Series B Bonds may adversely affect the value of, or the tag efanterest on, the Series B
Bonds.



Prospective Beneficial Owners should be aware that from tintene legislation is or
may be proposed which, if enacted into law, could result in interest @eties B Bonds being
subject directly or indirectly to federal income taxation, or otherwrevent Beneficial Owners
from realizing the full benefit provided under current federal taxdatine exclusion of interest
on the Series B Bonds from gross income. To date, no such legisiagdoeen enacted into
law. However, it is not possible to predict whether any sugikl&ion will be enacted into law.
Further, no assurance can be given that any pending or future legislatioding@mendments
to the Code, if enacted into law, or any proposed legislation, including ameisdimé¢he Code,
or any future judicial, regulatory or administrative interpretatiodeselopment with respect to
existing law, will not adversely affect the market value andketability of, or the tax status of
interest on, the Series B Bonds. Prospective Beneficial Ovanersrged to consult their own
tax advisors with respect to any such legislation, interpretation or development.

Although Bond Counsel is of the opinion that interest on the Series B Boeasluded
from gross income for federal income tax purposes and for Maine pklsgcpae taxes
purposes, the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipteoésnbn, the Series B
Bonds may otherwise affect a Beneficial Owner’s federal aie gbx liability. The nature and
extent of all such other tax consequences will depend upon the partexlatatus of the
Beneficial Owner or the Beneficial Owner’s other items ofoine, deduction or exclusion.
Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such other tax consequences, &idl Benef
Owners should consult with their own tax advisors with respect to such consequences.

Series A Bonds — Federally Taxable Bonds

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing law, interest on the Seri&snds is
included in gross income for federal income tax purposes. Bond Counsedsegporn® opinion
regarding any other federal tax law consequences related to the dpmerdisposition of, or
accrual or receipt of interest on, the Series A Bonds.

Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that, under existing law, interest oBeties A
Bonds is excluded from gross income for Maine income tax purposes. BondeCexpresses
no opinion regarding any other Maine tax consequences arising with respgbet $eries A
Bonds. Bond Counsel also has not opined as to the taxability of the SelBesds or the
income therefrom under the laws of any state other than Maineconfplete copy of the
proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel with respect to the Series A Bosas$ forth in
Appendix G hereto.

The following discussion summarizes certain U.S. federal tax denagions generally
applicable to Beneficial Owners of the Series A Bonds that actjugir Series A Bonds in the
initial offering. The discussion below is based upon laws, regulatioimgysuand decisions in
effect and available on the date hereof, all of which are subjechange, possibly with
retroactive effect. Prospective investors should note that no rukavgsieen or are expected to
be sought from the IRS with respect to any of the U.S. federal incame&onsequences
discussed below, and no assurance can be given that the IRS wdkeaatontrary positions.
Further, the following discussion does not address all U.S. fede@héntax consequences
applicable to any given investor, nor does it address the U.S. fedevaie tax considerations
applicable to investors who may be subject to special taxing malgardless of whether or not
such persons constitute U.S. Holders), such as certain U.S. expatbatks, real estate
investment trusts, regulated investment companies, insurance compdamesxempt



organizations, dealers or traders in securities or currencigsefsnips, S corporations, estates
and trusts, investors who hold their Series A Bonds as part of a htadge)esor an integrated
or conversion transaction, or investors whose “functional currency” istheotJ.S. dollar.
Furthermore, the following discussion does not address (i) alternaivemum tax
consequences or (ii) the indirect effects on persons who hold equitgsisten a Beneficial
Owner of Series A Bonds. In addition, this summary generally igeliinto investors who
become Beneficial Owners of Series A Bonds pursuant to thd wififiing for the issue price
that is applicable to such Series A Bonds (i.e., the price at vehsttbstantial amount of such
Series A Bonds is first sold to the public) and who will hold tisgries A Bonds as “capital
assets” within the meaning of the Code.

As used herein, “U.S. Holder” means a Beneficial Owner of &$Sé Bond who for
U.S. federal income tax purposes is an individual citizen or residetiteobUnited States, a
corporation or other entity taxable as a corporation created anipegain or under the laws of
the United States or any State thereof (including the Disifi€@olumbia), an estate the income
of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless sbiurce or a trust with respect
to which a court within the United States is able to exercigeapy supervision over the
administration of the trust and one or more United States pem®meiined in the Code) have
the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trusta(tnust that has made a valid
election under Treasury Regulations to be treated as a domediic thssused herein, “Non-
U.S. Holder” generally means a Beneficial Owner of a Sé&iB®nd (other than a partnership)
who is not a U.S. Holder. If an entity classified as a partnefship).S. federal income tax
purposes is a Beneficial Owner of Series A Bonds, the tax teeatof a partner in such
partnership generally will depend upon the status of the partner and upactithigees of the
partnership. Partners in such partnerships should consult their own tax achgsoding the tax
consequences of an investment in the Series A Bonds (including thes a$aU.S. Holders or
Non-U.S. Holders).

U.S. Holders

Interest. Stated interest on the Series A Bonds generallgenidxable to a U.S. Holder
as ordinary interest income at the time such amounts are accrigioed, in accordance with
the U.S. Holder's method of accounting for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

“Original issue discount” will arise for U.S. federal incotag purposes in respect of any
Series A Bond if its stated redemption price at maturity édeés issue price by more than a de
minimis amount (as determined for tax purposes). For any SeriemdsBssued with original
issue discount, the excess of the stated redemption price at ynafuthait Series A Bond over
its issue price will constitute original issue discount for U.8effal income tax purposes. The
stated redemption price at maturity of a Series A Bond is thedofuali scheduled amounts
payable on such Series A Bond other than qualified stated intereSt. HOlders of Series A
Bonds generally will be required to include any original issue discount in income foredegalf
income tax purposes as it accrues, in accordance with a constahimgtiod based on a
compounding of interest (which may be before the receipt of cash payateiliutable to such
income). Under this method, U.S. Holders of Series A Bonds issuedrginal issue discount
generally will be required to include in income increasingly greateyuats of original issue
discount in successive accrual periods.



“Premium” generally will arise for U.S. federal income tax pugsos respect of any
Series A Bond to the extent its issue price exceeds its gtateipal amount. A U.S. Holder of
a Series A Bond issued at a premium may make an election, &bpltoaall debt securities
purchased at a premium by such U.S. Holder, to amortize suchupnemnsing a constant yield
method over the term of such Series A Bond.

Disposition of the Series A Bonds. Unless a nonrecognitionigioov of the Code
applies, the sale, exchange, redemption, retirement (including pursw@anbfter by the State),
reissuance or other disposition of a Series A Bond will be a taxable event foede&lfincome
tax purposes. In such event, a U.S. Holder of a Series A Bond gemaliailycognize gain or
loss equal to the difference between (i) the amount of cashhgdair market value of property
received (except to the extent attributable to accrued but unpaidsinte the Series A Bond
which will be taxed in the manner described above under “Interest’)ig the U.S. Holder’s
adjusted tax basis in the Series A Bond (generally, the purchase price paid b$.thelder for
the Series A Bond, increased by the amount of any original issue disceuiougty included in
income by such U.S. Holder with respect to such Series A Bond ancsiegriey any payments
previously made on such Series A Bond, other than payments of qualified sterest, or
decreased by any amortized premium). Any such gain or loss geneilalhe wapital gain or
loss. Defeasance or material modification of the terms pfSaries A Bond may result in a
deemed reissuance thereof, in which event a Beneficial Owner dkthased Series A Bonds
generally will recognize taxable gain or loss equal to the differbateeen the amount realized
from the sale, exchange or retirement (less any accrued qualifitsti interest which will be
taxable as such) and the Beneficial Owner’s adjusted tax basis in the Sened.A B

In the case of a non-corporate U.S. Holder of the Series A Bondsakimmum marginal
U.S. federal income tax rate applicable to any such gain maywes khan the maximum
marginal U.S. federal income tax rate applicable to ordinacgnie if such U.S. Holder’'s
holding period for the Series A Bonds exceeds one year. The deductibitipital losses is
subject to limitations.

Medicare Tax on Unearned Income. The Health Care and EduBatcamciliation Act
of 2010 (P.L. 111-152) requires certain U.S. Holders that are individutsesr trusts to pay
an additional 3.8% tax on, among other things, interest and gains from thersather
disposition of the Series A Bonds for taxable years beginning aéeerbber 31, 2012. U.S.
Holders that are individuals, estates or trusts should consulttéxemdvisors regarding the
effect, if any, of this legislation on their ownership and disposition of the Series A.Bonds

Non-U.S. Holders

The following discussion applies only to non-U.S. Holders. This discussionndbes
address all aspects of U.S. federal income taxation that magldvamt to non-U.S. Holders in
light of their particular circumstances. For example, specigsrmay apply to a non-U.S.
Holder that is a “controlled foreign corporation” or a “passive foremyestment company,”
and, accordingly, non-U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisors taonuhetethe
United States federal, state, local and other tax consequences ofjhiblliSeries A Bonds that
may be relevant to them.

Interest. Subject to the discussion below under the heading “Infomfaéporting and
Backup Withholding,” payments of principal of, and interest on, any Seriderd to a Non-



U.S. Holder, other than a bank which acquires such Series A Bond in catismesf an

extension of credit made pursuant to a loan agreement enterea ithte ordinary course of
business, generally will not be subject to any U.S. withholding tax providethth&eneficial

Owner of the Series A Bond provides a certification completed irpkance with applicable
statutory and regulatory requirements, which requirements are discheked under the
heading “Information Reporting and Backup Withholding,” or an exemption is vateer
established.

Disposition of the Series A Bonds. Subject to the discussiamwhahder the heading
“Information Reporting and Backup Withholding,” any gain realized by a Nonfibfler upon
the sale, exchange, redemption, retirement (including pursuant to an offdre bgtate),
reissuance or other disposition of a Series A Bond generaliyatilbe subject to U.S. federal
income tax, unless (i) such gain is effectively connected withrcdimneluct by such Non-U.S.
Holder of a trade or business within the United States; oin(the case of any gain realized by
an individual Non-U.S. Holder, such holder is present in the United $tat&83 days or more
in the taxable year of such sale, exchange, redemption, retiremeuadlifngcbursuant to an offer
by the State), reissuance or other disposition and certain other conditions.are met

U.S. Federal Estate Tax. A Series A Bond that is held by anduo@ivivho at the time
of death is not a citizen or resident of the United Statesnailbe subject to U.S. federal estate
tax as a result of such individual’'s death, provided that at the tirseabf individual's death,
payments of interest with respect to such Series A Bond would not beere effectively
connected with the conduct by such individual of a trade or business within the United States

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding—U.S. Holders and non-U.S. Holders

Interest on, and proceeds received from the sale of, a Pessd generally will be
reported to U.S. Holders, other than certain exempt recipients, sucbrgorations, on IRS
Form 1099. In addition, a backup withholding tax may apply to payments with respbe
Series A Bonds if the U.S. Holder fails to furnish the payor withraect taxpayer identification
number or other required certification or fails to report interestwidetds required to be shown
on the U.S. Holder’s federal income tax returns.

In general, a non-U.S. Holder will not be subject to backup withholdiny negpect to
interest payments on the Series A Bonds if such non-U.S. Holderriéisdtéo the payor under
penalties of perjury (i) the name and address of such non-U.S. Hold@r) &amat such non-U.S.
Holder is not a United States person, or, in the case of an individual, that such non-U.S.sHolder i
neither a citizen nor a resident of the United States, and the gag®mot know or have reason
to know that such certifications are false. However, informatiparteg on IRS Form 1042-S
may still apply to interest payments on the Series A Bonds made td.B8omolders not subject
to backup withholding. In addition, a non-U.S. Holder will not be subject to bacithipolding
with respect to the proceeds of the sale of a Series A Bwuk within the United States or
conducted through certain U.S. financial intermediaries if the payeivescthe certifications
described above and the payor does not know or have reason to know thattfficdtions are
false, or if the non-U.S. Holder otherwise establishes an exemgiion-U.S. Holders should
consult their own tax advisors regarding the application of informa@porting and backup
withholding in their particular circumstances, the availability ofnep&ons and the procedure
for obtaining such exemptions, if available.



Backup withholding is not an additional tax, and amounts withheld as backup
withholding are allowed as a refund or credit against a holder'salegeome tax liability,
provided that the required information as to withholding is furnished to the IRS.

The foregoing summary is included herein for general infiam only and does
not discuss all aspects of U.S. federal income taxatiah tiay be relevant to a particular
Beneficial Owner of Series A Bonds in light of the B&oial Owner’s particular
circumstances and income tax situation. Prospectivetionesire urged to consult their
own tax advisors as to any tax consequences to them fromputtehase, ownership and
disposition of Series A Bonds, including the applicatiord a&ffect of state, local, foreign
and other tax laws.

DOCUMENTS ACCOMPANYING DELIVERY OF THE BONDS
Absence of Litigation

Upon delivery of the Bonds, the State will furnish an opinion of the Dmpat of the
Attorney General, dated the date of delivery of the Bonds, to tket ¢fiat there is no litigation
of any nature pending or threatened to restrain or enjoin the issuashelévery of the Bonds or
in any way contesting or affecting the validity of the Bonds or any gbtbeeedings taken with
respect to the issuance and sale thereof or the levy or collettany taxes to pay principal of
or interest on the Bonds. In addition, such opinion will state thatdb@aseonsultations with
certain officers of the State, there is no litigation of anymreahow pending or threatened by or
against the State wherein an adverse judgment or ruling could haverahstverse effect on
the financial condition of the State or adversely affect the powtHreoState to levy, collect or
enforce the collection of taxes or other revenues for the payment afits Bvhich has not been
disclosed in this Official Statement.

Treasurer’s Certificate

Upon delivery of the Bonds, the State will furnish a certificatehefTreasurer of State,
dated the date of delivery of the Bonds, to the effect that to tlieobémr knowledge this
Official Statement does not contain any untrue statement afteriad fact or omit to state any
material fact necessary to make the statements made harkghtiof the circumstances under
which they were made, not misleading.

Legal Opinions

The opinions of Locke Lord LLP with respect to the validity and taxistaf the Bonds
will be delivered at the time of delivery of the Bonds in substiymtine forms set forth in
Appendix G to this Official Statement.

Except as to matters expressly set forth in their opinion, the scope of engageBamd
Counsel does not extend to passing upon or assuming responsibility for the accackxyuacy
of any statement made in this Official Statement, and they matepnesentation that they have
independently verified the same other than matters expressly set forth as their opinion.



Secondary Market Disclosure

In connection with the issuance of the Bonds, the State will unddrtake Bonds to
provide annual financial information and notices of certain events purgaaMunicipal
Securities Disclosure Rule, 17 CFR 8§240.15c2-12 (the “Rule”), promulggtélde Securities
and Exchange Commission. Such undertakings of the State are sumnrari&ependix H
hereto.

The following information describes the instances in the previousykaes of non-
compliance known to the State with the terms of certain @régious undertakings entered into
pursuant to the Rule.

The State has provided continuing disclosure undertakings with respestgentgral
obligation bonds issued from time to time and with respect taindsonds issued from time to
time by the Maine Governmental Facilities Authority ("MGFA") aagteed therein to provide
audited financial statements and annual financial information amdtopgedata within one year
after the June 30 end of each of its fiscal years. In ordaulfih $uch continuing disclosure
undertakings, it has been the State's practice to post its offiaieiments with respect to such
bonds on EMMA and to associate such official statements with Coh@tibers to which such
continuing disclosure undertakings apply. On June 5, 2012, the State's offiteahestt dated
May 31, 2012, which included annual financial information and operating data fiisdakyear
ended June 30, 2011 (“FY2011 Annual Financial Information”), was posted on EMMA.
However, that filing did not specifically associate such official statemghtGWSIP numbers to
which continuing disclosure undertakings apply. On August 16, 2013 a corretitigewas
made with respect to the FY 2011 Annual Financial Information. Iniaddithe State has
determined that while its annual financial information and audited fiabsigtements were filed
with EMMA in a timely manner each year, such filings did not dmadly associate such filings
with the MGFA bonds CUSIP numbers to which its continuing disclosurertakdegs apply.
On August 19, 2013, the State made a corrective filing with respeit$ annual financial
information and audited financial statements for the years ended30ur2908 through 2012.
On June 18, 2014, the State’s official statement dated June 12, 2014, whiclednahnual
financial information and operating data for the fiscal year ended 3002013 (“FY2013
Annual Financial Information”), was posted on EMMA. However, that filing did not spealtyfi
associate such official statement with CUSIP numbers to whe&Btate’s continuing disclosure
undertakings apply. On July 14, 2014, a corrective filing was posted on EMNWXegipect to
the FY2013 Annual Financial Information.

As described above, the Maine Municipal Bond Bank (the “Bank”) hasdssi&rant
Anticipation Bonds (Maine Department of Transportation) (the "GARMBoOnds") and, in
connection with such bonds, entered into substantially similar continuingsiise agreements
with the trustee for such bonds and the State, acting by and through #iseréreof State and
MaineDOT. In or about July, 2012, it was determined that MaineDOT hadongtlied in a
timely fashion with its continuing disclosure undertaking to post on EMNAinvthree months
after the end of each federal fiscal year annual financial irfbom and operating data with
respect to federal highway apportionments, obligation authority and resement receipts
available for GARVEE Bond payments. Such information for the fedesehlfyears ended
September 30, 2011 and 2012 was filed on EMMA on July 9, 2012 and January 8, 2013,
respectively.



The Bank has issued its Transportation Infrastructure Revenue BihedST¢ansCap
Bonds"), Series 2008A, Series 2009A, Series 2009B and Series 2011A and, irticonmitc
such bonds, entered into substantially similar continuing disclosure agresewith the trustee
for such bonds and MaineDOT. Before the issuance of the TransCap Bends, Z11A, it
was determined that MaineDOT had not complied in a timely fashidim #& continuing
disclosure agreements pertaining to the TransCap Bonds with respectain annual financial
information. On November 3, 2011, MaineDOT made filings that fulfillégraviously unmet
continuing disclosure undertakings related to such TransCap Bonds and RaireDised the
Bank that it had implemented procedures that MaineDOT believed tmdguate to assure
timely filing of information sufficient to comply with its continuing dissure undertakings with
respect to the TransCap Bonds. With respect to the Dece@p0B2 filing deadline, certain
financial information was filed on EMMA April 1, 2013. Audited financghtements of the
State required to be filed by June 30 of each fiscal year forfesmal year ended the prior June
30, were filed with EMMA in a timely manner; however, certaimds did not specifically
associate such filings with TransCap Bonds CUSIP numbers to wbitimuing disclosure
undertakings apply. On August 16, 2013, the State made a corrective filmgegpiect to those
financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2009 through 2012.

THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY

DTC will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bondsbwilssued as fully-
registered securities registered in the name of Cede &B0d&’s partnership nominee) or such
other name as may be requested by an authorized representative ofam€Gully-registered
Series A Bond certificate will be issued in the aggregate ipah@amount of each maturity
thereof and will be deposited with DTC. One fully-registered Sdi®&ond certificate will be
issued in the aggregate principal amount of each maturity thereof iinaevadeposited with
DTC.

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-p@ptwast company
organized under the New York Banking Law, a “banking organization” witlennteaning of
the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve Syat&iearing corporation”
within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, andleafing agency”
registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Seclixemnge Act of 1934, as
amended. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 millios isbueS. and non-
U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money mstrkehents (from
over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct Particiggrdeposit with DTC. DTC also
facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Partitspaf sales and other securities
transactions in deposited securities through electronic computerizedebtgktransfers and
pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This elingriageneed for physical movement
of securities certificates. Direct Participants include ddt8. and non-U.S. securities brokers
and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and cdnainrganizations. DTC
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Catpmt (“DTCC").
DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Cleariogp@ation and Fixed
Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearingcagge DTCC is owned by
the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to thedy$€m is also available to others such
as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trushiesmgad clearing
corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship avDirect Participant,
either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). DTkas a Standard & Poor’s rating of
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AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are lenviith the Securities and Exchange
Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org.

Purchases of the Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or throegh Di
Participants, which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTr€tords. The ownership interest
of each actual purchaser of each Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) isinm to be recorded on the
Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Ownerid not receive written
confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners laogjever, expected to receive
written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as agefperiodic statements of their
holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Ostered into
the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds heeaccomplished by entries
made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behBEnsficial Owners.
Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representheir ownership interests in Bonds,
except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by DiegtitiPants with DTC
are registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede. &or such other name as
may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The d#@dsiids with DTC and
their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTCine@rdo not effect any
change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual @ah€hvners of the
Bonds; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the DireatiBi@ants to whose accounts such
Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owndrs.DiFect and Indirect
Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of thedimgd on behalf of their
customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Directipants, by
Direct Participants to Indirect Participants, and by DiRatticipants and Indirect Participants to
Beneficial Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, stdojaoy statutory or
regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to. tiBeneficial Owners of the Bonds
may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmissitreno of notices of significant
events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions and defaultexakwmle, Beneficial
Owners of the Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holdingtits Bor their benefit
has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Ownerghe alternative, Beneficial
Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the r@tateqaest that copies of
notices be provided directly to them.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will coneemnote with
respect to the Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participagcordance with DTC’'s MMI
Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an omnibus proxyStateeas soon as
possible after the record date. The omnibus proxy assigns Cede’&cGosenting or voting
rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bondsealiteed on the record date
(identified in a listing attached to the omnibus proxy).

Principal and interest on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as
may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTCucpres to credit Direct
Participants’ accounts, upon DTC'’s receipt of funds and corresponding id&iathation from
the State on payable date in accordance with their respectivadgeokhown on DTC’s records.
Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be govehyedtanding instructions and
customary practices, as is the case with securities belthé accounts of customers in bearer
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form or registered in “street name,” and will be the respoitsilmf such Participant and not of
DTC, or the State, subject to any statutory or regulatory requireraenhay be in effect from
time to time. Payment of principal, interest and redemption padscédeany, to Cede & Co. (or
such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representddiV€)ofs the
responsibility of the State, and disbursement of such paymentseat Participants will be the
responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Bah&ieners will be the
responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities deposiitnyr@spect to the
Bonds at any time by giving reasonable notice to the State. Under istigimstances, in the
event that a successor securities depository is not obtained, Boiffidatest are required to be
printed and delivered.

The State may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entfgrsathsough
DTC (or a successor securities depository). In that event, Bonficagzs will be printed and
delivered to DTC.

The information concerning DTC and DTC'’s book-entry system has been obft@med
sources that the State believes to be reliable, but the State takepatsiteility for the accuracy
thereof.

THE STATE WILL NOT HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR OBLIGATION TO
PARTICIPANTS, OR THE PERSONS FOR WHOM THEY ACT AS NINEES WITH
RESPECT TO THE PAYMENTS TO OR THE PROVIDING OF N@H FOR THE DIRECT
PARTICIPANTS, THE INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS, OR THE BENHCIAL OWNERS OF
THE BONDS. NO ASSURANCES CAN BE PROVIDED THAT IN BHEVENT OF
BANKRUPTCY OR INSOLVENCY OF DTC OR A DIRECT PARTIGANT OR INDIRECT
PARTICIPANT THROUGH WHICH A BENEFICIAL OWNER HOLDINTERESTS IN THE
BONDS, PAYMENT WILL BE MADE BY DTC, THE DIRECT PARTIGPANT OR THE
INDIRECT PARTICIPANT ON A TIMELY BASIS.

SO LONG AS CEDE & CO., AS NOMINEE OF DTC, IS THE HOER OF ALL OF
THE BONDS, REFERENCES HEREIN TO THE OWNERS OR HOLERF THE BONDS
SHALL MEAN CEDE & CO. AND SHALL NOT MEAN THE BENEFITAL OWNERS.
THEREFORE, ANY STATEMENTS IN THE OFFICIAL STATEMENTSUMMARIZING
THE TERMS OF PAYMENT AND REDEMPTION OF THE BONDS, AN
REQUIREMENTS OF NOTICE TO HOLDERS OF THE BONDS ANANY RIGHTS OF
CONSENT OF THE HOLDERS OF THE BONDS SHALL APPLY TOEDE & CO., AS
HOLDER OF THE BONDS, AND NO REPRESENTATIONS ARE MADE RESPECT OF
THE FOREGOING TO THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF THE BONDS.

RATINGS

Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. and Standard & Poor's Ratings Seraadigision of
The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., have assigned their municipal bomfysadf “Aa2” with a
“Stable” outlook and “AA” with a “Stable” outlook, respectively, to therils. The State has
furnished such rating agencies with certain information and matedatsrning the Bonds and
the State, some of which is not included in this Official Statégm Generally, each such rating
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agency bases its ratings on such information and materials and alsxlomngestigations,
studies and assumptions as each may undertake or establish independently.

The ratings are not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold the Bonds argliehahting
should be evaluated independently and should not be relied on in making any investment
decision. Such ratings reflect only the respective views of eaahg ragency, and an
explanation of the significance of such ratings may be obtained from the rating agerstyirigr
the same. There is no assurance that a rating will contina@yagiven period of time or that a
rating will not be revised or withdrawn entirely by any or all offstating agencies if, in its or
their judgment, circumstances so warrant. Any downward revision bdraiwal of a rating
could have an adverse effect on the market prices of the Bonds.

COMPETITIVE SALE OF BONDS

The Bonds were offered for sale at competitive bidding on June 9, 2015 onulawoe
with the Amended and Restated Notice of Sale dated June 8, 2015 (hisascBA@pendix ).
Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC (the “Series A Purchaser”) was theessful bidder for the Series
A Bonds. Information provided by the Series A Purchaser regarding #resnhtrates and
reoffering yields of the Bonds is set forth on the inside cover ofQffisial Statement. The
Series A Bonds are being purchased from the State by the SeAaschaser at an aggregate
price of $14,264,963.13, reflecting the principal amount of $14,200,000, plus aggregate original
issue premium of $85,876.20, less underwriter's discount of $20,913.07. Barcldia Cw.
(the “Series B Purchaser”) was the successful bidder for ¢nesSB Bonds. Information
provided by the Series B Purchaser regarding the interest rates andnggfields of the Bonds
is set forth on the inside cover of this Official Statementhe Beries B Bonds are being
purchased from the State by the Series B Purchaser at an aggrdgatof $99,831,494.05,
reflecting the principal amount of $88,355,000, plus aggregate original issueuipreoihi
$11,583,403.60, less underwriter’s discount of $106,909.55.

Morgan Stanley, parent company of Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, the succesidfer
for the Series A Bonds, has entered into a retail distributiomgegraent with Morgan Stanley
Smith Barney LLC. As part of the distribution arrangement, Morgan &talCo. LLC may
distribute municipal securities to retail investors through the finhradvisor network of
Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC. As part of this arrangement, Morgame$ & Co. LLC
may compensate Morgan Stanley Smith Barney LLC for its sedfffayts with respect to the
Series A Bonds.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

The State has retained First Southwest Company, LLC (the “Fih&ubiesor”) to serve
as its financial advisor in connection with the issuance of the Bohlas.Financial Advisor has
not independently verified any of the information contained in this Offgtialement and makes
no guarantee as to its completeness or accuracy. The FinanciabrAdvee for services
rendered with respect to the sale of the Bonds is contingent uposubhads and delivery of the
Bonds, and receipt by the State of payment therefor. The State ngageethe Financial
Advisor to perform other services, including without limitation, providingate investment
services with regard to the investment of Bond proceeds.
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MISCELLANEOUS

Any provisions of the constitution of the State, of all laws and ofralbeuments set
forth or referred to in this Official Statement are only sumed, and such summaries do not
purport to be complete statements of any of such provisions. Only thd setuaf such
provisions can be relied upon for completeness and accuracy.

This Official Statement, including all appendices hereto, contameaircéorward-looking
statements that are subject to a variety of risks and untesaihat could cause actual results to
differ from the projected results, including without limitation geh@@onomic and business
conditions, conditions in the financial markets, the financial conditiothefState and various
State agencies and authorities, receipt of federal grantmtilitn, arbitration, force majeure
events and various other factors that are beyond the control of teeaBthits various agencies
and authorities. Because of the inability to predict all factioas may affect future decisions,
actions, events or financial circumstances, what actually happgnberdifferent from what is
set forth in such forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statermentiadicated by use of
such words as “may,” “should,” “intends,” “expects,” “believes,” “antitgsd’ “estimates” and
others.

All estimates and assumptions in this Official Statement Hmeen made on the best
information available and are believed to be reliable, but no repatiems whatsoever are made
that such estimates and assumptions are correct. So far astasayents in this Official
Statement involve any matters of opinion, whether or not expressifataal, they are intended
merely as such and not as representations of fact. The variousnayle®t add due to rounding
of figures.

Neither the Office of the State Auditor, nor any other independent aectsinhave
compiled, examined or performed any procedures with respect to amgcifihanformation
contained herein, nor have they expressed any opinion or any other form ahassoim such
information.

The information, estimates and assumptions and expressions of opintua (fficial
Statement are subject to change without notice. Neither the delivdmg @fficial Statement nor
any sale made pursuant to this Official Statement shall, uaglercircumstances, create any
implication that there has been no change in the affairs of thee @tds agencies, authorities or
political subdivisions since the date of this Official Statement, exceppasssly stated.

Questions regarding this Official Statement or requests fortiawlali information
concerning the State should be directed to Terry Hayes, Treasur¢éatef 3 State House
Station, Augusta, Maine 04333, telephone: 207-624-7477; facsimile: 207-287-2367.

STATE OF MAINE

By:_/s/ Terry Hayes

Dated: June 9, 2015 Treasurer of State
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GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION

The State of Maine (the “State” or “Maine”) becathe twenty-third state of the United States in
1820. The government of the State is divided thtee distinct branches, the legislative, execudive
judicial, as outlined in the chart below.

Electorate

Legislative Branch Judicial Branch Executive Branch

Supreme Judicial

Senate ah Court Governor
House of
Representatives | Other Courts|
Attorney Treasurer Secretary of State
General of State State Auditor

Commissioners

Administrative & Agriculture, Defense, Veterans
Financial Conservation & Corrections & Emergenc
Services Foresty Management
Economlg & q i Environmental Health and Huma Inland Fisheries &
Community Education Protection Services Wildlife

Development

Professional &
Labor Marine Resource$ Financial Public Safety Transportation
Regulation

Executive Branch

The Offices of Governor, Secretary of State, Treasof State and Attorney General are created
by the Constitution of the State. The Governoelected quadrennially at a general election and is
limited to two consecutive four-year terms of officThe second term of the present Governor began i
January 2015. The Secretary of State, Treasurebtate and Attorney General are each elected
biennially by a joint ballot of the state Senatargl Representatives in convention. A person may no
serve more than four consecutive terms as eitheregey of State, Treasurer of State or Attorney
General.

Governor. The executive power of the State, inadgdhe power to recommend measures to
the Legislature, and the power to appoint, withdaldgice and consent of the Senate, certain officers
State government, is vested in the Governor. Thee@or is responsible for the enforcement of the
laws of the State.
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Governor’s Cabinet. The Governor’s cabinet, whashists the Governor in administration and
policymaking, includes the commissioners who hé&d1d executive departments and who serve at the
pleasure of the Governor.

Secretary of State. The Secretary of State, atibatienal officer, serves as executive head of
the Department of the Secretary of State, andtisoaized to keep his office at the seat of govemime
have the custody of the state seal and preservealtds in such office at the expense of the State
keep and preserve the records of all the offiaiéd and proceedings of the Governor, Senate andeHou
of Representatives, and, when required, lay theeshafore either branch of the Legislature, and
perform such other duties as are enjoined by thestation or required by law. The Secretary citSt
attends to the Governor, Senate and House of Reypetwes as they shall respectively require;
appoints and renews all notaries public commissigrepares commissions for appointees, and
certificates of election to office for presentatimnthe Governor under the seal of the State;ildigts
printed information and instructions, ballots aranlis for all election returns required by law terks
of the several towns; files articles of incorpavati files notices of certain security interests and
performs other receiving, filing and recording ftions for which fees may be collected; files rules
adopted pursuant to the Administrative Proceduré Annually registers motor vehicles and issues
licenses for operators thereof; issues certificafetitle, licenses new and used car dealers; ramist
official state records considered to be permanemfjuable; administers the State’s address
confidentiality program and the Office of the Smalusiness Advocate; and supervises the
Department’s subdivisions as required by statutk racommends to the Legislature such changes as
may be required to modernize and improve the fonstand services rendered by the Department.

Treasurer of State. The Treasurer of State, atibatienal officer, is authorized to receive and
keep records of all items of income accruing to $tete; to deposit such items in banks, reconeii@ s
balances and temporarily invest idle funds; to selids and notes of the State as approved by ldw an
keep records pertaining to such debt; to maintaomthly exhibits concerning these moneys; to enter
into contracts or agreements with banks for custodare and servicing of negotiable securities
belonging to the State; and to establish accourtts such banks for servicing State agencies. The
Treasurer of State also administers the Unclaintegd?ty Program. The Treasurer of State is an ex
officio member of the boards of a number of autiesiand bodies established by the State, including
the Maine Municipal Bond Bank, the Maine Public Hoyees Retirement System, the Maine Health
and Higher Educational Facilities Authority, the i Governmental Facilities Authority, the Maine
State Housing Authority, the Finance Authority o&ide, the Maine Public Utility Financing Bank, the
Adaptive Equipment Loan Board, the Northern MainenBmission Corporation, the Board of
Emergency Municipal Finance, the Indian Housing fgage Insurance Committee, the Dirigo Health
Agency Board of Trustees, Maine Vaccine Board dral Nlaine Educational Loan Authority, and is
Chair of the NextGen Investment Advisory Board.

The Treasurer of State is responsible daily foritlrestment of those funds not required to meet
current expenditures. Daily deposits are placeldcal depositories statewide, wired daily to atcan
working account and invested fully. All check diskements are made by the Treasurer of State on
warrants issued by the State Controller. Fundsdisbursed on bank accounts established under
competitive bidding. Funds are transferred froceigt accounts to disbursement accounts by wire as
needed to meet balance requirements.

The Treasurer of State maintains a record of akipgs, disbursements and transfer activity and
balances to the State Controller monthly. The Juwesr of State maintains the records of the
investments of the State through the State investipeol. The investment pool comprises the entire
cash availability of the State (all funds) as wasdl component units that elect to participate. Mignt
transfers of earnings are made by the Treasur8taié to participating funds. The Treasurer ofeSta
compiles a listing of State investments held magnthl
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When there is money in the State Treasury thabisneeded to meet current obligations, the
Treasurer of State may invest, with the concurresicthe State Controller or the Commissioner of
Administrative and Financial Services and with domsent of the Governor, those amounts in bonds,
notes, certificates of indebtedness or other otiiga of the United States and its agencies and
instrumentalities that mature not more than 36 m®ritom the date of investment, or in repurchase
agreements that mature within the succeeding 12hmdhat are secured by obligations of the United
States and its agencies and instrumentalities, epwammercial paper, tax-exempt obligations and
corporate bonds rated “AAA” that mature not morartt86 months from the date of investment, or
banker's acceptances or so-called “no-load” shafesny investment company registered under
applicable Federal law that complies with certagdéral guidelines and maintains a constant share
price.

Attorney General. The Attorney General’s primaegponsibility is to protect public rights and
preserve order through serving as the State’s ddwefofficer and legal representative of the State.
this capacity, the Attorney General ensures enfoecg of Maine laws through instituting, conducting,
and maintaining such actions and proceedings apuhkc interest may require. No State agency may
appear and advocate positions before a court wittheuapproval of the Attorney General.

The Department of the Attorney General is autharie (a) appear for the State, or any State
agency or official, in all civil actions and prockegs in which the State is a party or interestedn
which the official acts of such officers are quesséd in State or Federal courts or Federal agenties
control and direct the investigation and prosecuiwd homicides and other major crimes, including
frauds against the State; (c) render all legaliseswequired by State officers, boards and comarmiss
in matters relating to their official duties; (dsue written opinions upon questions of law suleahitiy
the Governor, the head of any State departmengemay, or by either branch of the Legislature or an
member of the Legislature on legislative mattees; énforce due application of funds given or
appropriated to public trusts and charities withie State and prevent breaches of trust in the
administration thereof; (f) consult with and advibe District Attorneys in matters relating to thei
duties, and, in the discretion of the Attorney Gaheact in place of or with them in institutingdan
conducting prosecutions for crime; and (g) admamisind enforce the State unfair trade practices and
antitrust laws.

Beyond the general purposes discussed above, thendy General has a wide range of duties
which the office is specifically directed to pemor Those duties include a review and approvabas t
form and legality of all regulations of State agescsubject to the Administrative Procedure Act.
Among other specific statutory functions, the Atiey General must also review and approve write-offs
of debts owed to the State, enforce standardsrafust of the legal profession and participate irkimg
investment decisions regarding the State trustfund

Office of the State Auditor

The Office of the State Auditor is headed by thet&Auditor, who is elected by the Legislature
by a joint ballot of the Senators and Represerdgatim convention to hold office for a term of four
years. A person may not serve more than two coisecterms as State Auditor. The Office of the
State Auditor is authorized to audit all accountsl ather financial records of State government,
including the Judiciary and the Executive Departh@@ithe Governor, except the Governor's expense
account, and to report annually on this audit, anguch other times as the Legislature may reqtore;
review and study departmental budgets and capitairams for better and efficient management of
State government; to serve as a staff agency toL#wslature or to the Governor in making
investigations of any phase of the State's fingnaed to perform audits of all accounts and finahci
records of any organization, institution or othatitg receiving or requesting an appropriation oarg
from the State; to issue reports on such audits iamdstigations; and to conduct financial and
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compliance audits of financial transactions andants kept by or for State agencies subject tor&de
single audit requirements.

The Legislature

The legislative power of the State is vested inemdfe and a House of Representatives
(collectively, the “Legislature”), each of whichda negative on the other. The Senate consis2§ of
members and the House of Representatives con$ittslanembers, all of whom are elected for two-
year terms from single-member districts. A pers@y not serve more than four consecutive terms as
either a senator or a representative.

The Legislature is organized into 17 Joint Standdagnmittees, each comprised of 3 Senators
and 10 Representatives. Current Joint Standing nditiees are: Agriculture, Conservation and
Forestry; Appropriations and Financial Affairs; loap Commerce, Research and Economic
Development; Criminal Justice and Public Safetyudadion and Cultural Affairs; Health and Human
Services; Inland Fisheries and Wildlife; Insuraaoe Financial Services; Judiciary; Veterans andalLeg
Affairs; Marine Resources; Environment and NatuReésources; State and Local Government;
Taxation; Transportation; Energy Utilities and Meclogy; and Government Oversight. From time to
time, the Legislature has established joint seteatmittees on such matters as Maine’s workforce and
economic future, property tax reform, health cafenm, research and development, corrections, india
affairs and rules.

The Legislature of the State convenes in even-nuedbgears on the first Wednesday of
December following the general election in whadésignated the first regular session of the Letyista
and also convenes on the first Wednesday aftefitsteTuesday of January in the subsequent even-
numbered year in what is designated the secondaregession of the Legislature. The business ®f th
second regular session of the Legislature is lunite budgetary matters, legislation in the Govemor
call, legislation of an emergency nature admittgdhe Legislature, legislation referred to comnagte
for study and report by the Legislature in thetfirsgular session and legislation presented to the
Legislature by written petition of the voters puastito the Constitution of the State. The Legiskat
may convene at such other times in special sessiothe call of the President of the Senate and the
Speaker of the House, with the consent of the ntgjof the members of the Legislature of each
political party, all members of the Legislature imayv first been polled. The Governor may, on
extraordinary occasions, also convene special@essif the Legislature.

The Constitution requires the Legislature to ea@gropriate statutory limits on the length of the
first and second regular sessions. Under thetstaturently in effect, the first regular sessidrthe
Legislature adjourns no later than the third Wedagsn June and the second regular session of the
Legislature adjourns no later than the third Wedagsin April. The Legislature, in the case of
emergency, may by a vote of two-thirds of the memmbef each of the Senate and House of
Representatives present and voting, extend thefdatadjournment by no more than five legislative
days, and, in the case of further emergency, fuléend the date for adjournment by five additiona
legislative days. The times for adjournment foe first and second regular sessions may also be
extended for one additional legislative day for plugpose of considering any veto by the Governor of
any bill or resolution passed by the Legislatufidhe 127" Legislature is currently meeting in its first
regular session.

The Legislature, with certain exceptions, is auttest to make and establish all reasonable laws
and regulations for the defense and benefit ofpttaple of the State, not repugnant to the Constitut
of the State, nor to that of the United Statesgidlation enacted by the Legislature may be vetned
the Governor. The Governor’s veto may be overmdag the subsequent vote of at least two-thirds of
each of the House of Representatives and the Semae Governor also has “line-item” veto power to
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decrease appropriations or allocations and to asereleappropriations or deallocations within one da
after the Governor receives legislation for appltovarhe Governor's “line-item” veto may be
overridden by the subsequent vote of at least anhapf each of the House of Representatives aed t
Senate. Legislation does not become effectivel @idays after the recess of the session of the
Legislature in which it was passed, unless in cdsamergency the Legislature shall, by a vote a-tw
thirds of all the members elected to each of theiddoof Representatives and the Senate, otherwise
direct.

The Constitution of the State provides that, upaoitteén petition by voters equal to not less than
10% of the total vote cast in the last gubernattetiction preceding such petition and filed orbefore
the ninetieth day after recess of the Legislaterpiesting that legislation passed by the Legistawit
not then in effect be submitted to referendum &tification by a majority of those voting theresugch
legislation does not take effect, if at all, urtilrty days after the Governor has announced thel s
legislation has been ratified by the voters. Anwghsratification vote would take place at the next
statewide or general election, not less than 6 @der the Governor has proclaimed that sufficient
signatures have been submitted.

The Constitution of the State provides that, byttemi petition, voters equal to not less than 10%
of the total vote cast in the last gubernatoriat®bn preceding such petition and filed beforegutar
session of the Legislature may propose legislatmrthe Legislature for its consideration. The
legislation, unless adopted by the Legislature evitnchange, must be submitted to referendum in the
next November after the Legislature recesses.

Pursuant to the Constitution of the State, legisgtaenactments, including bills, orders or
resolutions, may originate in either the Senatéher House of Representatives, and may be altered,
amended, or rejected in the other, but all bills f@ising a revenue shall originate in the House of
Representatives, but the Senate may propose amatglaee in other cases, provided that the Senate
shall not, under color of amendment, introduce asyw matter which does not relate to raising a
revenue.

The Judiciary

The judicial power of the State is vested in ther8me Judicial Court and such other courts as
the Legislature may establish. The Legislaturedstablished the Superior Court and the DistriairCo
The courts are administered by the AdministrativBc® of the Courts under the direction of the Stat
Court Administrator, who is appointed by and seraethe pleasure of the Chief Justice. In addijtion
the Constitution of the State provides for prolzaterts in each of the 16 counties of the State.

The Supreme Judicial Court is the highest couMaine, and as the Law Court is the court of
final appeal. It consists of the Chief Justice andAssociate Justices, each of whom is appoibted
the Governor with the consent of the Legislatureafgeven-year term.

The Superior Court and the District Court are btihl courts of limited, complimentary
jurisdiction. The Superior Court offers jury tgahnd the District Court does not. The Superiour€Co
consists of a Chief Justice and 16 justices, wieoagpointed by the Governor with the consent of the
Legislature for a seven-year term. The SuperiarrCwaolds sessions in each of the 16 counties.

The District Court consists of a Chief Judge, aldgChief Judge and 34 judges, each of whom

is appointed by the Governor with the consent efltkgislature for a seven-year term. There are 13
districts and several divisions of the court.
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Independent Authorities and Agencies

The State has established several independentraigth@and agencies, the budgets of which are
not included in the annual budget of the State.rtale of these authorities and agencies receive
appropriations from the State from time-to-time. er@in of these authorities and agencies are
authorized by the statutes creating such authsritied agencies to issue bonds and to undertake
financial obligations, payment of which are securegart by special reserve funds (“Capital Res&ive
to which the State may appropriate funds in oraenmaintain the Capital Reserves at amounts
determined by such statutes or by such authoatrelsagencies (a “Capital Reserve Provision”). Whil
the bonds and obligations of such authorities aggheies and the Capital Reserve Provisions do not
constitute legally enforceable obligations of that& or create any debt on behalf of the State, the
Constitution of the State does not prohibit futuegislatures from appropriating sums requestednyy a
such authority or agency in compliance with its i@dgReserve Provision. Certain of these authesiti
and agencies have been authorized by statute toeireg guarantee repayment of certain loans and
bonds. See “Fiscal Management - ConstitutionaltRémit” and “Certain Public Instrumentalities”
herein.

County and Municipal Government

The State is divided into 16 county governmentpaasible for various functions, including the
operation of county jails and registries of proketd deeds. Each county government assessesstise co
of its operations upon the cities, towns and Unoigd Territories located within the county.

The State is further divided into 22 cities, 43%ms, 34 plantations, and 4 Indian nations or
territories which exercise the functions of munaigovernment, including the provision of elemeytar
and secondary education. There are also a nunfl@manganized townships and coastal and inland
islands and three Indian Reservations. Citiesganeerned by several variations of the mayor and
council form of government. In most towns, exesaifpower has been placed in a board of three, five,
or seven selectmen, elected to terms of from ortbrée years and legislative power has been retaine
by the voters themselves, who assemble in periogén town meetings. There are various regional
districts for school, water supply, solid wastestesvater disposal and other purposes.

Municipal revenues consist of property taxes, l@dl (including State subsidies for education
and revenue sharing), local receipts (includinganethicle and watercraft excise taxes, finesnkee
and permit fees, charges for local services anésiment income) and other sources.

FISCAL MANAGEMENT
Department of Administrative and Financial Services

The Department of Administrative and Financial $8¥s, under the supervision and control of
the Commissioner of Administrative and Financiah@®s, is the principal fiscal department of State
government. The Commissioner of Administrative dfdancial Services has certain duties and
authorities, including serving as the Governorisgpal fiscal aide, coordinating financial plangiand
programming activities of the State governmentrémiew and action by the Governor, preparing and
reporting to the Governor and the Legislature sfichncial data or statistics as may be required or
requested by them, planning with respect to theafiseeds of State government and ensuring that all
publications stating the salary of a State empl@}se state the value of the employee’s fringe fisne
The Department of Administrative and Financial $&s includes the Bureau of the Budget, headed by
the State Budget Officer, the Office of the Statnttoller and the Bureau of Maine Revenue Services,
headed by the State tax assessor and the AssGaatmissioner for Tax Policy.
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Constitutional Debt Limit

Article 1X, Section 14, of the Constitution of tis&tate provides that the Legislature shall not at
any time create any debt or debts, liability obilities, on behalf of the State, which shall singdr in
the aggregate, with previous debts and liabilitresurred, exceed $2,000,000, (i) except to suppress
insurrection, to repel invasion, or for purposesvaf; (ii) except for temporary loans to be paid ol
money raised by taxation during the fiscal yeawimch they are made; and (iii) excepting also that
whenever two-thirds of both the Senate and the el@misRepresentatives shall deem it necessary, by
proper enactment ratified by a majority of the &les voting thereon at a general or special elactize
Legislature may authorize the issuance of bondsetwalf of the State at such times and in such atsoun
and for such purposes as may be approved by su@mn.acSee Exhibit D, “Selected Information
Regarding Authorized and Outstanding Debt of treeSt Authorized Expenditures,” herein sets forth
information regarding bonds currently authorizedspant to certain enactments which have been
ratified by a majority of the voters at variousatiens. Temporary loans to be paid out of moneys
raised by taxation during any fiscal year shall epteed in the aggregate during the fiscal year in
guestion an amount greater than ten percent ¢fi@lnoneys appropriated, authorized and allocaged b
the Legislature from undedicated revenues to thee@éd Fund and dedicated revenues to the Highway
Fund for that fiscal year, exclusive of proceedexpenditures from the sale of bonds, or greatan th
one percent of the total valuation of the Statachdwver is the lesser.

The Constitution also allows the Legislature tdhautze the issuance of bonds (i) in the amount
of up to $4,000,000 to guarantee student loansto(insure payments on up to $4,000,000 of modgag
loans for war veterans; and (iii) to insure payrseah up to $90,000,000 of mortgage loans for
industrial, manufacturing, fishing agricultural anecreational enterprises. The Finance Authority of
Maine is authorized to guarantee student loanst@amasure payments on certain mortgage loans. See
“Certain Public Instrumentalities — Finance Autlyprof Maine." The Constitution also allows the
Legislature to authorize the issuance of bondagore payments on up to $1,000,000 of mortgagesloan
for Indian housing. The Maine State Housing Auittyais authorized to insure payments on mortgage
loans for Indian housing. See “Certain Public runstentalities — Maine State Housing Authority”
herein. Although the Constitution also allows ttegislature to authorize the issuance of bonds to
insure the payment of revenue bonds of the Mairteo@cBuilding Authority on school projects not
exceeding $6,000,000, the statutory authorizatamirisurance of Maine School Building Authority
revenue bonds has been repealed. No bonds araralitgy pursuant to any of the authorizations
described in this paragraph.

Overview of the Budget Process

The budget of the State government must presemmnplete financial plan for each fiscal year of
the ensuing period of two fiscal years, commendulg 1 in odd-numbered years. The budget must set
forth all proposed expenditures for the adminigirgtoperation and maintenance of the departments
and agencies of State government, all interestdatl redemption charges during each fiscal year and
all expenditures for capital projects to be undentaand executed during each fiscal year of such tw
year period. In addition, the budget must setftine anticipated revenues of the State governaraht
any other means of financing expenditures propésreeach fiscal year of such two-year period.

The State budget consists of a budget messageebGdernor (or the Governor-elect) that
outlines the financial policy of the State govermtéor the ensuing period of four fiscal years,
describing in connection therewith the importargtéees of the financial plan. The Governor’'s budget
overview must also lay out a vision for the State@sg-range financial plan and describe how the
proposed budget complements that longer visionchvimcludes the current biennium and the two
succeeding biennia.
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The budget includes a general budget summary gdtinth the aggregate figures of the budget
showing the balance between total proposed expeeditand total anticipated revenues, together with
other means of financing the budget for each figeak of the ensuing two fiscal years, contrastad w
the corresponding figures for the last completextdii year and the fiscal year in progress. For
information regarding the revenue projection precege “Fiscal Management — Revenue Forecasting”
below. The budget specifically describes the estdah loss in revenue during the last completedlfisc
year and the fiscal year in progress and the aatied loss in revenue for each fiscal year of sweh
year period caused by tax expenditures providedaly The general budget summary must be
supported by explanatory schedules or statemelassifying the expenditures contained therein by
organization units, objects and funds, and thernmedy organization units, sources and funds. The
budget also includes statements of the bonded iedebss of the State government showing the debt
redemption requirements, the debt authorized arsbued, and the condition of the sinking funds.

Pursuant to Public Laws of Maine 2005, chapterZD@5 Chapter 2”), the total General Fund
appropriation for each of the two fiscal yearshe biennial budget may not exceed the General Fund
appropriation limit established by law, except #seowise provided by law. See “Fiscal Management —
General Fund Appropriation Limit.” 2005 Chapteb@came effective for fiscal biennia of the State
beginning July 1, 2005 and is subject to modifmatr repeal at any time by the Legislature.

On or before September 1 of even-numbered yedrdephrtments and other agencies of the
State government and corporations and associatemesving or desiring to receive State funds must
prepare and submit to the State Budget Officermedts of their expenditure and appropriation
requirements for each fiscal year of the ensuingyear fiscal period contrasted with the correspand
figures of the last completed fiscal year and tsineated figures for the fiscal year in progre3he
growth in the State’s General Fund appropriaticndimited by law to the ten-year average annual
growth in real personal income (not to exceed 2)/pls the ten-year average in population growth.
State general purpose aid for kindergarten to gi&deducation (“GPA”) is excluded from the General
Fund appropriation limit until such time as thet8tshare of education funding reaches 55% of tota
state and local education funding. See “Fiscal &g@ment — General Fund Appropriation Limit” and
“State Budgets” below.

The Governor (or the Governor-elect), with the stasice of the State Budget Officer, reviews
the budget estimates and may alter, revise, inereaslecrease the items of the estimates as may be
deemed necessary in view of the needs of the \@departments and agencies and the total antidipate
income of the State government during the enswuagytear fiscal period. The State Budget Officér, a
the direction of the Governor (or the Governor-glehen prepares a State budget in the form reduir
by law. The Governor must transmit the budgeh®ltegislature not later than the Friday followthg
first Monday in January of odd-numbered years. @vé&nor-elect to his first term of office must
transmit the State budget to the Legislature ntrléhan the Friday following the first Monday in
February in odd-numbered years.

Not later than June 1 of each year, the head df dapartment and agency of State government
must submit to the State Bureau of the Budget &wwoogram for the ensuing fiscal year. Such work
program must include all appropriations, revenudemjsfers and other funds made available to that
department or agency for its operation and maimesaand for the acquisition of property, and must
show the requested allotments of said sums by epsafor the entire fiscal year, classified to show
allotments requested for specific amounts for paabkeervices, capital expenditures and amountalfor
other departmental expenses. The Governor, wétlasisistance of the State Budget Officer, reviéwes t
requested allotments with respect to the work @wgof each department or agency and may revise,
alter or change its allotments before approvingdame. The aggregate of such allotments may not
exceed the total sums made available to each degatrior agency for the fiscal year in question.e Th
State Budget Officer transmits a copy of the allatis as approved by the Governor to the head of the
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department or agency concerned and also a copyetBtate Controller. The State Controller autlesriz
all expenditures to be made from the sums availabléhe basis of such allotments and not otherwise.
Thereafter, the head of any department or agencthefState government may request, and the
Governor may approve, revisions of the allotmeatghe remaining quarters of a fiscal year.

Whenever it appears to the Commissioner of Adnraiisie and Financial Services that the
anticipated revenue and other available funds @fState will not be sufficient to meet the expeunais
authorized by the Legislature, the Commissionereqmrts in writing to the Governor and to certain
officers of the Legislature. After receiving theport, the Governor may temporarily curtail allotrtze
equitably so that expenditures will not exceed dhécipated income and other available funds. The
Governor, upon the curtailment of any allotmenttifres certain officers of the Legislature of the
specific allotments curtailed, the extent of cum@&nt of each allotment and the effect of each
curtailment on the objects and purposes of therprogo affected.

No State department or agency may make expenditdirasy Federal funds or expenditures in
anticipation of receipt of Federal funds for anyvner expanded programs, unless such Federal funds
are approved by the Legislature. The Governor andljorize the expenditure of such Federal funds for
a period not to exceed twelve calendar months halll sotify the Office of Fiscal and Program Review
of the Legislature of such action.

Revenue Forecasting

Statutory Responsibilities. A Revenue Forecasiogimittee is responsible for providing the
Governor, the Legislature and the State Budgetc&ffivith analyses, findings and recommendations
relating to the projection of revenues for the Gah&und and the Highway Fund based on economic
assumptions recommended by the Consensus Econoonerdsting Commission. The Revenue
Forecasting Committee includes the State Budgat@ffthe Associate Commissioner for Tax Policy,
the State Economist, an economist on the facultghef University Maine System selected by the
chancellor, the Director of the Office of FiscaldaRrogram Review of the Legislature and another
member of the Legislature’s nonpartisan staff feamivith revenue estimating issues appointed by the
Legislative Council. The Revenue Forecasting Caemimeets at least four times a year.

The Revenue Forecasting Committee develops cufisal biennium and two ensuing fiscal
biennia revenue projections using the economicragians recommended by the Consensus Economic
Forecasting Commission. The Revenue Forecastingn@itee submits recommendations for State
revenue projections for the next two fiscal bierana analyzes revenue projections for the curiscalf
biennium. No later than December 1 of each evenbaued year, the Revenue Forecasting Committee
submits to the Governor, certain members of theildlaire and the State Budget Officer analyses,
findings and recommendations for General Fund aighwhy Fund revenue projections for the next
two fiscal biennia. No later than May 1 and Decemb of each odd-numbered year and no later than
March 1 and December 1 of each even-numbered feaRevenue Forecasting Committee submits to
the Governor, certain members of the Legislatuick the State Budget Officer analyses, findings and
recommendations for adjustments to General FundHigdway Fund revenue for the current and
ensuing fiscal biennia.

The Revenue Forecasting Committee makes all detatiohs necessary to calculate the
General Fund appropriation limit established by .latee “Fiscal Management — General Fund
Appropriation Limit.”

The State Budget Officer uses the revenue projestid the Revenue Forecasting Committee in
setting revenue estimates for inclusion in theeStatdget and in preparing General Fund and Highway
Fund revenue and expenditure forecasts for thediudg

A-10



The Consensus Economic Forecasting Commissionspgonsible for providing the Governor,
the Legislature and the Revenue Forecasting Coeenitith analyses, findings and recommendations
representing State economic assumptions relevargvenue forecasting. The Consensus Economic
Forecasting Commission consists of five membersiapgd by the Governor as provided by law. Each
Consensus Economic Forecasting Commission membest mave professional credentials and
demonstrated expertise in economic forecastinge CThnsensus Economic Forecasting Commission
meets at least four times a year.

The Consensus Economic Forecasting Commission aevelfive-year and ten-year
macroeconomic secular trend forecasts and one-fgatyear and four-year economic forecasts. The
Consensus Economic Forecasting Commission subn@tonmendations for State economic
assumptions for the next fiscal biennium and aredyeconomic assumptions for the current fiscal
biennium. No later than November 1 of each evamiyared year, the Commission submits to the
Governor, the Revenue Forecasting Committee anthicemembers of the Legislature analyses,
findings and recommendations for economic assumptie@lated to revenue forecasting for the next
fiscal biennium. No later than April 1 and Novemleof each odd-numbered year and no later than
February 1 and November 1 of each even-numberad theaCommission submits to the Governor, the
Revenue Forecasting Committee and certain membbéhnge d.egislature the Commission’s findings and
recommendations for adjustments to the economimgssons for the current fiscal biennium.

Fiscal Year 2014 and 2015 Reports. The Consensosoiic Forecasting Commission
(“CEFC”) issued its latest report dated April 1,180 which updated the forecast it released in
November 2014. National and state economic indisasoggest continued improvement in economic
conditions since the CEFC report dated Novembe# 28lationwide, consumer sentiment and small
business optimism are up over year-ago levels.oRafsncome in Maine grew 2.9% from 2013 to
2014, while wage and salary income grew 2.7% dversame period. The Consumer Price Index was
unchanged between February 2014 and February 28&n@rimarily by declines in energy prices.

The price of crude oil declined 25.5% in the fougtrarter of 2014 to $77 per barrel. Home sales
in Maine were up 8.6% in January 2015 compare@mnoidry 2014. Month-over-month, housing permits
in Maine were 1.7% higher from February2014 to dan2015 than in the previous 12 month period.
The median home price in the Portland Metropolitaratistical Area (York, Cumberland, and
Sagadahoc Counties) increased by 0.5% year-overdipedhe fourth quarter of 2014. Mortgage
delinquency rates have been declining but at aesigrace than nationally. The foreclosure rate in
Maine was 0.49% in the third quarter of 2014 amdained above the national rate.

The November 2013 report revised downward the veagesalary employment, wage and salary
income, supplements to wages and salaries andiotaldpersonal income. These changes were made
based on the consensus that Moody’s Analytics &ifél florecasts were based on overly optimistic
population projections for the state of Maine, @agieemployment forecasts, among other things, to
grow at an unattainable rate. The April 2015 CE&@brt reflects the impact of a drop in oil pricesl
the surge in the dollar which contributed to change the forecast for CPI, personal income, and
corporate profits. Total personal income growtimaeed unchanged for 2013 and was revised
downwards by a four-tenths of a percentage poinR@i4 and 2015. The forecast for 2016-2019 was
increased in each year. The April 2015 report ddfusnflation, as measured by the Consumer Price
Index (CPI), downward for each year from 2014-2019.

The Revenue Forecasting Committee (RFC) met onl 282015 to review and update the
December 2014 revenue forecast. The revised fdrewedsch was issued on May 1, 2015,
revises General Fund revenue estimates upward 2yl $gillion in fiscal year 2015, downward by
$32.3 million in fiscal year 2016 and upward by 1$#&illion in fiscal year 2017; this results in an
aggregate downward revision of $7 million over tivee year period 2015-2017.
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The new economic forecast from the CEFC resultethéenrevenue forecasting model used by
the MRS Office of Tax Policy (OTP) to project sifioantly lower sales and use tax revenue for al th
fiscal years in the current budget window. Basedars and use tax receipts through March 2015, and
preliminary data through late April, there is ndication that the December 1st forecast should be
adjusted at this time. Taxable sales surged duh@dinal quarter of calendar year 2014 as energgp
plunged. While taxable sales slowed throughountten in the first quarter of calendar year 2ah8,
Maine sales and use tax forecast remained closridget and is expected to continue to track the
December forecast through the remainder of fiseal Y015. With expectations that energy prices will
remain relatively low and the economic recovery adintinue, the RFC decided to accept the Office of
Tax Policy recommendation that the sales and usttacast from December go unchanged.

The individual income tax forecast is one of the fevenue lines that the RFC adjusted in the
May forecast. The Office of Tax Policy recommendadincrease in the fiscal year 2015 projection of
$51.3 million, $6.6 million in fiscal year 2016 a883 million in fiscal year 2017. The change in the
2018-2019 biennium is an increase of $119.7 millig¢hile the new economic forecast generally
resulted in relatively minor downward adjustmeitshie forecast, there were two technical changas th
accounted for most of the net upward reprojectibimst, in the original revenue estimate, and
subsequent revenue forecasts, OTP assumed the Mevets! Tax Credit (NMTC) would be claimed by
owners of pass-through entities and therefore itp@ividual income tax revenues. Based on updated
information we now know that corporations and ficiah institutions will be claiming the credit.
Recognition of this information merely shifts thevenue impact from the individual income tax to the
corporate income tax, with the timing of the revemmpact being the only change to the General Fund
forecast. Second, with the April 15 processing cletep it is clear the Property Tax Fairness Credit
(PTFC) will be less than previously projected. OId®v estimates the cost of the PTFC will be $16.5
million, roughly half of the amount forecasted irrd@mber. Preliminary analysis of 2014 tax returns
shows that a combination of overestimating eligipilor the PTFC and imperfect credit take-up among
eligible taxpayers are the reasons for the lowst.co

In addition to the two technical changes above, miesv individual income tax forecast
recognizes the strong performance of April 2015alfiand estimated payments. Final payments
increased by a healthy 10.5% over last April arelfitst estimated payment of 2015 was up 37%. The
percentage increase in the first estimated paymemell above any other in the last 15 years antbis
easily explainable. Information from other statedicates that Maine is one of a handful of states t
experienced an increase in the April estimated gayraf this magnitude. Given the lack of informatio
at this time, the RFC has assumed the April surpfusstimated payments is a timing issue thatveill
reversed through lower estimated payments latethéncalendar year. As a result of this cautious
assumption, fiscal year 2016 individual income taxeipts are essentially unchanged in the May
forecast.

Corporate income tax revenue is the other reveineetthe RFC made significant adjustments
to during the latest meeting. The committee reduwm@gorate income tax receipts by $19 million in
fiscal year 2015, $65 million in the 2016-2017 Ibierm and $88 million in the 2018-2019 biennium.
As explained in the previous section on the indimaldincome tax, the shift of the New Markets Tax
Credit from the individual income tax to the corgigr income tax is the cause of some of the
reduction in the corporate forecast. Final infoiorabn the 2013 tax year, which is the basis f@& th
part of the forecast, shows that corporate ligbiktas $23 million below the December forecast. In
addition, approximately $15 million of refunds asisted with the 2012 tax year are expected to be
settled by MRS and corporate taxpayers early icafigear 2016. Finally, a slightly less optimistic
forecast by the CEFC of corporate profits explaimortion of the out year downward adjustments.
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For a description of enacted and proposed laws dimgrthe budgets for fiscal years 2013,
2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017 and for information reiggr fiscal year 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017
revenues, see “State Budgets” below.

General Fund Appropriation Limit

Pursuant to 2005 Chapter 2, the rate of growtheriggal Fund appropriations in a fiscal year is
limited in one of two ways (the “Growth Limit Facth For fiscal years when the “state and local ta
burden” of the State ranks in the highest one-tbirdll states, the Growth Limit Factor is “averagal
personal income growth,” but no more than 2.75%s paverage population growth.” For fiscal years
when the “state and local tax burden” of the Statiks in the middle one-third of all states, thewh
Limit Factor is “average real personal income giféwplus “forecasted inflation” plus “average
population growth.”

“Average population growth” means the average lier prior ten calendar years of the percent
change in population from July 1 of each year. érage real personal income growth” means the
average for the prior ten calendar years of thegrgrchange in personal income in the State less th
percent change in the consumer price index forcédendar year. “Forecasted inflation” means the
average amount of change of the consumer price ifudtehe calendar years that are part of the exgsui
two fiscal years forecasted by the Consensus Ecmnborecasting Commission in its November 1
report in even-numbered years. “State and locabtaden” means the total amount of state and local
taxes paid by residents of the State per $1,0@@come.

As of December 1 of each even-numbered year, ar@ldfend appropriation limit is established
for the ensuing two fiscal years. For the firstél year, the General Fund appropriation limégsal to
the “biennial base year appropriation” multiplieg dne plus the Growth Limit Factor. For the second
fiscal year, the General Fund appropriation limitie General Fund appropriation limit of the fysar
multiplied by one plus the Growth Limit Factor. idBnial base year appropriation” means the amount
of the General Fund appropriation limit for theremt year as of December 1 of even-numbered years.

The General Fund appropriation limit applies toGdéineral Fund appropriations, except certain
education costs described in the following paralgraprhe General Fund appropriation limit was
approximately $3.4 billion for fiscal year 2011,.8dillion for fiscal year 2012, $3.5 billion forstal
year 2013 and is approximately $3.6 billion forcésyear 2014. The Growth Limit Factor for fiscal
year 2011 was 2.76%. The Growth Limit Factor foe 2012-2013 biennium was 2.05%. The Growth
Limit Factor for the 2014-2015 biennium is 1.37%.he Growth Limit Factor for the 2016-2017
biennium is 1.08%.

2005 Chapter 2 provides that the additional costéstain essential educational programs and
services (“Essential Programs and Services”) fod&rgarten to grade 12 education (*K-12 Education”)
over the fiscal year 2004-05 appropriation for gahpurpose aid for local schools is excluded fitbin
General Fund appropriation limit until the Staterghof that cost reaches 55% of the total State and
local cost (the “EPS Costs”). Current law providiest the State will pay 55% of the total State and
local cost of K-12 Education for fiscal year 201tdahat the General Fund appropriation limit will
include the State share of the cost of K-12 Edaoalieginning with fiscal year 2016. See “Certain
Expenditures and Obligations - Education Fundingyeim.

The General Fund appropriation limit may be excddde certain extraordinary circumstances
which must be outside the control of the Legiskatuncluding (a) catastrophic events, such as ahtur
disaster, terrorism, fire, war and riot, (b) unfaddor underfunded State or Federal mandates, (c)
citizens’ initiatives or other referendum, (d) coorders or decrees or (e) loss of Federal funding.
Extraordinary circumstances do not include changesconomic conditions, revenue shortfalls,
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increases in salaries or benefits, new progranagram expansions that go beyond existing program
criteria and operation. The General Fund apprapridimit may be temporarily increased for such
other purposes only by a vote of both Houses of #gslature in a separate measure that identifies
intent of the Legislature to exceed the GeneradRappropriation limit. 2005 Chapter 2 is also sgbj

to modification or repeal at any time by the Legfiste.

“Baseline General Fund revenue” and other availdthldgeted General Fund resources that
exceed the General Fund appropriation limit plesBERS Costs must be transferred to the Maine Budget
Stabilization Fund (the “Stabilization Fund”). tife Stabilization Fund is at its limit of 12% of i&zal
Fund revenue of the immediately preceding fiscaryten amounts that would otherwise have been
transferred to the Stabilization Fund must be femsd to the Tax Relief Fund for Maine residents.
“Baseline General Fund revenue” means the recomeak@kneral Fund revenue forecast reported by
the Revenue Forecasting Committee in its Decembiepdrt in even-numbered years, increased by the
estimated amount of net General Fund revenue degrédaany, for all enacted changes reducing the
state and local tax burden included in that forecas

Public Laws of Maine 2005, chapter 519 (“2005 Ckaf19”) changed the priority order of
distributions from the unappropriated surplus of Beneral Fund. It directs transfers to the State
Contingent Account as the first priority (until thealance therein equals a maximum amount of
$350,000) and permits transfers to the Loan Insigrdeserve as the second priority in amounts up to
$1,000,000 per year. After these transfers areem#ue then available balance of unappropriated
surplus is distributed as follows: 35% to the Siaéiion Fund; 20% to the Retirement Allowance Fund
20% to the Reserve for General Fund Operatingt@lafdi5% to the Retiree Health Insurance Internal
Service Fund; and the final 10% to the Capital @oicsion and Improvements Reserve Fund.

Public Laws of Maine 2011, chapter 1 (“2011 Chafdt§rrequired the transfer of $3,188,702
from the fiscal year 2011 unappropriated surpluthefGeneral Fund to the Stabilization Fund nar late
than June 30, 2011. Public Laws of Maine 2011ptdra28 (“2011 Chapter 28”) changed the priority
order of distribution for fiscal year 2011 and died the transfer of up to $25 million to the
Stabilization Fund as the first priority followirthe transfers to the State Contingent Account &aed t
Loan Insurance Reserve and before the 35% tratsfire Stabilization Fund. The State closed fiscal
year 2011 with approximately $82 million availaleGeneral Fund unappropriated surplus before the
year end transfers. The total transfer to theif&tation Fund, including the $25 million authorgzén
2011 Chapter 28, was $35.3 million and the Restaw&eneral Fund Operating Capital received $5.9
million. The remainder of the year end balance wesdributed as follows: $5.9 million to the
Retirement Allowance Fund, $4.4 million to the Resi Health Fund, $2.9 million to the Capital
Construction and Improvement Reserve Fund, $1anilto Loan Insurance Reserve Fund and $350
thousand to the State Contingent Account. Additlign&5 million was transferred to the Departmeft o
Health and Human Services Bureau of Medical Sesvameount and $2,500,488 was transferred to the
Department of Administrative and Financial Servjo&scident, Sickness and Health Insurance Internal
Service Fund.

Public Laws of Maine 2011, chapter 380 ("2011 CbafB0") further changed the priority order
of distribution. Prior to the percentage distribos ordered in 2005 Chapter 15, 2011 Chapter 380
provides for two transfers from the unappropriasedplus, if any: a transfer of $15,000,000 to a
retirement reserve account to provide a non-cunvel&OLA payment to retirees for fiscal years 2012,
2013 and 2014 and a transfer of $25,000,000 fepitel settlements in fiscal year 2012 (this larggua
was extended to fiscal year 2013 in Public LawMaine 2011, chapter 657). After the transfer of
$15,000,000 to the retirement reserve account, rémeaining unappropriated surplus balance of
$9,688,205 was transferred for hospital settlemesblic Laws of Maine 2011, chapter 692 (“2011
Chapter 6927), “An Act to Provide Tax Relief for Ma’s Citizens by Reducing Income Taxes,”
amends the Tax Relief Fund for Maine Residents, @odides that amounts, if any, credited to this
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fund in the future will be used to allow for potahtfuture incremental reductions in the individual
income tax rates to 4%. The bill provides for 8tate Tax Assessor to calculate annually the ammunt
which income tax rates may be reduced in subseqguesrs using the amount available from the Tax
Relief Fund for Maine Residents to offset the loweetr revenue expected to be received in the foligwi
year. 2011 Chapter 692 provides for an initial imum reduction of 0.2 percentage points. 2011
Chapter 692 only provides for reductions in taesand does not provide for any increases.

2011 Chapter 692 also changes the distributiorhefunappropriated surplus of the General
Fund to: 35% Stabilization Fund; 13% Retirementodhnce Fund; 13% Reserve for General Fund
Operating Capital; 9% Retiree Health InsurancerhateService Fund; 10% Capital Construction and
Improvements Reserve Fund and 20% to the Tax Reliefl for Maine Residents. If the General Fund
has an unappropriated surplus and the Tax Relield For Maine Residents is fully funded, this
legislation further provides for an individual imoe tax rate reduction until the individual inconae t
rate reaches 4 percent. Maine Revenue Servicesatet that a reduction of the individual income tax
rate from its current top rate of 7.95% to 4% wodé&trease annual State revenues by approximately
$600 million. Maine Revenue Services has alsoredgéd that in order to provide the initial minimum
reduction of 0.2 percentage points, the balandhenTax Relief Fund for Maine Residents would need
to be approximately $40 million and that aggregateppropriated General Fund surpluses of over $200
million would be needed to generate such a balanttee fund.

Public Laws of Maine 2013, chapter 1 (2013 Chagfgrfurther changed the priority order of
distribution after transfers to the State Contingaocount, Loan Insurance Reserve account, and
Reserve for Retirement Benefits account to 48%hto $tabilization Fund, 13% to the Reserve for
General Fund Operating Capital account, 9% to thrée Health Insurance Internal Service Fund and
10% to the Capital Construction and ImprovementseRe Fund. An exception to the transfers of the
statutory year-end reserves was included in 2018ptén 1 that authorizes 80% of the year — end
reserves to be transferred to the Budget StabdizaFund, with the remaining 20%, allocated as
follows: to the Reserve for General Fund Operatiapital, 25%, Retiree Health Insurance Internal
Service Fund, 17.5%, Capital Construction and Impnoents Reserve Fund, 19% and the Tax Relief
Fund for Maine Residents, 38.5% for fiscal year26fly. This law further authorizes a transfe40
million from the Budget Stabilization Fund and $ll#nillion from the Reserve for General Fund
Operating Capital fund to unappropriated surplussical year 2013.

The Retirement Allowance Fund is used to make supghtal payments, if any, to reduce the
State’s unfunded pension liability and, therefa@gs not carry a balance forward from year to yéa.
of June 30, 2014, the balances in the Retiree Rdéaiurance Internal Service Fund and the Capital
Construction and Improvements Reserve Fund werd$dillion and $4.5 million, respectively.

The fiscal year 2013 year-end balance in the Bu8gahilization Fund was $59.7 million. The
increase in the Budget Stabilization Fund, as coatpto the prior year balance, is primarily retate
the transfers of $13 million from unappropriatedptus as authorized in 2011 Chapter 657, and of
$42.1 million which represents the one-time transfe80% of the year-end reserves as authorized in
2013 Chapter 1. 2013 Chapter 451 authorized #msfier of $21 million from the Budget Stabilization
Fund to the unappropriated surplus of the Genaratifho later than June 30, 2015. 2013 Chapter 487
repealed this transfer, leaving the balance irBibéget Stabilization Fund as of June 30, 2013 at®5
million.

The fiscal year 2014 year-end balance in the Bu8¢gbilization fund was $68.2 million. The
increase in the Budget Stabilization Fund, as costhso the prior year balance, is primarily related
the transfer of 48% of the year-end reserves dwdnéd in 2013 Chapter 1.
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Citizen Initiative Petitions

On March 8, 2014, a citizens initiative seeking to prohilbietuse of dogs, bait or traps when
hunting bears except under certain circumstancescedified to go forward by the Secretary of State
This initiative was defeated by the voters of thet&at the statewide election on NovemBer014.

The Accounting System

The Department of Administrative and Financial $=9, through the Office of the State
Controller, is authorized to maintain an officiggem of general accounts (unless otherwise prdvide
by law) embracing all the financial transactionstloé State; to examine and approve all contracts,
orders and other documents to ascertain that mdmeye been duly appropriated and allotted to meet
such obligations and will be available when sucligakions will become due and payable; to audit and
approve bills, invoices, accounts, payrolls and#ier evidence of claims, demands or charges sigain
the State government (State government is defimredntlude the Judiciary and the Executive
Department of the Governor); to implement interc@htrol standards applicable to State agencies and
departments; and to exercise certain other rigiowers and duties as more fully prescribed by law.

The principal Funds established by the State fodgbktary accounting purposes are the
Governmental Funds (which include the General Fuhe, Special Revenue Funds and the Capital
Projects Funds), the Proprietary Funds (which delthe Enterprise Funds and the Internal Service
Funds) and the Fiduciary Funds (which include thesTand Agency Funds). The Funds are used as
follows:

The Governmental Funds account for the general rgovental activities of the State. The
General Fund is used to account for all governmeratasactions that are not accounted for in anmothe
fund. Sales tax, individual and corporate incoaree$ and other business taxes provide most of the
funds available for appropriation by the Legislatior general governmental operations, such as
education, human services, corrections, the judiceand the Legislature. The General Fund is the
State’s major operating fund.

The Special Revenue Funds account for specificrmeveources, other than expendable trusts
or major capital projects that are legally resécto expenditures for specified purposes. Thei8pe
Revenue Funds include the following:

The Highway Fund is used to account for revenggweld from registration of motor vehicles,
operators’ licenses, gasoline tax and other deslicet¢venues, except for Federal matching funds and
bond proceeds used for capital projects. The lagi® allocates this Fund for the operation ofouss
Department of Transportation programs, includingnstauction and maintenance of highways and
bridges, for a portion of the State Police admratgdn and for other State programs.

The Other Special Revenue Funds are used to acfmwdrious special purpose funds which
have been established on a self-supporting bd@erenues are generated by taxes, licenses, fees and
Federal matching funds and grants.

Capital Projects Funds account for financial resesirused to acquire or construct major
capital assets other than those financed by prapyidunds. These resources are derived primarily
from proceeds of general obligation bonds. TheéeSikso includes in this Fund the proceeds frondbon
issues for uses other than major capital facilities

The Proprietary Funds account for the State’s argyactivities that are similar to those found
in the private sector. The Enterprise Funds adcfaurtransactions related to resources received an
used to finance self-supporting activities of that& The costs of providing goods and servicabeo
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general public on a continuing basis, includingrdem@tion, are financed or recovered primarily tigio
user charges.

The Internal Service Funds account for the finam@and sale of goods or services between
agencies of the State or other governmental units wser charge basis.

The Fiduciary Funds account for assets held bySthge acting as either a trustee or an agent
for individuals, private organizations and othevgmmental units or other Funds. The Expendable
Trust Funds account for assets held in a trusteaatiyy where principal and income may be expended
for the funds’ designated operations. The Nonexadéhel Trust Funds account for assets held in a
trustee capacity where only income may be expeffidethe funds’ designated operations. Agency
Funds account for assets which the State, as ¢astdublds for others.

In addition, the State has established the Genavag-Term Obligations Account Group to
establish control and accountability for long-teofligations of the State, including those related t
general obligation bonds, capital leases, certdgaf participation and compensated absences, not
accounted for in Proprietary Funds or Nonexpend@blst Funds. The State has also established the
General Fixed Assets Account Group to establishroband accountability for all capital assets of
the State not accounted for in Proprietary Funidse State records its general long-term obligatems
capital assets in the government-wide statemene¢béssets.

The accounting system is designed to assure tipaineitures do not exceed amounts authorized
by legislative appropriation and to conform, to #went possible, to standards of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) and its predsce, the National Council on Governmental
Accounting. Financial transactions are recordethan General Fund, the Highway Fund and certain
other funds as described above and in AppendixrBdfe

Accounting Reports and Practices

The State Controller prepares a Comprehensive Anfkirancial Report (“CAFR”) in
accordance with standards established by GASBs rBport is the official financial report of theagt
government.

The State Controller’s annual financial reportttog fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 is set forth
in two separate publications. The first publicatamnsists of the Basic Financial Statements oStiage
of Maine for the year ended June 30, 2014 whichseteforth in Section | of Appendix B. Certain
information which is included in the second puliiima and certain information which has been derived
from provisions of the State Controller's annuahafcial reports for certain prior fiscal years
comparable to the second publication is include8ention Il of Appendix B. The information settfor
in Section 1l of Appendix B is based on budgetarg &gal requirements.

The Basic Financial Statements of the State of Blé&n the year ended June 30, 2014 which are
set forth in Section | of Appendix B have been pregd by the State Controller and have been audited
by the Office of the State Auditor in accordancéhvaiuditing standards generally accepted in thegdni
States of America. The Office of the State Auditais issued an unqualified opinion on the Basic
Financial Statements.

Because of the variety of activities and programs by the State, the State Controller has
established several specialized accounting corwesitiwhich are consistently applied within the fund
accounting system. For more information on thesbalsaccounting used by the State, see Appendix B,
Section I, “Notes to the Financial Statements, Bhe2014.”

A-17



Annual financial reports prepared by the State @det for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014
and for prior fiscal years are available upon rastjairected to Kristi Carlow, Deputy State Treasure
39 State House Station, Augusta, Maine 04333, heleg: 207-624-7477; facsimile: 207-287-2367.
The CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 20I4fanprior fiscal years are also available at ittp
www.maine.gov/osc/finanrept/cafr.shtmiThe CAFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 24l also
been filed with the Municipal Securities RulemakiBgard (the “MSRB”) through its Electronic
Municipal Market Access (‘EMMA”) system and may &ecessed dtttp://emma.msrb.org/EA678604-
EA531627-EA927860.pdf

Audit Reports

The State Auditor is required by law to audit thesi8 Financial Statements included within the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report preparedbyState Controller for each fiscal year. TheeStat
Auditor’'s Independent Audit Opinion dated DecemB&r 2014 with respect to the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2014 is set forth in Appendix B heretmgl®e audit reports prepared by the Office of that&S
Auditor for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 &or certain prior fiscal years are available upon
request directed to the Deputy State Treasuree.“i8escellaneous” herein.

All information in this Official Statement for arperiod ending after June 30, 2014 is unaudited
and therefore is subject to change.

STATE BUDGETS

Laws authorizing General Fund and Highway Fund edjieres for fiscal years 2010 through
2014 have been enacted and provide for such expeaslin the amounts set forth in the table below.
Amounts listed for fiscal year 2015 include legisla enacted through the end of the second regular
session of the 186Legislature and proposed adjustments currentlyeumonsideration by the first
regular session of the 12T egislature. The amounts identified for fiscahg@2016 and 2017 represent
amounts included the Governor’s Biennial Budgetnsigsbions for 2016-2017, which are subject to
legislative action and may change when finally éedanto law.

Fiscal Year General Fund Highway Fund
Ending June 30 Expenditures Authorized Expenditures Authorized
2010 $ 2,849,227,923 $ 316,706,397
2011 2,872,754,172 304,310,083
2012 3,130,209,894 318,920,211
2013 3,081,951,199 317,272,450
2014 3,199,811,630 311,621,111
2015 3,217,529,636 321,687,608
2016 3,272,000,781 310,883,462
2017 3,292,632,554 319,687,037

For information regarding fiscal years 2010 througbl7 expenditures, see “Certain
Expenditures and Obligations — General Fund Expereli” below.

On December 1, 2010, the Revenue Forecasting Coeaméisued a scheduled updated forecast.
The December report reflected an upward adjustmiergvenues of $111.6 million in fiscal year 2011,

" Projection as of May 11, 2015.
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$170.5 million in fiscal year 2012 and $195.1 roifliin fiscal year 2013. The December report also
projected revenues of $3.3 billion in fiscal ye@d.2 and $3.4 billion in fiscal year 2015.

On January 12, 2011, the Governor released hislameptal budget recommendations to
provide $248 million in State and federal funds Hiospital settlements dating back to fiscal yed620
The budget recommendations also addressed projgatedh in the MaineCare programs and a phased
reduction in the Federal Medicaid Assistance Péacgnfrom 6.2 to 1.2 percentage points by June 30,
2011.

A second supplemental budget was released by tverGar on March 28, 2011 to restore a
deappropriation included in 2009 Chapter 571 rdlate the disallowance of federal financial
participation for targeted case management clamméiscal years 2002 and 2003. The funds were
proposed to be restored to the Medical Care — Patgnie Providers program to address shortfalls that
resulted from the deappropriation with the expéatathat the Federal government would be reimbursed
in fiscal year 2012. The budget recommendationthén addressed growth in the MaineCare program
and provided funds for Child Development Serviaeaddress a projected shortfall for the program.

On February 8, 2011, the Legislature enacted tret &upplemental budget based on the
Governor’'s recommendations; the Governor signet ldbdget into law the same day. The law, 2011
Chapter 1, amended the 2010-2011 biennial budgette in the spring of 2009, 2009 Chapter 213 and
the 2010-2011 supplemental budget enacted in thegspf 2010, 2009 Chapter 571. On April 14,
2011, the Legislature enacted the second supplaméentget for fiscal year 2011 based on the
Governor’'s recommendations; the Governor signetl hlbdget into law on the same day. The law,
2011 Chapter 28, further amended the budgets prelyionentioned.

Prior to the December 2010 upward revenue projectite Bureau of the Budget updated its
four year revenue and expenditure forecast in &dpte 2010 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.
As required by State law, the forecast assumeddh&nuation of current laws and included reasamabl
and predictable estimates of growth in revenueseapénditures based on national and local trends an
program operations. At the time of the forecastdtiuctural gap was projected to be $1.2 billmmtfie
2012-2013 biennium.

The gap assumed increases in General Purpose Aldbéal Schools (GPA) of $216.5 million
in fiscal year 2012 and $238.4 million in fiscalaye2013 over fiscal year 2011 levels. The prelimina
amounts would increase GPA $423.9 million over phevious 2010-2011 biennium and achieve the
commitment made in 2005 Chapter 2, as amendeda 65% State share of education costs. The
structural gap also reflected significant increaseliture State contributions to address the insee
unfunded pension liability for state employees aedchers. See “Defined Benefit Retirement
Programs” below.

In order to address the projected shortfall, theveBmor's recommended budget for the 2012-
2013 biennium included proposals to delay the rattant of 55% for GPA until the 2014-2015
biennium and to make several changes to pensiogfiteim order to reduce the unfunded pension
liability for state employees and teachers. 20hapier 380 was signed by the Governor on June 20,
2011. In addition to delaying the attainment od¥btor GPA until the 2014-2015 biennium, it amended
the requirement to include the cost of teachera®ient, retired teachers’ health insurance andetkti
teachers’ life insurance in the calculation. Sé&ertain Expenditures and Obligations — Education
Funding” below. It increased the retirement agesti#dte employee and teacher members of the
Retirement System having less than 5 years of @tei 65 years of age, froze cost-of-living incesas
for retirees for 3 years and capped them at 3%hiifirst $20,000 beginning in fiscal year 2014heT
pension changes resulted in savings to the Gekenadl of $123.1 million in fiscal year 2012 and
$126.2 million in fiscal year 2013 and eliminatetl Bbillion, or 41%, of the then estimated unfunded
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pension liability. See “CERTAIN EXPENDITURES AND QBGATIONS - Defined Benefit
Retirement Programs — Litigation” below.

The Governor's budget amended statutory provisipegaining to retired teachers’ health
insurance to include 10 year vesting periods, reqretirees to pay 100% of the cost of their health
insurance if they retire before reaching their nalrretirement age and cap the State’s cost for jpires
at fiscal year 2011 totals. These changes resuitsavings to the General Fund of $5.5 milliofigtal
year 2012 and $9.2 million in fiscal year 2013.eTtate’s cost of health insurance premiums favect
employees for the 2012-2013 biennium was also @hppéscal year 2011 totals resulting in savirgs t
the General Fund of $4.6 million in fiscal year 2Gind $9.5 million in fiscal year 2013. In additito
freezing merit increases for State employees ferbilennium and eliminating longevity payments for
certain individuals not eligible on June 30, 20th approved budget offered a retirement incerttve
employees who were eligible to retire. These thregatives resulted in estimated savings to the
General Fund of $7.7 million in fiscal year 20121&12.6 million in fiscal year 2013.

The December 2010 upward projection of revenuenaitbthe Governor to propose tax cuts
intended to stimulate economic growth in his biahrbudget for 2012-2013. 2011 Chapter 380
reformed the income tax provisions by flattening thate structure and reducing the top rate frord%.5
to 7.95%. It conformed to the federal income taxedection 179 expensing provisions for small
business investment and to the federal standardctled for joint filers (marriage penalty reliefha
personal exemption amount. These changes resultdte reduction of undedicated revenue to the
General Fund of $17.3 million in fiscal year 201®1&81.0 million in fiscal year 2013. The approved
budget adopted the new Maine Capital InvestmendiCre provide a credit equal to 10% of the federal
bonus depreciation on certain qualified propertgcplin service in Maine resulting in an estimated
reduction of General Fund revenues of $24.7 milliofiscal year 2012 and $7.0 million in fiscal yea
2013. It eliminated the requirement that out-aftstresidents pay income taxes after 10 days and
exempted meals provided at retirement facilitiesrfrthe sales tax. These initiatives resulted in an
estimated reduction of General Fund revenues & &llion in fiscal year 2012 and $3.1 million in
fiscal year 2013.

2011 Chapter 380 has amended the Maine Residespe®r Tax and Rent Refund, or “Circuit
Breaker” program to permanently fund the prograr8Q#. This increased General Fund revenues by
$11 million in fiscal year 2012 and $11.3 millianfiscal year 2013. The budget authorized thesfean
of the 5% local government fund share of certaxesathat increased from current levels as a regult
revised revenue projects and other tax initiatit@sthe General Fund resulting in an increase of
undedicated revenue of $42.4 million in fiscal ya@t2 and $48.6 million in fiscal year 2013.

In December 2011, the Governor proposed a budgetdtivess a projected shortfall in the
MaineCare program of approximately $120.9 millionfiscal year 2012 and $101.0 million in fiscal
year 2013. At that time the Legislature also reegia budget that reflected the recommendatiomiseof
Streamline and Prioritize Core Government Servitask Force to reduce spending by approximately
$25 million by fiscal year 2013. In its Decembdé12 report, the Revenue Forecasting Committee
revised its May 2011 forecast for the General Fand increased projections for fiscal year 2012 by
$10.6 million and decreased projections for fisgzr 2013 by $9.6 million. The Legislature chase t
address the fiscal year 2012 portion of the shbrffest and combined the proposals into the
streamlining budget. The result was 2011 Chapi&t, 4vhich was approved by the Governor on
February 23, 2012. In addition to implementing tteommendations of the Streamline and Prioritize
Core Government Services Task Force, it providede@d Fund appropriations totaling $107.3 million
in fiscal year 2012 to address the MaineCare hlbrtflt recognized savings in fiscal year 2013
intended to reduce the overall cost of the Maine@aogram by reducing rates paid to agency per diem
homes by 5% ($3.7 million), reducing funding forntmacts ($2 million), limiting access to certain
combination drugs ($0.6 million), and increasingnptiance with statutes mandating the use of generic
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drugs ($5.8 million). It extended the freeze owr@aroliment in the MaineCare childless adult waive
program, saving $11 million in fiscal year 2013 grdvides one-time savings of $10 million from the
Dirigo Health program to fund a portion of the &fgear 2012 cost of the childless adult waiver
program. 2011 Chapter 477 also authorized a one-assessment on hospitals equal to 0.39% of
hospital net operating revenue resulting in $14ililan in revenue in fiscal year 2013 to the Gerera
Fund.

On May 16, 2012, the Governor signed into law 2C@hhpter 657, which addressed a net fiscal
year 2013 shortfall in the MaineCare program of .67@illion. In addition to resolving the revised
fiscal year 2013 MaineCare shortfall, it provided.3 million for the municipal general assistance
program to fund an increase in demand for senaoes$3.8 million for operation of the E-911 program
It transferred $13 million to the Budget Stabilipat Fund in fiscal year 2013 and included authatdty
transfer up to $7.4 million from the fund, if nesasy, to add to $3.2 million appropriated for that&s
psychiatric hospitals for the cost of forensic gats determined ineligible for federal reimbursetnen
and an additional transfer of $3.8 million, if nssary, to reimburse the federal government for sund
drawn for ineligible MaineCare recipients. Iingeated savings from eliminating of some MaineCare
optional coverage and services, resulting in fisedr 2013 savings to the General Fund of $13.8
million. It reallocated Fund for a Healthy Mainesources to the MaineCare program, providing
savings of $9.9 million, and directed the DepartmehHealth and Human Services to develop a
Medicaid stabilization plan to achieve savings 5f3dmillion. It eliminated $2 million from the Hda
Start program and reduced funding by requiring hakpased primary care practices that also provide
mental health services to participate in the Matlealth Access Foundation’s integrated care invati
for outpatient mental health and primary care servsaving $1.5 million in fiscal year 2013. lisex
the loan reserve cap for the Finance Authority aimé from $35 million to $40 million and transfedre
$2 million to the General Fund, implemented a @secompliance and education program to generate
$5.3 million in one-time revenue, and authorized tise of overtime to enhance the collection of tax
receivables, resulting in net savings of $1.7 onilli In fiscal year 2013, it required revenuesxoess
of $10.6 million from the Oxford casino that woubtherwise go to the Department of Education for
essential programs and services to be transfesrdtetDepartment of Health and Human Services to be
used for hospital settlements.

2011 Chapter 657 amended the pension income takrastibn modification for certain
retirement benefits to raise the $6,000 limit t®$00, it provided an income tax exemption to activ
duty military service men and women for pay recéiwgile in service outside of Maine and provided a
sales tax exemption for commercial wood harvesting commercial greenhouse and nursery products.
These changes are expected to result in a revessgeof $8.7 million in fiscal year 2014 and $23.5
million in fiscal year 2015.

Prior to the December 2012 downward revenue piiojethe Bureau of the Budget updated its
four year revenue and expenditure forecast in &dpte 2012 for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.
As required by State law, the forecast assumeddhgnuation of current laws and included reasomabl
and predictable estimates of growth in revenueseapénditures based on national and local trends an
program operations. At the time of the forecastdtiuctural gap was projected to be $755.5 millgyn
the 2014-2015 biennium.

The gap assumed increases in General Purpose Aldéal Schools (GPA) of $119.4 million
in fiscal year 2014 and $135.1 million in fiscalaye2015 over the fiscal year 2013 level. The
preliminary amounts would increase GPA $274.1 ollover the previous 2012-2013 biennium and
achieve the commitment made in 2005 Chapter 2mended by 2007 Chapters 240 and 539, for a 55%
State share of education costs. The structural agmomed Health and Human Services increases
totaling $298.6 million for the biennium, which ledts increases for program growth and utilizaiion
MaineCare over the 2014-2015 biennium in the amotiii48.1 million.
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On December 1, 2012, the Revenue Forecasting Coeem#sued a regularly scheduled update
to the forecast. The December report reflectedwanavard adjustment of General Fund revenues of
$35.5 million in fiscal year 2013, $58.3 millionfiscal year 2014 and $66.9 million in fiscal y@&15.
The December report also projected revenues ofl$Bidn in fiscal year 2016 and $3.2 billion irs@ial
year 2017.

On January 11, 2013, the Governor released hislempptal budget which addressed the
revenue shortfall and funded a projected Medicdidrtgall; offsets for the revenue shortfall were
initially implemented by the Governor's temporamyrtailment of allotments. 2013 Chapter 1 was
enacted into law, without the Governor’s signatume,March 6, 2013. This supplemental budget for
fiscal year 2013 provided $2 million to address ehmeeds in the consent decree for Bates vs. DHHS,
$3.6 million for foster care/adoption assistancd &85.1 million for the State’s Medicaid program.
These appropriations were offset with savings atites originally included in the temporary
curtailment, revenue enhancements, transfers friivar dunds, as well as targeted reductions in the
Medicaid program. The Department of Health and Hur8ervices was directed to reduce rates by 5%
for services provided by licensed clinical professil counselors and licensed marriage and family
therapists, limit hospital and therapeutic leavgsdaom nursing facilities, and implement targetede
management for the top 20% of high-cost membetienMedicaid program. On June 14, 2013, the
Governor signed an additional supplemental budifle813 Chapter 248, providing $35 million more
in appropriation to the MaineCare program for figezar 2013.

In order to address the projected shortfall in disgears 2014 and 2015, the Governor’s
recommended budget, LD 1509, for the 2014-2015nen included proposals to delay the attainment
of 55% for GPA until the 2016-2017 biennium. In #igeh to this delay, the Governor's 2014-2015
Biennial Budget proposal shifted the responsibifdy funding the normal cost component of teacher
retirement from being 100% borne by the State &/&0 state and local funding responsibility. This
proposal would reduce funding to the Teacher Retrg program by $28.9 million in fiscal year 2014
and by $29.9 million in fiscal year 2015 representthe total cost of the normal cost component for
teacher retirement and appropriates $14.4 milliod $14.96 million in fiscal year 2014 and 2015,
respectively, to the General Purpose Aid for Ld®ethools program for the State's share of normal cos
The Governor's budget recommended increasing apiptagms to MaineCare in the amount of $318
million over the 2014-2015 biennium, offset by de@gpriations totaling $148.8 million over the 2014-
2015 biennium. The Governor's recommended budggiended revenue sharing transfers of 5% of the
Sales, Income, Corporate and Service Provider texesunicipalities in the amount of $281.5 million
during the 2014-2015 biennium. The recommendedydiudiso contained initiatives which continued
the freeze on employee merit increases and long@ay, as well as froze the amount of funding
available for employee and retiree health insurdoceboth 2014 and 2015. Finally, tax proposals
included restructuring the Maine Residents Propdiax Program, sunset of the BETR program,
coupled with movement of equipment in the BETR paog to the BETE program, the inflation
adjustment pertaining to the income tax and theakpf the sales tax exemption for publicationsesks
at average intervals.

On May 1, 2013, the Revenue Forecasting Commisiaeed a regularly scheduled update to the
forecast. The May report reflected an increasevenues of $43.5 million in fiscal year 2013, and
downward adjustment of $33.8 million in fiscal ye#¥14 and $24.3 million in fiscal year 2015. The
May report also projected revenues of $3.1 billiorfiscal year 2016 and $3.2 billion in fiscal year
2017.

On May 8, 2013, the Governor released the recomateobanges to the fiscal year 2014-2015
budget proposal, LD 1509, which included additiommiommended changes for fiscal year 2013. This
change package addressed the revenue shortfatlakiesl on the May 1, 2013 report for the next
biennium and utilized the additional revenue fosted in fiscal year 2013 of $45.3 million to fund a
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projected MaineCare shortfall of $33.4 million, 2% million initiative added by the legislature i
2013, Chapter 1 to delay MaineCare payments u@ifid2$1.0 million for the Maine Commission on
Indigent Legal Services and $3.0 million in assiseafor Maine’s dairy farmers. This change package
provides additional savings in 2014-2015 throughaitives that adjust the savings for retired teach
and retired state employee health insurance forntbet recent actuarial valuation, merit and debt
service savings. This change package also progaesgs from the transfer of available balances in
Maine Revenue Services, and statewide initiativesttie installation of natural gas and reduction in
rates for risk management. Finally, the DepartneériHealth and Human Services was able to reduce
their requests for the biennium by further refinsayings proposals, recognizing a lesser redudtion
federal funding than originally included and redires additional staff to perform disability
determinations in a timely manner thereby avoidemgporary Medicaid authorizations at a 100% state
only cost.

The final version of the bill was passed by the ikledure and vetoed by the Governor. The
Legislature overrode the Governor’'s veto and Pubdiey 2013 Chapter 368 was enacted on June 26,
2013. The law included several of the Governorgppsals including the transition of 100% of the
responsibility for the normal cost of Teacher Retient to local schools. One-half of the normal t®st
appropriated in the 2014-2015 biennium into the €é@nPurpose Aid for Local Schools program. The
Governor’s proposal capped the State’s cost oftihhéaturance premiums for active employees for the
2014-2015 biennium at fiscal year 2011 levels Iteguin savings to the General Fund of $3.8 millio
in fiscal year 2014 and $8.0 million in fiscal yedy15. In the final version of the bill, the Legigire
authorized a 1.5% increase in spending for theeStaealth insurance program; however, because the
bill was enacted after the deadline for the Stakemlth Plan design in April, 2013, the increased
amount will not be spent in fiscal year 2014. tldidion, the approved budget froze merit incredees
State employees in 2015 and froze longevity payséomt the biennium resulting in savings of $4.6
million over the biennium. Finally, the approveddget adjusts funding for the State Police to 65%
General Fund and 35% Highway Fund at a total apgthé General Fund of $6.5 million in fiscal year
2014 and $6.7 million in fiscal year 2015.

The enacted biennial budget restored a portionhef trevenue sharing by approving the
Governor’s proposal for a statewide study to redinee cost of government through analysis of the
structures and functions designed to save a t6t&B8.75 million in both structural and operational
savings over the biennium, establishing a taskefdocreview tax expenditures saving $40 million and
authorizing an increase in the Sales tax, from 6%.5% and Meals and Lodging tax from 7% to 8%.
Both the Sales and Meals and lodging tax increlages a sunset provision of June 30, 2015. The-2014
2015 enacted biennial budget included the repaywieatdeferral of a portion of the June 2013 supsid
payment for General Purpose Aid to Local Schoolshim amount of $18.5 million, funding for the
MaineCare program, elimination of benefits undex aine Residents Property Tax program that
resulted in an estimated savings of $50.7 milliearahe biennium, establishment of the Property Tax
Fairness Program at a General Fund cost of $63lbmand reorganization the Business Equipment
Tax Reimbursement (BETR) and Business EquipmentBxeemption (BETE) programs for a savings
of $11.7 million over the biennium. Finally, the o@rnor's proposal was approved to suspend the
inflation adjustment for tax years beginning in 2Gnd amending the inflation adjustment calculation
for tax years beginning after 2015 based on thar@daConsumer Price Index (C-CPI) instead of the
Consumer Price Index (CPI). This tax change teduh estimated savings to the General Fund af $8.
million over the biennium.

On January 15, 2014, the Governor presented a sedqoehe Appropriations and Financial
Affairs Committee for net additional General Furekds of $119.5M for the 2014-2015 biennium. The
request comprised of six departments and agentigst iy the increase in General Fund revenues in
the December 1, 2013 Revenue Forecasting Commiptdate of $20.6M and a revenue decrease from
the reinstatement of the sales tax exemption & frewspapers of $3.1 million over the bienniurhe T
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Department of Health and Human services, Maine@argram comprised the majority of the request in
the amount of $108 million. The remaining Healtid aHuman Services requests of $14.7 million,
primarily address the action plan to ensure stadf gatient safety and comply with federal certtiica
requirements at Riverview Psychiatric Center. @nuary 24, 2014, the Department of Health and
Human Services presented an update of its foréoastaineCare which resulted in a reduction in the
net request over the biennium of $30 million. Tihal requested additional supplemental GenerabdFun
need over the 2014-2015 biennium by the Govern@aled to $89.5 million. On February 12, 2014
Health and Human Services further reduced the stdfoe Riverview Psychiatric Center of $8.6M
based on the Department’s position of Riverviewaus as an Institute for Mental Disease, in which
the hospital decertification does not affect thatomance to draw disproportionate share fundiifg.
the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMi8mately disagrees with this opinion, the
potential future findings may include an estima$&dé million for the period of January 1, 2014-June
30, 2014 and $6.35 million already drawn for theiquk of September 2, 2013 through December 30,
2013.

On April 3, 2014, LD 1843 became law without thev@&mor’s signature (2013 Chapter 502)
which primarily provided funding for the fiscal yed2014 portion of the Governor’s request. The
MaineCare shortfall was funded at less than thee@wr’s final request, at a net increase of $31i d
to the actual trending of current MaineCare cydgrpents. Both savings initiatives and one-time
resources were included to fill the gap, includelignination of the Income Tax Super Credit for
substantially increased research and developmeriaxoyears beginning on or after January 1, 2014.
Transfers to fund balance included $10.1 millioonirthe forecasted Decembet ihcrease in casino
revenues over the biennium, $6.2 million in trarsfesulting from the dissolution of the Dirigo Htba
Fund and other balances in the Fund for a Healthjn® $5.1 million, and lapsing personal services
balances in the Education Unorganized Territoryoant of $1.8 million. On May 1, 2014 the
Legislature voted to override the Governor’'s vetd.D 1858 (2013 Chapter 595),, funding primarily
the remaining fiscal year 2015 portion of the Gowels request and enacting the remaining structures
and operations savings initiatives (Part F of 2Qt&pter 368). Both savings initiatives and onestim
transfers to fund balance were included to offseéduced request primarily for MaineCare in fiscal
year 2015. Timing of MaineCare payments from therent approximate timing of 7 to 12 days was
extended permanently to one weekly payment cydierbéeequired federal deadlines to yield one-time
booked savings in the MaineCare program of $20amnill This language also provides the Department
discretion in the application to those providerasidered to have the financial ability to withstahd
change in payments. Other savings initiativesuidet a proposal by Maine Revenue Services to
continue to automate tax collection functions, &ir.9 million in fiscal year 2015 and increased
recoveries and savings from enhanced MaineCarergrogntegrity activities. Transfers to fund
balance consisted of $1 million from the Financethduty of Maine’s loan insurance reserve, $1
million from Maine State Housing Authority’s Hougit©Opportunities for Maine fund and a reduction of
the transfer from Professional and Financial Regnaof $1 million that was included in LD 1843,
2013 Chapter 502.

Prior to the December 2014 revenue projection,Bheeau of the Budget updated its four year
revenue and expenditure forecast in September 20tdgh the fiscal year ending June 30, 2017. As
required by State law, the four year revenue amgemditure forecast assumes the continuation of
current laws and includes reasonable and predectedtimates of growth in revenues and expenditures
based on national and local trends and programatpas. At the time of the forecast the structgagb
was projected to be $461.1 million for the 2016-26iennium.

The gap assumes increases in General Purpose iAidd¢al Schools (GPA) of $296.7 million in
the 2016-2017 biennium to achieve the commitmentemia 2005 Chapter 2, as amended by 2007
Chapters 240 and 539, for a 55% state share ofaidnacosts. The structural gap assumed restaratio

A-24



of state-municipal revenue sharing which refleatsiracrease over the 2014-2015 biennium of $85
million.

On December 1, 2014, the Revenue Forecasting Coeemgsued a regularly scheduled update
to the forecast. The December report reflecteddpmstment upward of General Fund revenues of $45.5
million in fiscal year 2015, $28.4 million in fiskgear 2016 and $39.2 million in 2017. The Decembe
report also projected General Fund revenues of §ilidn in fiscal year 2018 and $3.5 billion irs@al
year 20109.

On January 9, 2015, the Governor's 2016-2017 BanBudget (LD 1019) proposals were
released. The Governor’s proposal includes sicamifi changes to Maine’s tax policies intended to
bring relief to Maine families by transitioning froa tax code dependent on earnings to a more modern
tax code dependent on consumption. The propos&ugels include reductions to Maine’s income tax
rates, modernization of the sales tax base anéaserin the general sales tax rate, the elimination
the estate tax, increases the amount of pensicom@cexempt from income tax and completely
exempts military pension income. The Governor &las made services in the Department of Health
and Human Services a priority. The budget propgsalides $52 million in funding over the
biennium to assist thousands of people currentlitimgafor services through MaineCare waivers.
Over $10 million of the dollars are available basada plan to transition the funding structurelod t
General Assistance program in order to gain bettertrol of the expenditures. The Governor
recommended an increase of $22 million over tharbian to support Nursing Facilities based on the
2013 Chapter 594, An Act to Implement the Recommagads of the Commission to Study Long-term
Care Facilities. Recognizing the importance ofnany care and preventative services, the budget
included requests to continue funding so the Statecontinue to pay the enhanced rates for Health
Homes and primary care physicians that were givarthe federal Patient Protection and Affordable
Care Act (“Affordable Care Act”). Thirty-eight pitiens and over $3 million in General Fund
resources are included each year for the River#sychiatric Center, in order to assist the hospital
meeting the requirement for re-certification by tederal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services

Throughout January of 2015, additional GovernoriksBvere released to address a variety of
2015 Department funding requests. The Governaopgsals included $20 million for the Department
of Health and Human Services to replace the regidticluded in 2013 Chapter 595 which was booked
in anticipation of savings associated with extegdime timing of MaineCare payments from the current
7 to 12 days. This policy was not implemented wuerovider feedback. Additional funding for unmet
needs in the AMHI Consent Decree should assistdatimg the requirements set forth in the settlement
agreement. The State continues to work towardsrtiécation of the Riverview Psychiatric Center.
The Governor recommended 29 new positions and diti@thl $1.1 million in General fund support
for the hospital, many based on the recommendatbas independent review. The Governor included
funding requests for the Judicial Branch to accowe® increases in the cost of guardian ad litem
services, psychological exam costs and increasglityfacosts at both the Bangor courthouse and the
new Judicial Center. During review of the Goveirsdills, the Legislature combined most of the
requests into one bill, LD 236. The amended versd LD 236 funds continued efforts toward
recertification of Riverview Psychiatric Hospitaljth 27 new permanent positions and an additional
$1.1 million in funding and provides funding for &lth and Human Services to replace the reduction of
$20M due to changes in cash management for the®atein the timing of payments. Funding was
also provided in the Department of Health and Hu®arvices in the amount of $1.5 million to replace
expiring federal funds that support enhanced lestteimbursement for physicians and $4.0 million t
repay the federal government for a portion of aditafinding. In addition, $1.7 million in fundinfpr
the Maine Commission on Indigent Legal Services $2¢ million in funding for the State Board of
Corrections was provided to address anticipatedtfsiis in fiscal year 2014-15. This LD was pasbgd
the Legislature on March 31, 2015 and became latvouwrt the Governor’s signature.. Requests related
to the Department of Education and the culturahamgs remained separate and became law as 2015
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Chapter 7. Finally, the State also conformednt®me tax laws to certain federal tax laws thatlted

in a cost to the General Fund of $16 million ircéisyear 2015 (LD 138, 2015 Chapter 1). Resouxes
fund fiscal year 2015 initiatives in the bills dissed in this section comprised of a $45 milliccréase

in fiscal year 2015 current law General Fund reesnper the December 1, 2014 Revenue Forecasting
Committee report, approximately $2.2 million frombalance of prior year funds in the Fund for a
Healthy Maine, $4.3 million in funding from the Reege for Future Funding Needs enacted in PL 2013,
chapter 595, part X for the 2014-2015 biennium #8a million in transfers from other funds to the
General Fund.

On May 5, 2015 a public hearing was held for LD 2,3% resolution proposing an amendment to
the Constitution of Maine to eliminate the incorag.t This resolution proposed by the Governor would
amend the Constitution of Maine to prohibit the istégure, beginning January 1, 2020, from enacting
or imposing a tax upon income of persons in thigtéSand to prohibit the State from levying or
collecting such a tax for any period beginning ormfter January 1, 2020. On May"18 work session
was held in the Joint Standing Committee on Taxatuhich resulted in a majority of the Committee
voting against the measure, with a divided commiteport that will go to the whole Legislature. eTh
Legislature has not yet voted on LD 1367. If apuneed, two-thirds of Maine’s Legislature were t&sp
LD 1367 and Maine voters were to approve the amendito the Maine Constitution, the Governor is
fully committed to working with Maine’s legislatute develop a tax system free of individual income
tax that will achieve the same objectives as thosiee current budget proposal.

On May 1, 2015, the Revenue Forecasting Commistaeed a regularly scheduled update to the
forecast. The May report reflected an upward adjast of General Fund revenues of $22.1 million in
fiscal year 2015, downward $32.3 million in fisgaar 2016 and upward $3.1 million in fiscal year
2017. The May report also projected revenues of $8lion in fiscal year 2018 and $3.5 billion in
fiscal year 2019.

On May 7, 2015, the Governor presented a changeapado LD 1019 primarily consisting of
revisions resulting from the May 1 Revenue ForéegsCommittee’s report and updated initiatives
associated with the Governor’s original 2016-201&nBial Budget recommendation. The Department
of Health and Human Services no longer requirestiaddl funding over baseline funding for the
State’s MaineCare program’s projected increaseesdth costs and additional fiscal year 2016 cycle
payment, based on the most recent MaineCare faseftasthe 2016-2017 biennium. The removal of
the $14 million request for MaineCare over the hiem funded several other initiatives, which
included $7 million for two 7-bed secure residentailities to house forensic patients that do not
require a hospital level of care, building upon tevernor's recommendation to continue to move
forward towards the recertification of RiverviewyeBiatric Hospital. In addition, a one-time four
percent rate increase, approximately $4 millionrabe biennium, is proposed to be applied to the
assisted living reimbursement rate at Private Nauighl Institutions beginning July 1, 2015 and a
one-time eighteen month pilot project, just ove0@5housand for the biennium, for individuals with
opioid or alcohol dependency who were recentlyriceated or have been referred by the Department
of Corrections or the Drug Court. Several new gesuch as the transfer of the Department of Health
and Human Services drinking water, subsurface wasté radiation control activities to the
Department of Environmental Protection, wage paritthe Department of Corrections between State
correctional employees and the county jails emmey&ho perform similar direct supervision,
language to limit the salaries of positions in Bepartment of Defense to the thresholds allowed by
the federal authority which currently provides dnmdred percent of the funding and the separafion o
the land and water quality program in the Departoéinvironmental Protection to establish separate
programs for both land and water in the Departmé&imally, the Governor’s change package included
funding and/or language for several bills proposethe 127" legislature, LD 13, An Act To Provide
an Exemption from Sales Tax and Service ProvidertdaNonprofit Collaboratives of Libraries, LD
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48, An Act To Reduce Registration Fees and Exciage3 for For-hire Vehicles with Adaptive
Equipment Enabling Access by Persons with Disasliand LD 1343, An Act To Increase Access to
Postsecondary Education for Maine National Guardnbks.

From late February and well into the month of Matieh legislature invited public comment on
the Governor’s tax recommendations. The joint stajpgdolicy committees of the Legislature developed
their own prioritized report-backs of the two ydawmdget proposal, which were presented to the
Appropriations and Financial Affairs Committee thgbout the month of April. The Democratic
caucus and the Republican caucus of the Legislatagk have announced their own tax reform plans, as
well as re-stating their commitment to enact tefwmra this year. The Legislature and the Governer ar
currently engaged in the budget negotiations as Idygslative session moves toward statutory
adjournment in June.

CERTAIN EXPENDITURES AND OBLIGATIONS
General Fund Expenditures
The following table sets forth, by certain majotegories, General Fund expenditures set forth

in 2009 Chapter 213, the budget for fiscal years02@nd 2011, as amended by the supplemental
General Fund budget, 2009 Chapter 571, 2011 Chagted 2011 Chapter 28.

2010 2011
Governmental Support and Operations $251,862,046 36,824,102
Economic Development & Workforce Training 35,70B47 34,588,383
Education 1,412,297,179 1,398,741,990
Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment 7,461,189 7,178
Natural Resources Development & Protection 68,249,2 66,225,967
Health & Human Services 795,586,471 850,852,097
Justice & Protection 277,894,340 271,331,877
Business Licensing & Regulation 7,000,000
Total $2,849,227,923 $2,872,754,172

The following table sets forth, by certain majotegpries, General Fund expenditures set forth k120
Chapter 380, the budget for fiscal years 2012 d&iB2as amended by the supplemental General Fund
budgets, 2011 Chapter 477, 2011 Chapter 655, 20pt€r 657, 2013 Chapter 1, 2013 Chapter 248,
2013 Chapter 368, 2013 Chapter 377 and other naseslus laws.

2012 2013
Governmental Support and Operations $255,174,711 59,822,199
Economic Development & Workforce Training 33,73874 32,351,279
Education 1,373,401,473 1,358,129,798
Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment 7,422,644 7,630
Natural Resources Development & Protection 67,994,9 65,000,840
Health & Human Services 1,116,567,462 1,082,063,410
Justice & Protection 275,909,945 274,709,069
Business Licensing & Regulation 3,647,984
Total $3,130,209,894 $3,081,951,199
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The following table sets forth, by certain majotegpories, General Fund expenditures set forth
in 2013 Chapter 368, the budget for fiscal yeasA2énd 2015, as amended by 2013 Chapter 487, 2013
Chapter 502, 2013 Chapter 595, 2015 Chapter 7, 2ddpter (LD235), and miscellaneous laws.

2014 2015
Governmental Support and Operations $240,632,732 3,132,641
Economic Development & Workforce Training 31,26843 32,643,008
Education 1,430,575,788 1,422,067,932
Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment 7,450,637 7,350,161
Natural Resources Development & Protection 67,81,9 69,963,005
Health & Human Services 1,123,503,952 1,129,996,638
Justice & Protection 297,423,132 312,356,251
Business Licensing & Regulation 1,140,000
Total $3,199,811,630 $3,217,529,636

The following table sets forth, by certain majotegpories, General Fund expenditures set forth
in the Governor’s Biennial Budget proposals, thddmt for fiscal years 2016 and 2017.

2016 2017
Governmental Support and Operations $ , 251592 $ 251,158,994
Econanmic Developrent & Workforce Training 40,199,760 40,155,872
Educdion 1,418,106,322 1,432,744,648
Arts, Heitage & Cultual Enrichment 8,091,335 7,975,542
Natural Resouces Developert & Protedion 76,729,639 75,090,508
Heath & Human Sevices 1,143,492 532 1,145,121,480
Jugice & Protection 334,370,601 340,385,510
Total $3,272,000,781 $3,292,632,554

Total spending in the Governor’s biennial budgebremendation for fiscal year 2016 and 2017
is 1.69% and 2.33% respectively over fiscal yed520 otal spending in the Governor’s biennial budge
recommendation over the 2016 - 2017 biennium isaqdmately $6.57 billion. Of the $6.57 billion,
43.43% is attributable to education, 34.86% totheahd human services, and 21.78% to other purposes
of State government. For additional informatiogaling General Fund expenditures during fiscal
years 2010 through 2014, and for information regardtHighway Fund expenditures during fiscal years
2010 through 2014, see Exhibits B and C heret@ a8 “Certain Public Instrumentalities” herein.

Education Funding

At the initiative of certain citizens of the Stafrsuant to the Constitution of the State, the
voters of the State voted to enact legislation km@s the School Finance Act of 2003 (the “Initiated
School Finance Act”) at a statewide election haldel8, 2004. The Initiated School Finance Act
required that the Legislature each year provideast 55% of the cost of the total allocation fodK
Education from General Fund revenue sources, aféboldf the State and local cost of providing all
special education services mandated under fedei@labe law. The Initiated School Finance Act was
amended by 2005 Chapter 2 to provide that, beggnmiriiscal year 2009, the Legislature each yedr wi
provide, as a target, (a) 55% of the statewide shelgli total cost of the components of Essential
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Programs and Services, and (b) 100% of a schoalnegtrative unit’s special education costs calcedat
pursuant to applicable State law.

Public Laws of Maine 2007, Chapter 539 which toffee on March 31, 2008 (“2007 Chapter
539”) provided that, as a target, (a) the Statelvguovide 53.51% and 54.01%, respectively, of the
statewide adjusted total cost of the componentS&ssential Programs and Services, and (b) the State
would provide 100% of a school administrative ui$pecial education costs calculated pursuant to
applicable State law for fiscal years 2008 and 200%e budget for fiscal years 2008 and 2009, as
amended by 2007 Chapter 539, included approxim&®l966,000,000 to fund the State’s share of K-
12 Education costs attributable to the Initiatethd®d Finance Act. 2007 Chapter 539 also amended
applicable law to provide that the State’s paym&nb5% of the total State and local cost of K-12
Education would be delayed until fiscal year 20diid that inclusion of the State share of the cbkto
12 Education in the General Fund appropriationtlimguld be delayed until fiscal year 2011.

The Governor's Executive Order issued in Novemb@992included curtailment of State
spending for K-12 Education in the amount of apprately $38.1 million. The supplemental General
Fund budget, 2009 Chapter 571, includes a reduatitaseline funding for GPA in fiscal year 2010 in
an amount equal to this curtailment, and it alstuitles a reduction in GPA funding for fiscal ye@d 2
of approximately $9 million. These reductions da wiolate the “maintenance of effort” requirements
of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act &I20ARRA”).

With the enactment of the supplemental budget, 2088pter 571, GPA was approximately
48.93% of the total State and local cost of K-1@cadion in fiscal year 2010 and 45.84% in fiscarye
2011 as amended by 2011 Chapter 1. The State &dnerd contribution was approximately $909.2
million in fiscal year 2010 and approximately $& #illion in fiscal year 2011, totaling approximigte
$1,781,800,000 for the 2010-2011 biennium. Thar=@ of the government payments are derived from
ARRA monies awarded to the State for K-12 Educa#ind added approximately $116 million over the
course of the 2010-2011 biennium. Total paymentghle State to local school districts (including
ARRA monies) comprised 49.78% of the total costEskential Program and Services in fiscal year
2010 and comprised of 47.83% in fiscal year 2011.

The biennial budget enacted in 2011 Chapter 38Canasnded by 2011 Chapter 477, 2011
Chapter 655 and 2013 Chapter 1 for fiscal years22&id 2013 included a State General Fund
commitment to the cost of K-12 education of $888,339 in fiscal year 2012 and $895,071,007 in
fiscal year 2013. Those General Fund appropriatiesslted in a 45.05% State share of the total @ost
education in fiscal year 2012 and 44.91% in figesr 2013. Maine public schools also received fdder
jobs funds of $36,214,417 for the 2012-13 bienntonhelp retain or hire critical staff. The enacted
budget also includes the State share of teachiezmant, retired teacher’s health insurance, aticede
teacher’s life insurance of $172,592,848 in 201@ $h74,932,892 in 2013 when considering the State’s
contribution for Essential Programs and Servidesluding the State contribution to teacher retieam
retired teacher’s health insurance, and retiredhieés life insurance the State’s contribution todga
the total cost of education was 49.47% in fiscary2012 and 49.35% in fiscal year 2013.

For fiscal year 2014 the biennial budget enacte@dh3 Chapter 368 and amended in 2013
Chapters 487 and 502 contained a State commitroethietcost of K-12 education of $1,111,006,225
which was made up of General Fund appropriation Edhgcation’s portion of funding received from
casino revenues. The State’s contribution towdlds total cost of education including teacher
retirement, retired teacher’s health insurance ratided teacher’s life insurance was 50.44% indlisc
year 2014.
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For fiscal year 2015 the budget enacted in 2013@n&868, amended by 2013 Chapter 487 and
further amended by 2013 Chapter 502, which appatgi $9.6 million to offset the savings
recommendation in the 2013 Chapter 368, Part [Etsitrel and operations review findings to the General
Purpose Aid to Local Schools program. Furtheroastto amend funding in fiscal year 2015 were
taken in 2013 chapters 581 and 595 which includdditianal funding of $300,000 for the Jobs for
Maine’s graduates program and one-time funding GS0$000 for the ¥ year of the comprehensive
early college program resulting in State contribitio the costs of K-12 education of $1,120,789,831
The State’s contribution towards the total costeolucation including teacher retirement, retired
teacher’s health insurance and retired teachég' snsurance is 50.13% in fiscal year 2015.

In LD 1019, which is pending action by the Legistat the State’s contribution for fiscal year
2016 is $1,111,985,349 which if enacted, would émtathe State’s contribution towards the totaltco
of education including teacher retirement, retitedcher’s health insurance and retired teachdes li
insurance of 49.10% in fiscal year 2016.  This &lBo includes one-time transfers of $5,000,000 in
both fiscal year 2016 and fiscal year 2017 from@=meral Fund to support the consolidation of sthoo
administrative units.

Health and Human Services Funding

After education, proposed spending for health amehdn services and programs comprise the
second most significant area of expenditure, atepmately 34.97% of General Fund appropriations
for the 2016-2017 biennium. Furthermore, Generahd-expenditures for the State’s Medicaid
program, MaineCare, are the largest, comprisingp4hillion or 67.2%, of all health and human
services spending. The State continues to makéfisamt efforts to hold down the rate of increase i
the growth of MaineCare expenditures. While remmgircommitted to provide access to care for the
State’s most vulnerable residents, the State isl@®amy even more aggressive care management
techniques, continues to standardize provider reisdment rates and has developed more capacity in
the area of third party recovery. Regardless es¢hefforts, additional General Fund resources were
needed for fiscal year 2011 totaling $46 millionddunding amounting to approximately $118 million
was provided for the 2012-2013 biennium. The f#812-2013 supplemental budget, 2011 Chapter
477, proposed more changes to the MaineCare progrdne areas of generic drug utilization, opioid
prescribing policies, rate reform, service limitgis and enhanced efforts in the area of colleabion
overpayments, legal settlements and through ineteasst avoidance, yet provided funding to address
an estimated shortfall of $108 million. A secorll2-2013 supplemental budget, 2011 Chapter 657,
included structural changes to the MaineCare prodgrg eliminating some Medicaid optional services
and coverage options; despite these initiativeslitiadal 2012-2013 General Fund resources of
approximately $66.8 million were required. Severvélthe changes proposed in 2011 Chapter 657
required the approval of the Centers for Medicar@ lsledicaid Services (“CMS”). The Department of
Health and Human Services was notified that somth@froposals would violate the Maintenance of
Effort provisions of the Affordable Care Act andetbfore could not be implemented. The
Department’s budget was reduced in 2011 Chapter &d without approval from CMS, the
Department would require additional General Fundnie® in fiscal year 2013. The Governor’'s
supplemental budget addressed this issue, as svatt averall shortfall in the program. 2013 Chafite
was enacted on March 6, 2013 and provided $85 amilfor the Medicaid program to continue
providing payments in fiscal year 2013. An additib$35.3 million was appropriated to the Medicaid
program in 2013 Chapter 248, which was signed k®y @overnor on June 14, 2013. This final
appropriation enabled the Department to fully fluhedicaid cycle payments in fiscal year 2013.

During fiscal year 2008-09 and the 2010-2011 biemmi the American Recovery and
Reinvestment Act provided a substantial infusiorfeaferal funds into the MaineCare program which
was primarily in the form of enhanced federal matghdollars. This funding assisted the State in
meeting the increases in demand for MaineCare@E\accurring as a result of the economic downturn
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and in redeploying some General Fund resourcesrdoide more timely payment of MaineCare
settlements to Maine hospitals, helping to enshosé facilities are able to retain employees, avoid
further job losses and maintain the spectrum ofises required by residents, particularly in raaedas

of the State. However, the extension passed byg@sa phased down the federal match rate and
required Maine to provide additional General Funogport of $33 million in fiscal year 2011. The
2012-2013 baseline appropriation for the Medicaidgpam provided approximately $360 million in
General Fund resources necessary to replace reteoe@l funds.

The 2012-2013 budget continued funding for thegoatcentered medical home initiative to
encourage Maine health care providers to provideebaccess to primary care physician services to
MaineCare members. Funding was also provided tiresd shortfalls in the municipal General
Assistance program resulting from the economic damm to pay for the cost of forensic patientshat t
State’s psychiatric hospitals, to provide suffitieesources for the foster care and adoption assist
programs, to service individuals with intellectuf$abilities and autism who are current waiting for
services, to increase funding available for mehéllth services to those not Medicaid eligible #ord
housing services for individuals with mental illses

The 2012-2013 budget supported Maine’s effortsayp ips obligations to hospitals on a timely
basis. General Fund resources of approximatelyr§ii®n were designated to transition payments to
Maine’s noncritical access hospitals from a prospecnterim payment system to methodologies based
on diagnosis related groupings and ambulatory payrossifications in order to pay hospitals on a
real-time basis and reduce the use of paying haspéttlements several years after hospitals have
incurred costs. The budget also continued thetetifopay outstanding hospital settlements throagh
initiative which provided over $9 million Generalid resources from 2012 year end balances.

Prior to fiscal year 2014, the State had accrudidlality to hospitals for Medicaid services
provided by such hospitals with the use of a Prosge Interim Payment methodology. In the 2012-
2013 budget, Maine transitioned from the Prospedtiterim Payment system to methodologies based
on Diagnosed Related Groupings and Ambulatory Payn@@assifications, which pays Maine’s
noncritical access hospitals on a real-time bdssed on claims. As of June 30, 2012, the aggregate
liability totaled approximately $484.4 million, efhich $186.3 million was the State share, with the
balance expected to be paid on or after Octob2013 by the federal government as its federal match
On June 14, 2013, the Governor signed into law 20h3@pter 269, An Act to Strengthen Maine’s
Hospitals and to Provide for a New Spirits Contra¢tis law authorized the Maine Municipal Bond
Bank to issue up to $187.0 million of revenue borile proceeds of which were used, together with
federal moneys, to satisfy this obligation to tlespitals. The bonds are payable from moneys to be
received in connection with an agreement for cendiolesale liquor activities. Payments to sdtie
debts owed to hospitals were made in Septembezalefndar year 2013.

The 2014-2015 budget, 2013 Chapter 368, continueditig the priorities identified in previous
budgets. The Department requested additional ressun both fiscal year 2014 and 2015 to address
needs in the Medicaid program. In addition to teéguest for increases to the baseline budgets, the
Department received the funding necessary to fdiver slots on two of the State’s largest Medicaid
waivers serving those with developmental or intdillal disabilities. Funding was also provided tfoe
General Assistance program while coupled with stmat changes to the program that mitigated a targe
request. The budget included funding to providditexhal mental health services to those not Mddica
eligible in fiscal year 2014 and to fund adequatbby foster care/adoption assistance programs lmased
the increasing number of children in care in bo#arg of the biennium. In an effort to reduce
expenditures and restructure the services offegethé Department of Health and Human Services,
there are several proposals in the budget whichldvoestructure some benefits for dually eligible
members and implement two new waivers to betteresd#rose with brain injury and other conditions.
The Department also proposed to save funds bas#teamplementation of care management for high-
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cost users in the Medicaid program. An additidg@l million in Medicaid funding was provided for
fiscal year 2014 in a supplemental budget prepayeatie Legislature and enacted in 2013 Chapter 502.

The supplemental budget enacted as 2013 ChaptealS02rovided additional funding for the
state’s two psychiatric hospitals. In Septembe2@iE3, the Department of Health and Human Services
was notified that the Riverview Psychiatric Centguld no longer receive CMS hospital certification.
This de-certification called into question the #@ypilof the hospital to continue receiving Medicaid
Disproportionate Share Hospital funding which aeteufor more than half of its budget. The
Department requested additional General Fund stippanact several changes at the hospital while
they pursue re-certification. The Department atgontains that they are eligible to continue reicgjv
Disproportionate Share Hospital funding as they arenstitute of Mental Disease and do not need
Medicare hospital certification to receive thisdimg. Several items in 2013 Chapter 502 were oden
to increase recruitment and retention at both Riegr Psychiatric Center and the Dorothea Dix
Psychiatric Center in Bangor.

PL 2015, chapter 16 (LD 236) passed into law withthe Governor’'s signature contains
adjustments to the fiscal year 2015 budget. Thidudes funding to address both the physical
environment at Riverview Psychiatric Center andspenel needs by establishing 29 new positions.
The Department requested this funding to assistgaining certification from the Centers for Medea
and Medicaid Services. This bill also containsding to replace expiring federal funds that support
enhanced payments for primary care physiciansmatemented by the Affordable Care Act. Public
Law 2013, Chapter 595 modified the timing of Maiae€ payments to providers resulting in a
reduction in General Fund appropriation of $20 ionll As set forth in the language enacting the
reduction in Chapter 595, the department reportethé Appropriations Committee in September of
2014 the potential negative impact on certain gtevgroups. As a result, Chapter 16 restores 20e $
million and does not require the modification o€ thming of MaineCare payments. Additionally,
funding is requested to repay the federal govertrfena portion of an audit finding included in the
federal Department of Health and Human ServiceB¢c®bf Inspector General report.

The Governor's 2016-2017 biennial budget recommigmnla Legislative Document 1019,
outlines the key priorities of the Department goingp the next biennium. The Department has
requested funding to eliminate waitlists for honmel @ommunity based services and for nursing home
facilities. The Department has also requestedifigntbr Health Homes for individuals with Stage A
and Stage B conditions as well as reimbursemanprimary care physicians due to a loss in federal
funding under the Affordable Care Act. Additioryalthe Department has requested funding for core
services under the Consent Decree including funthiegBridging Rental Assistance Program (BRAP)
specifically for Consent Decree clients.

Debts of the State

As of April 30, 2015, there were outstanding gehataligation bonds of the State in the
principal amount of $383,880,000, including $295,680 to be paid from the General Fund and
$92,195,000 to be paid from the Highway Fund. AdApril 30, 2015, there are outstanding bond
anticipation notes of the State in the principaloant of $38,150,000 which mature June 30, 2015.
Debt service requirements to maturity for the @uding general obligation bonds are set forth in
Exhibit D herein.

As of April 30, 2015, there are no outstandingdaxcipation notes of the State. As of April 30,
2015, the State is using interfund borrowings frtme State investment pool in the amount of
$50,000,000 to satisfy its fiscal year 2015 caslwfheeds. The State also plans to continue to use
internal cash flow borrowing to meet cash flow regdfiscal year 2016. Additional external borrogin
may be needed in fiscal year 2016. The amountdtedgo be borrowed externally in fiscal year 2016
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is not currently expected to exceed $150,000,00@xternal borrowing is required, a combination of
tax anticipation notes and a proposed line of ¢trealild be used. The timing and amount of any such
borrowings will depend upon the actual cash flowdseof the State.

As of April 30, 2015, there is indebtedness auttemtiby the voters of the State for certain
purposes, but unissued as either bonds or notéise iaggregate principal amount of $138,807,809. A
of April 30, 2015, the aggregate principal amouhbonds of the State authorized by the Constitution
and implementing legislation for certain purposésit unissued, is $99,000,000. See “Fiscal
Management — Constitutional Debt Limit” and “Cent&ublic Instrumentalities — Finance Authority of
Maine” and “— Maine State Housing Authority” herein

For additional information concerning long-term tietf the State, see Exhibit D hereto.
Lease Financing Agreements

From time to time, the State enters into lease eagemts for the purpose of acquiring or
financing capital equipment and buildings. A leaggeement is secured solely by the equipment or
building which is the subject of such agreement @ndot a pledge of the full faith and credit oéth
State. Lease payment obligations are subject poogpation by the Legislature. In certain instasic
the State has issued certificates of participatiothe lease payments to be made pursuant to mertai
lease agreements. As of April 30, 2015, the aggesgrincipal amount of such lease obligations
outstanding was $97,179,277. For additional infifan regarding such lease agreements, see
Appendix D hereto. For information regarding rémgayments to be made by the State, subject to
appropriation, to the Maine Governmental Facilitiesuthority, see “CERTAIN PUBLIC
INSTRUMENTALITIES - Maine Governmental Facilitiesughority.”

Defined Benefit Retirement Programs

Overview. The Maine Public Employees Retirementt&ys (‘MainePERS” or “System”)
administers three defined benefit pension planifofeferred to as “Programs”) on behalf of thaesta
with approximately the following membership as ahd 30, 2014: the State Employee and Teacher
Retirement Program, with 39,669 active, 36,611 timacnon-vested, 7,447 terminated vested and
32,391 retired members and surviving beneficiariks; Judicial Retirement Program, with 60 active,
1 inactive non-vested, 2 terminated vested ancetgad members and surviving beneficiaries; and the
Legislative Retirement Program, with 181 active,irtactive non-vested, 122 terminated vested and
153 retired members and surviving beneficiariedlg¢ctvely “State Plans”). In addition, MainePERS
administers the Participating Local District Condated Plan on behalf of 299 participating statd an
local public entities (“PLDs”). In addition, theyS&em also administers a group life insurance plan
which provides or makes available life insurancadfiés for active and retired System members and
employees of certain PLDs. As of June 30, 2014 ,Siistem’s group life insurance plan, for actuarial
purposes, was comprised of approximately 31,19%ectembers and 17,715 retirees, which includes
5,486 PLD active members and 2,673 PLD retirees sumdtiving beneficiaries. A full actuarial
valuation of the group life insurance program is@on a biennial basis, the most recent as of 30ne
2014. The State has no retirement or group ligeiniance obligations to the PLDs or to their covered
employees. The trust fund balances associated eatth plan administered by MainePERS are
segregated. The funds are commingled only forstment purposes. The administrative operating
expenses of the System are charged against easthfund balance as directed by statute and in
accordance with generally accepted accounting atdsd The budgeted administrative operating
expenses of the System for fiscal year 2015 are9$0]000, as compared to $10,310,384 for fiscal yea
2014.
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The System’s retirement programs provide definéideraent benefits based on members’ three-
year average final compensation and service ceadited as of retirement. Vesting (i.e., eligipifior
benefits upon reaching qualification) occurs upoa ¢arning of five years of service credit (effeeti
October 1, 1999, the prior ten-year requirement redsiced by legislative action to five years fatst
employees and teachers; separate legislation ehabe same reduced requirement for judges,
legislators, and employees of PLDs). Vesting alsturs upon the earning of one year of serviceitcred
immediately preceding retirement at or after norneéitement age. Normal retirement age for “regula
service retirement plan” State employees and teachalges and legislative members is age 60, 62 or
65". The normal retirement age is determined based tipe amount of service to which a member is
credited as of a specific date. For “regular serveetirement plan” PLD members, normal retirement
age is 60 or 65, depending upon when plan memlgecsimmenced. The monthly benefit of members
who retire before normal retirement age by virtb@aving at least 25 years of service credit isioedl
by a statutorily prescribed factor for each yeaagé that a member is below her/his normal retirgme
age at retirement. The System also provides digabnd death benefits which are established by
statute for State employees and teacher memberd®yamdntract with other participating employers
under applicable statutory provisions.

Upon termination of membership, members’ accumdlataployee contributions are refundable
with interest, credited in accordance with statuWithdrawal of accumulated contributions resutts i
forfeiture of all benefits and membership right$he annual rate of interest credited to members’
accounts is set by the System’s Board of Trustedsiacurrently 5.0%. Employer contributions for
terminated members are not refunded and remaitsasfsihe applicable plan.

Other Available Information
The following documents related to the System &edRrograms are incorporated herein by reference:

 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Sydi@nthe fiscal year ended June 30, 2014
available ahttp://mainepers.org/PDFs/CAFRS/CAFR14 .pdf

« Actuarial Valuation Report for each of the retirethprograms administered by the System as of
June 30, 2014 available at http://www.mainepergoanmgds.htm.

* Final Report of the State Employee and Teacherdteéint Program experience study, dated
December 22, 2011 available at
http://www.mainepers.org/PDFs/Bonds/Maine%20Assuonpb20Changes 12222011 vf.pdf.

*  “New Pension Plan Design and Implementation Plai&d March 2012 prepared by the New
Pension Plan Working Group available at http://wmainepers.org/Pensions/NPP_Report_3-5-
2012.pdf.

* New Pension Plan proposed legislation and planmeat submitted to the Joint Standing
Committee on Appropriations and Financial Affairstanuary 15, 2013 available at
http://www.mainepers.org/Pensions/NPPI%20Packag@%12013.pdf.

* New State/Teacher Retirement Plan Report to théslaggre, “New State/Teacher Plan 2
Proposed Legislation and Implementation Plan” stti@ahito the Joint Standing Committee on
Appropriations and Financial Affairs on May 6, 204\ailable at
http://www.mainepers.org/Pensions/NPP%20Report%#0%2005072013.pdf.

1 Because of the nature of their jobs, certain engssytypically those in law enforcement positi@is, members of a
“special service retirement plan,” rather than‘tiegular service retirement plan” which covers marsiployees. Special
plans typically differ from regular plans in theeas of retirement eligibility requirements, bendétermination, and
contribution rates. Special plans are typicaltyrenexpensive than regular plans.
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For additional information about the System corgdimn this Information Statement, see also
Note 9 and Required Supplementary Information en$tate’s financial statements on pages B-60 — B-
65 and B-101 — B-103 herein and “Exhibit E — Makhgblic Employees Retirement System Actuarial
Balance Sheet, June 30, 2014".

Funding Policy and Status

The costs of the State Plans, including those efShate Employee and Teacher Retirement
Program, generally consist of two elements:

Normal Costs - the present value of future penbemefits earned by employees in the current
year. Normal costs are based on each year’s pedj@nnual collective employee earnings. The State
share of the normal cost for fiscal years 2014 201b is 3.67%. Most State employees and teachers ar
required by statute to contribute 7.65% of theimmaeys. As previously noted, some State employees
may pay a higher rate as a result of participaitioa so-called “special plan”, which typically petra
member to retire younger or with fewer years of/eer Other State employees may pay a lesseasate
a result of a collective bargaining agreement dreotarrangement with the State. The employee
contribution rate did not change as a result ofr#leent experience study or plan design changes.

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) - thamount by which the actuarial liability
for current and former employees is greater tharsipa assets. The actuarial liability is the pnése
value of prospective pensions owed to members wl@nretire based on service as of the calculation
date.

State Employee and Teacher Retirement Program bandéor biennial costs are defined as
those normal and UAAL costs required by State lad the Maine Constitution to fund the plan. The
State’s employer normal cost contributions, alonth wurrent member contributions, support benefits
currently being earned by active members. TheeStainfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL)
contribution is a payment on the amortized debt tbpresents the liability for benefits in excetshe
amount supported by assets of the System. Theavidonstitution requires that the June 30, 1996
UAAL be fully funded in not more than 31 years frdody 1, 1997. In addition, the Maine Constitution
requires that unfunded liabilities resulting fromperience losses must be retired over a period not
exceeding 10 years.

Maine is one of 14 states that do not participat&acial Security for State employees, judges,
legislators or teachers while they are active membéthe State Plans. Neither the State nor eaver
plan members contribute any amounts to Social 8gcilihis means that covered members do not earn
Social Security credits.

The State appropriates funding for pension costseaated with the State Plans, covering all
State employees and teachers, legislators andgudgetirement, disability and death benefits ptedi
by the System are funded by employee contributamset by statute and by employer contributions
determined on an actuarial basis. An actuariabatan is prepared annually and the valuation
completed in the even year for each of the stdtete defined benefit plans is used to determiee th
State’s employer contribution requirements for énsuing biennium. For example, the valuation as of
June 30, 2012 was used to set contributions fo2€1&-2015 biennium, and the valuation dated as of
June 30, 2014 was used to establish the contritmitmbe made in the 2016-2017 biennium.

For State employees and teachers, the State’s lanegigired contribution (the “ARC”) is
comprised of the normal cost contribution plusghgment required to amortize the State Employee and
Teacher Retirement Program’s UAAL. As of June 3014, the actuarial value of assets of the State
Employee and Teacher Retirement Program (which amgsinclude members of the judicial and
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legislative programs) was $10,017,512,006 and titeaaal accrued liability was $12,320,158,783
resulting in a UAAL of $2,302,646,777 and a fundatio of 81.3%. The State is obligated under an
amendment to the Maine Constitution adopted in 83fmortize the UAAL of the State Employee and
Teacher Retirement Program as of June 30, 1996Hatar than the end of fiscal year 2028. As of
June 30, 2014, 14 years remained in the currenstitotionally mandated amortization period for the
unfunded liability of the State Employee and TeadRetirement Program. The Maine Constitution also
prohibits the creation of new unfunded liabilitiether than those arising from experience lossesy A
such liabilities are required to be amortized withi0 years. The constitutional requirement dods no
apply to the Legislative Retirement Program orJlbdicial Retirement Program. MainePERS monitors
all relevant proposed bills to ensure continuedmance with the constitutional requirement.

The judicial retirement plan had an actuarial suspbf $858,375 at June 30, 2014. The
legislative retirement plan had an actuarial sweEii$3,270,508 at June 30, 2014.

The ARC originally determined for the 2014-2015nmiml budget was based upon an estimate
of the assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2002e estimated assets included the June 30, 2@E2sas
(at market value), except that the private markdties were based on the March 31, 2012 value,awvith
projection of total cash flows for the year. Tiebilities included the June 30, 2011 liabilitieslled
forward based on projected actuarial assumptionfidoal year 2012. This new process, as compared
to the prior process of waiting for all values ahd 30 to become available, was recommended by
Cheiron, the System’s actuary, and approved bysistem’s Board of Trustees, and was implemented
in order to provide employer contribution rateshe State as early as possible in the biennial étudg
process. The completion of the actuarial valuaéisrof June 30, 2012 by the System’s actuary, using
all values as of June 30, 2012, demonstrated neriahtifference between the estimated resultsg use
to establish the employer contribution, and thelltesof the actual valuation. This same methodplog
was used to determine the ARC for the 2016-201ré budget.

The amount paid by the State in fiscal year 2014 $264,275,000. The amounts projected to
be paid by the State, using the rate-setting psoassiescribed above, in fiscal years 2015 and a6
$305,440,000 and $295,667,000, respectively.

The State has generally funded its annual requoedribution for State employees, teachers,
judges and legislators as shown in the table beldwiferences between the ARC and the actual
contribution may be the result of the differencedaeen projected and actual salary amounts for any
given year. Differences may also be the resuladditional contributions paid by the State, as
previously required by statute, from general funtphis money available at the close of a giverafisc
year. In 2013, the statute was amended by th8 L@gislature such that general fund surplus mosey i
no longer allocated to MainePERS.

laaien  ApualBeaited  pauarconvibuion o PEEN
2014 $264,275,000 $264,275,000 100.0%
2013 264,381,000 264,381,000 100.0
2012 252,830,000 252,830,000 100.0
2011 328,075,000 333,944,000 101.8
2010 317,992,000 329,207,000 103.5
2009 320,112,000 320,112,000 100.0
2008 305,361,000 305,361,000 100.0
2007 303,076,000 303,075,774 100.0
2006 286,439,000 303,438,610 106.0
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Valuation Annual Required Actual Contribution Percent

Date 6/30/YY Contribution Contributed
2005 261,698,000 274,697,901 105.0
2004 251,483,000 273,482,848 108.8
2003 252,709,000 263,209,148 104.2
2002 242,486,000 242,486,089 100.0

As of June 30, 2014, the State had a net pension obligation (“NPQO”) in comnedti the State
Plans of $1,958,955. The NPO is the cumulative difference between anmganpeost and the
employer's contributions to a plan, including the pension liability atadgransition, if any. Measured
is the annual pension cost equal to (a) the ARC, (b) one yearssinten the NPO, and (c) an
adjustment to the ARC to offset the effect of actuarial &imairon of past under- or over-contributions.
“Transition” refers to the point in time when the employer implet®g@ GASB Statement # 27 and
measured its initial pension liability or asset at that point in time.

The following table sets forth a projection of the contributions expeotbd made by the State
to pay both the normal cost and to amortize the UAAL of the Stafdyee and Teacher Retirement
Program for the period from fiscal year 2014 through fiscal year 2028.ddllae amounts (expressed
as millions) are shown both as future year dollars and currendpélars (discounted at a 3.5% rate).
The amounts shown in the table below include the results of the actuarial valuatiduias 80, 2014.

Projected Contributions

Fiscal Normal Cost Normal Cost UAL Cost UAL Cost Total Cost Total Cost
Year future dollars* current dollars* future dollars* current dollars* future dollars* current dollars*
2015 68 68 252 252 319 319
2016 70 68 223 215 293 283
2017 73 68 230 215 303 283
2018 75 68 191 173 266 241
2019 78 68 198 173 276 241
2020 80 68 185 156 265 224
2021 83 68 192 156 275 224
2022 86 68 189 149 275 217
2023 89 68 185 141 274 209
2024 92 68 188 138 280 206
2025 96 68 245 174 341 242
2026 99 68 279 191 378 259
2027 102 68 308 204 410 272
2028 106 68 335 214 441 282

*All costs in millions.

The amounts in the preceding table are based on projections derivedh&d2014 actuarial
assumptions and other information then known to the State and the Systesmtuti@mounts required
to be contributed by the State in the future will likely diffemfrthese amounts and, depending upon
actual circumstances, such differences may be substantial. {Uia¢ @ntributions to be made by the
State for any future fiscal year, including the amount required totem® the then UAAL, will be based
upon actual investment results and other factors as they occurfutuhe and the applicable actuarial
valuation used to certify the contribution rates for such yeamalhdeflect all actuarial assumptions
and circumstances then in effect. The State cannot predictevitinty what the actual dollar amount
of required contributions to the System will be for fiscal years beyond fiseaPpa7.

A-37



Pursuant to 2013 Chapter 368, beginning in fiscal year 2013-14, the employer notnfai cos
teacher members must be paid by local school administrative units. Those cestsawieusly paid by
the State. The amount paid by the State was $28,477,233 in fiscal yearT2@& amount paid by the
local school administrative units was $29,495,441 in fiscal year 2014 arajastpd to be $31,613,496
in fiscal year 2015, $39,269,778 in fiscal year 2016 and $40,644,220 in fiscal year 201%tafehe
continues to pay the employer unfunded liability costs for teacher nnembegislation pending in the
current legislative session would make the State again respofwmibdlee payment of the employer
normal cost for teacher members.

Recent Actuarial Assumption Changes. State law provitsat least once in each six-year
period, the System’s actuary is to make an investigation intouatgrogram demographics and
changes in program demographics, employment patterns and projectiongjtret@a@gomic measures
and expectations and other factors that the Board or actuary congjddisasmt. The actuary must also
make recommendations for certain modifications of the actuasgimptions, as needed. The final
report of the most recent experience study, which was conducted in 20l&vaiigble at
http://www.mainepers.org/bonds.htmAt its July 10, 2014 meeting, the Board adopted a rate of
investment return assumption of 7.125%, a change from the previous rateestment return
assumption of 7.25%, which change increased the UAAL by approximately $16&milln addition
to the assumption change, the Board voted to recognize an additional 378%t imivestment gains in
the asset smoothing method used in the completion of the 2014 valuation répdrthad the effect of
reducing the UAAL by approximately $192 million.

Actuarial Valuation By State law, the System’s assets and liabilities are calculated grioyall
the System’s actuaries. Each even year’s valuation servidee dsasis for the State’s ARC in the
biennium that begins two years from the date of the valuation. @pdstris delivered to the State in
late October and contains an actuarial valuation of the plans atkredi®y the System as of the end of
the most recent fiscal year and sets out the ARC for the upgdsennium. The report also includes,
for each plan, a description of the actuarial assumptions and methexisaubrief summary of the
principal plan provisions and a summary of member data. The acttept@is for the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2014 the “2014 Valuations” (the most recently completed actemoat) are
incorporated by reference herein and are available at http://www.mainepers.org/lbonds.ht

The actuarial valuation calculates the actuarial accruedityafor each of the defined benefit
plans, which represents the present value of benefits the Sysliepayvto its retired members and
active members upon retirement, based on certain demographic and ecaseumgptions. Some
examples of these assumptions include an expected rate of retursets) age of retirement of active
members, future salary increases for current employees and asswriatity rates for retirees and
beneficiaries. If the actual experience of a plan diffesfthese assumptions, the UAAL of the plan
may increase or decrease to the extent of any such variancecotildshave a resulting impact on the
ARC, which may increase or decrease the amount of the State’dadatrito the plans. As previously
discussed, the actuarial assumptions of the State Employee and rTBatihement Program were
recently changed to reflect the results of the latest expergndy. See “Recent Actuarial Assumption
Changes” above.

The actuarial valuation also compares the actuarial accruelitfiatith the actuarial value of
assets and any excess of that liability over the assets formdAAk of the system. The actuarial
valuation will express the percentage that a plan is funded through a “fundgdwhich represents the
actuarial value of assets of the plan divided by the actuarialext@nability of such plan. The actuarial
valuation will also state an annual required contribution (“ARCHicl is a recommended amount that
the State and other sponsoring employers contribute to the applicahbleTila ARC consists of two
components: (1) normal cost, which represents the portion of the pvedeatof retirement benefits
that are allocable to active members’ current year service, and (2) an athpdrzaon of the UAAL.
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With respect to the expected rate of return of assets,cthal aate of return on investments
depends on the performance of its investment portfolio. The valudeofsdécurities and other
investments in the investment portfolio changes from one fiscal gehe tnext, which, in turn, causes
increases or decreases in the funded ratio of each plan and iAMhe Currently, the assumed rate of
return is 7.125%. For fiscal year 2014, the actuarial rate of retuhe @fssets was 12.2% as compared
to a market rate of return of 16.7%. Information about the System’stingat Program is available at
www. mainepers.org/Investments/Investments.htm.

The 2014 Valuation includes an analysis of the impact of both higher anddowel rates of
return, as compared to the current assumed rate of return of 7.125%e Rfograms were to earn
8.125% annual returns, the State’s contribution rate would decline froprdjeeted rate in the 2014
Valuation of 18.06% and the unfunded actuarial liability would be paid itoyu®025 rather than 2028.
If, however, the Programs were to earn 6.125% annual returns, the comrritatié would rise to about
23% of payroll in order to meet the Constitutional requirement. Agaimoted above, the actual future
circumstances will likely vary from those assumed in the 20l14idfiah and thereby result in
potentially significantly different required contribution amounts.
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The following table sets out the actual rate ofestment return as compared to the actuarial
assumed rate of return (taking into account theettyear smoothing method described below) for the
calendar years 2014 through 1991, inclusive.

Actual Rate of Actuarial Assumed
Calendar Year Investment Return Rate of Return*

2014 16.70% 7.125%
2013 11.20 7.25
2012 12.86 7.25
2011 0.22 7.25
2010 12.20 7.75
2009 21.50 7.75
2008 -27.60 7.75
2007 9.10 7.75
2006 11.30 7.75
2005 7.70 8.00
2004 13.10 8.00
2003 25.60 8.00
2002 -10.30 8.00
2001 -5.00 8.00
2000 -3.80 8.00
1999 15.30 8.00
1998 15.30 8.00
1997 18.50 8.00
1996 13.50 8.00
1995 25.70 8.00
1994 -0.10 8.00
1993 13.90 8.00
1992 7.20 8.00
1991 23.90 8.50

*Changes effective July 1 of stated year

In addition to the above-described assumptionsatiarial valuations of the plans use the entry
age normal (“EAN") method to calculate the actuavialue of assets and actuarial accrued liability.
The System believes that the EAN method is a maearate indicator of actuarial funding progress and
it is now, in fact, the predominant method usedplplic retirement systems throughout the United
States.

An additional actuarial method used in arriving tae actuarial valuation is so-called
“smoothing,” whereby the difference between thekatvalue of assets and the actuarial value otasse
is smoothed over a period of three years to offseteffects of volatility of market values in anpgle
year. The following chart presents, for each paiogrthe actuarial accrued liability, the actuaviaue
of assets, the unfunded actuarial liability, thaded ratio of the plan based on the actuarial vafue
assets, the market value of assets, the fundexlafithe plan based on the market value of assets a
the ratio of the actuarial value of assets oventheket value of assets.
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State & Teachers

Valuation Actuarial Unfunded Funded Funded A'ztsusaerggl
date Accrued Liability Actuarial Assets Actuarial Ratio Market Assets Ratio Over
6/30/YY Liability (AVA) (MVA) Market
2014 $12,320,158,783 $10,017,512,006 $2,302,646,7731.31% $10,337,615,927 83.90% 96.909
2013 11,830,649,882 9,177,749,627 2,65229%0, 77.58 9,091,347,964 76.85 101.00
2012 11,553,306,281 8,880,730,120 2,6721%16, 76.87 8,453,862,754 73.20 105.10
2011 11,281,665,186 8,736,885,121 25440680, 77.44 8,677,947,874 76.90 100.70
2010 12,617,144,005 8,313,459,810 4,30318%4, 65.90 7,239,332,094 57.40 114.80
2009 12,321,219,332 8,325,951,236 3,9950883, 67.60 6,620,849,642 53.70 125.80
2008 11,668,032,511 8,631,557,629 3,0368824, 74.00 8,311,970,624 71.20 103.80
2007 11,157,770,138 8,245,520,019 2,91212%0, 73.90 8,668,381,195 77.70 95.10
2006 10,547,299,194 7,504,219,546 3,043698, 71.10 7,503,201,781 71.10 100.00
2005 9,999,250,038 6,964,597,457 3,0345%82 69.70 6,997,802,832 70.00 99.50
2004 9,442,389,399 6,452,570,244 2,989  68.30 6,280,951,942 66.50 102.70
2003 9,442,389,399 6,452,570,244 2,989]1%B 68.30 6,280,951,942 66.50 102.70
Judicial
Valuation Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded Market Funded Actuarial
date Accrued Assets Actuarial Ratio Assets Ratio Assets Ovel
6/30/YY Liability Liability (AVA) (MVA) Market
2014 $54,560,642 $55,419,017 $ -858,375 101.57% ,189/000 104.80% 96.90%
2013 52,374,785 51,055,251 1,319,534 ®7.5 50,574,604 96.60 101.00
2012 46,340,678 49,735,004 -3,394,326 107.32 47,344,407 102.20 105.10
2011 47,868,297 49,324,784 -1,456,487 103.00 48,992,049 102.40 100.70
2010 53,149,699 47,677,635 5,472,064 7@89. 41,517,520 78.10 114.80
2009 50,543,320 48,478,344 2,064,976 9(5. 38,550,289 76.30 125.80
2008 47,634,452 50,418,942 -2,784,490 105.8 48,552,160 101.90 103.80
2007 46,842,351 48,225,053 -1,382,702 03.0 50,698,214 108.20 95.10
2006 43,102,409 44,350,649 -1,248,240 102.9 44,344,633 102.90 100.00
2005 41,804,673 41,842,216 -37,543 .1mOo 42,041,709 100.60 99.50
2004 36,388,731 39,210,995 -2,822,264 107.8 38,168,105 104.90 102.70
2003 41,931,130 41,842,216 88,914 9.80@ 42,041,709 100.30 99.50
Legislative
Valuation Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded Market Funded Actuarial
date Accrued Assets Actuarial Ratio Assets Ratio Assets Over
6/30/YY Liability Liability (AVA) (MVA) Market
2014 $7,505,193 $10,775,701 $-3,270,508 143.31% ,130]032 148.20% 96.90%
2013 6,872,614 9,771,955 -2,899,341 142.20 9,679,959 140.90 101.00
2012 6,243,939 9,322,419 -3,078,780 149.31 8,874,321 142.10 105.10
2011 5,725,193 9,040,180 -3,314,987 157.90 8,979,197 156.80 100.70
2010 6,073,364 8,634,635 -2,561,271 142.20 7,519,010 123.80 114.80
2009 5,499,809 8,717,885 -3,218,076 158.50 6,932,518 126.10 125.80
2008 5,605,005 9,099,133 -3,494,128 162.30 8,762,234 156.30 103.80
2007 5,095,638 8,721,571 -3,625,933 171.20 9,168,846 179.90 95.10
2006 7,944,468 7,944,468 0 00.00 7,943,390 100.00 100.00
2005 7,406,475 7,406,475 0 100.00 7,441,788 100.50 99.50
2004 6,827,478 6,827,478 0 100.00 6,645,888 97.30 102.70
2003 7,406,475 7,406,475 0 00.a0 7,441,788 100.50 99.50
2002 6,246,247 6,246,247 0 00.00 5,411,908 86.60 115.40
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ALL STATE PLANS

Valuation Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Funded Funded AZtSuSaer;:I
date Liability Actuarial Assets Actuarial Ratio Market Assets  Ratio Over
6/30/YY Liability (AVA) (MVA) Market
2014 $12,382,224,618 $10,083,706,724 $2,298394 81.40% $10,405,925,859 84.00%  96.90%
2013 11,889,897,281 9,238,576,833 23H0448 77.70 9,151,602,527 77.00 101.00
2012 11,605,890,598 8,939,787,543 21886055 77.00 8,510,081,482 73.30 105.1¢
2011 11,335,258,676 8,795,250,085 2,5405908 77.60 8,735,919,120 77.10 100.70
2010 12,676,367,069 8,369,772,080 4,30698%4 66.00 7,288,368,624 57.50 114.80
2009 12,377,262,461 8,383,147,465 3,9949pH4 67.70 6,666,332,449 53.90 125.80
2008 11,721,271,967 8,691,075,704 3,0302636 74.10 8,369,285,018 71.40 103.80
2007 11,209,708,127 8,302,466,643 2,9074341 74.10 8,728,248,255 77.90 95.10
2006 10,598,346,071 7,556,514,663 3,0414881 71.30 7,555,489,804 71.30 100.00
2005 10,048,461,186 7,013,846,148 3,034088 69.80 7,047,286,328 70.10 99.50
2004 9,485,605,608 6,498,608,717 2,983 68.50 6,325,765,935 66.70 102.70
2003 9,491,727,004 6,501,818,935 2980089 68.50 6,330,435,439 66.70 102.70
2002 8,511,834,626 5,920,475,637 2588 69.60 5,129,650,969 60.30 115.40

For further information regarding the actuarial hoet and significant assumptions used to
determine the ARC, see Note 6 to the System’s Cehgmsive Annual Financial Report for the year
ended June 30, 2014, which is available at www.epens.org/Publications/Publications.htm, and also
“Recent Actuarial Assumption Changes” above. Tsnmated market value of All State Plans as of
March 31, 2015 was $10,195,675,736.

Legislative Changes. The Legislature has in tret pdopted laws that have had the effect of
both increasing and decreasing future retiremenetfits payable under one or more of the State Plans
Any increases in retirement benefits have the efdédancreasing the actuarial accrued liabilitytbé
plan, which also has the effect of increasing tiRCAwith respect to the State Plans. Any decreiases
benefits have the effect of limiting the future @tb of the actuarial accrued liability of the plavhich
also has the effect of limiting the growth of thR® for the State for the plan in future years.

In June 2011, the 199 egislature passed 2011 Chapter 380, the biebnidget for fiscal years
2012 and 2013. Part U of the budget establishedr&ing group to develop an implementation plan
designed to close the current State Employee aaghBe Retirement Program and replace it with a
retirement benefit plan that is supplemental toi@dgecurity. The new plan would apply to all stat
employees and teachers first hired after June @05.2 In March, 2012, the Working Group issued its
report entitled “New Pension Plan Design and Im@etation Plan” which is available at
www.mainepers.org. The Legislature considered #ygont and enacted additional legislation that
required MainePERS to submit, no later than Jan@&ry2013, proposed legislation to implement the
new plan as described in the report. The proptegidiation and accompanying documents, submitted
by MainePERS on January 15, 2013, can be found at
http://www.mainepers.org/Pensions/NPP1%20Packaq@%rr013.pdf On May 6, 2013,
MainePERS submitted a report for plan implementato supplement the legislation submitted on
January 15, 2013. The report can be found at
http://www.mainepers.org/Pensions/NPP%20Report%#20%2005072013.pdf This new plan is
currently before the Legislature in the form of LID32.

Pursuant to other provisions of 2011 Chapter 38@ sl changes were made to the State Plans.
The changes include: changes to the retiree ddatitg provisions, including a three-year freeae
cost-of-living adjustments, a reduction in the ewisliving cap from 4% to 3%, and the establishmeaint
a $20,000 limit on the amount of benefit subjectte cost-of-living adjustment; an increase in the
normal retirement age from age 62 to age 65 forvested members of the regular plan component of
the State Employee and Teacher Retirement Progteemon-special plan tiers); and a change that ties
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eligibility for subsidized health insurance covexggealth insurance benefits are funded directlyhiey
State) to normal retirement age. See “Litigatioaldov.

Group Life Insurance Program. MainePERS also aiters a group life insurance program
which is available to eligible participants. Askfne 30, 2014, the program had an unfunded aatuari
accrued liability (UAAL) of $94.6 million. The amal required contribution for fiscal year 2014 was
$9.0 million and the annual contribution paid was9 million, representing 88.2% of the annual
required contribution. As the result of a groufe linsurance premium study in 2012, the actuary
recommended an increase in premiums to be morestemswith actual and projected program costs.
The Board of Trustees adopted increased rateshwince implemented beginning in fiscal year 2014.
Differences between the annual required contrilouéiod the actual premium may also be the result of
the differences between projected and actual cgeemanounts for the year.

Litigation. On February 13, 2012, a lawsuit wasught by the Maine Association of Retirees
and four of its active members against the Boardroistees of MainePERS in the United States
District Court for the District of Maine. The cawubsequently granted a motion to intervene filgd
the Maine State Employee Association, the MainecBtion Association and the Maine State Troopers
Association. Maine Association of Retirees, etvaBoard of Trustees of the Maine Public Employees
Retirement System, Docket No. 1:12-CV-00059-GZ&e Plaintiffs asked the District Court to declare
that the 2011 cost-of-living adjustment (“COLA”)atiites discussed above violate either or both the
Contract Clause of and the Fifth Amendment to teddral Constitution. By agreement of the parties,
the Contract Clause claims were presented firssfmnmary judgment. On June 24, 2013, the United
States District Court (Singal, J.) dismissed alPintiffs’ claims, concluding that there was iffglent
evidence of a legislative intent to contract arat,tin any event, the cost-of-living adjustmentds dot
cause a “substantial” impairment of any contractiigation. The Plaintiffs filed a timely appealthe
1% Circuit Court of Appeals. On June 27, 2014, the€icuit Court of Appeals affirmed the decision of
the District Court. The Plaintiffs did not appéiaé decision to the United States Supreme Couhinvit
the required time frame (by filing a petitition femit of certiorari). Therefore, the decision oeth™
Circuit Court of Appeals constitutes a final disgakof Plaintiffs’ case on all claims.

The System is also involved in a small number ohiatstrative appeals brought by members
whose requests have been denied by the Systemit dites, those cases are appeals from adverse
decisions in connection with applications for diigb retirement benefits. Less often, there are
administrative appeals involving or relating to gpolife insurance matters or retirement eligibility
matters. In each case, the relief requested bygliapgs is to have the System’s determination @irth
case reversed and the sought-after benefit granted.

Post-Employment Health Care Benefits

GASB has promulgated its Statement 45 (“GASB 4%i)al requires the State, for fiscal years
beginning on and after July 1, 2007, to account rigtiree health care benefits and other post-
employment benefits in a manner similar to thatunesgl for pension benefits. GASB 45 does not
require that such benefits be funded in advantthelState continues to pay such benefits as¢bheye
due, however, it is expected that annual cost iabdity accruals will increase due to GASB 45.

The State funds post-employment health care benfdit most retired State employees and
legislators and a portion of the health insurancamoums for retired teachers. The State pays 100
percent of post-employment health insurance premifaneligible retirees who were first employed on
or before July 1, 1991. A pro rata portion, raggirom zero percent for eligible retirees with Iésan
five years participation to 100 percent for eligiloétirees with ten or more years of participatisrpaid
for eligible retirees first employed after July1891. Retirees who are not eligible for Medicatin
coverage in the same group health plan as actiygogees. An eligible retiree must pay for Medicare
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Part B coverage to be eligible to participate i@ 8tate-funded companion plan. Coverage for eire

who are not eligible for Medicare includes basicsgitalization, supplemental major medical and
prescription drugs, and costs for treatment of aldmgalth, alcoholism, and substance abuse. Tdte St

contribution to the health insurance premiums &ired teachers is currently 45 percent. County an
municipal law enforcement officers and municipaéfighters began coverage in fiscal year 2008 with
the State contributing 45 percent of the retirelg-pnemium of their respective plans.

Title 5 MRSA 8286-B authorizes an Irrevocable Trashd for Other Post-employment Benefits
to meet the State’s unfunded liability obligatidosretiree health benefits for eligible participsin the
State Employee Plan who are the beneficiaries efrtievocable trust fund. Annually, beginning with
the fiscal year starting July 1, 2007, the Legiskatshall appropriate funds to meet the State’s
obligations under any group health plan, policycontract purchased by the State Employee Health
Commission. Unfunded liabilities may not be crdagxcept those resulting from experience losses.
Unfunded liability resulting from experience lossesst be retired over a period not to exceed 1@syea
The unfunded liability for retiree health benefits eligible participants must be retired in 30 rgear
less from July 1, 2007. Public Law 2007 Chapter 240ended Title 5 MRSA Chapter 421 by
establishing the Irrevocable Trust for Other Pasplyment Benefits. The Maine Public Employees
Retirement System holds and invests long-term fundghe irrevocable trust fund. Its fiduciary
responsibilities include setting investment policyrder to fund the plan in accordance with agutgd
disbursement schedule that does not begin befergear 2027. Public Law 2011, Chapter 380, Pt. Y
82 established separate Irrevocable Trust Fund®tloer Post-employment Benefits to meet the State’s
unfunded liability obligations for retiree healthriefits for eligible participants in the TeachelanPand
the First Responders Plan who are the beneficiafidseir irrevocable trust funds. Annually, begimng
with the fiscal year starting July 1, 2011 for éig first responders and July 1, 2015 (as ameryed
Public Law 2013, Chapter 368 Pt. H 82) for eligitdachers, the Legislature shall appropriate fuods
meet the State’s obligations to retire the unfunigaality in 30 years or less from July 1, 2007.

In order to meet the statutory requirement to edtie unfunded liability in 30 years or less from
July 1, 2007, the State has developed a scheéduee-fund the trust over eight years. The actsari
have calculated a contribution schedule to meeStage's pay-as-you-go contribution requiremens plu
a percentage necessary to fund the trust suclaffeateight years the State will then be able talfthe
ARC thereafter. This schedule was used as the baisthe amounts budgeted for contributions in the
2016-17 biennial budget.

Contribution requirements are set forth in State |a’he annual other post-employment benefit
(“OPEB") cost (expense) for each plan is calculdteded on the annual required contribution of the
employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determinedacctordance with the parameters of GASB
Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funthat, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected t
cover normal cost each year and to amortize anynalefd actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) oae
period not to exceed thirty years.

The State’s annual OPEB cost for fiscal year 2Qidi the related information for each plan are
as follows:
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(BExpressed in Thousands)

First

State Employees Teachers Responders
Annual required contribution $ 99,000 $ 45,000 $ 1,769
Interest on net OPEB obligation 6,000 8,000 186
Adjustment to annual required contribution (13,000) (15,000) (344)
Annual OPEB cost 92,000 38,000 1,611
Contributions made 63,228 24,956 593
Increase (decrease) in net healthcare obligation 7728, 13,044 1,018
Net healthcare obligation beginning of year 111,228 185,956 4,644
Net healthcare obligation end of year $ 140,000 $ 199,000 $ 5,662

As of June 30, 2014, there were 11,056 retiredbddigState employees, 9,933 retired teachers,
and 87 retired first responders. In fiscal yeal£0the State made contributions for other post-
employment healthcare benefits of $63 million fetinred employees, $25 million for retired teachers
and $600 thousand for first responders. The aeludetermined budgeted amounts for fiscal years
2015 and 2016 are $72 million and $56 million foe tstate employee plan and $26 million and $32
million, respectively, for the teacher plan.

The funded status of the plans as of June 30, 2@%4as follows:

(a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) () (b-a)/c)
UAAL (as a
Actuarial Actuarial Actuanal Unfunded Annud percentage
Valuation Value of Accrued AAL Covered of covered
Plan Date Assets Liability (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll payroll)
State June 30, 2014 167 1,224 1,057 13.64% 543 194.66%
Employees June 30, 2013 150 1,166 1,016 12.86% 518 196.14%
(in millions) June 30, 2012 136 1,316 1,180 10.33% 502 235.06%
Teachers June 30, 2014 0 684 684 0.00% 1,106 61.84%
(in millions) June 30, 2013 0 685 685 0.00% 1,194 57.37%
June 30, 2012 0 665 665 0.00% 1,156 57.53%
First June 30, 2013 0 22,369 22,369 0.00% 53,366 41.92%
Responders June 30, 2012 0 23,442 23,442 0.00% 43,510 53.88%
(in thousands)  June 30, 2011 0 21,921 21,921 0.00% 42,242 51.89%

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the vatieeported amounts and assumptions about
the probability of events far into the future, atiét actuarially determined amounts are subject to
continual revision as actual results are comparvquhst expectations and new estimates are madé abou
the future. The required schedules of funding psg presented as required supplementary informatio
in the State’s audited financial statements (sepefdix B herein) present multiyear trend informatio
about whether the actuarial value of plan asseisci®asing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

Employee Relations
As of May 12, 2015, the State had approximatel¥2Q Executive Branch employees.

The State Employees Labor Relations Act allowseSe&ployees in the Executive Branch
to engage in collective bargaining. As of May 1®12, approximately 9,747 employees were
covered by the law. There are seven bargainings umithin the Executive Branch. The Maine
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State Employees Association (MSEA-SEIU) is the hamigg agent for four bargaining units which
include approximately 8,324 employees. The AmeriEaderation of State, County, and Municipal
Employees (AFSCME) represents the employees ine Stastitutions; the Maine State Law
Enforcement Association (MSLEA) represents thosdaim enforcement activities excluding State
Police; and the Maine State Troopers AssociatiofSTM) represents the State Police. The
Commissioner of Administrative and Financial Seegicacting through the Office of Employee
Relations within the Bureau of Human Resourcesthis Governor's designee for collective
bargaining and is responsible for the negotiatiand all other employee relations functions. The
State is currently in negotiations with the MSEARSEAFSCME, MSLEA, and the MSTA for
successors to the agreements which will expire 30n2015.

Collective bargaining has also been extended tolm®mes of the Judicial Department,
Legislative Branch, the University of Maine Systethe Maine Community College System, the
Maine Maritime Academy, and to employees of cowmtieunicipalities and special districts,
including public school teachers.

Interfund Transactions

Due to Other Funds are amounts owed by one Statktfuanother for goods sold or services
rendered. Due from Other Funds are amounts tedsved from one State fund by another for goods
sold or services rendered. The following is a samynof amounts due from other funds and due to
other funds as of June 30, 2014:

Interfund Receivables
(Bxpressed in Thousands)

Due to Other Funds

Other

Special Other
Due from Other Funds General Highway Federal Revenue Governmental
General $ 1 $ - $ 1,302 $
Highway 31 2 8,316 z
Federal 9,217 2 121 62¢
Other Special Revenue 101,984 102 180 219 24
Other Governmental 437 129
Employment Security 22
Alcoholic Beverages - - -
Non-Major Enterprise 165 135 2 4
Internal Service 10,781 3,68¢ 3,482 4,403
Fiduciary 24,007 - - -
Total $ 146,622 $ 3,930 $ 23,554 $ 5,262 24

Employment Alcoholic Non-Magor Internal

Due from Other Funds Security Beverages Enterprise Service Fiduciary Total
General $ - $ $ 9,103 $ 4,811 $ 3,320 $ 18,536
Highway 12 18,363
Federal - - - 9,969
Other Special Revenue 183,482 15 43 286,050
Other Governmental - 566
Employment Security - 22
Alcoholic Beverages -
Non-Major Enterprise 1 - - 307
Internal Service 442 1,809 11 24,622
Fiduciary - - - - - 24,007
Total $ 1 $ 183,482 $ 9,562 $ 6,675 $ 3,321 $ 231812
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Advances to or from other funds are for long-teoanis made by one fund to another. Advances
from the General Fund are for inventory of the RlpdRrinting and Supply Fund. The following is a
summary of interfund advances as of June 30, 2014:

Schedule of Advances to or from Other Funds
June 30, 2014

(Dollars in Thousands)

Working Capital Working Capital

Fund Type Receivable Payable
General $ 111 $

Other Special Revenue - -
Internal Service - 111
Total All Funds $ 111 $ 111

REVENUES OF THE STATE
General

In order to fund its programs and services, thdéeStallects a variety of taxes and receives
revenues from other non-tax sources, including fémderal government and various fees, fines,
reimbursements, interest earnings and transfens fron-budgetary sources. For additional information
concerning revenues of the State, see ExhibitsdBCan

General Fund revenue collections for the monthprif 2015 were over budget by $33.8 million or
8.8%. Revenues for the ten month period endingl 215 totaled $2,494.6 million and were over
budget by $55.5 million or 2.2 %. Compared to tlans period last fiscal year, General Fund
revenues are up $26.4 million or 6.7%. Individlradlome Tax revenues were over budget for the
month by 33.1 million or 14.8% and were over budgetr-to-date through April 2015 by $76.9 million o
6.7%. Sales and Service Provider Taxes, combinetk wer budget for the month by $0.724 million
or 1%, and are under budget year-to-date by $3llmor 0.4%. Corporate Tax revenues were
under budget for the month by $4.4 million or 15,8d $18.6 million or 12. 7% under budget year-
to-date. Estate Taxes were under budget by $1lemibr 73.8% for the month and $5. 2 million or
17.7% under budget year-to-date. Cigarette and dombdaxes were $0.251 million or 2.4% under
budget for the month, and over budget by $1.5 omilbr 1. 3% year-to-date. Insurance Companies Tax
was over budget by $7.7 million or 59.2% for themtioand over budget by $5.0 million or 1.3%
year-to-date. Fines, Forfeits and Penalties weré380million or 24.3% under budget for the month,
and $0.537 million or 2.9% under budget for therydabttery income was under budget by $0.078
million or 1.8% for the month, and under budgetd#dy9 million or 4.2% for the year. Transfers for
Tax Relief were were $0.327 million or 226.4% ovmrdget inApril, and $0.891 million or 1.5%
under budget year-to-date. Other Taxes and Fees over budget by $0.084 million or 0.9% for
the month, and were over budget by $4.4 millioMtd year-to-date. “Other Revenues” were under
budget for the month by $1.6 million or 32.6%, amdler budget by $1.4 million or 5.7% year-to-date.

The following table for fiscal year 2014, refledtee updated budgeted revenue re-projections
after the December 2010 Revenue Forecasting Coaemiiteeting and the March 2014 Revenue
Forecasting Committee Meeting and the budget thrabg 128 second regular session. The table for
2015 reflects the updated budgeted revenue repimjscafter the December 2010 Revenue Forecasting
Committee Meeting, the budget through the "L2&cond regular session, and the updated budgeted
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revenue reprojections after the December 2014 RevEorecasting Committee Meeting. The table for
2016 reflects the updated budgeted revenue repimjscafter the December 2012 Revenue Forecasting
Committee Meeting, the budget through the "L2&cond regular session, and the updated budgeted
revenue reprojections after the December 2014 Revé&wrecasting Committe8ee “State Budgets”
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above.
Fiscal_ year 2014 Fis_cal year 2014 as bE(IngC:tl %i%ruéglt?we
CATEGORY Baseline Budget Revised by the March 126" 2" Regular
December 2010 RFC RFC Session

Sales and Use Tax $1,036,894,136 $1,108,677,783 10%B78,483
Service Provider Tax 64,809,166 49,317,427 49,3177{42
Individual Income Tax 1,662,574,000 1,380,685,000 380,685,000
Corporate Income Tax 252,110,983 169,706,p58 169%8¢4
Cigarette and Tobacco Tax 138,621,367 135,900{000 5,908,000
Insurance Companies Tax 76,015,000 80,715/000 80Jab
Estate Tax 54,924,035 27,553,98p 27,553,982
Fines, Forfeits and Penalties 30,777,049 23,468|666 23,468,666
Income from Investments 205,585 132,923 132,623
Transfer from Lottery Commission 52,034,260 53,600, 53,500,00(
Transfer for Tax Relief Programs (115,257,5Y9) (68,370) (62,258,370
Transfer to Municipal Revenue Sharing (153,458,d62) (64,904,675 (64,839,710)
Other Taxes and Fees 138,401,848 128,459[912 12816509
Other Revenues 43,317,3Y3 43,200,283 44,447,248
Total Undedicated Revenues $3,281,969,[01 $3,074,154,489 $3,074,367,114

Fiscall year 2015 bE('f;;' '[};?ra(l)ruz?wlt?le Fisqal year 2015 as

CATEGORY baseline budget 126" 2 Regular Revised by the May
December 2010 RFC Session 2015 RFC

Sales and Use Tax $1,070,820,224 $1,187,737,653 $1,194,004(518
Service Provider Tax 66,947,869 50,303,776 50,303,776
Individual Income Tax 1,754,681,00( 1,455,836,200 1,500,252,p88
Corporate Income Tax 267,054,252 177,651,245 167,655,640
Cigarette and Tobacco Tax 136,200,611 133,590,040 134,890,000
Insurance Companies Tax 76,015,000 80,715,000 82,250,000
Estate Tax 56,950,563 26,957,040 35,377,288
Fines, Forfeits and Penalties 30,772,049 23,421,666 22,665,758
Income from Investments 205,585 93,858 519,546
Transfer from Lottery Commission 52,034,250 57,350,462 53,800,000
Transfer for Tax Relief Programs (115,281,994 (58,183,362) (59,183,362)
Transfer to Municipal Revenue Sharirlg (160,928,111 (61,066,238) (59,183,362
Other Taxes and Fees 140,272,961 132,978,084 134,347,436
Other Revenues 42,850,994 39,939,411 45,846,694
Total Undedicated Revenues $3,418,595,p61 $3,247,324, 775 $3,298,922,59(



Fiscal year 2016 baseling Fiscal year 2016 budgqt Fiscal year 2016 as
CATEGORY budget December 2012| through the 128 2™ Revised by the May
RFC Regular Session 2015 RFC

Sales and Use Tax $1,136,763,184 $1,122,506,0f2 $1,127,459)003
Service Provider Tax 60,487,623 51,309,85(L 51,309,861
Individual Income Tax 1,507,450,00( 1,525,607,128 1,548,776,p95
Corporate Income Tax 209,574,314 186,375,104 133,441,900
Cigarette and Tobacco Tax 131,374,000 131,374,040 133,441,000
Insurance Companies Tax 80,715,000 80,715,000 82,700,000
Estate Tax 25,456,198 27,989,75P 30,675,3p6
Fines, Forfeits and Penalties 24,397,754 23,421,666 22,615,858
Income from Investments 216,840 189,254 439,232
Transfer from Lottery Commission 54,400,000 56,816,776 54,900,000
Transfer for Tax Relief Programs (126,935,063 (66,771,938) (66,771,938)
Transfer to Municipal Revenue (148,884,039 (156,948,496) (156,424,711)
Sharing
Other Taxes and Fees 129,215,875 129,037,739 131,979,472
Other Revenues 34,859,574 34,724,697 31,334,648
Total Undedicated Revenues —$3,119,091,P67 $3,146,346,60 $3,142,518,939

Certain State Taxes

Individual Income Tax. The State assesses indalithcome taxes at progressive rates from
0% to 7.95%, based on classifications or bracketax@ble income, depending upon filing status and
after specified deductions and exemptions. Taxaideme of resident individuals is derived from
federal adjusted gross income. The dollar amouhtheotax rate tables are indexed for inflatioror F
tax year 2014, the maximum rate applies to Maixalike income of $41,850 or greater for married
persons filing joint returns ($20,900 for singlelividuals and married persons filing separate retur
and $31,350 for individuals filing as heads of hehmds). A resident individual is allowed $3,950
(same as federal) for each exemption to which tiggvidual is entitled for the tax year for federal
income tax purposes. For resident taxpayers eatizing deductions, the standard deduction is the
same as the federal standard deduction of the yaxpavhich is also indexed at the federal
level. Nonresident Maine taxpayers are taxedsmalar fashion, but they are allowed a credittfozir
non-Maine sourced income.

Sales and Use Taxes. A sales tax is imposed ovathe of all tangible personal property and
taxable services sold at retail in the State. fEte of tax is 7% on the value of liquor sold icelnsed
establishments, 7% on the value of rental of liviugrters in any hotel, rooming house, touristraiter
camp, 10% on the value of rental for a period s$ ldhan one year of an automobile, 7% on the aflue
prepared food, and 5% on the value of all othegitda personal property and taxable services. 7Phe
rate is temporarily increased to 8% for the per@zober 1, 2013 to June 30, 2015. The 5% rate is
temporarily raised to 5.5% for the same time period

A use tax is imposed at the rates provided forssa#xes, on the storage, use or other
consumption in the State of tangible personal ptype a service, the sale of which would be subjec
sales tax.

No sales or use tax is imposed on sales, storageiser of certain tangible personal
property. Some of the major exemptions are grostaples (which do not include liquor, and prepared
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food); prescription medicines; certain productsduseagricultural and aqua cultural production;taer
motor fuels; coal, oil, wood and all other fuelscept electricity, when bought for cooking and et

in residential units; the first 750 kilowatt hows&residential electricity per month; fuel oil ooa, the
by-products from the burning of which become arredgent or component part of tangible personal
property for later sale; packaging materials; ¢ernpeeriodicals; sales to incorporated hospitaterised
and incorporated non-profit nursing homes, liceressdl incorporated non-profit boarding care faeii
medical research facilities, schools, regularly amiged churches and similar institutions; water
pollution and air pollution control facilities cdreéd by the State Commissioner of Environmental
Protection; and ninety-five percent (95%) of thke gaice of all fuel and electricity purchased e at

a manufacturing facility.

Corporate Income Tax. An income tax is imposednugiie Maine net income of taxable
corporations at progressive rates from 3.5% on Blaket income not over $25,000 to 8.93% on Maine
net income in excess of $250,000. The tax compugiuly Maine net income is then apportioned to
Maine. Maine net income is derived from taxableoime of the taxpayer under the laws of the United
States, adjusted by certain modifications, inclgdadditions for certain tax deductions, certain net
operating losses and certain depreciation dedwtiamd subtractions for income exempt by law from
taxation by the State, certain apportionable divtdmcome and certain net operating losses.

Certain Motor Fuel Taxes. An excise tax is impoaethe rate of $0.300 per gallon on internal
combustion engine fuel (gasoline) sold or used iwithhe State. An excise tax is imposed on all
suppliers of special fuel sold and on all usersp#cial fuel used in the State at the rate of $O3r
gallon of distillate. Low-energy fuel such as kdjed natural gas, propane, methane and butaagad t
at a rate based on the energy content of eachaBiebmpared to gasoline. Special fuels include all
combustible gases and liquids used in an interorbristion engine, except fuel subject to the gasoli
tax. Indexing of motor fuel excise tax rates wegsealed effective July 1, 2013.

Estate Tax. 2011 Chapter 380 reformed the estatevith respect to decedents dying after
December 31, 2012. The exclusion amount increfises $1,000,000 to $2,000,000. Also beginning
in 2013, a progressive rate structure applies: 8%state value of more than $2,000,000 but lessdha
equal to $5,000,000; 10% on estate value of mae #5,000,000 but less than or equal to $8,000,000;
12% on estate value of more than $8,000,000.

Pursuant to the Constitution of the State, all nes derived from fees, excises and license
taxes relating to registration, operation and useedbicles on public highways, and to fuels used fo
propulsion of such vehicles shall be expended wdtelthe cost of administration, state enforcenunt
traffic laws, statutory refunds and adjustments| @@ cost of construction, reconstruction, maiatee
and repair of public highways and bridges and liergayment of interest and principal on bonds gsue
for, and the payment of obligations incurred irg tonstruction and reconstruction of highways and
bridges. Such funds may not be diverted for ahgiopurpose.

The Governor’s proposed 2016-2017 Biennial Budgeludes significant changes to Maine’s
tax policies intended to bring relief to Maine féigs by transitioning from a tax code dependent on
earnings to a more modern tax code dependent osuomtion. The proposed changes include
reductions to Maine’s income tax rates, modermzatf the sales tax base and increase in the denera
sales tax rate, the elimination of the estate itateases the amount of pension income exempt from
income tax and completely exempts military pensimmome.

Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement

The State entered into the tobacco master settleageeement (the “Settlement Agreement”) on
November 23, 1998 with certain tobacco manufacsutersettle a suit the State brought against those
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tobacco manufacturers. The State is one of forystates and five U.S. territories (the “Settling
States”) that executed the Settlement Agreemeiht tivé manufacturers. The lawsuit included a wariet
of claims, including claims to recover smoking tethMedicaid costs (the “Claims”). Pursuant to the
Settlement Agreement, the manufacturers who hawedothe Settlement Agreement (“Participating
Manufacturers”) have agreed to make certain anpanaients that are allocated among all the Settling
States.

Certain initial and annual payments by the Paritigy Manufacturers that were allocated to the
State pursuant to the Settlement Agreement commdebeeember 1999. The initial payments ended in
2003 and the annual payments are expected to centirperpetuity.

The State expects to expend the annual paymergseecfrom the Participating Manufacturers
for smoking prevention, cessation and control &, prenatal and young children’s care, childeca
for children up to 15 years of age, health carecfoldren and adults, prescription drugs for adulk®
are elderly or disabled, dental and oral healtte ¢arlow-income persons who lack adequate dental
coverage, substance abuse prevention and treatamehtcomprehensive school health programs,
pursuant to 22 MRSA 81511(6).

In addition, certain payments (the “Strategic Citiion Payments”) to be made by the
Participating Manufacturers and allocated amongdanerSettling States in recognition of strategic
contributions made by specific Settling States|uding Maine, to the negotiation of the Settlement
Agreement were established pursuant to the Settiemgreement. The Strategic Contribution
Payments began in 2008 and will be made annuadlingrin 2017.

Annual payments received by the State pursuaritedd@settiement Agreement have ranged from
approximately $63,000,000 in fiscal year 2000 tpragimately $45,000,000 in fiscal year 2006. The
State received $49,475,682.05 in fiscal year 2Q&Syant to the Settlement Agreement.

Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, Participddlagufacturers may dispute annual payment
amounts. Participating Manufacturers have disputedain amounts of each year's payment since
2003. The predominant dispute, though not the didgute, is that certain Participating Manufaatsire
have claimed that they are entitled to a downwadjdsament in the amount they owe because of loss of
market share to non-participating manufactureffsthé Participating Manufacturers prevail on this
claim against the State, the amount the Stateti8eehto for each disputed year would decreasbe T
State is involved in arbitration, pursuant to thegti®ment Agreement, to obtain a determination that
diligently enforced its “qualifying statute,” in &ping with the terms of the Settlement Agreememd, a
that accordingly Maine is entitled to the full ambwf its annual payment without a reduction fog th
market share loss to non-participating manufacsurédther Settling States are involved in similar
arbitration proceedings seeking a determinatiothefamount to which they are entitled for previous
years’ tobacco settlement payments to their states.

Maine prevailed in the arbitration proceeding tdatermined it had diligently enforced its
qualifying statute as the issue related to Mair29683 payment. As a result of that favorable denisio
the State determined that it was entitled to antadél payment of $5,569,152.87, which amount was
paid to the State in April 2014. The State hasiveceits 2014 payment, which may have included
additional funds as a result of a miscalculatiorth®y Independent Auditor, PwC. PwC is continuiog t
modify its calculations, and the State’s paymeny ima subject to subsequent adjustments.

State Investment Pool

As described above under the heading “Governmedtghnization — Executive Branch —
Treasurer of State,” when there is money in thdeSTaeasury that is not needed to meet current
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obligations, the Treasurer of State may, with tlencurrence of the State Controller or the
Commissioner of Administrative and Financial Seegiand with the consent of the Governor, invest
those amounts in certain instruments authorize®Gtaye law. The Treasurer of State maintains the
records of the investments of the State througltthé investment pool. The average daily balafice
the State investment pool was $558,281,781.8%aafiyear 2014. The balance of the State investmen
pool as of April 30, 2015 was approximately $798,000.

Collateralized bank accounts, repurchase agresnagil certificates of deposit collateralized by
U.S. Treasuries and Agencies and direct holdingd.B. Treasuries make up the cash pool portfolio.
On April 30, 2015, the weighted average final miaguf the pool was 213 days.

CERTAIN PUBLIC INSTRUMENTALITIES
Maine Governmental Facilities Authority

The Maine Governmental Facilities Authority (“MGFAS authorized to assist in financing the
acquisition, construction, improvement, reconstamcbr equipping of, or construction of an additmm
additions to, structures designed for use as ctagilities or state offices and the acquisition,
construction, improvement, reconstruction or repdirequipment or other personal property, all of
which are rented to agencies of the State. MGFA waated in 1987 and was known as the Maine
Court Facilities Authority until 1997 when its namas changed and its purposes were broadeNed.
securities may be issued without the prior appra@¥dhe Legislature. Neither the full faith andedit
nor the taxing power of the State or of any pdditisubdivision of the State is pledged to the payoé
the principal of, redemption premium, if any, oterest on MGFA’s bonds. MGFA has no taxing
power. As of April 30, 2015, the aggregate priatipmount of MGFA’s bonds outstanding was
$170,870,000. The State has agreed, subject topqgion, to make rental payments to be applied to
payment of MGFA’s bonds. Debt service on MGFA'swts for the State fiscal year ending June 30,
2015 is $26,699,100

Finance Authority of Maine

The Finance Authority of Maine (“FAME”) was created1983 to undertake various economic
development finance programs and to assume thensdities of several smaller state authorities.
FAME is currently authorized to insure repaymentofmmercial loans and to require the State to fund
its insurance obligations, from proceeds of bonfishe State or from other sources, provided that
insurance obligations and bonds of the State issuéghd insurance obligations shall not exceethen
aggregate at any one time outstanding the princggabunt of $90,000,000 plus an additional
$4,000,000 with respect to loans for eligible vater. As of March 31, 2015, amounts outstanding
pursuant to these authorizations were $77,489,80(0491,000 respectively. See “Fiscal Management
- Constitutional Debt Limit” herein. Since the atien of FAME in 1983, the Treasurer of State hais n
been asked to issue bonds of the State to payetdiutled loans insured by FAME pursuant to these
authorizations.

In 1990, FAME was authorized to provide certairdstut financial assistance services, including
continuation of a student loan insurance prograratimg certain federal requirements in order to secu
loans to students attending institutions of higb@ucation. Pursuant to this authorization, FAME ha
entered into agreements with the United Statese®egr of Education relating to federal, state and
private programs of low-interest insured loans tiadents in institutions of higher education. The
Constitution allows the Legislature to authorize tssuance of bonds in the amount of up to $4,000,0
to secure funds for loans to Maine students attenafistitutions of higher education. As of March 3
2015, the student loan insurance obligations of EAMere $514,706,000. See “Fiscal Management -
Constitutional Debt Limit” herein. Since 1977, theeasurer of State has not been asked to issu#sbon
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of the State to pay off defaulted loans insuredpant to the bond issuance authorization set fortie
Constitution.

In addition, FAME may issue bonds and other obiayest which shall not be a debt or liability of
any municipality, the State or any political subsiion thereof. The statutes governing FAME include
Capital Reserve Provisions. As of March 31, 20th®, aggregate principal amount outstanding of
FAME's obligations undertaken pursuant to its CapReserve Provisions was $10,990,000 for waste
motor oil disposal site remediation projects, $0,000 for major business expansion projects, and
$27,699,000 for other projects. The State hasaeh asked to restore FAME’s Capital Reserve since
the inception of its Capital Reserve Provision. e S&overnmental Organization - Independent
Authorities and Agencies” herein.

Maine State Housing Authority

The Maine State Housing Authority (“MSHA”) was cted in 1969 to undertake various
programs related to housing. The bonds and othkgations of MSHA shall not be a debt of any
municipality, the State or any political subdivisithereof and neither the State nor any municipalir
any political subdivision thereof shall be liableeteon. As of March 31, 2015, MSHA had
$1,254,610,000 of housing bonds outstanding whétfuire a capital reserve. The statutes governing
MSHA include Capital Reserve Provisions. The State not been asked to restore MSHA'’s Capital
Reserves since the inception of its Capital Res&navisions. See “Governmental Organization -
Independent Authorities and Agencies” herein. MSilgo has $41,315,000 of Maine Energy, Housing
and Economic Recovery Bonds for a grand total g2$8,925,000 outstanding.

MHSA is also authorized to insure repayment of gege loans on Indian housing and to
require the State to fund these insurance obligatitrom proceeds of bonds of the State or froneroth
sources, provided that insurance obligations shatl exceed in the aggregate at any one time
outstanding the principal amount of $1,000,000. cAsMarch 31, 2015, MSHA's Indian housing
mortgage insurance obligations were approximately60$000. See “Fiscal Management —
Constitutional Debt Limit” herein.

Maine Municipal Bond Bank

The Maine Municipal Bond Bank (“MMBB”) was creat@&d 1972 to lend money to counties,
cities, towns, school administrative districts, eoumity school districts, and quasi-municipal
corporations to finance certain capital expendgutee “Original Program”). Bonds and notes issued
by the MMBB shall not be in any way a debt or llapiof the State and shall not create any debt or
debts, liability or liabilities, on behalf of thaa®e or be or constitute a pledge of the full faitid credit
of the State. As of March 31, 2015, the aggregateipal amount of the MMBB’s bonds outstanding
was $1,519,551,713 of which (a) $21,105,000 ishattable to loans to certain municipalities to sssi
financing certain wastewater and drinking wateatimeent facilities pursuant to a revolving loan fund
program, (b) $114,240,000 is attributable to cartaant anticipation bonds payable solely from ahnu
federal highway grants to the State, (c) $186,3X®,8 attributable to certain transportation revenu
bonds payable solely from certain State revenus$32,846,380 is for Qualified School Construction
Bonds (e) $220,660,000 is attributable to certmjudr revenue bonds payable solely from certaiteSta
revenues and (f) substantially all of the balarscatiributable to the Original Program. The MMBB i
expected to close its $70,380,0002015 Series B 8ondViay28, 2015. Such bonds will be attributable
to loans to certain municipalities. The statutesvegoing the MMBB include Capital Reserve
Provisions. The State has not been asked to essterMMBB'’s Capital Reserves since the inceptibn o
its Capital Reserve Provisions. See “Governmefgjanization — Independent Authorities and
Agencies” herein.
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Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Aoitity

The Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilithesthority (‘MHHEFA”) was created in
1971 to provide the means to expand, enlarge aablesh health care, hospital, nursing home androth
related facilities and to assist institutions ogter education in the State to provide facilitiesl a
structures. Bonds and notes issued by MHHEFA dacapstitute or create any debt or debts, liability
or liabilities, on behalf of the State or any pohi subdivision thereof other than MHHEFA or arlaaf
credit of the State or a pledge of the faith aradiitrof the State or of any political subdivisicther than
MHHEFA. As ofApril 30, 2015, the aggregate prirgimmount of MHHEFA’s bonds outstanding
secured by the Capital Reserve was $872,715,00@. sttutes governing MHHEFA include a Capital
Reserve Provision. The State has not been askedstore MHHEFA's Capital Reserve since the
inception of its Capital Reserve Provision. Seev&nmental Organization - Independent Authorities
and Agencies” herein.

Maine Educational Loan Authority

The Maine Educational Loan Authority (“MELA”) wasstablished in 1988 to carry out
programs making financial and other assistancdabtaito students and their parents to financesaufst
attendance at institutions of higher education.nd®of MELA do not constitute or create any debt or
debts, liability or liabilities, on behalf of thee$e or of any political subdivision of the Stad&her than
MELA, or a loan of the credit of the State or adge of the faith and credit of the State or of any
political subdivision, other than MELA. As of Mdrc31, 2015, the aggregate principal amount of
MELA's bonds outstanding was $119,720,000. Thitss governing MELA include a Capital Reserve
Provision. The State has not been asked to rebt&ileA’s Capital Reserve since the inception of its
Capital Reserve Provision. See “Governmental Qegdion - Independent Authorities and Agencies”
herein.

Loring Development Authority

Loring Development Authority (“LDA”) was establistan 1993 to acquire and manage the
former Loring Air Force Base in northern Maine. rgis of LDA are payable solely from the income,
proceeds, revenues and funds of LDA and do nottitotesan indebtedness within the meaning of any
constitutional or statutory debt limitation or méstion. As of March 31, 2015, LDA had not issued any
bonds. The statutes governing LDA include a CagdRaserve Provision. See “Governmental
Organization - Independent Authorities and Ageridiesein.

University of Maine System

The University of Maine System (the “University 8®") includes the University of Maine,
established in 1865, and all other public institng of higher education in Maine, except the Maine
Maritime Academy and the seven colleges of the Bl&ommunity College System. Money borrowed
by the University System and evidences of indel#sgnissued by the University System do not
constitute any debt or liability of the State orawsfy municipality or political subdivision of theda$e,
but shall be payable solely from the revenues @fthiversity System or any project for which theg a
issued. As of March 31, 2015, the aggregate pgraicamount of the University System’s bonds
outstanding was $145,820,000. The University Sy'steSeries 2015 bonds were issued on April 8,
2015, bringing the aggregate principal amount afdsooutstanding to $156,120,000 as of April 30,
2015.
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Maine Turnpike Authority

The Maine Turnpike Authority (“MTA”) was created 941 and has constructed and operates
and maintains a turnpike approximately 109 milegylbetween York and Augusta. Bonds issued by
MTA shall not be deemed to be a debt of the Staiesuch bonds shall be payable exclusively from
tolls. The bonds shall not directly or indirectly contingently obligate the State to levy or pledmy
form of taxation whatever therefor or to make apprapriation for the payment thereof. As of March
31, 2015, the aggregate principal amount of MTASads outstanding was $428,820,000.

Maine Public Utility Financing Bank

The Maine Public Utility Financing Bank (“MPUFB”) as created in 1981 to lend money to
public utilities in the State. Bonds and noteseésshy MPUFB do not constitute a debt or liabilifytloe
State or of any municipality therein or any pohlficsubdivision thereof, or a pledge of the faitld an
credit of the State or of any such municipalitypaditical subdivision. As of March 31, 2015, there
were no outstanding bonds of MPUFB.

Maine Port Authority

The Maine Port Authority (“MPA”) was established 945 and is authorized to acquire,
construct and operate any kind of port terminaillitgavithin the State and to acquire and constracy
railroad facility within the State. Bonds of MPA ahot constitute a debt of the State, or of anyhage
or political subdivision thereof, but are payabdéely from the revenues of MPA, and neither théhfai
nor credit nor taxing power of the State, or anijtipal subdivision thereof, is pledged to the payh
of MPA’s bonds. As of March 31, 2015, there weoeontstanding bonds of MPA.

LITIGATION

The State is a party to numerous lawsuits. Suelsdds include actions to recover monetary
damages from the State, disputes over individualooporate income taxes, disputes over sales or use
taxes, and actions to alter the regulations or atnative practices of the State in such manndoas
cause additional costs to the State. The Stateti@ware of any pending or threatened litigation o
claim against the State, the outcome of which wdlve a material adverse effect on the financial
condition of the State. The matters set forth urtderheading “Primary Government — Litigation” in
Note 15 Commitments and Contingencies to the Fiahrgtatements attached as Exhibit B hereto
should be noted.

The Maine Association of Retirees, now joined by Maine State Employees Association, the
Maine Education Association and the Maine Stateopeos Association, sued the Board of Trustees of
the Maine Public Employees Retirement System iref@dcourt challenging the constitutionality of
legislation that changes the cost of living adjuestis (“COLA”) for retirees. The Plaintiffs seekhave
that portion of the legislation that reduces theL80Odetermined null and void. No damages are sgugh
but attorney fees and costs are requested. IPthiatiffs prevail on all counts, the State willveato
make provision to retroactively reinstate COLA payis to the prior level. Such provision may have
an impact on the System’s unfunded actuarial ligbil To avoid an appearance of conflict, the €xfi
of the Attorney General has contracted outside seluto defend the Board. Current federal casedaw
such that predicting the outcome of this case dabaalone with any degree of accuracy. More detalil
regarding the challenged legislation and the pendawsuit can be found in the section “Recent
Legislative Changes Affecting Benefits Levels”. The S. District Court granted MainePERS motion
for summary judgment and motion to dismiss. Thairfdffs filed an appeal with the U. S. Appeals
Court. The State prevailed on the appeal.
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In fiscal year 2011, the Legislature enacted certdnianges to the State’s retirement plan and
related benefits. One of the changes requireg 8taployees who retire prior to their normal retieat
age to pay 100% of their retiree health insurarreenpums until they reach normal retirement age. A
claimant has alleged that the requirement to paQ%d®f the retiree health insurance premium
discriminates on the basis of age. The EEOC mjkitte allegations and found in favor of the State.

There is pending arbitration regarding the “diligeenforcement” of the 1998 Tobacco
Settlement Agreement, by which 46 states and oeieg settled their claims against major tobacco
companies in return for annual payments of fundparpetuity. This matter does not contemplate a
“liability” of the State, but it may result in sulastial loss of revenue. The Agreement required th
states to “diligently enforce” certain tobacco laagainst tobacco companies that did not entertigo
Agreement. If the states or some of them did wldigently enforce” those laws, the settling tobacc
companies could seek to decrease the amounts #udytirough binding arbitration. The settling
companies filed such an arbitration for the yeadd3MDut the case was resolved in favor of the State
The companies and the states are now in the prelmistages of preparing for an arbitration for the
year 2004. If Maine loses the arbitration, the fatpayments to Maine would be diminished by as much
as $47,824,637.78 (the amount Maine received idR00 It is unlikely that any decision would issue
within the next 18 months. For more details regaydhe Settlement Agreement and this dispute, see
the section “Tobacco Master Settlement Agreement”.

Another matter may result in reduction of futureypants to Maine. The dispute involves
whether Maine, as part of its Temporary AssistadoceNeedy Families Program (TANF), met its two-
parent work participation rate for the federal disgear 2007. The U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services has assessed a penalty against ®fajust over $1 million. The State entered into
and has been proceeding under a corrective actian fhat required compliance with federal
requirements by the end of fiscal year 2012. TtaeShas met this compliance date. There is yet no
indication that the U. S. Department of Health &hoinan Services will abate or eliminate the penalty.

The U. S. Department of Agriculture, Food and Niamn Service (“FNS”) seeked to recoup
overpayments by the Maine Department of Healthtdmochan Services (“DHHS”) to recipients of food
supplement benefits in the amount of $2.8 millioRNS asserted that DHHS may not recoup these
overpayments from recipients. The State agreedwvest $2.8 million in activities to improve SNAP
(Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program) recipietegrity in the State.

In John F. Murphy Homes v. State of Maine, a prewidf Maine Care services is claiming that
the State failed to pay it $7.5 million for senddeprovided between 2001 and 2011. It also cdatinat
the State has improperly received $15.7 milliofeileral payments for these services. This litayats
at its earliest stages and, therefore, its outdgreacertain at this time.

Aldrich v. LePage, is a class action suit filedbmhalf of developmentally disabled adults on the
waiting list for certain home- and community-basegvices waiver programs has seeking an expansion
of services. This case has been settled. Thée®etit Agreement provides for State funding from th
following sources: An appropriation, seeded in JR@&5, of an additional $1 million ($1,000,000) per
year in state funds for the Section 21 Waiver am@dditional $4 million per year in state fundiray f
the Section 29 Waiver, as set forth in P.L. 201,595, § B-1. The transfer of up to $1.3 million
($1,300,000) of the anticipated surplus from thateStriscal Year 2014 to the Section 21 Waiver
Program to reduce the Priority 1 waitlist, as sethf in P.L. 2014 ch. 595, § X-3. The transfer$af
million ($1,000,000) from the Office of the Maindtérney General to DHHS for the sole purpose of
extending services to individuals on the Priorityditlist and/or Section 29 waitlist.
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All state funding is expected to be matched by faldeunding at the then-applicable Federal
Medical Assistance Percentage (“FMAP”) rate. Nuoghin the Settlement Agreement limits the state
from using alternate sources of funding to meeit thidigations under the Agreement.

In Edson v. State of Maine, Department of Healtd &luman Services, the plaintiff has filed a
notice of claim with regard to an incident that weed at the Riverview Psychiatric Center on
December 2, 2013. The plaintiff alleges that slas assaulted and pepper-sprayed and claims to have
damages at a minimum of $1.0 million.

In Dobson v. State of Maine, Department of Healid 8luman Services, the plaintiff has filed a
notice of claim with regard to the death on Decen@tie 2014 of the plaintiff's twin son that was qéal
in foster care. The plaintiff alleges that a fosparent fell asleep after consuming alcohol and
prescription medication resulting in the suffocatiaf the child who was on the foster parent’s chest
For himself, plaintiff seeks damages in the amadi$2.0 million.

Plaintiff has filed a second notice of claim on &klthe estate of his son for wrongful death and
on behalf of his twin daughter who was placed stdo care in the same home. The plaintiff allebas
the Department was negligent in placing his daughtth the foster parents. Plaintiff claims damsage
of $1.0 million for the wrongful death of his sonda$1.0 million for his daughter.

Adle v. Maine State Police, Maine Warden Servicd annamed governmental employees. The
notice of claim relates to the death of Shad GerkBme claim alleges that officers of the Mainet&ta
Police, wardens of the Maine Warden Service anddafercement officers of the Penobscot County
Sheriff's Department illegally confronted Gerkendansed excessive force, causing his death. The
notice of claim alleges $7.5 million dollars in cpemsatory and punitive damages.
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INDEX TO FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Sectionll - Certain Information from the State Controller’ s Budgetary and Page
Lega Requirements Reports for Fiscal Y ears 2010 through 2014 (Unaudited)

Governmental Funds, Combined Statement of Resources, Expenditures and Changesin Fund EQUILY..........c.cccrreninerneicicnnecnennns B-112
Genera Fund, Statement of Resources, Expenditures and Changes in FUNd EQUILY ... B-113
Highway Fund, Statement of Resources, Expenditures and Changesin FUNd EQUILY.........c.cooeirirenene e B-114
Other Special Revenue Funds, Statement of Resources, Expenditures and Changesin Fund EQUILY ........ccccovvveeveeievenenecncrecee, B-115
Combined Balance Sheets, JUNE 30, 2014 ..ottt ettt sttt B-116
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No representation is made hereby that the information set forth in Section Il of Appendix B has
been prepared in full conformity with generaly accepted accounting principles.
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STATE OF MAINE
OFFICE OF THE STATE AUDITOR

66 STATE HOUSE STATION
AUGUSTA, MAINE 04333-0066

TEL: (207) 624-6250
FAX: (207) 624-6273

MARY GINGROW-SHAW, CPA
DEPUTY STATE AUDITOR
MICHAEL J. POULIN, CIA
DIRECTOR OF AUDIT and ADMINISTRATION

POLA A. BUCKLEY, CPA, CISA
STATE AUDITOR

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT

To the Honorable Michael D. Thibodeau, President of the Senate and
the Honorable Mark W. Eves, Speaker of the House of Representatives

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the State of Maine, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the State' s basic financial statements
aslisted in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Stateraent

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financia statements in
accordance with accounting principles generaly accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
dueto fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of the following component units: Child Development Services, Connect
ME Authority, Efficiency Maine Trust, Finance Authority of Maine, Loring Development Authority,
Maine Community College System, Maine Educational Center for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing, Maine
Educational Loan Authority, Maine Governmental Facilities Authority, Maine Health and Higher
Educational Facilities Authority, Maine Maritime Academy, Maine Municipal Bond Bank, Maine Port
Authority, Maine Public Employees Retirement System, Maine State Housing Authority, Maine
Technology Institute, Maine Turnpike Authority, Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority, Northern
New England Passenger Rail Authority, Small Enterprise Growth Fund, and the University of Maine
System. These financial statements reflect 100% of the assets and net position of the Aggregate
Discretely Presented Component Units, 95% of assets and 97% of net position/fund balance of the
Aggregate Remaining Fund Information, and 7% of liabilities of the Governmental Activities. These
statements were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion,
insofar as it related to the amounts included for these entities, are based on the reports of the other
auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financia statements are free from
material misstatement. The financial statements of the Efficiency Maine Trust, Loring Development
Authority, Maine Educational Loan Authority, Maine Port Authority, Maine Technology Institute, and
the Small Enterprise Growth Fund were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Sandards.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considersinternal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statementsin order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all materia respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the business type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of Maine, as of June 30, 2014, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary | nfor mation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis on pages 5-16, Budgetary Comparison information, State Retirement Plan and
Other Post-Employment Benefit Plans and Information about Infrastructure Assets Reported Using the
Modified Approach on pages 108-120, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, athough not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considersit to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We and other
auditors have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consist of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the State of Main€'s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and
individual nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical section are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements on pages 122-173 are the responsibility
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
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of America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as
described above, and the report of other auditors, the combining and individual nonmajor fund statements
arefairly stated, in al materia respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as awhole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subject to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required yovernment Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, our report on our consideration of the State's
internal control over financial reporting and our test of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters will be issued under separate cover. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financia reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financia reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in assessing the
results of our audit.

#Zz’a,&we%

Pola A. Buckley, CPA, CISA
State Auditor
Office of the State Auditor

December 31, 2014



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the State of Maine's annual financial report presents the State’'s discussion and analysis of
financial performance during the year ended June 30, 2014. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal
letter at the front of this report and with the State’ s financia statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Government-wide:

[J The State's net position decreased by 0.8 percent from the previous fiscal year. Net position of
Governmental Activities increased by $147.5 million, while net position of Business-Type Activities
decreased by $174.8 million. The Stat€'s assets exceeded its liabilities by $3.6 billion at the close of
fiscal year 2014. Component units reported net position of $2.9 billion, an increase of $120.8 million (4.4
percent) from the previous year.

Fund level:

[J At the end of the fiscal year, the State's governmental funds reported combined ending fund bal ances of
$416.0 million, an increase of $171.4 million from the previous year. The General Fund's total fund
balance was a negative $215.4 million, adecline of $71.1 million from the previous year. The Highway
Fund total fund balance was $37.8 million, an improvement of $3.5 million from the prior year.

[l The proprietary funds reported net position at year end of $412.1 million, a decrease of $162.5 million
from the previous year. This decrease is due primarily to a decrease in the Alcoholic Beverages Fund of
$171.0 million.

Long-term Debt:
[1 The State’ s liability for genera obligation bonds increased by $29.4 million during the fiscal year, which
represents the difference between new issuances and payments of outstanding debt. During the year, the
State issued $112.9 million in bonds and made principal payments of $83.5 million.

Additional information regarding the government-wide, fund level, and long-term debt activities can be found
beginning on page 8.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is an introduction to the State of Maine's basic financial statements, which are
comprised of three components. 1) government-wide financia statements, 2) fund financia statements, and 3)
notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the
basic financial statements.

Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the State as a whole using accounting methods similar
to those used by private-sector companies. The Statement of Net Position presents all of the State's assets,
deferred outflows, ligbilities and deferred inflows with the difference between the two reported as net position.
Over time, increases and decreases in net position are an indicator of whether the financial position is improving
or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the State€'s net position changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying events giving rise to the
change occur, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Therefore, revenues and expenses are reported in
these statements for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes
and earned but unused leave).
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Both government-wide statements report three activities:

Governmental activities - Most basic services, such as health and human services, education, governmental
support and operations, justice and protection, and transportation are included in this category. The Legidature,
Judiciary and the general operations of the Executive departments fall within the Governmental Activities.
Income taxes, sales and use taxes, and State and federal grants finance most of these activities.

Business-type activities - The State charges fees to customers to help cover all or most of the costs of certain
services it provides. Operating costs not covered by customer fees are subsidized by the General Fund. Lottery
tickets, alcoholic beverages, ferry services, and the State’' s unemployment compensation services are examples of
business-type activities.

Component units - Although legally separate, component units are important because the State is financially
accountable for these entities. The State has “blended” two component units, the Maine Governmental Facilities
Authority (MGFA) and Child Development Services (CDS) with Governmental Activities as described above.
Maine reports 18 other component units (7 major and 11 non-major) as discretely presented component units of
the State, and one component unit is reported with the State’s fiduciary funds. Complete financial statements of
the individual component units may be obtained directly from their respective administrative offices as shown in
Note 1 A to the financial statements.

Government-wide statements are reported utilizing an economic resources measurement focus and full accrual
basis of accounting. The following summarizes the impact of the transition from modified accrual to full accrual
accounting:

[J Capital assets used in governmental activities are not reported on governmental fund statements but are
included on government-wide statements.

[J Certain tax revenues that are earned, but not available, are reported as revenues in the Governmental
Activities, but are reported as deferred inflows on the governmental fund statements.

[J Other long-term assets that are not available to pay for current period expenditures are recorded as
deferred outflows in governmental fund statements, but not deferred on the government-wide statements.

[J Interna service funds are reported as Governmental Activities in the government-wide statements, but
reported as proprietary funds in the fund financial statements.

[J Governmental fund long-term ligbilities, such as certificates of participation, pension obligations,
compensated absences, bonds and notes payable, and others appear as liabilities only in the government-
wide statements.

[J Capital outlay spending results in capital assets on the government-wide statements, but is recorded as
expenditures on the governmental fund statements.

[J Proceeds from bonds, notes and other long-term financing arrangements result in liabilities on the
government-wide statements, but are recorded as other financing sources on the governmental fund
Statements.



[ Net position balances are allocated as follows:

Net Investment in Capital Assets are capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, and reduced by
outstanding balances for bonds, notes, and other debt attributed to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets.

Restricted Net Position are those with constraints placed on the use by external sources (creditors,
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of governments) or imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
and deferred inflows of resources that do not meet any of the above restrictions.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the State's most significant funds. Funds
are fiscal and accounting entities with self-balancing sets of accounts that the State uses to keep track of specific
revenue sources and spending for particular purposes. The State's funds are divided into three categories —
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary — and use different measurement focuses and bases of accounting.

Governmental funds. Most of the basic services are included in governmental funds, which generally focus on
how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for future
spending. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps determine whether
there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the programs of the
State. The governmental fund statements focus primarily on the sources, uses, and balance of current financial
resources and often have a budgetary orientation. These funds are reported using a flow of current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Because this information does not
encompass the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, a separate reconciliation provides
additional information that explains the relationship (or differences) between them. The governmental funds
consist of the General Fund, special revenue, capital projects, and permanent funds.

Proprietary funds: When the State charges customers for the services it provides, whether to outside customers
or to other agencies within the State, these services are generaly reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds
(enterprise and internal service) apply the accrual basis of accounting utilized by private sector businesses.
Enterprise funds report activities that provide supplies and services to the general public. An example isthe State
Lottery Fund. Interna service funds report activities that provide supplies and services to the State's other
programs and activities — such as the State’ s Postal, Printing and Supply Fund. Internal service funds are reported
as Governmental Activities on the government-wide statements.

Fiduciary funds: The State is the trustee or fiduciary for assets that belong to others. The State is responsible for
ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are used only for their intended purposes and by those to whom the
assets belong. These funds include pension and other employee benefit trusts administered by the Maine Public
Employees Retirement System, a component unit, private-purpose trusts, and agency funds. Fiduciary funds are
reported using the accrua basis of accounting. The State excludes these activities from the government-wide
financial statements because these assets are restricted in purpose and do not represent discretionary assets of the
State to finance its operations.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the
data provided in both the government-wide and fund financial statements.



Required Supplementary Information

The required supplementary information includes budgetary comparison schedules for the General Fund and
major specia revenue funds. Also included are notes and a reconciliation of fund balance from the budgetary
basis to fund balance determined according to generally accepted accounting principles. This section aso
includes schedules of funding progress for certain pension and other post-employment benefit trust funds and
condition and maintenance data regarding certain portions of the State’ s infrastructure.

Other Supplementary Information

Other supplementary information includes combining financial statements for non-major governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary funds. These funds are added together, by fund type, and presented in single columns
in the basic financial statements. Budgetary comparison schedules by agency are also included for the general
fund, the highway fund, federal funds, and other special revenue fund.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE AS AWHOLE

The State's net position decreased by 0.8 percent to $3.6 billion at June 30, 2014, as detailed in Tables A-1 and
A-2.
Table A- 1:Condensed Statement of Net Position
(Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Current and other

noncurrent assets $ 1860634 $ 1937953 $ 188740 $ 362402 $ 2,049,374 $ 2,300,355
Capital assets 4,004,210 3,940,29 44,462 55,340 4,048,672 3,995,636
Total Assets 5,864,844 5,878,249 233,202 7,342 6,098,046 6,295,991
Current liabilities 1,037,500 1,444,030 23577 33,778 1,061,077 1,477,808
Long-termliabilities 1,478,277 1,232,666 53% 4,981 1,483,671 1,237,647
Total Liabilities 2,515,777 2,676,696 28,971 38,759 2,544,748 2,715,45p
Net position (deficit):

Net investment in

capital assets 3,326,970 3,262,047 44,462 55,340 3,371,432 3,317,387

Restricted 523,133 404,218 331,799 321,112 854,932 725,330

Unrestricted (deficit) (501,036) (464,712 (172,030 2,531 (673,066) (462,181)
Total Net Position $ 3,349,067 $3,201,553 $ 204,231 $378,983 $3,553,298  $3,580,536
* Asrestated

Changes in Net Position

The State's fiscal year 2014 revenues totaled $7.5 billion. (See Table A-2) Taxes and operating grants and
contributions accounted for most of the State's revenue by contributing 46.7 percent and 37.6 percent,
respectively, of every dollar raised. The remainder came from charges for services and other miscellaneous
Sources.

The total cost of all programs and services totaled $7.6 billion for the year 2014. (See Table A-2) These
expenses are predominantly (70.6 percent) related to health & human services and education activities. The
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State's governmental support & operations activities accounted for 5.0 percent of total costs. Total net position
decreased by $27.2 million.

Table A-2 -Changes in Net Position
(Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Revenues
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services $ 528673 $ 508,039 $ 457,147 $ 543,926 $ 985820 $ 1,051,965

Operating Grants/Contributions 2,831,956 3,047,714 7,036 7,032 2,838,992 3,054,746
General Revenues:

Taxes 3,523,533 3,540,712 - - 3,523,533 3,540,712

Other 195,689 161,340 - - 195,689 161,340
Total Revenues 7,079,851 7,257,805 464,183 550,958 7,544,034 7,808,763
Expenses
Governmental Activities:

Governmental Support 377,269 428,011 377,269 428,011

Education 1,676,908 1,581,556 1,676,908 1,581,556

Health & Human Services 3,669,552 3,657,573 3,669,552 3,657,573

Justice & Protection 410,641 401,656 410,641 401,656

Transportation Safety 524,024 521,638 * 524,024 521,638

Other 468,725 516,398 468,725 516,398

Interest 47,271 46,541 47,271 46,541
Business-Type Activities:

Employment Security 159,058 169,334 159,058 169,334

Lottery 180,087 176,094 180,087 176,094

Military Equip. M aint. 11,466 36,971 11,466 36,971

Dirigo Health 26,863 56,229 26,863 56,229

Other 19,408 19,213 19,408 19,213
Total Expenses 7,174,390 7,153,373 396,882 457,841 7,571,272 7,611,214
Excess (Deficiency) before Special ltems
and Transfers (94,539) 104,432 67,301 93,117 (27,238) 197,549
Special Items 193,192 92,401 (193,192)  (108,288) - (15,887)
Transfers 48,861 54,916 (48,861) (54,916) - -
Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 147,514 251,749 (174,752) (70,087) (27,238) 181,662
Net Position, beginning of year (As Restated) 3,201,553 2,949,804 378,983 449,070 3,580,536 3,398,874
Ending Net Position $ 3,349,067  $ 3,201,553 $ 204,231  $ 378,983 $ 3553298 $ 3,580,536
* As restated
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Governmatal Activities

Revenues for the State's Governmental Activities totaled $7.1 billion while total expenses equaled $7.2 billion.
The increase in net position for Governmental Activities was $147.5 million in 2014, much of which was the
result of transfers from the State's Business-Type Activities discussed below. Program revenues were insufficient
to cover program expenses, therefore, the net program expenses of these governmental activities were supported
by general revenues, mainly taxes. Tax revenue decreased by $17.2 million from the prior year, primarily in the
Individual Income and Corporate Tax lines. Net expenses supported by tax revenue increased by approximately
$216.1 million (as restated), primarily in the Health and Human Services and Education areas. Additionally, the
State’ s Business-Type Activities transferred $242.1 million (net) to the Governmental Activities, which included
statutorily required profit transfers, capital contributions, and the pledged profit of the Alcoholic Beverages Fund
to finance the payment of the Liquor Revenue Bonds. These transfers are discussed futher on page 11.

The users of the State's programs financed $528.7 million of the cost. The federal and State governments
subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions of $2.8 billion. $3.7 billion of the State's net costs were
financed by taxes and other miscellaneous revenue.

Table A-3:Total Sources of Revenues for Governmental Activitiesfor Fiscal Year 2014

Other 3% Charges for Services 7%
(1)

N Grants & Contributions

Table A-4: Total Expenses for Governmental Activitiesfor Fiscal Year 2014
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Business-Type Activities

Revenues for the State's Business-Type Activities totaled $464.2 million while expenses totaled $396.9 million.
However, due to the conversion of the Marine Ports Enterprise Fund to an Other Special Revenue Fund of $9.7
million and the transfer recorded for the Healthcare Liability Retirement Fund (for payments due to healthcare

providers for services prior to December 1, 2012) totaling $183.5 million (see Note 17), the net position for
Business-Type Activities decreased by $174.8 million in 2014.

Table A-5 presents the cost of State Business-Type Activities. employment security, alcoholic beverages, lottery,
military equipment maintenance, Dirigo Health and other. The table also shows each activity's net cost (total cost
less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid provided for specific programs). The net cost
shows the financial burden placed on the State's taxpayers by each of these functions.

Table A-5:Net Cost of Business-Type Activities
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total Cost Net (Cost) Revenue
Category 2014 2013 2014 2013
Employment Security $ 159,058 $ 169,334 $ 11,330 $ 26,531
Alcoholic Beverages 19 - 12,520 12,533
Lottery 180,087 176,094 52,333 53,471
Military Equip. Maint. 11,466 36,971 (1,364) (1,157)
Dirigo Health 26,863 56,229 (1,061) 9,225
Other 19,389 19,213 (6,457) (7,486)
Tota $ 396,882 $ 457841 $ 67,301 $ 93,117

The cost of all Business-Type Activities this year was $396.9 million. The users of the State's programs financed
most of the cost. The State's net revenue from Business-Type Activities was $67.3 million, with the Lottery
making up $52.3 million of thetotal. The State's Business-Type Activities transferred $242.1 million (net) to the
Governmental Activities, which included statutorily required profit transfers of $52.4 million, the transfer of
balances totaling $9.7 million from the Marine Ports Enterprise Fund and the transfer of $183.5 million recorded
for the Hedthcare Liability Retirement Fund discussed above. Additionaly, the Governmental Activities
contributed $2.2 million to purchase capital assets that are recorded in the Business-Type activities.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE’S FUNDS

Table A-6 Governmental Fund Balances
(Expressed in Thousands)

Fund 2014 2013 Change
Generd $ (215,436) $ (144,375) $ (71,061)
Highway 37,790 34,324 3,466
Federa 9,291 24,751 (15,460)
Other Specia Revenue 416,273 247,223 169,050
Other Governmental 168,094 82,713 85,381
Tota $ 416,012 $ 244,636 $ 171,376

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the State’' s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances
of $416.0 million, an increase of $171.4 million in comparison with the prior year. Of this total amount, $27.2
million (6.5 percent) is classified as non-spendable, either due to its form or legal constraints, and $546.0 million
(131.2 percent) is restricted for specific programs by externa constraints, constitutional provisions, or contractual
obligations. Unspent bond proceeds, revenue restricted for transportation, natural resources or other programs are
included in restricted fund balance. At the end of the current fiscal year, the unassigned fund balance of the
General Fund was a deficit of $221.3 million, adecline of $70.1 million.

General Fund expenditures and other uses surpassed General Fund revenues and other sources resulting in an
decrease in the fund balance by $71.1 million. Revenues and other sources of the General Fund decreased by
approximately $12.3 million (.36 percent) which is mainly attributed to an decrease in tax revenue ($50.2 million
primarily from Individual Income and Corporate Tax). General Fund expenditures and other financing uses
increased by $264 million (8.2 percent). This is due, primarily, to an increase in expenditures for health and
human services and an increase in education expense.

The fund balance of the Highway Fund increased $3.5 million from fiscal year 2013, due mainly to the Highway
Fund’ s decrease in other expenses from the prior year, of $5.6 million.

Budgetary Highlights

For the 2014 fiscal year, the final legally adopted budgeted expenditures for the General Fund amounted to $3.3
billion, an increase of about $46.8 million from the original legally adopted budget of approximately $3.2 billion.
Actual expenditures on a budgetary basis amounted to approximately $85.6 million less than those authorized in
the final budget. After deducting the encumbered obligations and other commitments that will come duein fiscal
year 2015, including the budgeted starting balance for Fiscal Year 2014, there were funds remaining of $49.1
million to distribute in Fiscal Year 2014. Actua revenues exceeded final budget forecasts by $54.4 million. In
addition, the year-end cascade transferred $8.5 million to the Budget Stabilization Fund. Interest earnings along
with the legidatively and statutorily approved transfers increased the balance in the Budget Stabilization Fund to
$68.3 million as of June 30, 2014. Thisitem isfurther explained in Note 2 of Notes to the Financial Statements.
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets

By the end of fiscal year 2014, the State had roughly $4.0 billion in a broad range of capital assets, including land,
infrastructure, improvements, buildings, equipment, vehicles and intangibles. During fiscal year 2014, the State
acquired or constructed more than $133.4 million of capital assets. The most significant impact on capital assets
during the year resulted from a $1.5 billion write down of infrastructure due to a correction of the capitalization
policy. More detailed information about the State's capital assets and significant construction commitments is
presented in Notes 8 and 15 to the financial statements.

Table A-7 -Capital Assets
(Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental Business-type Total

Activities Activities Primary Government

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Land $ 575382 $ 571,268 $ 2255 % 7292 $ 577637 $ 578,560
Buildings 666,425 660,538 4,395 4,395 670,820 664,933
Equipment 268,621 265,956 32,268 36,339 300,889 302,295
Improvements 71,875 52,251 41,124 48,767 112,999 101,018
Software 74,670 72,551 - - 74,670 72,551
Infrastructure 2,761,257 2,719,346 * - - 2,761,257 2,719,346
Construction in Progress 109,989 83,273 * 1,869 1,138 111,858 84,411
Total Capital Assets 4,528,219 4,425,183 81,911 97,931 = 4,610,130 = 4523114
A ccumulated Depreciation 524,009 484,887 37,449 42,591 561,458 527,478
Capital Assets, net $ 4,004,210 $ 3,940,296 $ 44462 $ 55340 $ 4048672 $ 3,995,636

* Asrestated

Modified Approach for Infrastructure

As alowed by GASB Statement No. 34, the State has adopted an alternative process for recording depreciation
expense on selected infrastructure assets — highways and bridges. Under this alternative method, referred to as the
modified approach, the State expenses certain maintenance and preservation costs and does not report
depreciation expense. Utilization of this approach requires the State to: 1) maintain an asset management system
that includes an up-to-date inventory of infrastructure assets; 2) perform condition assessments that use a
measurement scale and document that the infrastructure assets are being preserved at or above the condition level
established; and 3) estimate the annual amounts that must be expended to preserve and maintain the infrastructure
at the condition level established by the State. As long as the State meets these requirements, any additions or
improvements to infrastructure are capitalized and all other maintenance and preservation costs are expensed.

Highways and bridges are included in the State’s infrastructure. There are 8,827 highway miles or 17,951 lane
miles within the State. Bridges have a deck area of 11.8 million square feet among 2,964 total bridges. The State
has established a policy to maintain its highways at an average condition assessment of 60. At June 30, 2014, the
actual average condition was 75.5. Its policy for bridges is an average sufficiency rating condition assessment of
60. The actual average condition for bridges was 78 at June 30, 2014. Preservation costs for fiscal year 2014
totaled $234 million compared to estimated preservation costs of $27.8 million.

Transportation bonds, approved by referendum, are issued to fund i mprovements to highways and bridges. Of the
amount authorized by Chapter 697, PL 2011, $26 million in General fund bonds was spent during FY 2014.
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Additiona information on infrastructure assets can be found in Required Supplementary Information (RSI).

Long-Term Debt

The State Constitution authorizes general obligation long-term borrowing, with 2/3 approval of the Legidature
and ratification by a majority of the voters, and genera obligation short-term notes, of which the principal may
not exceed an amount greater than 10 percent of all moneys appropriated, authorized and alocated by the
L egislature from undedicated revenues to the General Fund and dedicated revenues to the Highway Fund for that
fiscal year, or greater than 1 percent of the total valuation of the State of Maine, whichever isthe lesser.

At year-end, the State had $1.7 billion in general obligation and other long-term debt outstanding. More detailed
information about the State's long-term liabilitiesis presented in Note 11 to the financial statements.

Table A-8 -Outstanding Long-Term Debt
(Expressed in Thousands)

Gowvernmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
General Obligation
Bonds $ 399190 $ 369,725 $ - $ - $ 399,190 $ 369,725
Other Long-Term
Obligations 1,285,279 1,035,226 5,522 5,147 1,290,801 1,040,373
Total $1684469 $1404951 $ 552 $ 5147 $ 1,689,991 $ 1,410,098

During the year, the State reduced outstanding long-term obligations by $83.5 million for outstanding general
obligation bonds and $686.0 million for other long-term debt. Also during fiscal year 2014, the State incurred
$1,049.4 million of additional long-term obligations.

Credit Ratings

The State's credit was rated during fiscal year 2014 by Moody’s Investors Service as Aa2 with a stable outlook
and by Standard & Poor’s as AA with a stable outlook.
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FACTORS BEARING ON THE FUTURE OF STATE AND NEXT YBHXS BUDGETS

The Maine and U.S. economies continued to show signs of improvement since the Consensus Economic
Forecasting Commission (CEFC) last met in January 2014. Main€'s Gross Domestic Product for 2013 was
dlightly higher than 2012, with all of the growth coming from private industry, but total GDP growth for the state
was half the national growth. Personal income in Maine grew 3.4 percent year-over-year in the first half of 2014,
while wage and salary income, which makes up around half of total personal income, grew 2.7 percent over the
same period. The Consumer Price Index was 1.7 percent higher in August 2014 than it wasin August 2013.

The price of crude oil decreased 5.8 percent in the third quarter of 2014 to around $103 per barrel. Heating oil
prices were considerably lower at the start of the current heating season compared to the past three years and
gasoline prices have also declined recently. The number of new automobile titles issued by the Maine Bureau of
Motor Vehicles increased 7 percent in fiscal year 2013 compared to fiscal year 2012, while the number of used
auto titles decreased just 0.3 percent. Existing single-family home sales in Maine were up 6.6 percent in
September 2014 compared to September 2013 and housing permits for the September 2013-August 2014 year
were 6.6 percent higher than the previous 12-month period. The median home price in the Portland Metropolitan
Statistical Area (Y ork, Cumberland, and Sagadahoc Counties) decreased 2.6 percent year-over-year in the second
quarter of 2014. Mortgage delinquency rates in Maine have been declining but at a sSlower pace than nationally.
The foreclosure rate in Maine was 0.57 percent in the second quarter of 2014 and remained above the national rate
for an eighth straight quarter.

Overal, while the Commission continues to forecast slow growth for Maine's economy, the demographic
situation in the state is of great concern, as the aging population and lack of population growth will limit
employment growth and income growth going forward.

The 2014 wage and salary employment forecast was revised downwards dlightly, while the 2014-2017
employment forecast was revised upward slightly, projecting areturn to Maine' s pre-recession employment levels
in 2017. Wage and salary income growth was revised upwards for 2015-2017. Total personal income was also
revised downwards for 2014-2017, reflecting the lower wage and salary income growth. Inflation, as measured by
the Consumer Price Index (CPl), was adjusted upward for 2014-2017.

General Fund revenue estimates were revised upward by $45.5 million in fiscal year 2015 and by $67.5 million
over the 2016-2017 biennium. Upward revisions to the Sales and Use Tax, the Individual Income Tax, the
Corporate Income Tax, and the Estate Tax account for most of the net changes to the General Fund revenue
forecast.

At June 30, 2014, the deficit in the State of Maine’ s Unassigned Fund Balance Account in the General Fund has
increased to $221.3 million (from a deficit unassigned balance of $151.3 for fiscal year 2013). This increase is
primarily due to a decrease in tax revenue and an increase in expenditures for health and human services as
described on page 12.

There are several factors that adversely affect our General Fund Balance Sheet that we should continue to strive to
improve over the next several years. The primary factors that have a significant impact on the State’s Financial
Statements compiled and issued in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles as applicable to
governments include such items as accruing tax revenues for budgetary purposes and for financial statement
purposes without accruing the offsetting liabilities for budgetary purposes and the increase in the demand for
appropriations whose balances carry from year to year which results in a lack funds accruing to the Unassigned
Fund Balance of the General Fund. This combined with the lack of significant reserves weakens the General
Fund equity position.
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These items together, conspire to cause the State of Maine' s General Fund to be subjected to lack of liquidity each
year and an inability to adequately manage its Balance Sheet within existing resources.

CONTACTING THE STATE’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a general
overview of the finances of the State and to demonstrate the State's accountability for the money it receives. If
you have any questions about this report or need additional financial information, please contact:

State of Maine
Office of the State Controller
14 State House Station
Augusta, ME 04333-0014
(207)-626-8420
financialreporting@maine.gov
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STATE OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2014
(Expressed in Thousands)

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
Assets
Current Assets:

Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool $ 293824 % 11,226 305,050 49,336
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,820 3,443 8,263 106,831
Cash with Fiscal Agent 77,785 - 77,785 -
Investments 95,706 - 95,706 607,831
Restricted Assets:

Restricted Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool 55,795 - 55,795 -

Restricted Deposits and Investments 3,662 297,686 301,348 114,748
Inventories 5,051 2,866 7,917 3,874
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles:

Taxes Receivable 381,290 - 381,290 -

Loans Receivable 3,960 - 3,960 96,584

Notes Receivable - - - 8,080

Other Receivables 233,372 61,661 295,033 72,842
Internal Balances 192,631 (192,631) - -
Due from Other Governments 257,250 - 257,250 159,002
Due from Primary Government - - - 15,674
Loans receivable from primary government - - - 45,333
Due from Component Units 46,217 - 46,217 -
Other Current Assets 5,325 195 5,520 52,542

Total Current Assets 1,656,688 184,446 1,841,134 1,332,677

Noncurrent Assets:

Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool 112,375 4,294 116,669 18,870
Restricted Assets:

Restricted Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool 21,340 - 21,340 -

Restricted Deposits and Investments - - - 560,533
Investments - - - 521,098
Receivables, Net of Current Portion:

Taxes Receivable 62,279 - 62,279 -

Loans Receivable - - - 2,117,249

Notes Receivable - - - 67,897

Other Receivables 2,593 - 2,593 8,609
Due from Other Governments 4,049 - 4,049 1,308,309
Loans receivable from primary government - - - 427,643
Due From Primary Government - - - 482
Post-Employment Benefit Asset 1,310 - 1,310 12,333
Other Noncurrent Assets - - - 19,627
Capital Assets:

Land, Infrastructure and Other Non-Depreciable Assets 3,446,628 4,124 3,450,752 567,406

Buildings, Equipment and Other Depreciable Assets, Net 557,582 40,338 597,920 1,029,346

Total Noncurrent Assets 4,208,156 48,756 4,256,912 6,659,402

Total Assets 5,864,844 233,202 6,098,046 7,992,079

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Accumulated Decrease in Fair Value of Hedging Derivatives - - - 15,152
Deferred Loss on Refunding - - - 41,533

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $ - $ - - 56,685

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 463,315 $ 3313 $ 466,628 $ 52,359
Accrued Payroll 48,232 1,009 49,241 2,705
Tax Refunds Payable 194,063 - 194,063 -
Due to Component Units 15,829 - 15,829 -
Due to Primary Government - - - 46,217
Current Portion of Long-Term Obligations:
Compensated Absences 6,236 128 6,364 2,154
Due to Other Governments 87,292 - 87,292 1,115
Amounts Held under State & Federal Loan Programs - - - 34,213
Claims Payable 28,103 - 28,103 -
Bonds and Notes Payable 80,945 - 80,945 217,014
Revenue Bonds Payable 19,205 - 19,205 53,053
Obligations under Capital Leases 5,571 - 5,571 374
Certificates of Participation and Other Financing Arrangements 33,333 - 33,333 -
Loans Payable to Component Unit 45,333 - 45,333 -
Accrued Interest Payable 4,991 - 4,991 38,824
Unearned Revenue 1,260 210 1,470 57,029
Other Current Liabilities 3,792 18,917 22,709 72,476
Total Current Liabilities 1,037,500 23,577 1,061,077 577,533
Long-Term Liabilities:
Compensated Absences 37,276 930 38,206 -
Due to Component Units 327 - 327 -
Due to Other Governments - - - 4,071
Amounts Held under State & Federal Loan Programs - - - 39,770
Claims Payable 41,646 - 41,646 -
Bonds and Notes Payable 318,245 - 318,245 3,479,824
Revenue Bonds Payable 167,970 - 167,970 921,636
Obligations under Capital Leases 29,644 - 29,644 5311
Certificates of Participation and Other Financing Arrangements 73,477 - 73,477 -
Loans Payable to Component Unit 427,643 - 427,643 -
Unearned Revenue 12,207 - 12,207 -
Pension Obligation 1,959 - 1,959 -
Other Post-Employment Benefit Obligation 340,198 4,464 344,662 2,129
Pollution Remediation and Landfill Obligations 27,685 - 27,685 -
Other Noncurrent Liabilities - - - 134,755
Total Long-Term Liabilities 1,478,277 5,394 1,483,671 4,587,496
Total Liabilities 2,515,777 28,971 2,544,748 5,165,029
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Inflow of Grant Income - - - 5,538
Deferred Inflow of Loan Origination Points - - - 66
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources - - - 5,604
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets 3,326,970 44,462 3,371,432 1,007,914
Restricted:
Transportation Purposes 171,695 - 171,695 -
Business Licensing & Regulation 53,467 - 53,467 -
Justice and Protection 40,832 - 40,832 -
Natural Resources 50,453 - 50,453 -
Health and Human Services 13,075 - 13,075 -
Education 17,151 - 17,151 -
Government Support & Operations 42,988 - 42,988 -
Employment Security - 331,799 331,799 -
Other Purposes 37,633 - 37,633 1,214,821
Funds Held as Permanent Investments:
Expendable 73,944 - 73,944 -
Nonexpendable 21,895 - 21,895 228,008
Unrestricted (501,036) (172,030) (673,066) 427,388
Total Net Position $ 3,349,067 $ 204231 $ 3,553,298 $ 2,878,131
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STATE OF MAINE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014
(Expressed in Thousands)

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
Governmental Support & Operations $ 377269 $ 96,712  $ 3969 $ -
Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment 11,401 1,315 2,501 -
Business Licensing & Regulation 73,016 74,799 250 -
Economic Development & Workforce Training 175,338 7,410 99,433 -
Education 1,676,908 37,467 200,560 -
Health & Human Services 3,669,552 11,953 2,211,452 -
Justice & Protection 410,641 82,347 44,249 -
Natural Resources Development & Protection 208,970 88,035 41,289 -
Transportation Safety & Development 524,024 128,635 228,253 -
Interest Expense 47,271 - - -
Total Governmental Activities 7,174,390 528,673 2,831,956 -
Business-Type Activities:
Employment Security 159,058 163,352 7,036 -
Alcoholic Beverages 19 12,539 - -
Lottery 180,087 232,420 - -
Ferry Services 11,849 4,912 - -
Military Equipment Maintenance 11,466 10,102 - -
Dirigo Health 26,863 25,802 - -
Other 7,540 8,020 - -
Total Business-Type Activities 396,882 457,147 7,036 -
Total Primary Government $ 7571272 $ 985820 $ 2,838,992 $ -
Component Units:
Finance Authority of Maine 32,703 18,038 17,971 -
Maine Community College System 135,765 18,384 60,265 7,001
Maine Health & Higher Educational Facilities Authority 45,042 41,552 6,347 -
Maine Municipal Bond Bank 71,561 60,518 7,557 22,526
Maine State Housing Authority 220,707 72,099 132,459 -
Maine Turnpike Authority 90,746 121,817 - -
University of Maine System 693,209 297,293 214,962 7,403
All Other Non-Major Component Units 146,773 50,359 69,143 21,210
Total Component Units $ 1,436,506 $ 680,060 $ 508,704 $ 58,140

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Corporate
Individual Income
Fuel
Property
Sales & Use
Other
Unrestricted Investment Earnings
Non-Program Specific Grants, Contributions & Appropriations
Miscellaneous Income
Loss on Assets Held for Sale
Tobacco Settlement
Special Items
Transfers - Internal Activities
Total General Revenues and Transfers
Change in Net Position
Net Position - Beginning (As Restated)
Net Position - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Net (Expenses) Revenues and
Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Business-
Governmental type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
$ (276,588) $ - $  (276,588) $ -
(7,585) - (7,585) -
2,033 - 2,033 -
(68,495) - (68,495) -
(1,438,881) - (1,438,881) -
(1,446,147) - (1,446,147) -
(284,045) - (284,045) -
(79,646) - (79,646) -
(167,136) - (167,136) -
(47,271) - (47,271) -
(3,813,761) - (3,813,761) -
- 11,330 11,330 -
- 12,520 12,520 -
- 52,333 52,333 -
- (6,937) (6,937) -
- (1,364) (1,364) -
- (1,061) (1,061) -
- 480 480 -
- 67,301 67,301 -

$ (3813761) $ 67,301 $ (3,746,460) $ -

- - - 3,306
- - - (50,115)

- - - 2,857

- - - 19,040

- - - (16,149)

- - - 31,071

- - - (173,551)

- - - (6,061)

$ R R - $  (189,602)
194,770 - 194,770 -
1,399,238 - 1,399,238 -
237,439 - 237,439 -

51,684 - 51,684 -

1,257,376 - 1,257,376 -
383,026 - 383,026 -

19,950 - 19,950 21,126

- - - 287,643

118,043 - 118,043 10,948

(53) - (53) (2,143)

57,749 - 57,749 -

193,192 (193,192) - (7,220)

48,861 (48,861) - -

3,961,275 (242,053) 3,719,222 310,354
147,514 (174,752) (27,238) 120,752
3,201,553 378,983 3,580,536 2,757,379

$ 3,349.067 $ 204231 $ 3553298 $ 2,878,131
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STATE OF MAINE
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2014
(Expressed in Thousands)

Other Total
Other Special Governmental Governmental

General Highway Federal Revenue Funds Funds

Assets
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool $ 6,363 % 28,872 $ 15587 $ 188,955 $ 133 $ 239,910
Cash and Short-Term Investments 106 117 1 44 4,549 4,817
Cash with Fiscal Agent 1,622 734 - 63,684 - 66,040
Investments - - - - 95,706 95,706
Restricted Assets:

Restricted Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool - - - - 77,135 77,135
Inventories 2,050 - 689 - - 2,739
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles:

Taxes Receivable 410,074 22,028 - 11,467 - 443,569

Loans Receivable 1 9 - 3,950 - 3,960

Other Receivable 79,603 2,768 65,838 74,734 6 222,949
Due from Other Funds 18,536 18,363 9,969 286,050 566 333,484
Due from Other Governments - - 256,666 - - 256,666
Due from Component Units 1,000 - 25 40,330 107 41,462
Other Assets 1,946 55 380 127 180 2,688
Working Capital Advances Receivable 111 - - - - 111

Total Assets $ 521,412 $ 72,946 $ 349,155 $ 669,341 $ 178,382 $ 1,791,236
Liabilites, Deferred Inflows and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 145343 % 16,275  $ 231382 $ 18325 % 4,160 $ 415,485
Accrued Payroll 20,352 7,414 5,606 9,701 965 44,038
Tax Refunds Payable 194,055 8 - - - 194,063
Due to Other Governments 12,972 - 73,598 - - 86,570
Due to Other Funds 146,622 3,930 23,554 5,262 24 179,392
Due to Component Units 2,593 1,881 3,098 498 4,055 12,125
Compensated Absences - - - - 456 456
Unearned Revenue - 4,916 689 6,785 230 12,620
Other Accrued Liabilities 1,679 1 1,215 1,701 398 4,994
Total Liabilities 523,616 34,425 339,142 42,272 10,288 949,743
Deferred Inflow of Resources
Tax and Assessment Revenue 213,232 731 722 27,314 - 241,999
Pledged Revenue Transfer from Enterprise Fund - - - 183,482 - 183,482
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 213,232 731 722 210,796 - 425,481
Fund Balances
Nonspendable:

Permanent Fund Principal - - - - 21,895 21,895

Inventories and Prepaid Items 3,807 55 1,071 214 181 5,328
Restricted 2,064 37,735 8,220 351,691 146,265 545,975
Committed - - - 48,381 - 48,381
Assigned - - - 15,987 - 15,987
Unassigned (221,307) - - - (247) (221,554)

Total Fund Balances (215,436) 37,790 9,291 416,273 168,094 416,012

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Fund Balances $ 521,412  $ 72,946 % 349,155 $ 669,341 $ 178,382 $ 1,791,236

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF MAINE

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2014
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total fund balances for governmental funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources

and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds.
Less: Accumulated depreciation

*

Other post-employment benefit assets are not financial resources
Pollution remediation receivable

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period. Therefore, long-term liabilities
are not reported in the governmental fund statements. However, these amounts are included
in the Statement of Net Position. This is the net effect of these balances on the statement:
Bonds payable
Interest payable related to long-term financing
Certificates of participation and other financing arrangements
Capital leases
Other accrued
Loans payable to component unit
Due from component unit debt service interest reserve
Compensated absences
Pension obligation
Other post-employment benefit obligation
Pollution remediation and landfill obligations

Certain revenues are earned but not available and therefore are not reported in the governmental
fund statements.

Special Iltem - Liquor bond funds owed by the Alcoholic Beverages Enterprise Fund will be
paid from the profits of the fund.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to
individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in
governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position.

Net position of governmental activities

*  As restated. - See footnote 3 for further detail.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF MAINE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014
(Expressed in Thousands)

Other Other Total
Special Governmental ~ Governmental
General Highway Federal Revenue Funds Funds
Revenues:
Taxes $ 3,027,088 $ 214119 $ - $ 289,150 $ - $ 3530357
Assessments and Other Revenue 97,622 94,240 - 158,896 - 350,758
Federal Grants and Reimbursements 1,988 - 2,818,388 9,707 - 2,830,083
Service Charges 50,580 4,188 352 108,682 659 164,461
Investment Income 716 80 9 740 16,222 17,767
Miscellaneous Revenue 23,706 3,688 4 125,247 1,574 154,219
Total Revenues 3,201,700 316,315 2,818,753 692,422 18,455 7,047,645
Expenditures
Current:
Governmental Support & Operations 219,125 2,596 4,905 105,442 112 332,180
Economic Development & Workforce Training 32,635 - 96,699 38,808 5,726 173,868
Education 1,404,149 - 199,595 66,984 30,520 1,701,248
Health and Human Services 1,159,000 - 2,208,900 307,348 5,756 3,681,004
Business Licensing & Regulation 3,797 - 99 68,124 - 72,020
Natural Resources Development & Protection 66,684 33 39,358 85,561 3,890 195,526
Justice and Protection 283,477 25,151 47,015 62,179 74 417,896
Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment 7,459 - 2,796 852 47 11,154
Transportation Safety & Development - 274,375 195,386 63,904 3,330 536,995
Debt Service:
Principal Payments 85,735 16,035 12,465 11,065 25 125,325
Interest Payments 18,163 4,274 3,331 9,052 - 34,820
Capital Outlay - - - - 35,227 35,227
Total Expenditures 3,280,224 322,464 2,810,549 819,319 84,707 7,317,263
Revenue over (under) Expenditures (78,524) (6,149) 8,204 (126,897) (66,252) (269,618)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from Other Funds 169,095 25,200 15,490 189,083 27,856 426,724
Transfer to Other Funds (206,907) (16,320) (39,154) (113,974) (3,412) (379,767)
COP's and Other 45,275 735 - 31,742 69 77,821
Loan Proceeds from Component Units - - - 183,482 - 183,482
Bonds Issued - - - 10,055 112,945 123,000
Bonds Defeased - - - (4,500) - (4,500)
Premium on Bonds Issued - - - - 14,175 14,175
Net Other Finance Sources (Uses) 7,463 9,615 (23,664) 295,888 151,633 440,935
Special Item - - - 59 - 59
Net Change in Fund Balances (71,061) 3,466 (15,460) 169,050 85,381 171,376
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year (144,375) 34,324 24,751 247,223 82,713 244,636
Fund Balances at End of Year $ (215,436) $ 37,790 $ 9,291 $ 416,273 $ 168,094 $ 416,012

The accompanying notes are an integral

part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF MAINE
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

June 30, 2014
(Expressed in Thousands)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 171,376
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities, the
cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. In the
current period, the amounts are:
Capital outlay 71,926
Capital assets transfer, net 27,188
Depreciation expense (31,056) 68,058
The net effect of various transactions involving capital assets (i.e. sales, trade-ins and contributions)
is to increase net position. 621
Post-employment benefit asset funding, net (561)
Pollution Remediation Receivable (5,937)
The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds which
increases long-term debt in the Statement of Net Position. Repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds, but repayment reduces long-term debt in the
Statement of Net Position. This is the amount that proceeds exceed repayments:
Bond proceeds (123,000)
Proceeds from other financing arrangements (77,752)
Loan proceeds from component unit (193,816)
Changes in component unit debt service interest reserve 4,755
Loan proceeds from capitalized leases (69)
Repayment of bond principal 106,270
Repayment of other financing debt 21,444
Repayment of pledged revenue principal 24,885
Repayment of capitalized lease principal 554
Accrued interest 313 (236,416)
Certain expenditures are reported in the funds. However, they either increase or decrease long-term
liabilities reported as expenditures on the Statement of Net Position and have been eliminated
from the Statement of Position as follows:
Pension obligation 30
Other post-employment benefit obligation (42,137)
Pollution remediation and landfill obligations 4,447
Compensated absences (1,847) (39,507)
Certain revenues are earned but not available and therefore are not reported in the governmental
fund statements. (5,826)
Special Item - Liquor bond funds owed by the Alcoholic Beverages Enterprise Fund will be paid from profits of the fund. 183,482
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to
individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of the internal service funds is included in
12,224

governmental activities in the Statement of Activities.

Changes in net position of governmental activities $ 147,514

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF MAINE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2014
(Expressed in Thousands)

Business-Type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Major Major Non-Major Internal
Employment Alcoholic Other Service
Security Beverages Enterprise Total Funds
Assets
Current Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool $ - $ 361 $ 10,865 $ 11,226 $ 120,284
Cash and Short-Term Investments 2,687 - 756 3,443 3
Cash with Fiscal Agent - - - - 11,745
Restricted Assets:

Restricted Deposits and Investments 297,686 - - 297,686 3,662
Inventories - - 2,866 2,866 2,312
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles:

Other Receivable 34,334 - 27,327 61,661 7,092
Due from Other Funds 22 - 307 329 24,622
Other Current Assets - - 195 195 2,637

Total Current Assets 334,729 361 42,316 377,406 172,357
Noncurrent Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool - 138 4,156 4,294 46,005
Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation - - 44,462 44,462 177,108
Total Noncurrent Assets - 138 48,618 48,756 223,113
Total Assets 334,729 499 90,934 426,162 395,470
Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 1,942 6 1,365 3,313 23,812
Accrued Payroll - 13 996 1,009 4,194
Due to Other Funds - 183,482 9,562 193,044 6,675
Due to Component Units - - - - 4,031
Current Portion of Long-Term Obligations:

Certificates of Participation and Other Financing Arrangements - - - - 11,484

Obligations Under Capital Leases - - - - 5,016

Claims Payable - - - - 28,103

Compensated Absences - - 128 128 435

Unearned Revenue - - 210 210 344
Accrued Interest Payable - - - - 345
Other Accrued Liabilities 988 500 17,429 18,917 -

Total Current Liabilities 2,930 184,001 29,690 216,621 84,439
Long-Term Liabilities:
Working Capital Advances Payable - - - - 111
Unearned Revenue - - - - 503
Certificates of Participation and Other Financing Arrangements - - - - 31,295
Obligations Under Capital Leases - - - - 26,390
Claims Payable - - - - 41,646
Compensated Absences - - 930 930 3,181
Other Post-Employment Benefit Obligation - - 4,464 4,464 -
Total Long-Term Liabilities - - 5,394 5,394 103,126
Total Liabilities 2,930 184,001 35,084 222,015 187,565
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets - - 44,462 44,462 117,237
Restricted for:
Employment Security 331,799 - - 331,799 -
Other Purposes - - - - 468
Unrestricted - (183,502) 11,388 (172,114) 90,200
Total Net Position $ 331,799 $ (183502 $ 55,850 $ 204,147 $ 207,905
Amounts reported for business-type activities in the government-wide Statement of Activities
are different due to elimination of the State's internal business-types activities 84
Net Position of Business-Type Activities $ 204,231

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF MAINE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014
(Expressed in Thousands)

Business-Type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Major Major Non-Major Internal
Employment Alcoholic Other Service
Security Beverages Enterprise Total Funds
Operating Revenues
Charges for Services $ - $ 39 $ 280,991 $ 281,030 $ 440,328
Assessments 163,341 - - 163,341 -
Miscellaneous Revenues 11 - 214 225 441
Total Operating Revenues 163,352 39 281,205 444,596 440,769
Operating Expenses
General Operations - 19 234,762 234,781 390,270
Depreciation - - 3,456 3,456 17,082
Claims/Fees Expense 159,058 - - 159,058 10,755
Other Operating Expenses - - - - 48
Total Operating Expenses 159,058 19 238,218 397,295 418,155
Operating Income (Loss) 4,294 20 42,987 47,301 22,614
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment Revenue (Expense) - net 7,036 - - 7,036 443
Interest Expense - - - - (8,291)
Other Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)- net - 12,500 51 12,551 (18,483)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 7,036 12,500 51 19,587 (26,331)
Income (Loss) Before Capital Contributions,
Transfers and Special Items 11,330 12,520 43,038 66,888 (3,717)
Capital Contributions, Transfers and Special Items
Capital Contributions from (to) Other Funds - - 2,231 2,231 1,693
Transfers from Other Funds - - 4,672 4,672 18,002
Transfers to Other Funds (643) (39) (55,082) (55,764) (3,341)
Special Items - (183,482) (9,710) (193,192) -
Total Capital Contributions, Transfers In (Out)
and Special Items (643) (183,521) (57,889) (242,053) 16,354
Change in Net Position 10,687 (171,001) (14,851) (175,165) 12,637
Net Position - Beginning of Year 321,112 (12,501) 70,701 379,312 195,268
Net Position - End of Year $ 331,799 $ (183502) $ 55,850 $ 207,905
Amounts reported for business-type activities in the government-wide Statement of Activities
are different due to elimination of the State's internal business-types activities 413
Changes in Business-Type Net Position $ (174,752)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

June 30, 2014

(Expressed in Thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers and Users
Payments of Benefits
Payments to Prize Winners
Payments to Suppliers
Payments to Employees

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers from Other Funds
Transfers to Other Funds

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Payments for Acquisition of Capital Assets
Proceeds from Financing Arrangements
Principal and Interest Paid on Financing Arrangements
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest Revenue

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash/Cash Equivalents
Cash/Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year
Cash/Cash Equivalents - End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
(Used) by Operating Activities
Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities
Depreciation Expense
Decrease (Increase) in Assets

Accounts Receivable
Interfund Balances
Inventories
Other Assets
Increase (Decrease) in Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll Expenses
Change in Compensated Absences
Other Accruals

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Non Cash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities
Property Leased, Accrued or Acquired
Contributed Capital Assets
Decrease of deferred revenue from the sale of liquor operations
Special ltem

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Business-Type Activities Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities
Major Major Non-Major Internal
Employment Alcoholic Other Service
Security Beverages Enterprise Totals Funds
$ 170,388 $ 39 $ 278,376 448,803 $ 440,099
(158,974) - - (158,974) -
- - (148,077) (148,077) -
- 499 (58,640) (58,141) (316,783)
- - (21,139) (21,139) (68,934)
11,414 538 50,520 62,472 54,382
- - 4,672 4,672 18,002
(643) (39) (55,082) (55,764) (3,341)
(643) (39) (50,410) (51,092) 14,661
- - (76) (76) (28,252)
- - - - 16,300
- - - - (26,223)
- - 61 61 65
- - (15) (15) (38,110)
7,036 - 9 7,045 443
7,036 - 9 7,045 443
17,807 499 104 18,410 31,376
282,566 - 15,673 298,239 150,322
$ 300,373 $ 499 $ 15777 316,649 $ 181,698
$ 4,294 $ 20 $ 42,987 47,301 $ 22,614
- - 3,456 3,456 17,082
6,827 - (2,829) 3,998 3,544
209 1) 3,503 3,711 (3,580)
- - (557) (557) (246)
- - - - (48)
(148) 6 (563) (705) 15,651
- 13 (561) (548) 205
- - (322) (322) (62)
232 500 5,406 6,138 (778)
7,120 518 7,533 15,171 31,768
$ 11,414 538 $ 50,520 62,472 $ 54,382
- - - - 921
- - 2,231 2,231 1,693
- 12,500 - 12,500 -
- (183,482) (9,710) (193,192) -
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STATE OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

June 30, 2014

(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool
Cash and Short-Term Investments
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles:
Interest and Dividends
Due from Brokers for Securities Sold
Other
Investments at Fair Value:
Equity Securities
Common/Collective Trusts
Other
Restricted Deposits and Investments
Securities Lending Collateral
Due from Other Funds
Investments Held on Behalf of Others
Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation
Other Assets
Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Due to Brokers for Securities Purchased
Agency Liabilities
Obligations Under Securities Lending
Other Accrued Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Position
Held in Trust for Pension, Disability, Death,

Group Life Insurance Benefits and Other Purposes

Total Net Position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Pension (and

Other
Employee Private
Benefit) Purpose
Trusts Trusts Agency Funds
$ - 1,982 $ 18,310
31,272 - 27
4,389 - -
99 - -
19,369 - -
3,967,803 - -
9,211,945 - -
- 14,900 -
- - 11
260,224 - -
- 24,007 -
- - 52,641
8,719 - -
- 4,621 4,416
13,503,820 45,510 75,405
6,213 88 1,064
- 4 3,327
534 - -
- - 70,983
260,224 - -
20,801 - 31
287,772 92 75,405
13,216,048 45,418 -
$ 13,216,048 45418  $ -




STATE OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014
(Expressed in Thousands)

Pension (and

Other
Employee Private
Benefit) Purpose
Trusts Trusts
Additions:
Contributions:
Members $ 163,219 $
State and Local Agencies 268,581
Other Contributing Entity 142,303
Investment Income (Loss):
Net Increase (Decrease) in the Fair Value of Investments 1,855,602 2,090
Interest and Dividends 126,528 319
Securities Lending Income 1,494
Less Investment Expense:
Investment Activity Expense 41,310
Securities Lending Expense (1,201)
Net Investment Income (LosS) 1,943,515 2,409
Miscellaneous Revenues - 9,714
Transfers In - 738
Total Additions 2,517,618 12,861
Deductions:
Benefits Paid to Participants or Beneficiaries 869,133 69
Refunds and Withdrawals 31,225
Administrative Expenses 10,624 157
Claims Processing Expense 835
Transfers Out - 7,834
Total Deductions 911,817 8,060
Net Increase (Decrease) 1,605,801 4,801
Net Position:
Held in Trust for Pension, Disability, Death, Group
Life Insurance Benefits and Other Purposes:
Beginning of Year, as Restated 11,610,247 40,617
End of Year $ 13,216,048 $ 45,418

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

COMPONENT UNITS

June 30, 2014
(Expressed in Thousands)

Assets

Current Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Restricted Assets:

Restricted Deposits and Investments

Inventories

Maine Health and

Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectibles:

Loans Receivable

Notes Receivable

Other Receivables
Due from Other Governments
Due from Primary Government

Loans Receivable from Primary Government -

Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool
Restricted Assets:
Restricted Deposits and Investments
Investments
Receivables, Net of Current Portion:
Loans Receivable
Notes Receivable
Other Receivables
Due from Other Governments
Due from Primary Government

Loans Receivable from Primary Government -

Post-Employment Benefit Asset
Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation
Other Noncurrent Assets

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Accumulated Decrease in Fair Value of Hedging Derivatives -

Deferred Loss on Refunding

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll
Compensated Absences
Due to Other Governments
Due to Primary Government

Amounts Held Under State & Federal Loan Programs

Bonds and Notes Payable
Obligations Under Capital Leases
Accrued Interest Payable
Deferred Revenue
Other Current Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities:
Due to Other Governments

Amounts Held Under State & Federal Loan Programs

Bonds and Notes Payable
Obligations Under Capital Leases

Other Post-Employment Benefits Obligation -

Other Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Long-Term Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred Inflow of Grant Income

Deferred Inflow of Loan Origination Points

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Higher
Finance Maine Educational Maine

Authority of Community Facilities Municipal
Maine College System Authority Bond Bank
$ 18,740 $ 10,725 $ 3,662 $ -
3,541 15,093 3,783 246
46,348 45,188 36,309 21,249
- 1,394 - -
- - 47,286 -
1,313 6,766 211 1,020
315 - - 135,630
- 1,437 - -
- - 45,333
1,648 1,903 796 40,512
71,905 82,506 92,047 243,990
7,167 4,102 1,401 -
- 1,637 132,093 375,842
- 14,835 - -
- - 827,231 -
22,584 - - -
- - - 1,308,309
- - 427,643
- 12,333 - -
1,473 161,462 - 550
31,224 194,369 960,725 2,112,344
103,129 276,875 1,052,772 2,356,334
- - - 22,555
$ - $ - $ -0 $ 22,555
2,989 4,718 174 730
- 1,965 - -
- - - 724
1,000 - - 44,458
- - - 34,213
807 649 51,505 151,070
- 10 - -
- - 20,393 12,385
1,130 2,414 2,805 273
21,034 8,894 - -
26,960 18,650 74,877 243,853
- - 435 1,005
39,770 - - -
593 22,647 921,605 1,485,890
- 2,199 - -
40,363 24,846 922,040 1,486,895
67,323 43,496 996,917 1,730,748
1,473 137,594 - 548
17,054 40,303 34,283 577,447
17,279 55,482 21,572 70,146
$ 35806 $ 233379 $ 55,855 $ 648,141

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Maine State Maine University Non-Major
Housing Turnpike of Maine Component
Authority Authority System Units Total
$ -0 $ - $ 15132 1,077 49,336
1,307 17,779 886 64,196 106,831
227,989 - 221,902 8,846 607,831
- 81,809 - 32,939 114,748
- 1,604 - 876 3,874
30,920 - - 18,378 96,584
8 - 63 8,009 8,080
18,027 4,425 35,023 6,057 72,842
3,959 - 13,069 6,029 159,002
- - 5,658 8,579 15,674
- - - - 45,333
- 875 5,338 1,470 52,542
282,210 106,492 297,071 156,456 1,332,677
- - 5,788 412 18,870
- 34,100 400 16,461 560,533
103,490 14,301 365,529 22,943 521,098
1,184,850 - - 105,168 2,117,249
86 - 41,820 3,407 67,897
1,062 14 4,490 3,043 8,609
- - - - 1,308,309
- - 327 155 482
- - - - 427,643
- - - - 12,333
1,492 497,236 698,219 236,320 1,596,752
5,640 12,515 - 1,472 19,627
1,296,620 558,166 1,116,573 389,381 6,659,402
1,578,830 664,658 1,413,644 545,837 7,992,079
15,152 - - - 15,152
6,348 7,652 3,957 1,021 41,533
$ 21500 $ 7,652 $ 3,957 1,021 56,685
8,423 6,819 13,137 15,369 52,359
- 2,298 - 407 2,705
- - - 189 2,154
391 - - - 1,115
- - - 759 46,217
- - - - 34,213
29,360 17,820 9,346 9,510 270,067
- - 359 5 374
5,477 - - 569 38,824
1,181 7,243 11,049 30,934 57,029
- 10,797 30,340 1,411 72,476
44,832 44,977 64,231 59,153 577,533
- - - 2,631 4,071
- - - - 39,770
1,244,268 430,975 155,767 139,715 4,401,460
- - 3,112 - 5,311
- - - 2,129 2,129
15,152 15,361 104,081 161 134,755
1,259,420 446,336 262,960 144,636 4,587,496
1,304,252 491,313 327,191 203,789 5,165,029
2,984 - - 2,554 5,538
66 - - - 66
3,050 - - 2,554 5,604
1,492 117,417 531,742 217,648 1,007,914
267,236 49,832 371,458 85,216 1,442,829
24,300 13,748 187,210 37,651 427,388
$ 293,028 $ 180,997  $1,090,410 340,515 2,878,131
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STATE OF MAINE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

COMPONENT UNITS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

(Expressed in Thousands)

Expenses

Program Revenues
Charges for Services
Program Investment Income
Operating Grants and Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions

Net Revenue (Expense)

General Revenues
Unrestricted Investment Earnings
Non-program Specific Grants,
Contributions and Appropriations
Miscellaneous Income
Gain (Loss) on Assets Held for Sale
Special Iltem

Total General Revenues

Change in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of the Year (as restated)

Net Position, End of Year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

Maine Health
Maine and Higher
Finance Community Educational Maine
Authority of College Facilities Municipal
Maine System Authority Bond Bank
$ 32,703 135,765 $ 45,042 $ 71,561
18,038 18,384 41,552 60,518
196 3,505 6,347 7,050
17,775 56,760 - 507
- 7,001 - 22,526
3,306 (50,115) 2,857 19,040
458 2,799 71 64
- 57,086 - -
230 1,413 127 2,735
688 61,298 198 2,799
3,994 11,183 3,055 21,839
31,812 222,196 52,800 626,302
$ 35,806 233,379 $ 55,855 $ 648,141
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Maine State Maine University Non-Major
Housing Turnpike of Maine Component
Authority Authority System Units Total
$ 220,707 $ 90,746 $ 693,209 146,773  $ 1,436,506
72,099 121,817 297,293 50,359 680,060
(10,969) - 38,692 65 44,886
143,428 - 176,270 69,078 463,818
- - 7,403 21,210 58,140
(16,149) 31,071 (173,551) (6,061) (189,602)
17 (475) 13,081 5111 21,126
- - 213,278 17,279 287,643
- 5,283 - 1,160 10,948
- (2,509) - 366 (2,143)
- - - (7,220) (7,220)
17 2,299 226,359 16,696 310,354
(16,132) 33,370 52,808 10,635 120,752
309,160 147,627 1,037,602 329,880 2,757,379
$ 293,028 $ 180,997 $1,090,410 340,515 $2,878,131
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Sate of Maine Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying financial statements of the State of Maine (the State) have been prepared under guidelines
established by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as mandated by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

A. REPORTINGENTITY

For financia reporting purposes, the State of Maine's reporting entity includes the “primary government” and
its “component units” The primary government includes all funds, organizations, agencies, boards,
commissions and authorities. Component units are legaly separate organizations for which the State is
financialy accountable. Component units can also be legally separate, tax exempt entities that raise and hold
economic resources for the direct benefit of a governmental unit.

Financial accountability is defined in GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by
GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus — an amendment of GASB Statements No.
14 and No. 34. The Stateis financially accountable for those entities for which it appoints a voting majority of
the governing board and either is able to impose its will on that entity or the entity may provide specific
financia benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government. Entities for which the
State does not appoint a voting majority of the governing board may be included if the organization is fiscally
dependent on the primary government and there exists afinancia benefit or burden relationship with the State.
Entities that do not meet the specific criteriafor inclusion may till be included if the nature and significance of
its relationship with the primary government is such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’ s financial
statements to be misleading or incompl ete.

Under GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units, an
Amendment of GASB Satement No. 14, individualy significant legally separate, tax-exempt entities that
should be reported as component units if their resources are for the direct benefit of the State and the State can
access those resources. Although the State has not identified any organizations that would qualify as direct
component units of the State by meeting all of the criteria of GASB Statement No. 39, a few of the component
units described later in this note have significant foundations that meet the criteria of GASB Statement No. 39.

Blended Component UnitsBlended component units are entities that are legally separate from the State, but
provide services entirely, or amost entirely to the State or otherwise exclusively, or amost exclusively,
benefits the primary government even though they do not provide services directly to it. The State reports two
blended component units.

The Maine Governmental Facilities Authority (MGFA) is a legally separate organization that has its board
appointed by the primary government and provides services entirely, or amost entirely, to the State. Its
purpose includes assisting in the financing, acquisition, construction, improvement, reconstruction, and
equipping of additions to structures designed for use as a court facility, State office or State activity space. In
their separately issued financial statements, MGFA records a lease receivable from the State and aliability for
bonds issued. However, in accordance with GASB, capital |eases that exist between the State and MGFA are
not recorded as leases in this report. The assets associated with these leases are reported in the government-
wide statements along with the related debt. The corresponding debt service activity is recorded in the
Governmental Funds. MGFA financial activity associated with servicing the debt is reported in an internal
service fund. Therefore, the State reports MGFA's balances and transactions as though they were part of the
primary government, using the blending method.
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Child Development Services (CDS) is a legaly separate organization, which ensures the provision of child
find activities, early intervention services and free, appropriate public education services to eligible children.
The State's Education Commissioner appoints and supervises the CDS director. Therefore, the State reports
CDS balances and transactions as though they were a non-major special revenue fund.

Discrete Component UnitsDiscrete component units are entities that are legally separate from the State but
are either accountable to the State or related so closely to the State that exclusion would cause the State's
financia statements to be misleading or incomplete. Component units that are not material to the State's
financial statements have been excluded. The column labeled “Component Units’ emphasizes these
organizations separateness from the State's primary government.

The State is able to impose its will upon these discretely presented component units whose boards of directors
or boards of trustees are appointed by the Governor:

The Maine Community College System is Maine€'s comprehensive two-year college system and offers
certificate, diploma and associate degree programs. The combined financial statements of the System include
the activity of seven colleges, the centra administrative office and the Center for Career Development
(including the Maine Career Advantage and Maine Quality Centers programs), and its component unit, Maine
Community College Educational Foundations.

The Maine Turnpike Authority (MTA) congtructs, maintains and operates a turnpike at such a location
approved by the State Highway Commission and to issue turnpike revenue bonds payabl e solely from revenues
of the Authority. The Authority’s fiscal year ends December 31.

The University of Maine System is the State University governed by a single Board of Trustees. The combined
financia statements of the System include the activity of seven universities, eight centers, the centra
administrative office, and its component units, which include several foundations and alumni associations that
raise funds on the System’ s behalf.

Thereisafinancia burden/benefit relationship between these entities and the State:

The Finance Authority of Maine provides commercial financing and loan guarantees to Maine businesses and
educational financing to Maine students and their parents. The Authority also provides financial and other
services for the NextGen College Investing Plan, Potato Marketing Improvement Fund Board, the Nutrient
Management Fund Board, the Northern Maine Transmission Corporation, the Adaptive Equipment Loan
Program Fund Board, the Fund Insurance Review Board, the Agricultural Marketing Loan Fund Board, and
the Occupational Safety Program Fund Board. The Governor appoints the fifteen voting members of the
Authority.

Maine Health & Higher Educational Facilities Authority (MHHEFA) — MHHEFA assists Maine health care
institutions and ingtitutions of higher education in undertaking projects involving the acquisition, construction,
improvement, reconstruction and equipping of their facilities and the refinancing of existing indebtedness. The
Authority, pursuant to the Student Loan Corporations Act of 1983, may also finance student loan programs of
institutions of higher education. MHHEFA consists of twelve members, four of whom serve ex officio and
must be the Superintendent of Financia Institutions, the Commissioner of Health and Human Services, the
Commissioner of Education, and the Treasurer of State. The remaining eight members must be residents of the
State appointed by the Governor.

The Maine Municipal Bond Bank issues bonds on behalf of counties, cities, towns, school administrative
districts, community school districts, or other quasi-municipal corporations or eligible borrowers as designated
by the Legidature (the “governmental units’) within the State. The Governor appoints three residents of the
State to the five-member Board of Commissioners. The remaining two members include the Treasurer of State
and Superintendent of Financial Institutions who serve as commissioners, ex officio.
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Maine Sate Housing Authority issues bonds to purchase notes and mortgages on residential units, both single
and multi-family, for the purpose of providing housing for persons and families of low income in the State.
The Authority also acts as an agent for the State in administering federal weatherization, energy conservation,
fuel assistance and homeless grant programs and collecting and disbursing federal rent subsidies for low
income housing. The Governor appoints five of the Authority’s seven commissioners. The remaining two
commissioners are the Treasurer of State and the Director of the Maine State Housing Authority, both of
whom serve ex officio. The Authority’ sfiscal year ends on December 31.

The State' sfinancial statements also include afiduciary component unit:

Maine Public Employees Retirement System administers a public employee retirement system. It provides
pension, death, and disability benefits to its members, which include employees of the State, some public
school employees, employees of approximately 300 local municipalities and other public entities in Maine.
The Governor appoints four of the Board's eight voting trustees. A fifth trustee is either the Treasurer of State
or the Deputy Treasurer of State.

Complete financial statements of the major component units can be obtained directly from their respective
administrative offices by writing to:

Finance Authority of Maine  Maine Health and Higher Maine Public Employees Maine Turnpike Authority

5 Community Dr. Ed. Facilities Authority Retirement System 2360 Congress Street

PO Box 949 PO Box 2268 46 State House Station Portland, ME 04102
Augusta, ME 04332 Augusta, ME 04338 Augusta, ME 04333

Maine Community College  Maine Municipa Bond Maine State Housing University of Maine System
System Bank Authority 16 Central Street

323 State Street PO Box 2268 89 State House Station Bangor, ME 04401
Augusta, ME 04330 Augusta, ME 04338 353 Water Street

Augusta, ME 04330

Related Organizations

Officias of the State's primary government appoint a voting majority of the governing board of the Maine
Veteran’s Home. The primary government has no material accountability for this organization beyond making
board appointments.

B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities report information on al non-fiduciary activities of
the primary government and its component units. Primary government activities are distinguished between
governmental and business-type activities. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues. Business-type activities are financed in whole
or in part by fees charged to external partiesfor goods or services.

The Statement of Net Position presents the reporting entity’s non-fiduciary assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position. Net position is reported in three
components:

Net investment in capital assat@mponent consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation,

reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable
to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.
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Restricted component of net positieonsists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources related to those assets. Generally, a liability relates to restricted assets if the asset
results from a resource flow that aso results in the recognition of a liability or if the liability will be
liquidated with the restricted assets reported. Constraints placed on restricted components of net position
are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, and the like, or imposed by law through
congtitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The government-wide statement of net position reports
$854.9 million of restricted net position, of which $144.2 million is restricted by enabling legisation.

Unrestricted component of net positimonsists of the net amount of assets, deferred outflow of
resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resourcesthat do not meet the definition of the two preceding
categories. The unrestricted component of net position often is designated, to indicate that management
does not consider it to be available for general operations and often have constraints on resources that are
imposed by management, but can be removed or modified.

The Satement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable within a specific
function. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function, and 2) grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items
not meeting the definition of program revenues are instead reported as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate financial statements are provided for governmenta funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds,
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide statements. Magjor individual governmental
funds and mgjor individual proprietary funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements,
with non-magjor funds being combined into a single column.

C. MEASUREMENTFOCUS BASIS OFACCOUNTING ANDFINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar
items are recognized as revenues as soon as al digibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
met.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Governmental fund statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized in the governmental funds when they become
susceptible to accrual, generally when they become both measurable and available. “ Available” means earned
and collected or expected to be collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities
of the current period. For this purpose, the State generally considers revenues available if they are collected
within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year.

Significant revenues susceptible to accrual include: income taxes, sales and use taxes, and other taxes; federal
grants; federal reimbursements; and other reimbursements for use of materials and services. Revenues from
other sources are recognized when received because they are generally not measurable until received in cash.
Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied, provided the “available”
criterion is met.
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The State Tax Assessor levies taxes on properties located in the unorganized territory of Maine by August 1 of
each year, and on telecommunications personal properties statewide by March 30 of each year. Unorganized
territory property taxes are due on October 1 and telecommunications personal property taxes are due on
August 15. Formal collection procedures begin on November 1, and unpaid property taxes become a lien no
later than March 15 of the fiscal year for which they are levied.

Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability isincurred. However, expenditures related to claims and
judgments, debt service and compensated absences are recorded only when payment is due and payable.

Financial Statement Presentation
The State reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is the State's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources except
those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Highway Fund accounts for the regulation, construction and maintenance of State highways and
bridges and is funded by motor fuel taxes, motor vehicle license and registration fees, specia State
appropriations, and other charges.

The Federal Fund accounts for grants and other financial assistance received from the federal government,
including federal block grants, that are legally restricted to expenditures for purposes specified in the grant
awards or agreements.

The Other Special Revenue Fund accounts for specific revenue sources that are legaly restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes, and the related current liabilities, including some major capital
projects that are not accounted for in the Highway and Federal Funds. Examples of the most significant
types of revenue sources include: Fund for a Healthy Maine (tobacco settlement revenue), State municipal
revenue sharing, hospital and service provider taxes, and oil transfer fees.

The State reports the following major enterprise fund:

The Maine Employment Security Fund receives contributions from employers and provides unemployment
compensation benefits to eligible unemployed workers.

The Alcoholic Beverages Fund licenses and regulates the sale of acoholic beverages. During fiscal year
2004, the State of Maine entered into a 10 year contract with a vendor to manage and operate wholesale
liquor distribution as the State's agent. Fiscal year 2014 was the final year of the contract.

Additionally, the State reports the following fund types:
Governmental Fund Types:
Soecial Revenue Funds include operating fund activities financed by specific revenue sources that are

legally restricted for specified purposes. An exampleis funds for acquisition of public reserved lands.

Capital Projects Funds account for the acquisition or construction of major capital assets and other
programs financed by bond proceeds.

Permanent Trust Funds report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only earnings, and not

principal, may be used for purposes that benefit the government or its citizenry. An example is the Baxter
State Park Fund.

B-40



Sate of Maine Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Proprietary Fund Types:
Enterprise Funds report the activities for which fees are charged to external users for goods or services,
such as the unemployment compensation program, lottery operations and transportation services.

Internal Service Funds provide goods or services primarily to other agencies or funds of the State, rather
than to the general public. These goods and services include printing and mailing services, supplies
warehousing, information technology, fleet management, risk management, health-related benefits, and
financing for acquisition and construction of governmental facilities.

Fiduciary Fund Types:

Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trust Funds report resources that are required to be held in trust for
members and beneficiaries of the State’ s pension, death and disability benefit plans. These resources are
managed by the Maine Public Employees Retirement System (MPERS). The fund also reports resources
that are required to be held in trust for members and beneficiaries of the State and for MPERS' retiree
healthcare benefits. The investment trusts, managed by the Maine Public Employees Retirement System,
hold the long-term investments. The trustees of the Healthcare Other Employee Benefit Trust Fund are the
State Controller and State Treasurer.

Private Purpose Trust Funds report resources of al other trust arrangements in which principal and
income benefit individuals, private organizations, or other governments. Examples include Abandoned
Property, Public Reserved Lands and the Permanent School funds.

Agency Funds report assets and liabilities for deposits and investments entrusted to the State as an agent
for others. Examples include amounts held for payroll withholdings, inmate and student guardianship
accounts.

D. FISCAL YEAR-ENDS

All funds and discretely presented major component units are reported using fiscal years which end on June
30, except for the Maine Educational Loan Authority, Maine State Housing Authority and Maine Turnpike
Authority, which utilize December 31 year-ends.

E. ASSETSLIABILITIES, AND NET POSITIONFUND BALANCE

Equity in Treasurer’s Cash Pool

The State pools cash and cash equivaents for avariety of State agencies and public sector entities. The pooled
balances are reported at fair value. Interest earned on pooled cash is alocated to the various funds, generally
based on their average equity balances. The Treasurer’s Cash Pool has the general characteristics of a demand
deposit account and is comprised primarily of prime commercial paper, repurchase agreements, U.S. Treasury
Bills, U.S. Treasury Notes, and other U.S. Agency Obligations, certificates of deposit, and corporate bonds.

For component units that participate in the cash pool, equity is shown at fair value.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivdents consist of short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are near maturity. On the Statement of Cash Flows, the amount reported as “ Cash and
Cash Equivalents’ is equal to the total of the amounts reported on the Statement of Net Position as “Equity in
Treasurer's Cash Pool,” “Cash and Cash Equivalents,” “Cash with Fiscal Agent,” “Restricted Equity in
Treasurer’s Cash Pool,” and “Restricted Deposits and Investments.”
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Cash with Fiscal Agent

Cash with Fiscal Agent in Governmental Funds represents cash that will be used for debt service on bonds, the
unspent proceeds of bonds and Certificates of Participation, as well as unspent funds of the Maine Biological
Research Board being held by the State.

Cash with Fiscal Agent in Proprietary Funds represents proceeds of Certificates of Participation and other
financing arrangements that have not been spent.

Other investments of the State are carried at fair value. Donated investments are stated at fair value at the date
of donation.

Investments Held on Behalf of Others

These assets include amounts held by the State in a fiduciary capacity, acting as either atrustee or an agent for
individuals, organizations or other funds. Generaly, these investments are reported at fair value or at
amortized cost which approximates fair value. The State also holds $107 million of Workers' Compensation,
$51 million of Bureau of Insurance, and $30 million of Maine Department of Labor surety bonds and letters of
credit that are not reflected on the financial statements.

Restricted Deposits and Investments

Restricted deposits and investments include: unemployment tax receipts deposited with the United States
Treasury that are drawn down to pay unemployment benefits; cash and investments of the Maine
Governmental Facilities Authority, a blended component unit that has been independently audited; unspent
bond proceeds, and funds invested in Certificates of Deposit and other investments at various financial
institutions within the State. The financial institutions lend these deposits and investments to local commercial
and agricultural enterprises to foster economic growth in Maine.

Inventories

The costs of materials and supplies of the Governmental Funds are reported as expenditures when purchased.
Undistributed vaccines and food commodities are reported as inventory and deferred revenue in the Federal
Fund. Revenues and corresponding expenditures are recognized when food stamps are used (EBT cards), and
when vaccines and food commodities are issued. Inventories of materials and supplies in the Proprietary
Funds are determined by physical counts and by perpetual inventory systems. Proprietary Fund inventories are
stated at cost or average cost.

Inventories included in the component unit column are stated at the lower of cost or market (using the first-in,
first-out method).

Receivables

Receivables consist primarily of amounts due to the State from taxpayers and service providers. Also included
in receivables are amounts due but not yet remitted to the State from lottery sales by agents. Loans receivable
for the primary government represent low interest financing arrangements to construct and modernize
agricultural storage facilities and local commercial enterprises, as well as Department of Transportation loans
to local governments. Receivables in the component units' column arise in the normal course of business.
Receivables are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible amounts that are determined based upon
past collection experience and aging of the accounts.

Interfund Transactions and Balances

Numerous transactions are made between funds to finance operations, provide services, and acquire or
construct assets. To the extent that transactions between funds were not completed as of June 30, interfund
receivables and payables have been recorded in the fund financial statements. Interfund receivables and
payables have been eliminated from the Statement of Net Position.
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Long-term loans made by one fund to another are classified as “Working Capital Advances Receivable” and
“Working Capital Advances Payable.” In the fund financia statements, advances receivable are offset by
nonspendable fund balance designations indicating that the long-term loans do not constitute expendable
financial resources.

Due from/to Primary Government/Component Units

Numerous transactions are made between the primary government and component units to finance operations,
provide services, acquire or construct assets, or repay bonds. To the extent that transactions between funds
were not completed as of June 30, “Due from Primary Government” and “Due to Component Unit” receivables
and payables have been recorded. Three component units have December 31 year ends, therefore the “ due to”
and “due from” amounts may differ.

Due from/to Other Governments

Due from/to Other Governments represents amounts receivable from or payable to municipalities or the federal
government. Due from Other Governments represents primarily federal grants receivable for Medicaid claims,
other health and human services programs, and federa grants receivable for transportation-related
expenditures. Due from Other Governments in the component units' column represents amounts receivable for
grants, bond repayment and retirement benefits. Due to Other Governments primarily consist of amounts
owed to municipalities for Municipal Revenue Sharing and the federa government for Medicaid cost
recoveries from providers.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, ramps
and similar items), are reported in the government-wide statements and applicable fund financia statements.
Capital assets that are used for governmental activities are only reported in the government-wide statements.
The State capitalizes governmental fund buildings valued at $1 million or more and proprietary fund buildings
valued at $100 thousand or more. Governmenta fund equipment is capitalized at $10 thousand or more and
proprietary fund equipment is capitalized $5 thousand or more. Governmental and proprietary fund software is
capitalized at $1 million or more. All land, regardiess of value, is capitalized. Capital assets are recorded at
cost or, if donated, at estimated fair market value at date of acquisition. In some instances, capital assets
historical cost were not available. The costs of these assets at the date of acquisitions have been estimated.

In the government-wide statements, most capital assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the assets
estimated useful lives, which are 10-40 years for software, buildings and improvements, and 2-25 years for
equipment. The State uses the modified approach for reporting its significant infrastructure assets. Aslong as
the State maintains and preserves its infrastructure assets at pre-determined condition levels, maintenance costs
are expensed and depreciation is not reported. This approach is discussed further in the Required
Supplementary Information.

Capital assets of component units are capitalized upon purchase and depreciated over their estimated useful
lives. Interest incurred during construction is capitalized. The estimated useful lives of fixed assets are 5-60
years for non-road structures and improvements and 3-15 years for equipment, furniture, fixtures and vehicles.
Component units reflect infrastructure in improvements other than buildings and record depreciation expense
on them. The Maine Turnpike Authority (MTA) uses the modified approach for reporting its significant
infrastructure assets. As long as MTA maintains and preserves its infrastructure assets at pre-determined
condition levels, maintenance costs are expensed and depreciation is not reported.

Accounts Payable

Accounts payable represent the gross amount of expenditures or expenses incurred as a result of normal
operations, but for which no actual payment has yet been issued to vendors/providers. Incurred but not paid
(IBNP) Medicaid claims settlements are actuarially estimated. The IBNP estimate recorded at June 30, 2014 is
$219 million.
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Tax Refunds Payable
The amount of collected or accrued tax revenues that will be refunded is estimated and accrued as a General
Fund liahility.

Claims Payable

Claims payable represent workers' compensation, retiree health, employee health, and other claims payable,
including actual claims submitted and actuarially determined claims incurred but not reported. The actuarially
determined claims liability is discounted and presented at net present value.

Compensated Employee Absences

In the government-wide statements and proprietary fund financial statements, compensated absences are
recorded as a long-term liability as required by GASB. In the governmental fund financial statements, vested
or accumulated leave is reported as an expenditure and fund liability when incurred upon retirement,
termination or death. Sick and vacation payments to terminated employees as of June 30, 2014 but paid after
the fiscal year end is also reported in the funds. In the discretely presented component units, employees
accumulated compensated absences are recorded as an expense and liability as the benefits accrue.

Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to liabilities, the Balance Sheet and Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate element represents an acquisition of fund equity that
applies to a future period(s) and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The
government funds report unavailable revenues, which arise only under the modified accrua basis of
accounting, from two sources. tax and assessment revenue and pledged revenue transfer from an Enterprise
Fund.

Loans Payable to Component Unit

In the Statement of Net Position, the amount of bond proceeds received by a component unit for unmatured
GARVEE and TransCap bond proceeds is called “Loans Payable to Component Unit.” The offsetting
receivables are classified as “Loans Receivable from Primary Government.” In fiscal year 2014 a Liquor
Revenue Bond was issued by the Component Unit. The bond, including debt service reserves, totaled $220.7
million. See Note 11 for additional information on the Liquor Bond.

Long-Term Obligations
In the government-wide statements and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-
term obligations are recorded as liabilities.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize the face amount of debt issued as other
financing sources.

Net Position/Fund Balances

The difference between fund assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources is “Net Position” on the government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund statements and “Fund
Balances’ on governmental fund statements.
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Fund Balance Restrictions
Fund balances for governmental funds have been classified in accordance with GASB Statement No. 54.

The State reported the following fund balance restrictions:

Nonspendable Fund Balance - indicates items that cannot be spent. This includes activity that isnot in a
spendable form (inventories, prepaid amounts, long-term portion of loans/notes receivable, or property
held for resale unless those proceeds are restricted, committed or assigned) and activity that is legally or
contractually required to remain intact, such asaprincipa balancein apermanent fund.

Restricted Fund Balances — include balances that are legaly restricted for specific purposes due to
congtraints that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or imposed by law
through a constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

Committed Fund Balances — indicates assets can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to constraints
imposed by a formal action of the Maine Legidature, the State's highest level of decision-making
authority. Thisformal action is the passage of law by the legislature, creating, modifying, or rescinding an
appropriation.

Assigned Fund Balances — include amounts that are constrained by the State's intent to be used for a
specific purpose, but are neither restricted or committed. Legislative assignments include formal actions
passed into law that lapse. Maine statute also set forth powers and duties of management. Assignments
aso include decisions made by management, including encumbrances. For governmental funds, other
than the General Fund, thisis the residual amount within the fund that is not restricted or committed.

Unassigned Fund Balance — is the residual amount of the General Fund not included in the four categories
described above. Also, any deficit fund balances within the other governmental fund types are reported as
unassigned.

F. REVENUES ANDEXPENDITURESEXPENSES

In the government-wide Statement of Activities, revenues and expenses are segregated by activity
(governmental or business-type), then further by function (e.g., governmental support & operations, education,
health & human services, etc.). Additionaly, revenues are classified between program and general revenues.
Program revenues include: charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges provided,;
operating grants and contributions; and capita grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are
reported as general revenues, rather than as program revenue. General revenues include al taxes. Certain
indirect costs are included in the program expenses reported for individual functions.

The State's policy is that restricted amounts are spent first when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for
which both restricted and unrestricted (committed, assigned, or unassigned) amounts are available. Within
unrestricted fund balance, the State's policy is that committed amounts are reduced first, followed by assigned
amounts, and then unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any
of those unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.

In the governmental fund financial statements, expenditures are reported by function. Capita outlay
expenditures for real property or infrastructure (e.g. highways) are included with expenditures by function.

Revenues and expenses of proprietary funds are classified as operating or nonoperating and are subclassified
by object (e.g. genera operations and depreciation). Operating revenues and expenses generaly result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods. All other revenues and expenses are reported as
nonoperating, capital contributions, transfers or special items.
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NOTE 2-BUDGETING AND BUDGETARY CONTROL, AND LEGAL COMPLIANCE

Appropriation Limits

The total General Fund appropriation for each fiscal year of the biennium in the Governor's budget submission
to the Legislature may not exceed the General Fund appropriation of the previous fiscal year multiplied by one
plus the average rea personal income growth rate, as defined in Title 5 Maine Revised Statutes Annotated
(MRSA) § 1665, subsection 1, plus the average forecasted inflation rate. “Average forecasted inflation rate"
means the average forecasted change in the Consumer Price Index underlying the revenue projections
devel oped by the Revenue Forecasting Committee.

This appropriation limitation may be exceeded only by the amount of the additional costs or the lost federal
revenue from the following exceptional circumstances. unfunded or under-funded new federal mandates;
losses in federal revenues or other revenue sources; citizens initiatives or referenda that require increased State
spending; court orders or decrees that require additional State resources to comply with the orders or decrees;
and sudden or significant increases in demand for existing State services that are not the result of legislative
changes that increased €ligibility or increased benefits.

The Governor may designate exceptional circumstances that are not explicitly defined, but meet the intent of,
this statute. "Exceptional circumstances’ means an unforeseen condition or conditions over which the
Governor and the Legidature have little or no control. Exceptional circumstances do not apply to new
programs or program expansions that go beyond existing program criteria and operation.

Budget Stabilization Fund

The Maine Budget Stabilization Fund, a fund designation established under Title 5 MRSA C. 142, isincluded
in the negative $221 million unassigned General Fund fund balance. Amounts in the stabilization fund may be
expended only to offset a General Fund revenue shortfall. The Governor may also alocate funds for payment
of death benefits for law enforcement officers, firefighters and emergency medical services personnel.

Balances in the fund do not lapse, but carry forward each year. Money in the fund may be invested with any
earnings credited to the fund except when the fund is at its statutory cap. As the fifth priority before any other
transfer, the State Controller is required to transfer 48 percent of the unappropriated surplus of the Genera
Fund when the fund is not at its statutory cap. In accordance with the statute, the State Controller made the
required transfer for fiscal year 2014.

The statutory cap for the fund is 12 percent of the total General Fund revenue received in the immediately
preceding fiscal year. At the close of the fiscal year, the cap is based on the revenue received in the fiscal year
being closed. Based on fiscal year 2014 actual General Fund revenue, the statutory cap at the close of fiscal
year 2014 and during fiscal year 2014 was $373.6 million. At the close of fiscal year 2014, the balance of the
Maine Budget Stabilization Fund was $68.3 million. No reductions to the Maine Budget Stabilization Fund
balance are required when it exceeds the balance of the statutory cap as a result of a decline of General Fund
revenue.

Budget Stabilization Fund Activity
(Bxpressed in Thousands)

Balance, beginning of year $ 59,701
Increase in fund balance 8,570
Balance, end of year $ 68271
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Budget and Budgetary Expenditures

The gross unified budget bills and budget document encompass resources from the General Fund, Highway
Fund, Federal Expenditures Fund, Federal Block Grant Fund, Other Special Revenue Fund, internal service
funds and enterprise funds. Separate gross unified budget bills must be submitted for the General Fund and the
Highway Fund. All funds except trust and agency funds, bond funds and costs of goods sold expenditures in
internal service funds and enterprise funds are subject to legidative allocation. The biennial budget sets forth
proposed expenditures for the administration, operation and maintenance of the departments and agencies of
the State Government; all interest and debt redemption charges during each fiscal year and all expenditures for
capital projects to be undertaken and executed during each fiscal year. Within this structure, budgetary control
by agency is maintained at the program and line category level. The State Budget Officer and the Governor
must approve budget revisions during the year, reflecting program changes or intradepartmental administrative
transfers.

Except in specific instances, only the Legislature may transfer appropriations between departments. Changes
in appropriation, alocation, or funding for new programs are presented to the Legislature as a supplemental
budgets or separate pieces of legidlation. For the year ended June 30, 2014, the Legislature increased
appropriations to the General Fund by $26.3 million.

Actual expenditures did not exceed legidatively authorized appropriations at the Department level; therefore,
the State complied with al related budget laws at the legal level.

Governmental Fund Balances — Restricted, CommittedAssigned

The State’s fund balances represent: (1) restricted purposes, which include balances legally restricted for
specific purposes due to constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments; (2) committed purposes, which include balances that can only be used for
specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the Legidature; (3) assigned purposes,
which includes balances that are constrained by government’s intent to be used for specific purposes, but are
neither restricted or committed. A summary of the nature and purpose of these fund balance types at June 30,
2014 are detailed on the following page.
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Governmental Fund Balances
(Expressed in Thousands)

NS F Restricted Committed Assigned
General Fund:
Public Safety $ - $ 1,365 $ - $ -
All Other 3,807 699 - -
Total $ 3,807 $ 2,064 $ - $ -
Highway Fund:
Light Highway & Bridge Capital $ - $ 20,522 $ - $ -
Highway and Bridge Construction 14,319
Department of Motor Vehicles - 847 - -
All Other 55 2,047 - -
Total $ 55 $ 37,735 $ - $ -
Federal Fund:
HHS Office of Family Independence $ - $ 1,739 $ - $ -
HHS Office of Child and Family Services - 2,443 - -
HHSSubstance & Mental Health - 1,989 - -
Other General Support and Operations - 619 - -
Other Justice and Protection - 1,430 - -
All Other 1,071 - - -
Total $ 1,071 $ 8,220 $ - $ -
Other Special Revenue Fund:
Agriculture & Conservation $ - $ 18,049 $ 3,673 $ -
Bonds for Highway & Bridge Construction - 73,537 - -
Environmental Protection - 19,242 - -
Fundfor a Healthy Maine - - 8,351 -
GSO Other - 42,882 8,864 -
HHS Centers for Disease Control - - 4,614 -
HHSCOM - - - -
HHS MaineCare (Medicaid Program) - - 3,241 -
HHS Office of Family Independence - - - 6,963
HHS Other - 26,434 1,672 2,967
Highway & Bridge Construction - 14,110 - -
Inland Wildife & Fisheries - 10,032 - -
Multimodal Transportation - - 6,862 -
Natural Resources Other - 9,585 - -
Professonal & Financial Regulation - 50,692 - -
Public Safety - 43,609 - -
Workers Compensation Board - 13,853 - -
All Other 214 29,666 11,104 6,057
Total $ 214 $ 351,691 $ 48,381 $ 15,987
Other Governmental Funds: NSF Restricted Permanent
Permanent Funds - Baxter Park $ - $ - $ 6,814
Permanent Funds - All Others - - 15,081
Capital Projects - Highway & Bridge Construction - 30,455 -
Capital Projects - Multimodal T ransportation - 17,883 -
Capital Projects - Higher Education - 16,669 -
Capital Projects- Agriculture & Conservation - 3,091 -
Capital Projects- Community & Economic Develop - 2,361 -
Capital Projects- All Other - 1,787 -
Foecial Revenue Funds - Baxter Park - 73,772 -
Foecial Revenue Funds - CDS 181 75 -
Foecial Revenue Funds - All Other - 172 -
Total $ 181 $ 146,265 $ 21,895
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NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTING CHANGES AND RESTATEMENTS

Accounting Changes
During fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the State implemented the following accounting standards:

GASB issued Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Sandards. This integration
includes GASB pronouncements issued and effective through December 31, 2013 and is intended to provide
authoritative accounting and financial reporting guidance for state and local governmental entities. GASB
pronouncements issued before December 31, 2013, but not effective at that date, may alter, amend,
supplement, revoke, or supersede the guidance contained in this Codification. The State's current financial
statement disclosures may refer to specific codification sections instead of GASB Standards.

GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities. This Statement establishes
accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred
inflows of resources, certain items that were previoudy reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as
outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and
liabilities. Asaresult of implementing this new standard, presentation and terminology changes were made to
the government-wide and fund financial statements as necessary.

GASB Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections — 2012 an amendment of GASB Satements No. 10 and No.
62. This Statement resolves conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of two pronouncements,
Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, and Statement No. 62,
Cadification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB
and AICPA Pronouncements. There was no impact on the State's financia statements as a result of
implementing GASB 66.

GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans an amendment of GASB Statement No. 25.
This Statement improves financial reporting by state and local governmental pension plans by providing
decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating
additional transparency. There was no impact on the State's financial statements as a result of implementing
GASB 67.

GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees. This
Statement improves accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments that extend and receive
nonexchange financial guarantees. Asaresult of implementing this new standard, dight changes were made to
the disclosures of State constitutional obligations.

Restatements — Primary Government

The beginning net position for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position were decreased by
$1.5 billion to correct an overstatement of Infrastructure assets that had been incorrectly capitalized in prior
years and increased by $14.9 million for construction in progress assets that should have been capitalized in
the prior year.

Restatements - Component Units

The cumulative effect of implementing GASB #65 reduced beginning net position of discretely presented
component units for a total of $25.2 million. The net position reductions result primarily from the change in
accounting of deferred bond issuance costs and certain deferred loan costs and fees that are no longer reported
as assets. The net position of the Maine Community College System, Maine Municipal Bond Bank, Maine
State Housing Authority, Maine Turnpike Authority and the University of Maine decreased by: $0.2 million,
$6.5 million, $9.7 million, $6.0 million and $2.7 million, respectively.
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Three non-major discretely presented component units reduced their beginning net position as a result of
correcting errors. Maine Educational Loan Authority reduced its beginning net position $.5 as a correction of
an error in the calculation of its arbitrage rebatable liability. Maine Educational Center for the Deaf and Hard
of Hearing reduced its beginning net position $1.9 million as a result of recognizing its Other Post
Employment Benefit Obligation. Midcoast Regional Redevelopment Authority increased its beginning net
position $0.8 million since certain construction and engineering costs had been excluded from the calculation
of construction in progress.

A fiduciary component unit, Maine Public Employees Retirement System, restated its beginning net position
as a result of changing how it reports results of pension plans and OPEB Trusts. As a result, fiduciary net
position increased $9.1 million.

NOTE 4 - DEFICIT FUND BALANCES/NET POSITION

Three internal service funds showed deficits for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. The Workers
Compensation Fund reported a deficit of $20.8 million, which reflects accruals for actuarialy determined
claims payable. The Leased Space Fund had a deficit of $3.9 million because rates charged were insufficient
to cover expenses incurred. The Postal, Printing & Supply fund reported a deficit of $2.8 million because
expenses are recognized when incurred; however, related revenue is not earned until jobs are satisfactorily
completed. All of the deficits mentioned above are expected to be funded by future service charges.

The Alcoholic Beverages Enterprise Fund shows a deficit of $183.5 million. During fiscal year 2014, Maine
Municipal Bond Bank (MMBB) issued Liquor Operation Revenue Bonds on behalf of the State of Maine. The
bonds are special, limited obligations of MMBB. The proceeds from the bonds were used for the purpose of
making payments to health care providers for services provided prior to December 1, 2012. The bonds do not
congtitute a debt or liahility of the State and neither the faith and credit nor the taxing power of the State is
pledged to the payment of any amount due pursuant to the bonds. The bonds are secured by revenues received
from the Bureau of Alcoholic Beverages and Lottery Operations from the operations of the State’s liquor
program pursuant to 28-A MRSA 890. A Due To the Other Special Revenue Fund has been recorded.

The General Fund shows a deficit fund balance of $215.4 million at June 30, 2014. This deficit is primarily
due to the full recognition of the State’s share of Medicaid liabilities at fiscal year end. The federal portion of
these liabilities is aso fully accrued, with an offsetting receivable from the federal government as allowed
under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 33. Per GASB 33, revenue
associated with government mandated non-exchange transactions should be recognized when applicable
eigibility requirements have been met and the resources are available. Medicaid is an entitlement
program. Therefore, the funds are available when the payments for these liabilities are processed.
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NOTE 5 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Title 5 MRSA § 135 governs the deposit and investment policies of the State of Maine Office of the Treasurer.
The Treasurer may deposit State funds, including trust funds of the State, in any of the banking institutions
(including trust companies, State or federal savings and loan associations, and mutual savings banks)
organized under the laws of this State and any national bank or federal savings and loan association located in
the State.

The State follows the practice of pooling cash and cash equivaents for a variety of State agencies and public
sector entities. The Treasurer may invest funds that exceed current obligations, with the concurrence of the
State Controller or the Commissioner of Administrative and Financial Services and the consent of the
Governor.

Approved investments include bonds, notes, certificates of indebtedness, other obligations of the United States
that mature not more than 36 months from the date of investment; repurchase agreements secured by
obligations of the United States that mature within the succeeding 12 months; prime commercia paper; tax-
exempt obligations that mature not more than 36 months from the date of investment and have a long-term
rating of no lessthat “AA” or the equivalent; corporate bonds rated “AAA” that mature within 36 months from
the date of investment; banker’ s acceptances with an original maturity not exceeding 180 days and rated in the
highest short-term category by at |east one nationally recognized securities rating organization (NRSRO); and
“no-load” shares of an investment company registered under the Federal Investment Company Act of 1940,
which are rated “AAAmM” or “AAAM-G” by Standard & Poor’s, or the equivalent by another NRSRO.
Although authorized to do so, the Treasurer does not participate in the securities |loan market.

Investment policies of the permanent trusts are governed by Title 5 MRSA § 138. The Treasurer, with the
approval of the Commissioner of Administrative and Financial Services, the Superintendent of Financial
Institutions and the Attorney General, shall invest the funds in securities that are lega investments in
accordance with Title 9-B MRSA. The investments need not be segregated to the separate trusts, but the
identity of each trust must be maintained. The Treasurer may enter into custodial care and servicing contracts
or agreements negotiated in accordance with the laws of this State for the handling of funds held in trust.

No amounts exceeding 25 percent of the capital, surplus, and undivided profits of any trust company or
national bank or 25 percent of the reserve fund and undivided profits of a mutual savings bank or State or
federal savings and loan association, shall be on deposit in any one ingtitution at any onetime. Thisrestriction
does not apply to deposits subject to immediate withdrawal to meet the payment of any bonded debt or interest
or to pay current hills or expenses of the State. Also exempt are deposits secured by the pledge of certain
securities as collateral or fully covered by insurance.

With assistance from the Finance Authority of Maine, the Treasurer participates in arestricted deposit program
to encourage banks to provide loans at two percent below market rate. The Treasurer may invest up to $8
million in lending ingtitutions at a two percent lower-than-market rate provided the lenders pass the rate
reduction on to the borrowers. This program earmarks $4 million for loans to agricultural enterprises and the
other $4 million are designated for commercial entities.
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The Primary Government’ s Deposits and Investments excluding component units that are fiduciary in nature at
June 30, 2014:

Primary Government Deposits and Investments
(Bxpressed in Thousands)

Business- Private
Governmental Type Purpose Agency
Activities Activities Trusts Funds Total

Equity in T reasurer's Cash

Pool $ 406,199 $ 15,520 $ 1,982 $18,310 $ 442,011
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,820 3,443 - 27 8,290
Cash with Fiscal Agent 77,785 - - - 77,785
Investments 95,706 - 14,900 - 110,606
Restricted Equity in

Treasurer's Cash Pool 77,135 - - - 77,135
Restricted Deposits and

Invesments 3,662 297,686 - 11 301,359
Investments Held on

Behalf of Others - - - 52,641 52,641
Other Assets - - - - -
Tota Primary Government $ 665,307 $ 316,649 $ 16,882 $70,989 $1,069,827

Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk istherisk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment. In general, the State holds securities to maturity. All debt securities are
reported at full-term.
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The following table provides the segmented time distribution of the Primary Government’ s investments at

June 30, 2014:

Maturities in Years
(Expressed in Thousands)

Less More No Fair

than 1 1-5 6-10 11-20 than 20 Maturity Value
Governmental and Business-Type Activities, excluding Non-Major Special Revenue and Permanent Funds
USInstrumentalities $ 29,963 $ 95,833 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 125,796
USTreasury Notes - 57,912 - - - - 57,912
Repurchase Agreements - - - - - - -
Corporate Notes and Bonds - - - - - - -
Commercial Paper 72,564 - - - - - 72,564
Certificates of Deposit 2,099 2,680 - - - - 4,779
Money Market - - - - - - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 903 - - - - 248,825 249,728
Unemployment Fund
Depositswith UST reasury - - - - - 297,686 297,686
Private-Purpose Trusts, Agency Funds, and Non-Major Special Revenue and Permanent Funds
USInstrumentalities 1,178 3,926 2 359 907 - 6,372
USTreasury Notes - 12,877 3,092 2,834 - - 18,803
Repurchase Agreements - - - - - - -
Corporate Notes and Bonds 196 1,254 1,898 7,278 1,034 - 11,660
Other Fixed Income

Securities 10,696 20 7,349 - - - 18,065

Commercial Paper 2,952 - - - - - 2,952
Certificates of Deposit 6,290 112 - - - 3,642 10,044
Money Market 13 - - - - 2,396 2,409
Cash and Cash Equivalents 920 - - - - 23,074 23,994
Equities - - - - - 84,852 84,852
Other - - - - - 4,426 4,426

$127,774 $174,614 $12,341 $10,471 $ 1,941 $ 664,901 $ 992,042
Other Assets
Cash with Fiscal Agent 77,785
T otal Primary Government $1,069,827

Credit Risk — Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. This credit risk is measured by the credit quality ratings of investments as described by nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations. The State's investment policy limits its investments to those with
high credit quality made by or with the advice and upon the due diligence of the State's independent
investment advisor. The State limits credit risk in its trusts by ensuring that the fixed income credit quality at
the time of purchase is a minimum bond rating of “A” by either Standard & Poor’s or Moody’s rating service.
Fixed income holdings thereafter shall maintain a minimum bond rating of “BBB”.
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The Primary Government’ s total investments by credit quality rating as of June 30, 2014 are presented bel ow:

Sandard & Poor’s Credit Rating
(Expressed in T housands)

Not
Al A AA AA+ AAA BB BBB Rated Total

Governmental and Business-Type Activities, excluding Non-Major Special Revenue and Permanent Funds

USInstrumentalities $ - $ - $ 125,796 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 125,796
USTreasury Notes - - 57,912 - - - - - 57,912
Corporate Notes

and Bonds -
Commercial Paper 72,564 - - - - - - - 72,564
Money Market - - -

Private-Purpose Trusts, Agency Funds, and Non-Major Special Revenue and Permanent Funds

USInstrumentalities - - 5,005 - - - - 1,367 6,372
USTreasury Notes - - 3,456 - - - - 15,347 18,803
Corporate Notes
and Bonds - 859 300 - - 495 10,006 11,660
Commercial Paper 2,952 - - - - - - - 2,952
Money Market -
Other Fixed Income

Securities - - - - 7,369 - - 10,696 18,065
Total Primary

Government $ 75,516 $ 859 $ 192,469 $ - $ 7,369 $ - $ 495 $ 37,416 $ 314,124

Concentration of Credit Risk — Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a
government’s investment in a single issuer. The State limits concentration of credit risk in its trusts by
requiring that no single stock represent more than 7 percent of the total portfolio. There is no concentration of
credit risk policy for the Treasurer’s Cash Pool. At June 30, 2014, there were no investments that exceeded
five percent of the Treasurer’s Cash Pool.

Custodial Credit Risk - For investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the
counterparty to a transaction, the State will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The State limits its custodia credit risk for the
Treasurer’s Cash Pool by maintaining afile of the most recent credit rating analysis reports performed for each
approved financia institution. The State also requires that all securities be perfected in the name of the State
and held in third party safekeeping by a state approved custodian. Of the cash pool’s $5.9 million invested in
non-negotiable certificates of deposit, none exceeded the FDIC insured amounts for the institutions at which
they were held. The State does not have a policy regarding custodial credit risk for its trusts. The Percival P.
Baxter Trust is held by the counterparty’ s trust department, but not in the State’ s name.
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The fair value of the trust's investments as of June 30, 2014 was $73.7 million and was comprised of the
following (expressed in thousands):

U.S. Instrumentalities $ 1,268
US Treasury Notes 1,100
Corporate Notes and Bonds 1,713
Other Fixed Income Securities 10,716
Equities 56,599
Cash and Equivaents 973
Other 1,344
Totd $ 73,713

The State and certain vendors contract with a fiscal intermediary, Clareon, for electronic disbursements from
the State to its vendors. During fiscal year 2014 these disbursements, on average, exceeded $125 million per
month. The funds in transit are not collateralized and are not held by the State Treasurer. Until the vendor
receives payment, the State retains some liability.

MAINE PUBLIC EMPLOYEESRETIREMENT SYSTEM

The Maine Public Employees Retirement System (the System) makes investments in a combination of
equities, fixed income securities, infrastructure, private equity, real estate, mutual funds, commingled mutual
and index funds, derivative financial instruments, and other investment securities established by the Trustee's
investment policy.

Derivative Securities — Derivative financial instruments are financial contracts whose value depends on the
value of one or more underlying assets, reference rates or financial indices. They include futures, forwards,
options, and swap contracts. The System’s investments in derivative securities only have nominal exposure to
custodial credit risk. Credit risk is managed, in the case of exchange-traded derivatives, by the execution of
trades through a clearinghouse and, in the case of over-the-counter transactions, by managers’ due diligence
assessment and approval of counterparties. Market risk is managed by imposing strict limits as to the types,
amounts and degree of risk that investment managers may undertake. These limits are approved by the Board
of Trustees and are monitored by the Chief Investment Officer.

Foreign currency forward contracts are used to hedge against the currency risk in the System’s foreign equity
and fixed income security portfolios. The System’s fixed income managers invest in Collateralized Mortgage
Obligations (CMOs) and Asset-Backed Securities to improve the yield or adjust the duration of the fixed
income portfolio. At June 30, 2014, the System held no CMO and Asset-Backed Securities. The System also
investsin swaps. Interest rate swaps are used to adjust interest rate and yield curve exposures and substitute for
physical securities.

Securities Lending - The System has a so entered into agreements for securities lending transactions, which are
collateralized in an amount generally valued at 102 percent (105 percent for international securities) of the
market value of the securities loaned. All securities and loans can be terminated on demand by either the lender
or the borrower.

Cash open callateral is invested in a short-term investment pool, the Core Limited Collateral Section. Cash
collateral may also be invested separately in “term loans.” At June 30, 2014 all of the collateral for securities
lending is subject to custodial credit risk. The System believes that there is no credit risk as defined in GASB
Statement No. 28 and GASB Statement No. 40. The collateral held and the market value of securities on loan
for the System as of June 30, 2014 was $260.2 million and $253.6 million, respectively.
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The following table details the System’s derivative investments at June 30, 2014:

(Expressed in T housands)

2014
Changesin
Fair Value Fair Value at June 30, 2014 Notional
Classification Amount Amount
Futures:
Equity Index Futures Contracts $ 305 Investments $ 95 $ 75,920

COMPONENTUNITS

Generally, component unit investment policies authorize investments in obligations of U.S. Treasury and
Agency Securities, repurchase agreements, corporate bonds, certificates of deposit and money market funds.
Some component units may invest in stocks, bonds, fixed income securities, mutual funds, commingled mutual
funds and index funds, guaranteed investment contracts, real estate and other investment securities.

Certain component units also invest in the Treasurer’s Cash Pool and comprise approximately 14 percent of
pool assets. The component units reported their participation as either Cash and Cash Equivaents or
Investments on their financial statements. The State reclassified $68.2 million of the component units
participation to “Equity in Treasurer's Cash Pool” on the State’s financial statements. In addition to the
amounts reported, the State Treasurer’s Cash Pool includes $11.5 million, consisting of Finance Authority of
Maine component unit fiduciary funds that, because of GASB Statement No. 34 reporting criteria, are not
shown in the accompanying financia statements as invested in the Treasurer’s Cash Poal.
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Sate of Maine

NOTE 6 - RECEIVABLES

Receivable balances are segregated by type, and presented in the fund financial statements net of allowance for
uncollectibles. The following tables disaggregate amounts considered to be uncollectible by fund and type of
receivable as of the close of the fiscal year:

Primary Gowernment — Receivables
(Bxpressed in Thousands)

Allowance
for Net
Taxes Accounts Loans Uncollectibles Receivables

Governmental Funds:

General $ 538,762 $ 137,536 $ 1 $ (186,621) $ 489,678

Highway 22,910 2,798 9 (912) 24,805

Federal - 110,903 - (45,065) 65,838

Other Soecial Revenue 11,941 88,801 3,982 (14,573) 90,151

Other Governmental Funds - 6 - - 6
Tota Governmenta Funds 573,613 340,044 3,992 (247,171) 670,478
Allowance for Uncollectibles (130,044) (117,095) (32)
Net Receivables $ 443,569 $ 222,949 $ 3,960 $ 670,478
Proprietary Funds:

Employment Security $ - $ 58,954 $ - $ (24,620) $ 34,334

Nonmajor Enterprise - 27,982 - (655) 27,327

Interna Service - 7,092 - - 7,092
Total Proprietary Funds - 94,028 - (25,275) 68,753
Allowance for Uncollectibles - (25,275) -
Net Receivables $ - $ 68,753 $ - $ 68,753

Component Units — Receivables
(Bxpressed in Thousands)
Allowance
For Net
Accounts Loans Notes Uncollectibles Receivables

Finance Authority of Maine $ 1,313 $ - $ 28,397 $ (5,813) $ 23,897
Maine Community College System 7,853 - - (1,087) 6,766
Maine Health and Educational
Facilities Authority 327 874,517 - (116) 874,728
Maine Municipal Bond Bank 1,020 - - - 1,020
Maine Sate Housing Authority 19,089 1,227,182 121 (11,439) 1,234,953
Maine T urnpike Authority 4,439 - - - 4,439
University of Maine System 44,667 - 43,230 (6,501) 81,396
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NOTE 7 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund receivables and payables represent amounts owed to one State fund by another, for goods sold or
services received, or for borrowings to eliminate negative balances in the Treasurer’s Cash Pool.

Balances due within one year are recorded as Due to/Due from Other Funds. The balances of current interfund
receivables and payables as of June 30, 2014 were:

Interfund Receivables
(Bxpressed in Thousands)

Due to Other Funds

Other
Special Other

Due from Other Funds General Highway Federal Revenue Governmental
General $ - $ - $ 1,302 $ - $
Highway 31 2 18,316 2
Federal 9,217 2 121 629 -
Other Soecial Revenue 101,984 102 180 219 24
Other Governmental 437 - 129
Employment Security - - 22
Alcoholic Beverages - -
Non-Major Enterprise 165 135 2 4
Internal Service 10,781 3,689 3,482 4,408
Fiduciary 24,007 - - - -
Total $ 146,622 $ 3,930 $ 23,554 $ 5,262 $ 24

Employment Alcoholic Non-Major Internal
Due from Other Funds Security Beverages Enterprise iserv Fiduciary Total
General $ - $ - $ 9,103 $ 4,811 $ 3,320 $ 18,536
Highway - - - 12 - 18,363
Federal - - - - - 9,969
Other Joecial Revenue - 183,482 16 43 - 286,050
Other Governmental - - - - - 566
Employment Security - - - - - 22
Alcoholic Beverages -
Non-Major Enterprise - - 1 - - 307
Internal Service - - 442 1,809 11 24,622
Fiduciary - - - - - 24,007
Total $ - $ 183,482 $ 9,562 $ 6,675 $ 3,331 $ 382,442

Not included in the table above are interfund loang/advances, which are not expected to be repaid within one
year. Postal, Printing & Supply (an interna service fund) owes $111 thousand to the General Fund for
operating capital.

Included in the Due to/Due from Other Funds is $183.5 due to the Other Special Revenue Fund that relates to
the future profit due from the Alcoholic Beverages Fund. These profits will be used solely to make payments
on the Liquor Revenue Bonds until the bonds are paid in full. Additionally, $98.5 million due to the Other
Special Revenue Fund from the Genera Fund relates to the interfund borrowing authorized in Public Law
2013, Chapter 368, Part KKK-1.
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Sate of Maine

Transfers are made in accordance with statutory authority. Significant transfers are used to 1) move revenues
from the fund that statute requires to collect them to the fund that statute requires to expend them, 2) move
receipts restricted to debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the funds required to pay debt
service as principal and interest payments come due, 3) use unrestricted revenues collected in the General Fund
to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, 4) move
profits from the Lottery Fund, and 5) transfer accumulated surpluses from other funds to the General Fund
when authorized by statute.

During fiscal year 2014, the State of Maine, in accordance with the legislatively authorized budget, recorded
the following non-routine, nonrecurring transfers.

The Other Special Revenue Fund transferred $6.7 million to the unappropriated surplus of the General Fund.

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2014, consisted of the following:

Interfund Transfers
(Bxpressed in Thousands)

Transferred From

Other
Special Other
Transferred To General Highway Federal Revenue Governmental
General $ - $ - $ 8,092 $ 97,820 $
Highway 2,016 - 21,838 1,346
Federal 465 - - 14,377 -
Other Soecial Revenue 169,822 5211 9,224 - 1,567
Other Governmental Funds 26,749 - - - 1,107
Employment Security - - - -
Alcoholic Beverages - - - -
Non-Major Enterprise - 4,302 - 370
Internal Service 7,855 6,807 - - -
Fiduciary - - - 61 738
Tota $ 206,907 $ 16,320 $ 39,154 $ 113,974 $ 3,412
Transferred From
Employment Alcoholic Non-Major Internal
Transferred To Security Beverages Enterprise Service Fiduciary Total
General $ - $ 39 $ 52,646 $ 1 $ 10,497 $ 169,095
Highway - - - 25,200
Federal 643 - 5 15,490
Other Yoecial Revenue 2,436 - 823 189,083
Other Governmental Funds 27,856
Employment Security - - - - -
Alcoholic Beverages - - - - - -
Non-Major Enterprise - - - - - 4,672
Internal Service - 3,340 - 18,002
Fiduciary - - - 799
Total $ 643 $ 39 55,082 $ 3,341 $ 11,325 $ 450,197
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NOTE 8 - CAPITAL ASSETS

The following schedule details changes in capital assets for the governmental activities and business-type
activities of the primary government for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014:

Governmental Activities:

Capital assetsnot being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Infrastructure

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Equipment
Improvements other than buildings
Software

Total capital assets being depreciated

L ess accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Equipment
Improvements other than buildings
Software

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, net

Business-Type Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
Equipment
Improvements other than buildings
Total capital assets being depreciated
L ess accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Equipment
Improvements other than buildings
Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, net

Primary Government — Capital Assets
(Expressed in T housands)

Beginning Increases and Decreases and Ending
Balance Other Additions Deletions Balance

$ 571,268 $ 11,498 $ 7,384 $ 575,382

83,273 ** 41,283 14,567 109,989

2,719,346 ** 41,911 - 2,761,257

3,373,887 94,692 * 21,951 3,446,628

660,538 6,929 1,042 666,425

265,956 24,933 22,268 268,621

52,251 19,740 116 71,875

72,551 2,119 - 74,670

1,051,296 53,721 * 23,426 1,081,591

261,722 17,553 1,495 277,780

177,461 22,896 15,846 184,511

34,681 9,239 41 43,879

11,023 6,816 - 17,839

484,887 56,504 * 17,382 524,009

566,409 (2,783) 6,044 557,582

$ 3,940,296 ** $ 91,909 $ 27,995 $ 4,004,210

Beginning Ending

Balance Net Additions Net Deletions Balance

$ 7,292 $ - $ 5,037 $ 2,255

1,138 1,433 702 1,869

8,430 1,433 5,739 4,124

4,395 8 8 4,395

36,339 821 4,892 32,268

48,767 702 8,345 41,124

89,501 1,531 13,245 77,787

2,176 132 - 2,308

16,991 1,600 8,605 9,986

23,424 1,731 - 25,155

42,591 3,463 8,605 37,449

46,910 (1,932) 4,640 40,338

$ 55,340 $ (499) $ 10,379 $ 44,462

* The total Increase and Other Additions for Governmental Activities and Net Deletions for Business-Type Activities includes $18.0

million in assets net of $8.3 million in accumulated depreciation related to the transfer of assets from an Enterprise Fund in FY 2014. See
Footnote 17 - Special Items disclosure for additional information.
** Asrestated. Infrastructure assets were decrease by approximately $1.5 billion due to a correction in the capitalization policy.

B-60




Sate of Maine Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

During the fiscal year, depreciation expense was charged to the following functions in the governmental
activities column of the Statement of Activities for the primary government:

Gowver nmental Activities — Depreciation Expense
(Bxpressed in Thousands)

Amount

Governmental Activities:

Arts, Heritage and Cultural Enrichment $ 16
Business Licensing and Regulation 430
Economic Development and W orkforce Training 1,502
Education 524
Governmental Support and Operations 9,344
Health and Human Services 8,963
Justice and Protection 12,361
Natural Resources Development and Protection 3,569
Transportation Safety and Development 11,427
Total Depreciation Expense — Governmental A ctivities $ 48,136

NOTE 9 - MAINE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

PLAN DESCRIPTIONS

The Maine Public Employees Retirement System, formerly named the Maine State Retirement System (the
System) is a component unit of the State of Maine. Title 5 MRSA C. 421, 423, and 425 authorized the
establishment and administration of the defined benefit plans. The System administers 2 cost sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit plans which provide pension, disability, and death benefits to its members. The State
Employees and Teachers Plan (SETP) is a multiple-employer cost sharing plan with a special funding
situation. The plan covers employees of the State and public school employees (defined by Maine law as
teachers). State of Maine is also a non-employer contributing entity in that the State pays the unfunded
actuarid liability on behalf of teachers, while school districts contribute the normal cost, calculated actuarially,
for their teacher members. The Participating Local Districts Plan (Consolidated PLD) covers employees of
approximately 300 local municipalities and other public entities (Participating Loca Districts, or PLDs) in
Maine, each of which contracts for participation in the System under provisions of the relevant statutes. The
System also administers a closed agent, multiple-employer defined benefit plan (Agent PLD) which covers
PLD’s who previously withdrew from the plan and single employers that could not join the Consolidated PLD
Plan. The System issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes financia
statements and required supplementary information (RSI) for the plan. The June 30, 2014 report may be
obtained from the Maine Public Employees Retirement System, 46 State House Station, Augusta, ME 04333.

The total funds managed by the System are constitutionally restricted and held in trust for the payment of
pension and related benefits to its members. The System’s Board of Trustees, in its fiduciary capacity,
establishes the System’s investment policies and their overall implementation. The System maintains separate
reserves and accounts for each participating entity and performs separate actuarial valuations for each
participating entity’ s respective plan.

The System administers three defined contribution plans for employees of PLD’s that elect to participate. At

June 30, 2014, there were 66 employers participating in these plans. The 914 participants individually direct
the $25.0 million covered by the plans.
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The System also provides group life insurance under a plan administered by a third party insurance company
and invests long-term assets for 2 Retiree Hedlth Insurance Post-Employment Benefits Investment Trust
Funds. Note 10 provides for further disclosure.

BASIS OFACCOUNTING

The System’s financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Pension contributions are
recognized as additions in the period when they become due pursuant to formal commitments or statutory or
contractual requirements. Investment income is recognized when earned. Contributions to defined
contribution plans are recognized in the period they are contributed. Pension benefits and contributions and
premium refunds are recognized as deductions when due and payable in accordance with Statutes. Benefits
payable incurred but not reported are reflected as other liabilities. Distributions from defined contribution
plans are recognized in the period the disbursement is made.

INVESTMENTS

Investments are reported at fair value. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at
estimated fair value. Fair value of shares in common collective trusts is based on unit values reported by the
funds. The fair value of other investments, including private market partnerships, is based on third-party
appraisals and valuations provided by the sponsor of the partnerships. Investment purchases and sales are
recorded as of their trade date. Proceeds related to securities sold not yet purchased are carried as a liability
and adjusted to the fair value of the securities.

CONTRIBUTION INFORMATION
Membership in each defined benefit plan consisted of the following at June 30, 2014:

State
Employees
and Teachers Consolidated Agent Plan

Plan Plan for PLD for PLD
Active vested and nonvested members 39,910 10,848 24
Terminated vested participants 7,571 2,071 14
Retirees and benefit recipients 32,611 8,333 191

Tota 80,092 21,252 229

Number of participating employers 229 286 13
Number of non-employer contributors 1 - -

Contributions from members, employers and non-employer contributors and earnings from investments fund
retirement benefits. Disability and death benefits are funded by employer normal cost contributions and
investment earnings. Member and employer normal cost contributions are each a percentage of applicable
member compensation. Member contribution rates are defined by law or Board rule and depend on the terms
of the plan under which a member is covered. Employers contribution rates are determined by actuaria
valuations.

The Maine Constitution, Maine statutes and the System's funding policy provide for periodic employer
contributions in addition to the normal cost contributions for the SETP. These are actuarialy determined
amounts that, based on certain actuarial assumptions are sufficient to fully fund, on an actuaria basis, the
SETP by the year 2028 (Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) payments). Level percentage of
payroll employer contribution rates are determined using the entry age normal actuaria funding method. The
System aso uses the level percentage of payroll method to amortize the unfunded liability of the State
employee and Teacher Retirement Program. For participating employers in the PLD Agent Plan, the level
percentage of payroll method is also used.

The UAAL rate as applied to State employee members compensation is first established through the annual
valuation process as an amount that will meet the required unfunded actuaria accrued liability payment
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amount; it is then adjusted in the State's budget process to take into account differences in salary growth
projections of the State Budget Office. This adjusted rate, expressed as a percentage of payroll, is the actual
rate paid by the State as payment of the required UAAL payment amount for State employees. For teachers,
the actuarially determined UAAL amount is paid in 12 equal monthly installments. PLD employer contribution
rates are the actuarially determined rates.

Upon termination of membership, members accumulated employee contributions are refundable with interest,
credited in accordance with statute. Withdrawal of accumulated contributions results in forfeiture of all
benefits and membership rights. The annual rate of interest credited to terminated members' accountsis set by
the System’s Board of Trustees and is currently 5 percent.

STATE EMPLOYEES ANDTEACHERSPENSIONPLAN SPECIFICS

The System’s retirement programs provide retirement benefits based on members average final compensation
and creditable service. Vesting occurs upon the earning of five years of service credit or the earning of one
year of service credit immediately preceding retirement at or after normal retirement age. Normal retirement
age for State employees and teachersis age 60, 62 or 65. The normal retirement age is determined by whether
a member had met certain creditable service requirements on specific dates, as established by statute. The
monthly benefit of members who retire before normal retirement age by virtue of having at least 25 years of
service credit is reduced by a statutorily prescribed factor for each year of age that a member is below her/his
normal retirement age at retirement. The System also provides disability and survivor benefits, which are
established by statute for State employee and teacher members, and by contract with other participating
employers under applicable statutory provisions.

PARTICIPATING LOCAL DISTRICTSPLAN SPECIFICS

In the event that a member of the Consolidated PLD Plan withdraws from the System, itsindividual employee-
members can terminate membership or remain contributing members of the Agency PLD plan. The PLD
remains liable for contributions sufficient to fund benefits for its already retired former employee-members;
for its terminated vested members; and for those active employees, whether or not vested, who remain
contributing System members.

SPECIAL FUNDING SITUATION — TEACHERSDEFINED BENEFIT PENSIONPLAN

Prior to fiscal year 2014, the State was legally responsible for contributions to the Teacher Group that covers
retirees of other governmental entities. The State was the sole “employer” contributor for the teachers; and,
therefore, was acting as the employer. Beginning in 2014, the State pays the unfunded actuarial liability on
behalf of teachers, while school districts contribute the normal cost, calculated actuarialy, for their teacher
members.

FUNDED STATUS AND FUNDING PROGRESS-DEFINED BENEFIT PENSIONPLANS

The funded status of each plan as of June 30, 2014, the most recent biennial actuarial valuation date, is as
follows:

(Expressed in T housands)

(@) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) (b-a)/c)
Actuarial UAAL (as a
Accrued Liability Annual percentage
Actuarial (AAL) — Entry Unfunded AAL Funded Covered of covered
Plans Value of Assets Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll payroll)
FETP 10,083,707 12,382,225 2,298,518 81.4% 1,711,516 134.3%
PLD's? 2,415,219 2,649,405 234,186 91.2% 461,243 50.8%

1 combined Agency and Consolidated PLD Plans
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The schedules of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI) following the notes
to the financial statements, present multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial values of plan
assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the AALS for benefits. Additional information as of
the latest actuarial valuation date follows:

SETP PLD's
Valuation date June 30, 2014 June 30, 2014
Actuarial cost method Entry age Entry age
Verson Individual Individual
Amortization method Level percent Level dollar
closed open
Remaining amortization period 14 1 15
Asset valuation method 3 - Year smoothed 3 - Year smoothed
market market

additional recognition
of past invesment
gainsin the asset
smoothing balance
Asset valuation FY 14 37.5%

The Sateisresponsble
for funding all costsfor
itsemployeesand the
UAAL for teachers.
School districts pay the
normal cogsfor

Funding teachers.
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return 7.125% 7.25%
Projected salary increases 3.50% 3.50% - 9.50%
Includesinflation at 3.50% 3.50%
Cost of living adjustments no change 3.12%
Former actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return 7.25% no change
Cogt of living adjustments no change 2.55%
the Sate paid al costs
Funding for Sate employeesand
teachers
Most recent review of plan
experience: 2011 2011

1 The System amortizes the unfunded liability of the State and teacher plan over a closed period that cannot be longer than 31 years from July 1, 1997 but may be, and
at certain times has been, shorter than that period. In 2000, the amortization period was reduced to a 19-year period from June 30, 2000. In 2004, the Legislature
relengthened the period to 25 years, the full extent of the then-remaining Constitutional years for the 2004-2005 biennium, and reshortened the period effective July 1,
2005 to the 13 years that will then remain in the earlier shortened period. In 2005, the State repealed the “sunset” provision, with the result that the period for
reduction of these unfunded actuarial liabilities continues to the full extent permitted by the State constitution, or June 30, 2028. The contribution rate in effect for
2010 was determined by the 2008 valuation, and reflects the relengthened amortization period. The unfunded actuarial accrua liability of the judicial plan is
amortized over aperiod of which 3 years remained at June 30, 2014.
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CONTRIBUTION RATES—DEFINED BENEFIT PENSIONPLANS

The Maine Constitution, Maine Statutes and the System’'s funding policy provide for periodic employer
contributions at actuarially determined rates that, based upon certain assumptions, are expressed as percentages
of annual covered payroll and are sufficient to accumul ate adequate assets to pay benefits when due.

Significant actuarial assumptions used to compute the contribution requirements are the same as those used to
compute the standardized measure of the pension obligation.

Contribution rates' in effect for 2014 for participating entities:

State
Employees 2 7.65 - 8.65%
Employer ? 13.25 - 40.43%
Teachers
Employees 7.65%
Employer 2.65%
Non-enmployer entity 13.03%
Participating Local Entities
Employees 2 3.0- 8.0%
Employer 2 3.4-12.8%

! Employer contribution rates include normal cost and UAAL required payment, expressed as a percentage of payroll.

2 Employer and employee retirement contribution rates vary depending on specific terms of plan benefits for certain classes of employees or, in the case of

participating local districts (PLDs), on benefit plan options selected by a particular PLD. Withdrawn entities' contributions are set in dollar amounts, not as
rates.

ANNUAL PENSIONCOST ANDNET PENSIONOBLIGATION
The State is one of several employers whose employees are System members. The State's net pension
obligation shown at the end of the year includes the pension liability related to its employees and to the UAAL
for the teacher members. The State’s annual pension cost and net pension obligation to the System for the
current year were:
Net Pension Obligation
(Bgpressed in Thousands)

Annual required contribution $ 264,275
Interest on net pension obligation 144
Adjustment to annual required contribution (174)
Annual pension cost 264,245
Contributions made 264,275
Increase (decrease) in net pension obligation (30
Net pension obligation beginning of year 1,989
Net pension obligation end of year $ 1,959

Analysis of Funding Progress
(Bpressed in Thousands)

Annual Net

Pension Percentage Pension
Year Cost Covered Obligation
2014 $ 264,245 100.01% $ 1,959
2013 264,360 100.01% 1,989
2012 252,812 100.01% 2,010

Employer contributions met actuarially determined contribution reguirements.
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COMPONENTUNIT PARTICIPANTS

The Maine Municipal Bond Bank, Maine Maritime Academy, and the Maine Public Employees Retirement
System have defined benefit pension plans. All are participating local entity participants in plans administered
by the Maine Public Employees Retirement System. For financial reporting purposes, employees of the Maine
Community College System, Maine Educational Center for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing, and the Northern
New England Passenger Rail Authority are combined with State employees for retirement benefit purposes and
are included in the pension disclosures of the State.

NOTE 10 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

POST-RETIREMENT HEALTHCARE PLANS

The State sponsors and contributes to two defined benefit healthcare plans. a sole employer plan for its
employees, and county and municipal law enforcement officers and firefighters (First Responders). Each plan
provides medical benefits to eligible retired employees and beneficiaries. Statute prescribes what portion of
health insurance costs are funded by the State.

The State of Maine funds postretirement health care benefits for most retired State employees and legidators,
as authorized by Title 5 MRSA § 285, and for a portion of the premiums for teachers, as authorized by Title
20-A MRSA § 13451. Pursuant to Title 5 MRSA § 285 most retired employees of the Maine Turnpike
Authority, Maine Community College System, Maine Maritime Academy, Maine Public Employees
Retirement System, and Maine Educational Center for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing are eligible to participate
in the health plan but are not funded by the State. Specifically excluded (Title 5 MRSA § 285 1-B) are
members of the Maine Municipa Association, Maine Teachers Association and employees of counties and
municipalities and their instrumentalities, except as provided in subsection 11-A. Title 5 MRSA § 286-M
included retired county or municipal law enforcement officers and municipal firefighters, as defined in
subsection 286-M, who participate in an employer-sponsored retirement plan and, prior to July 1, 2007 were
enrolled in a self-insured health benefits plan offered by the employing county or municipality.

The State pays 100 percent of postretirement health insurance premiums for state employee retirees who were
first employed on or before July 1, 1991. A pro rata portion, ranging from zero percent for retirees with less
than five years participation to 100 percent for retirees with ten or more years of participation, is paid for
eligible individuals first employed after July 1, 1991. Per Title 5 MRSA § 285 paragraphs 2 and 3, coverage
depends upon terms and conditions contained in collective bargaining agreements with the State Health
Commission. Retirees who are not eligible for Medicare retain coverage in the same group health plan as
active employees. Retirees must pay for Medicare Part B coverage to be eligible to participate in the State-
funded Companion Plan. Coverage for retirees ineligible for Medicare includes basic hospitalization;
supplemental major medical and prescription drugs; and costs for treatment of mental health, acoholism, and
substance abuse.

Effective January 1, 2006, the State contribution to retired teacher health premiums was increased to 45
percent of the retiree-only premium. The rate is based on a single rate for single and employee plus children
coverage, or 50 percent of the two party rate for two party and family coverage.

For State employees and teachers, other options exist. Part-time employees are eligible for prorated benefits
with retirees who worked 50 percent or more of full-time hours receiving 100 percent of the benefit. Surviving
spouses and dependents may continue in the plan and pay 100 percent of the premium. Retireesindigible for
a State contribution are alowed to participate and pay the retiree premium.

County and municipal law enforcement officers and municipal firefighters began coverage in Fiscal Y ear 2008
with the State contributing 45 percent of the retiree-only premium of their respective plans. The State’s
premium subsidy is based on the Title 5 MRSA § 285 paragraph 11-A C cost of the retiree’s share of the
individual premium for the standard plan identified and offered under the group health insurance plan in which

B-66




Sate of Maine Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

the retiree enrolls. The State subsidy ends after the retiree is €ligible for Medicare. First Responders are
eligible if they retire after age 50 with 25 or more years of service and receive a retirement benefit from either
the MPERS or a defined contribution plan. If retirees have fewer than 25 years of service, the normal
retirement benefit must be at least 50 percent of final average compensation. Retirees must also participate in
their employer’ s health insurance plan or other fully insured health plan for at least 5 years. Retirees can elect
to participate in the plan at their retirement date. If participation is waived at that time, the retiree is ineligible
to participate at a later date.

The State also administers a fourth defined benefit healthcare plan, (Ancillary Group Plan), which covers two
non-major discretely presented component units.  Under the Ancillary Group Plan, the State acts as the plan
administrator only.

Beginning in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008, each participating employer was required by GASB
Statement 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employer for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions, to disclose additional information with regard to funding policy, the employer’s annual OPEB cost
and contributions made, the funded status and funding progress of the employer's individua plan, and
actuarial methods and assumptions used.

PLAN MEMBERSHIP
Membership in the four healthcare plansis as follows:

State Enployees Teachers First Responders Ancillary Groups

Actives 12,416 27,733 902 77
Retirees 11,056 9,933 87 38
Total 23,472 37,666 989 115
Number of employers 1 2
Contributing entities 1 1 2

STATE EMPLOYEES PLAN FUNDING PoLIcY

Title 5 MRSA § 286-B authorized an Irrevocable Trust Fund for Other Post-employment Benefits to meet the
State’'s unfunded liability obligations for retiree health benefits for dligible participants who are the
beneficiaries of the irrevocable trust fund. Annually, beginning with the fiscal year starting July 1, 2007, the
Legidature shall appropriate funds to meet the State's obligations under any group health plan, policy or
contract purchased by the State Employee Health Commission. Unfunded liabilities may not be created except
those resulting from experience losses. Unfunded liability resulting from experience losses must be retired
over a period not to exceed 10 years. The unfunded liability for retiree health benefits for eligible participants
must be retired in 30 years or less from July 1, 2007.

Public Law 2007, Chapter 240, amended Title 5 Chapter 421 by establishing the Irrevocable Trust for Other
Post-employment Benefits. MPERS holds and invests long-term funds in the irrevocable trust fund. Its
fiduciary responsibilities include setting investment policy in order to fund the plan in accordance with a
projected disbursement schedule that does not begin before the year 2027.
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TEACHERS PLAN AND FIRST RESPONDERS PLAN FUNDING

A special funding situation exists for these plans. The State is statutorily responsible for contributions to the
Teachers Plan and the First Responders Plan that cover the retirees of other governmental entities. The Stateis
the sole contributing entity for Teachers and the primary contributing entity for the First Responders, therefore,
making the contribution on behalf of the employing jurisdictions at a 45 percent level for the current portion of
the health plan costs and are not included in the Trust.

Public Law 2011, Chapter 380 Pt. Y § 2 established separate Irrevocable Trust Funds for Other Post-
employment Benefits to meet the State’s unfunded liability obligations for retiree health benefits for eligible
participants who are the beneficiaries of the irrevocable trust funds. Annually, beginning with the fiscal year
starting July 1, 2011, the Legidature shall appropriate funds to meet the State's obligations to retire the
unfunded liability for eligible first respondersin 30 years or less from July 1, 2007. Public Law 2013, Chapter
368 Pt. H 82 amended the starting date for funding teachers. As amended, annually, beginning with the fiscal
year starting July 1, 2015, the Legislature shall appropriate funds to meet the State's obligations to retire the
unfunded liability at June 30, 2006 for digible teachersin 30 years or less from July 1, 2007.

No implied subsidy is calculated for either plan. The State does not pay for any of the costs of active
employees. The State limited its contribution to 45 percent of the retiree-only premium.

ANCILLARY GROUP PLAN

The following plan, administered by the State, is financially independent and is not included in the State
Retiree Health Internal Service Fund. This multiple-employer agent postemployment benefit plan covers 38
retirees of two non-major component units: Maine Educational Center for the Deaf and Hard of Hearing and
the Northern New England Passenger Rail Authority. All active employees participate in the State Employee
Group Health Insurance Plan. All eligible retired employees who elect coverage are included in this plan. The
State Employee Health Commission establishes premiums annually.

ANNUAL OPEB Cost

Contribution requirements are set forth in statute. The annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost
(expense) for each plan is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents
aleve of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize
any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The State's
annual OPEB cost for the current year and the related information for each plan are as follows:

(BExpressed in Thousands)

First
State Employees Teachers Responders
Annual required contribution $ 99,000 $ 45,000 $ 1,769
Interest on net OPEB obligation 6,000 8,000 186
Adjustment to annual required contribution (13,000) (15,000) (344)
Annual OPEB cost 92,000 38,000 1611
Contributions made 63,228 24,956 593
Increase (decrease) in net healthcare obligation 28,772 13,044 1,018
Net healthcare obligation beginning of year 111,228 185,956 4,644
Net healthcare obligation end of year $ 140,000 $ 199,000 $ 5662
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The annual OPEB cost for the current year, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and
the net OPEB (asset) obligation for each plan are asfollows:

Analysis of Funding Progress
(BExpressed in Thousands)

Annual Percentage Net
Year OPEB of OPEB Cost OPEB
Plan Ended Cost Contributed Obligation
State Employees 6/30/2014 92,000 68.73% 140,000
6/30/2013 87,000 78.16% 111,228
6/30/2012 123,000 59.35% 92,228
Teachers 6/30/2014 38,000 65.67% 199,000
6/30/2013 37,000 67.57% 185,956
6/30/2012 49,000 44.90% 173,956
First Responders 6/30/2014 1,611 36.81% 5,662
6/30/2013 1,563 36.92% 4,644
6/30/2012 1,254 34.61% 3,658
FUNDED STATUS AND FUNDING PROGRESS
The funded status of the plans as of June 30, 2014 was as follows:
(@) (b) (b-a) (alb) (c) (b-a)fc)
UAAL (as a
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarnal Unfunded Annud percentage
Valuation Value of Accrued AAL Covered of covered
Plan Date Assets Liability (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll payroll)
State June 30, 2014 167 1,224 1,057 13.64% 543 194.66%
Enployees June 30, 2013 150 1,166 1,016 12.86% 518 196.14%
(in millions) June 30, 2012 136 1,316 1,180 10.33% 502 235.06%
Teachers June 30, 2014 0 684 684 0.00% 1,106 61.84%
(in millions) June 30, 2013 0 685 685 0.00% 1,194 57.37%
June 30, 2012 0 665 665 0.00% 1,156 57.53%
First June 30, 2013 0 22,369 22,369 0.00% 53,366 41.92%
Responders June 30, 2012 0 23,442 23,442 0.00% 43,510 53.88%
(in thousands) June 30, 2011 0 21,921 21,921 0.00% 42,242 51.89%

Actuaria valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability
of events far into the future, and that actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual
results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The required schedule
of funding progress presented as required supplementary information presents multiyear trend information
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial

accrued liability for benefits.

B-69



Sate of Maine Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS

Projection of benefits are based on the terms of the substantive plan at the time of each valuation and include
types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing of costs between the employer and
plan members to that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and
assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial
value of assets. Significant methods and assumptions were as follows:

State Employees Teachers First Responders
Valuation date June 30, 2014 June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal Entry age normal Entry age normal
Amortization method Level percent Level percent Level percent

closed closed closed

Remaining amortization period - UAAL 23 23 24
Plan changes 30-year fixed 30-year fixed rolling 15 year period
Actuarial (gains) /losses 10-year fixed 15-year fixed rolling 15 year period
Asset valuation method invessment gains and losses n/a n/a

spread over a5 - year period
no less than 80% nor more
than 120% of market value

Actuarial assumptions

Investment rate of return 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
7.25% ultimate 7.25% ultimate
Projected salary increases 3.25% 3.25% 3.5% - 9.5%
Inflation rate 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Healthcare inflation rate initial - actual premiums initial - actual premiums 7.5% at 2014
utimate 5.00% 1 ultimate 5.00% 2 ultimate 5.00% at 2024

Former actuarial assumptions:
Healthcare inflation rate 8.5%in 2011
ultimate 5.00% at 2019

1 T otal premium increases for FY 14 and FY 15 are limited to no more than 1.5 percentage points per year. T he total premium increase for
fiscal yearsending after 6/30/15 islimited to CPI plus 3%.

2 The Sate'stotal cost for retired teachers health insurance premiums for FY 14 and FY 15 isbudgeted at the FY 11 funding level adjusted for
projected membership growth. Theincrease in the Sate'stotal cost for fiscal years ending after June 30, 2015 islimitedto CPI plus 3%.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The State's fiduciary financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Premiums are
recognized when due and benefits are paid when incurred using the accrual basis of accounting. Premium
refunds reduce premium revenue and claims recoveries reduce claims expense. Investment income is
recognized when earned.

CONTRIBUTIONSAND RESERVES

The State Employees Health Insurance Committee establishes contributions to the plan by member employers
and employees annually. Both active and retired members pay the same premium rate. Claims liabilities of
the plan are periodically computed using statistical techniques to establish premium rates. Administrative
costs of the plan are alocated to plan participants.

INVESTMENTS

Investments are reported at fair value. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at
estimated fair value. Fair value of sharesin managed investment pools is based on unit values reported by the
funds. The fair value of other investments, including real estate holdings and mortgage participation
agreements, are based on third-party appraisals and valuations provided by the sponsor of the agreement.
Investment purchases and sales are recorded as of their trade date. Proceeds related to securities sold not yet
purchased are carried as a liability and adjusted to the fair value of the securities.
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POSTRETIREMENT GROUPLIFE INSURANCEBENEFIT PLAN

The Maine Public Employees Retirement System, (the System), is a component unit of the State of Maine. For
financia reporting purposes, the System administers an agent, multiple-employer, defined benefit Group Life
Insurance Plan (GLIP) administered by athird party insurance company in accordance with Title 5 MRSA C.
423 and 425. Members include employees of the State, public school employees (defined by Maine law as
teachers), members of the Judiciary and the Legidlature, that are eligible for membership in the System. Group
life insurance benefits are also provided to employees of approximately 400 local municipalities and other
public entities (Participating Local Districts, or PLDs) in Maine that elect to participate under provisions of the
relevant statutes. The System issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information (RSI) for the plan. The June 30, 2014 report may
be obtained from the Maine Public Employees Retirement System, 46 State House Station, Augusta, ME
04333.

The Plan provides Basic group life insurance benefits, during retirement, to retirees who participated in the
group life insurance plan prior to retirement for a minimum of 10 years. The 10 year participation requirement
does not apply to recipients of disability retirement benefits. The level of coveragein retirement isinitially set
to an amount equal to the retiree’'s average final compensation. The initial amount of Basic group life
insurance benefit is then subsequently reduced at the rate of 15 percent per year to the greater of 40 percent of
the initial amount or $2,500.

Group life insurance funds managed by the System are constitutionally restricted and held in trust for the
payment of benefits to participants or their beneficiaries. The System’s Board of Trustees, in its fiduciary
capacity, establishes the System’ s investment policies and their overall implementation. The System maintains
separate reserves and accounts for each participating entity and performs a single actuarial valuation that
provides separate data for each participating entity.

BASISOF ACCOUNTING

The System'’s financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Premiums paid, by or on
behalf of those covered, are set and collected by the System. The insurance company makes benefit payments.
The System remits payments to the insurance company for premiums collected plus additiona payments
representing administrative fees.

Group life insurance premiums are recognized as additions in the period when they become due. Investment
income is recognized when earned. Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer has
made a formal commitment to provide the contributions. Group life insurance benefits and premium refunds
are recognized as deductions when due and payable in accordance with Statutes. In addition, an estimate is
made for group life insurance death benefits incurred before year end but not reported to the System until after
year end. Group life insurance death benefits incurred but not reported are reflected as other liabilities.

INVESTMENTS

Investments are reported at fair value. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at
estimated fair value. Fair value of sharesin managed investment pools is based on unit values reported by the
funds. The fair value of other investments, including real estate holdings and mortgage participation
agreements, are based on third-party appraisals and valuations provided by the sponsor of the agreement.
Investment purchases and sales are recorded as of their trade date. Proceeds related to securities sold not yet
purchased are carried as a liability and adjusted to the fair value of the securities.

FUNDING PoLIcY

Premium rates are those determined by the System’'s Board of Trustees to be actuarialy sufficient to pay
anticipated claims and cover administrative costs. For State employee, legislative and judicial classes, the
premiums for retiree life insurance coverage are factored into the premiums paid for Basic coverage while
participants are active members. The State remits premiums at a single rate that supports basic coverage for
active and retired State employees. This rate is 63 cents per month for every $1,000 of coverage. Premiums
for retiree life insurance coverage for retired teachers are paid by the State based on a rate of 33 cents per
$1,000 of coverage per month during the post-employment retirement period.
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Contribution requirements are set forth in statute. The annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) cost
(expense) for each plan is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an
amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents
aleve of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize
any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The State's
annual OPEB cost for the current year and the related information for each plan are as follows:

Annual required contribution
Interest on net OPEB obligation

Adjustment to annual required contribution

Annual OPEB cost
Contributions made

Increase (decrease) in net healthcare obligation

Net healthcare (asset) obligation beginning of year

Net healthcare (asset) obligation end of year

(Bpressed in Thousands)

State

Employees

Teachers

4,768
(136)
128

3,440

4,760
4,199

3,440
3,440

561
(1871)

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

(1,310)

B|r B|P Pl v P

The State’s OPEB cost, percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB obligation

are as follows:

Analysis of Funding Progress
(Expressed in T housands)

Year
Plan Ended
State Employees  6/30/2014
6/30/2013
6/30/2012

Teachers 6/30/2014
6/30/2013
6/30/2012
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Annual Percentage Net
OPEB of OPEB Cost OPEB
Cost Contributed (Asset)

4,760 88.21% (1,310)
4,562 102.43% (1,871)
3,224 145.29% (1,760)
3,440 100.00% -
3,099 100.00% -
2,959 100.00% -
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FUNDED STATUS AND FUNDING PROGRESS
The funded status of the plan as of June 30, 2014 was as follows:

(Boressed in Thousands)
(a) (b) (b-a)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

(alb) ©) (b-a)fc)

Actuarial UAAL (as a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Annual percentae
Valuation Value of Liability AAL Covered of covered

Plan Date Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll payroll)
State June 30, 2014 31,800 87,300 55,500 36.43% 563,500 9.85%
Enmployees June 30, 2013 27,000 83,800 56,800 32.22% 572,800 9.92%
June 30, 2012 24,700 80,900 56,200 30.53% 553,500 10.15%
June 30, 2014 45,100 75,600 30,500 59.66% 666,200 4.58%
Teachers June 30, 2013 36,000 74,200 38,200 48.52% 652,800 5.85%
June 30, 2012 30,100 71,000 40,900 42.39% 630,800 6.48%

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability
of events far into the future, and that actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual
results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The required schedule
of funding progress presented as required supplementary information presents multiyear trend information
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial

accrued liability for benefits.
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ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS

Projection of benefits are based on the terms of the substantive plan at the time of each valuation and include
types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing of costs between the employer and
plan members to that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and
assumptions that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial
value of assets.

Significant methods and assumptions were as follows:

Valuation date June 30, 2014
A ctuarial cost method Entry age normal
Amortization method Level percent
open
Asset valuation method market

A ctuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 7.25% PLD's all others 7.125%
Projected salary increases 3.5% - 10.50%
Inflation rate 3.50%

Cost of living increases in life benefits N/A
Participation percent for future retirees 100.00%

Form of benefit payment lump sum

Former actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return 7.25% for all plans

NOTE 11 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

The State records its liability for general obligation bonds in the Governmental Activities column on the
Statement of Net Position. Other long-term obligations recognized by the State include: revenue bonds issued
by the Maine Governmental Facilities Authority, a blended component unit; obligations under Certificates of
Participation and other financing arrangements; loans payable to component unit for repayment of bonds
issued by the Maine Municipal Bond Bank on behalf of the Maine Department of Transportation and the
Healthcare Liability Retirement Fund; compensated employee absences; and the State's net pension obligation;
other post-employment benefits; and obligations for pollution remediation and landfill closure and post-closure
care costs.

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

Programs for which the State issues general obligation bonds include: adaptive equipment loan programs;
environmental cleanup and protection; highway and transportation related projects; agricultural and small
business job creation; and acquisition, construction, and renovation of major capital facilities including State
parks and historic sites. Genera obligation bonds are secured by the full faith and credit of the State. Debt
service requirements are provided by legidative appropriation from the State's general tax revenues and are
repaid in annual installments beginning not more than one year after issuance.
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Changesin general obligation bonds of the primary government during fiscal year 2014 were:

Primary Government - Changes in General ObligaBionds

(Bpressed in Thousands)

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1,2013 Additions Retirements June 30, 2014 Orem Ye
CGeneral Obligation Debt:
General Fund $ 261,495 $ 112,945 $ 67,445 $ 306,995 $ 65670
Special Revenue Fund 108,230 - 16,035 92,195 15,275
Total $ 369,725 $ 112,945 $ 83,480 $ 399,190 $ 80945

Debt service requirements (principal and interest) for al outstanding general obligation bonds of the primary
government, from June 30, 2014 until maturity, are summarized in the following table:

Future Debt Service on General Obligation Bonds
(Bpressed in Thousands)

Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Total
2015 $ 80,945 $ 15589 $ 96534
2016 65,635 13,344 78,979
2017 60,400 10,972 71,372
2018 54,290 8,619 62,909
2019 43,885 6,374 50,259
2020 - 2024 94,035 11,216 105,251
Total $ 399,190 $ 66,114 $ 465,304
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General fund, special revenue and other general obligation bonds issued and outstanding at June 30, 2014 are
asfollows:

Primary Government — General Obligation Bonds Cartding
(Bxpressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Maturities

Amounts Outstading First Last Interest
Issued June 20, 2014 Year Year Rates
General Fund:
Series 2004 $ 117,275 $ - 2005 2014 2.00% - 5.27%
Series 2005 137,525 15,310 2006 2015 2.00% - 5.27%
Series 2006 52,390 10,470 2007 2016 4.00% - 5.51%
Series 2007 33,975 10,185 2008 2017 4.00% - 5.50%
Series 2008 46,525 18,600 2009 2018 3.00% - 5.13%
Series 2009 96,035 43,545 2011 2019 2.50% - 5.00%
Series 2010 31,755 11,670 2011 2020 1.41% - 4.00%
Series 2011 86,010 46,375 2012 2021 1.625% - 5.00%
Series 2012 49,265 37,895 2013 2022 1.00% - 5.00%
Series 2014 112,945 112,945 2015 2024 0.20% - 5.00%
Total General Fund $ 306,995
Special Revenue Fund:
Series 2004 $ 13,000 $ - 2005 2014 2.00% - 4.00%
Series 2007 27,000 8,100 2008 2017 4.00% - 5.50%
Series 2008 57,550 23,020 2009 2018 3.00% - 5.13%
Series 2009 37,310 23,120 2011 2019 2.50% - 5.00%
Series 2010 25,080 22,475 2011 2020 1.41% - 4.00%
Series 2011 22,125 15,480 2012 2021 1.625% - 5.00%
Total Special Revenue $ 92,195

AUTHORIZED UNISSUEDBONDS

Any bonds not issued within five years of the date of ratification may not be issued after that date. Within two
years after expiration of the five-year period, the Legislature may extend, by a majority vote, the five-year
period for an additional five years or may deauthorize the bonds. If the Legidature fails to take action within
those two years, the bond issue shall be considered to be deauthorized and no further bonds may beissued. At
June 30, 2014, general obligations bonds authorized and unissued totaled $127.0 million.

REVENUE BONDS OF THEM AINE GOVERNMENTAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

The State included $187.2 million in other financing arrangements to reflect revenue bonds issued by the
Maine Governmental Facilities Authority (MGFA), a blended component unit. Payment of the bonds is
subject to, and dependent upon, biennial appropriations being made by the State Legislature. Debt issued by
MGFA is not debt of the State or any political subdivision within the State. The State is not obligated for such
debt, nor is the full faith and credit of the State pledged for such debt. MGFA may not issue securities in
excess of $347.8 million outstanding, at any one time, except for the issuance of certain revenue refunding
securities.
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During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, MGFA issued Series 2014A Bonds, which totaled $10.1 million at
an interest rate of 1.98 percent. A portion of the 2014A bonds totaling $4.6 million were used to in-substance
defease $4.5 million in certain maturities of outstanding 2002 and 2003 bonds with an average interest rate of
4.75 percent. The net proceeds of approximately $4.6 million, after payment of underwriting fees and other
issuance costs, were used to purchase U.S. government securities which will provide for al future debt service
payments on the defeased bonds. The economic benefits associated with the refunding inure to the lessee. The
Authority reduced its aggregate debt service payments and the lessee's aggregate debt service payments by
approximately $0.3 million over the next nine years, resulting in an economic gain to the lessee of
approximately $0.3 million. At June 30, 2014, the remaining balance of in-substance defeased bonds total
approximately $4.5 million.

CERTIFICATES OFPARTICIPATION AND OTHER FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

The State uses financing companies, Certificates of Participation (COP's), and lease/purchase agreements to
finance construction of certain State buildings, to purchase or generate software, and to purchase equipment
and vehicles, including school buses. COP's are issued through a trustee, and the State is responsible for
payments to the trustee that approximate the interest and principal payments made to the certificate holders.
The State and school districts maintain custody and use of the assets;, however, the trustee holds a lien as
security until such time as the certificates are fully paid.

Neither COP's nor the other financing arrangements constitute a legal debt, liability, or contractual obligation
in excess of amounts appropriated. The State’ s obligation to make minimum payments or any other obligation
under agreements is subject to, and dependent upon, appropriations being made by the Legidature. The
Legidature has no obligation to appropriate the money for future minimum payments or other obligations
under any agreement.

SHORT-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The State of Maine issued and retired $65 million of Bond Anticipation Notes during fiscal year 2014. Short-
term obligations are used to meet temporary operating cash flow needs. At June 30, 2014 there were no
outstanding Tax Anticipation Notes or Bond Anticipation Notes.

OTHERLONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

In general, expenditures and fund liabilities are not recorded in governmental funds for long-term obligations
until amounts owed are “due and payable.” Fund liabilities are recorded in the proprietary funds when
obligations are incurred. In the Statement of Net Position, the State has recorded long-term obligations for its
compensated employee absences, net pension obligation, other post-employment benefit obligations, pollution
remediation landfill closure and post-closure care costs.
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Changes in other long-term obligations for governmental and business-type activities for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2014, are summarized asfollows:

Primary Government - Changes in Other Long-Termnidgabibns
(Bxpressed in Thousands)

Governmental Activities:
MGFA Revenue Bonds
COP's and Other Financing
Compensated Absences

Claims Payable
Capital Leases

Loans Payable to Component

Unit

Net Pension Obligation
Other Post-Employment

Benefit Obligation

Pollution Remediation and Landfill
Tota Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities:

Compensated Absences
Other Post-Employment

Benefit Obligation

Total Business-Type Activities

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2013 Additions Reductions June 30, 2014 OnerYea
$ 199,910 $ 10,055 $ 22,790 $ 187,175 $ 19,205

47,938 94,052 35,180 106,810 33,333

41,712 7,769 5,969 43,512 6,236
70,464 191,217 191,932 69,749 28,103

38,975 1,888 5,648 35,215 5,571
304,045 193,816 24,885 472,976 45,333
1,989 264,245 264,275 1,959 -
298,061 129,218 87,081 340,198 -
32,132 953 5,400 27,685 -

$ 1,035,226 $ 893,213 $ 643,160 $ 1,285,279 $ 137,781
$ 1,380 $ 322 $ 1,058 $ 128
3,767 2,209 1,512 4,464 -

$ 5,147 $ 2,209 $ 1,834 $ 5,522 $ 128

Debt service requirements (principal and interest) for COP s and other financing arrangements of the primary
government, from June 30, 2014 until maturity, are summarized as follows:

Future Debt Service on MGFA Rewvenue Bonds, COPUsCther Financing Arrangements
(Expressed in Thousands)

Governmental Funds

Internal Service Funds

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2015 $ 21,850 $ 88 $ 21,938 $ 30,688 $ 8,098 $ 38,786
2016 20,987 69 21,056 29,709 7,147 36,856
2017 20,157 37 20,194 27,278 6,190 33,468
2018 1,038 9 1,047 22,701 5,299 28,000
2019 - - - 21,515 4,479 25,994

2020 - 2024 - - - 49,237 14,407 63,644

2025 - 2029 - - - 31,310 7,090 38,400

2030 - 2034 - - - 17,515 1,550 19,065

2035 - 2039 - - - - - -
Totd $ 64,032 $ 203 $ 64,235 $ 229,953 $ 54,260 $ 284,213
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LOANSPAYABLE TO COMPONENTUNIT

The State of Maine has pledged various revenue streams, as security for Grant Anticipation Bonds (GARVEE)
and Transportation Infrastructure Revenue Bonds (TransCap) issued by the Maine Municipa Bond Bank
(MMBB) on behalf of the Maine Department of Transportation to provide financing for qualified
transportation projects.

In 2014 the State of Maine pledged the profit from the Alcoholic Beverages Enterprise Fund as security for
$220.6 million ($193.8 million net of the debt service reserve) of bonds issued by MMBB. The bonds are
special, limited obligations of the MMBB. The proceeds of the bonds were used for the purpose of making
payments to health care providers for services provided prior to December 1, 2012 under the MaineCare
program. A Due To Other Special Revenue Fund from the Alcoholic Beverages Enterprise Fund was recorded
for $183.5 million.

Changesin GARVEE, TransCap and Liquor revenue bonds during fiscal year 2014 were:
Primary Government - Changes in GARVEE, TransCaplagquor Revenue Bond Payable
(Bxpressed in Thousands)

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1,2013 Additions Retirements June 30, 2014 Orer Ye

Loans Payable to Components Unit:

Federal Funds $ 95,960 $ - $ 12,713 $ 83247 $ 13137
Special Revenue Fund 208,085 193,816 12,172 389,729 32,196
Total $ 304,045  $193816 $ 24885 $ 472976 $ 45333

Payment of principal and interest on the GARVEE bonds shall be subject to appropriation each year by the
Legidature in an amount sufficient to cover the principal and interest requirements of MMBB's debt for these
bonds. The State's receipt of these funds is subject to continuing federal appropriations. MMBB insured
payments of principal and interest with a financial guaranty insurance policy. The bonds do not constitute a
debt or abligation of the State.

Principal and interest on TransCap bonds are payable solely from pledged revenues, pledged rights, and
pledged TransCap funds and accounts. Pledged revenues include certain motor vehicle registration and other
fees, a portion of excise tax on gasoline and other special fuel, and certain amounts required to be transferred
from the Highway Fund. All pledged revenues are required to be transferred to the TransCap Fund. The bonds
do not congtitute a debt or liability of the State.

Payment of principal and interest on the Liquor bonds shall be made solely from the profit of the Alcoholic
Beverages Enterprise Fund. The bonds do not constitute a debt or obligation of the State.
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GARVEE, TransCap and Liguor Revenue bonds issued and outstanding at June 30, 2014 are as follows:

GARVEE, TransCap and Liquor Revenue Bonds Outstandi
(Bxpressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Maturities

Amounts Outstanding First Last Interest
Issued June 30, 2014 Year Year Rates
Federal Funds:
Series 2004 $ 483% % 10,410 2005 2015 2.50% - 5.00%
Series 2008 50,000 31,690 2009 2020 3.25% - 4.00%
Series 2010A 25,915 16,175 2011 2017 2.00% - 5.00%
Series 2010B 24,085 24,085 2018 2022 4.52% - 5.32%
Total Federal Funds $ 82,360
Special Revenue Fund:
Series 2008 $ 50,000 $ 37,205 2009 2023 3.00% - 5.50%
Series 2009A 105,000 80,890 2010 2023 2.50% - 5.00%
Series 2009B 30,000 26,635 2010 2024 2.00% - 5.00%
Series 2011A 55,000 53,130 2012 2026 2.00% - 5.00%
Series 2013 220,660 220,660 2015 2024 1.07% - 4.35%
Total Special Revenue Funds $ 418,520

Total principal and interest requirements over the life of the 2004 GARVEE bonds are $60.2 million, with
annual requirements of up to $5.5 million; for the 2008 GARVEE bonds total principal and interest
requirements are $63.1 million, with annual requirements of up to $5.2 million; for 2010 GARVEE bonds total
principal and interest requirements are $66.3 million, with annual requirements of up to $5.6 million. Federal
transportation funds received by the State for the federal fiscal year preceding the issuance of the 2004
GARVEE bonds totaled $175 million. Total federa highway transportation funds received in federa fiscal
year 2014 were $211 million. Current year payments to MMBB for GARVEE bonds were $16.0 million (7.6
percent of federal highway transportation funds received).

Total principa and interest requirements over the life of the 2008 TransCap Revenue Bond are $71.9 million,
with annual requirements up to $4.8 million. Tota principal and interest requirements over the life of the
2009A TransCap Revenue Bonds are $144.3 million, with annua requirements up to $10.2 million; for the
2009B TransCap Revenue Bonds total principal and interest requirements are $46.2 million, with annual
requirements up to $15.9 million. Tota principa and interest requirements over the life of the 2011A
TransCap Revenue Bond are $84.2 million, with annua requirements up to $20.3 million. Tota revenue
received for revenue sources used as pledged revenues were $38.6 million in fiscal year 2014.

Total principal and interest requirements over the life of the Liquor Operation Bond are $273.8 million, with
annual requirements up to $26.8 million. There were no principal payments paid to MMBB for the Liquor
Operation Bond in fiscal year 2014.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER CAPITAL LEASES

The State leases various assets under non-cancelable leasing arrangements. Leases that congtitute rental
agreements are classified as operating leases; the resulting expenditures are recognized as incurred over the
lease term. Leases that are comparable to purchases are classified as capital |eases.
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In the government-wide and proprietary fund statements, assets and liabilities resulting from capital leases are
recorded at lease inception. The principa portion of lease payments reduces the liability; the interest portion is
expensed.

Most leases have cancellation clauses in the event that funding is not available. For reporting purposes, such
cancellation clauses are not considered because the likelihood that they will be exercised is considered remote.
Some lease agreements include renewal or purchase options. The effect of such options is reflected in the
minimum lease payments only if it is considered reasonably assured that an option will be exercised. Because
the accounting treatment for installment purchase agreements is similar, such agreements are reported with
capital leases.

Leases that exist between the State and the Maine Governmental Facilities Authority (MGFA), a blended
component unit, are not recorded as leases in this report. In their separately issued financial statements,
MGFA records a lease receivable from the State. Although payables and receivables technically exist between
these parties, when combined for government-wide reporting, they are eliminated. A long-term liability exists
on the government-wide statements for the bonds issued by MGFA to construct the assets associated with the
leases. Future paymentsto MGFA are, therefore, not included in the schedule of Iease commitments below.

At June 30, 2014 capital assets include capitalized buildings of $74.1 million in Governmenta Activities, net
of related accumulated depreciation of $42.7 million.

OBLIGATIONS UNDER OPERATING L EASES

The State is obligated under certain leases, accounted for as operating leases, in the proprietary funds.
Operating leases do not give rise to property rights or lease obligations, and therefore assets and liabilities
related to the lease agreements are not recorded in the State’s financia statements. Rental expense incurred
under operating |eases totaled $2.8 million during the year.

A summary of the operating and non-cancelable capital lease commitments to maturity follows:
Future Minimum Lease Payments
Capital and Operating Leases

(Bxpressed in Thousands)

Capital Operating

Fiscal Yea Leases Leases
2015 $ 5576 $ 3298
2016 5,030 2,655
2017 4,666 2,069
2018 4,569 1,668
2019 3,830 1,446
2020 - 2024 11,198 3,674
2025 - 2029 3,885 823
2030 - 2034 1,658 580
2035 - 2039 - 548
2040 - 2044 - 628
2045- 2049 - 721
2050 - 2054 - 414
Total Minimum Payments 40,412 $ 18,524
Less: Amount Representing Interest 5,197

Present Value of Future Minimum Payments $ 35215
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MGFA REVENUE BONDS, COP’S AND OTHER FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

MGFA revenue bonds will be liquidated by the MGFA Internal Service Fund, from revenues received through
lease agreements with various governmental funds. The liability for loans payable to the component unit will
be liquidated from the Federal Fund and Highway Fund. The vast mgjority of COP's and other financing
arrangements will be liquidated by the internal service fund in which the leases are recorded; the General and
Highway Funds will pay relatively small amounts.

CLAIMS PAYABLE

Claims payable that represent Medicaid claims will be paid from the General Fund and Federal Fund. Claims
payable that represent workers' compensation and retiree/femployee health will be liquidated by the applicable
governmental and internal service funds that account for the salaries and wages of the related employees. Other
claims and judgments attributable to governmental activities will be liquidated by the General Fund and related
specia revenue funds.

COMPENSATEDABSENCES

In the government-wide statements and proprietary fund financial statements, compensated absences are
reported as long-term liabilities as required by GASB. In the governmental fund financial statements, vested
or accumulated leave is reported as an expenditure and fund liability when incurred upon retirement,
termination or death. Sick and vacation payments made to terminated employees as of June 30, 2014 but paid
after the fiscal year end is aso reported in the funds.

COMPONENTUNITS

Bonds payable of the discretely presented component units are legal obligations of the component units and are
not general obligations of the State. The following table summarizes bonds outstanding for selected material
balances of discretely presented component units, as reported in their separately issued financial statements,
utilizing their respective fiscal year-ends:

Component Unit Bonds Outstanding
(Bxpressed in Thousands)

Component Unit Interest Rates Amount Matur ity Dates

Finance Authority of Maine 1.00% 1,400 2014 — 2025
Maine Community College System 3.0-5.0% 23,296 2014 - 2037
Maine Health and Higher

Educational Facilities Authority 1.25-6.0% 973,110 2014 - 2040
Maine Municipa Bond Bank 5-6.12% 1,636,960 2014 - 2044
Maine Sate Housing Authority 0.70 - 5.55% 1,273,628 2014 — 2042
Maine T urnpike Authority 2.0 - 6.0% 448,795 2014 — 2042
University of Maine System 2.0 - 5.0% 165,113 2014 — 2037

In periods of declining interest rates, MHHEFA has refunded its bond obligations, reducing aggregate debt
service. The proceeds of the refunding bonds were principally used to purchase U.S. Government securities
that will provide for future payment on the debt. At June 30, 2014 there were approximately $118.0 million of
in-substance defeased bonds remaining outstanding with respect to all advance-refunding issues within the
reserve fund resolution.

On May 23, 2013, UMS issued $65.3 million in revenue bonds to currently refund $10.8 million in revenue
bonds and to advance refund $61.3 million in revenue bonds. UMS completed the refunding to reduce its total
debt service payments over the following 22 years by $10.5 million and to obtain economic gain (difference
between the present values of the old and new debt service payments) of $7.5 million. The principal amount of
debt refunded through in-substance defeasance was $72.0 million. The amount ill outstanding at June 30,
2014 was $48.3 million. Refunding proceeds of $77.0 million were placed in an escrow account to pay the
interest due on the refunded bonds and to retire the bonds on their respective maturity dates which range from
fiscal year 2013 through fiscal year 2015. The escrow is invested to yield enough earnings to pay required
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future payments, which are $50.6 million as of June 30, 2014. The refunding resulted in a deferred amount of
refunding of $3.9 million which represents the difference between the reacquisition price and the carrying
value of the refunded bonds. The unamortized portion of the deferred amount on refunding is $3.7 million at
June 30, 2014. Thisamount isincluded in deferred outflows.

In periods of declining interest rates, MMBB has refunded certain of its bond obligations, reducing aggregate
debt service. Where allowed, the bank retires outstanding bonds prior to their contractual maturity. In other
cases, the proceeds of the refunding bonds were principally used to purchase U.S. Government securities that
will provide for future payment on the debt. The U.S. Treasury obligations are deposited with the trustees of
the in-substance defeased bonds. At June 30, 2014 the remaining balances of the General Tax-Exempt Fund
Group in-substance defeased bonds total approximately $132.9 million.

For the period ended December 31, 2013, MSHA redeemed prior to maturity $435.1 million of its Mortgage
Purchase Fund Group bonds from surplus revenues and the proceeds of refunding bonds. Mortgage Purchase
Fund losses of $0.7 million were attributed to recognition of the bond discount and debt issuance expenses
associated with the redeemed bonds.

The following table summarizes debt service requirements for outstanding bonds of the discretely presented
component units:

Component Units Principal Maturities
(Bgressed in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Ending FAME MMBB MCCS MSHA MTA uMs MHHEFA
2015 $ 807 $ 122,825 $ 649 $ 29,360 $ 17,820 $ 7,741 $ 51,505
2016 58 136,407 671 35,965 18,655 7,837 46,515
2017 58 130,604 698 42,485 19,445 8,140 46,835
2018 59 127,434 729 51,215 20,365 9,122 46,765
2019 59 126,805 756 47,690 21,315 8,557 47,855
2020 - 2024 307 534,115 4,305 246,845 80,410 41,749 242,925
2025 - 2029 52 312,821 5,440 322,300 102,540 35,105 216,200
2030 - 2034 - 79,510 6,488 243,470 81,975 32,055 161,210
2035 - 2039 - 8,125 2,947 220,285 44,660 4,136 100,655
2040 - 2044 - 3,575 - 35,975 15,950 - 12,645
2045 - 2049 - 560 -
Net unamortized premium
or (deferred amount) - 54,179 613 (1,962) 25,660 10,671

Total Principal Payments  $ 1,400 $1,636,960 $ 23,296 $1,273,628 $ 448,795 $ 165,113 $ 973,110
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NOTE 12 - SELF-INSURANCE

A. RISK MANAGEMENT

The State maintains several types of insurance plans and accounts for them in two funds that are combined for
financia statement purposes as the Risk Management Fund. The Risk Management Division provides
insurance advice and services to State governmental agencies. The State-Administered Fund offers similar
services to quasi-governmental entities.  Statute requires the Sdf-Insurance Fund to be replenished by
appropriation if the fund balance drops below $1 million. The State-Administered Fund balance has no similar
provision; however, statutes prevent it from being used for any purpose other than providing insurance
services.

Insurance plans offered include property, vehicle, boat and aircraft, tort, civil rights, employee bonds, police
professionals, and a variety of other insurance products. These plans have limits of liability of as much as $2
million per occurrence.

In some cases the State purchases excess insurance to limit the State's liability for insured events. For
example, coverage for property damage is $400 million per occurrence. The State retains $2 million of this
risk per occurrence. A private insurance carrier covers the remaining risk (excess insurance). Settled claims
have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Coverage, risk retention, and excess insurance amounts for major types of insurance are listed below:

Coverage Risk Retention  Excess Insurance

Typeof Insurance Per Occurrence  Per Occurrence Per Occurrence
Property * $400 million $ 2 million $400 million
Ocean M arine Boat Liability ** 10 million 10 thousand 10 million
Boiler and M achinery * 150 million 2 million 150 million
Generd Liability Including

Employ ment Practices 400 thousand 400 thousand none
Police Professionals 400 thousand 400 thousand none
Vehicular Liability 2 400 thousand 400 thousand 600 thousand
Bonding 500 thousand 500 thousand none
Foster Parents 300 thousand 300 thousand none
Inland M arine (various policies) 500 thousand 500 thousand none
Aircraft Liability*3 3 million none 3 million

* These lines of insurance have commercial excess insurance covering |osses above the risk retention amount up to the per
occurrence amount listed. All other insurance programs are wholly self-insured.

1$10 million is the maximum limit for per occurrence coverage. Some agencies have chosen $400 thousand.
2Excessinsuranceis only for out of state travel.

3$3 million is the maximum limit for per occurrence coverage. Some agencies have chosen $500 thousand.

The plan funds the cost of providing claims servicing and claims payment by charging a premium to each
agency based on areview of past |osses and estimated losses for the current period.

All risk-financing liabilities are reported when it is probable that aloss has occurred and the amount of the loss
can be reasonably estimated. Claims liabilities represent the estimated cost of claims as of March 31, 2014.
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This cost of claims includes case reserves, the development of known claims, and the direct administrative
expenses for settling specific claims.

Claims liabilities are determined on an actuarial basis. Biennia re-evaluation occurs to take into consideration
recently settled claims, the frequency of claims, and other economic and social factors. Because actual claims
liabilities depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and damage awards, the
process used in computing claims liability does not necessarily result in an exact amount.

At March 31, 2014 and 2013, the present value of the claims payable for the State’s self-insurance plan was
estimated at $4.3 million and $4.0 million, respectively. The actuary calculated this based on the State' srate on
investments.

Risk Management Fund
Changes in Claims Payable
(Bxpressed in Thousands)

2014 2013
Liability at Beginning of Year $ 4,032 $ 3770
Current Year Claims and
Changes in Estimates 1,706 686
Claims Payments 1,444 424
Liability at End of Year $ 4294 $ 4,032

As of June 30, 2014, fund assets of $26.1 million exceeded fund liabilities of $4.6 million by $21.5 million.
The portion of this amount that may be reserved for catastrophic losses has not been determined.

B. UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE

The State is self-insured for unemployment compensation. As a direct reimbursement employer, the State
recognizes al costs for unemployment compensation as claims are paid. These costs totaled $1.3 million for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.

C.WORKERS COMPENSATION

Workers' Compensation is accounted for in an Internal Service Fund. Interfund premiums are treated as quasi-
external transactions. Each State agency is charged a premium based on the number of employees to be
covered plus an added amount to reduce the unfunded liability. The Legidature, Legidative Council, and Law
Library employees are self-insured for workers' compensation purposes. The State assumes the full risk of all
claimsfiled for workers compensation.
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Claims liabilities are actuarially determined based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims, including future
clam adjustment expenses that have been incurred but not reported and claims reported but not settled.
Because actual claims liabilities depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and
damage awards, the process used in computing claims liability does not necessarily result in an exact amount.
Claims liabilities are re-evaluated periodically to take into consideration recently settled claims, the frequency
of claims, and other economic and social factors.

The balance of claims liabilities as of June 30, 2014:
Workers’ Compensation Fund

Changes in Claims Payable
(Bporessed in Thousands)

2014 2013
Liability at Beginning of Year $ 43847 $ 42113
Current Year Claims and
Changes in Estimates 9,311 11,069
Claims Payments 8,409 9,335
Liability at End of Year $ 44,749 $ 43847

Based on the actuarial calculation as of June 30, 2014, the State is liable for unfunded claims, and incurred but
not reported claims, of approximately $54.1 million. The discounted amount is $44.7 million and was
calculated based on a 3.0 percent interest rate on investments.

D.EMPLOYEEHEALTH INSURANCE

The employee health and retiree health insurance programs are accounted for in two Internal Service Funds.
The State became self insured for employee and retiree health care coverage on July 1, 2003. A stop loss
agreement with Aetna provides catastrophic coverage for individual claims exceeding $500 thousand.

The State retained third-party administration (TPA) services for claims administration, utilization review, and
case management services. Premium equivalents are paid to the TPA based upon rates established with the
technical assistance of the plan’s consulting actuary.

There are two primary health plans available. POS Il is a point-of-service plan available to al active
employees and retirees not eligible for Medicare. Smart Value is a Medicare Advantage plan available to
Medicare €eligible retirees. Total enrollment averaged approximately 37,800 covered individuals. This total
includes 30,000 active employees and dependents and 7,800 Medicare retirees and dependents.

Claims expenses are recorded when premiums are paid to the claims servicing contractor. At the end of the
period, the total of these premium payments are compared with the actual claims paid and claims expense is
adjusted for any overage or shortage with an offsetting receivable or liability recorded. For the period ending
June 30, 2014 the State recorded areceivable of $6.9 million for an overpayment of health care premiums.
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Expenses and liabilities for incurred but not reported claims, based on an actuarial analysis of clam lag
pattern, have been recorded as liabilities in the amount of $20.7 million. Changes in the Employee Health
Insurance and Retiree Health Insurance claims liability for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 follows (in
thousands):

Employee Retiree
Health Fund Health Fund

Liability at Beginning of Year $ 16939 $ 5,646
Current Year Claims and

Changes in Estimates 154,540 25,660
Claims Payments 155,949 26,130
Liability at End of Year $ 15530 $ 5176

The table above reflects actua activity of the employee health and retiree health insurance programs. In
accordance with GASB Statement No. 45, certain costs reported above were reclassified for financia
statement purposes. Retiree healthcare costs of $48.3 million were reclassified from the internal service fund
to the OPEB Trust Fund, a fiduciary fund. Additionally, $15.0 million of active employee healthcare costs
was reclassified from the internal service fund to the OPEB Trust Fund to reflect age-adjusted claims.

NOTE 13 -JOINT VENTURES

Joint ventures are independently constituted entities generally created by two or more governments for a
specific purpose. The State of Maine participates in two separate joint venture arrangements. the Tri-State
Lotto Commission (Commission) and the Multi-State Lottery Association (MUSL).

Tri-State Lotto Commission

The Commission was established in 1985 pursuant to passage into law of the Tri-State Lotto Compact by the
States of Maine, New Hampshire, and Vermont. The Commission is authorized and empowered to promulgate
rules and regulations regarding the conduct of lottery games, including ticket prices, prizes, and the licensing
of agents under Title 8 MRSA C. 16.

The Commission is composed of one member from each of the participating states. Each member State's
commission appoints one of its members to serve on the Commission and each member holds office at the
pleasure of his or her appointing authority. The Commission annually elects a chairman from among its
members. The Commission designated that 50 percent of its sales revenue be reserved for prize awards and
agent bonuses.

A prize award liability is established when the winning ticket number is selected. If no winning ticket is
selected, the available jackpot is carried over to the following drawing. The Tri-State L otto Compact requires
that prizes not claimed within one year from the date of the drawing be forfeited. All expired unclaimed prizes
are credited to future prize pools. The Commission funds its jackpots through annuity contracts purchased
from insurance companies and U.S. Government Treasury Strips.

A proportional share of revenues and expenses are alocated to each State based on ticket sales made by each
State. Exceptions are the facility's management fee, which is based on a contracted percentage of operating
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revenue that varies from State to State, per diem charges, advertising, and certain printing, travel, and
miscellaneous costs, which are allocated based on actual charges generated by each state.

The Tri-State Lotto Commission financial report for fiscal year 2014, which may be obtained from the Bureau
of Alcoholic Beverages and Lottery Operations, 8 State House Station, Augusta, ME 04333-0008, includes
the following selected financia information:

Tri-State Lotto Commission
(Bpressed in Thousands)

Current Assets $ 15777
Noncurrent Assets 33,794
Total Assets $ 49,571
Current Liabilities $ 13,165
Long-term Liabilities 26,634
Total Liabilities 39,799
Designated Prize Reserves 4,346
Reserve for Unrealized Gains 5,426
Total Net Position 9,772
Total Liabilities and Net Position $ 49571
Total Revenue $ 56,123
Total BExpenses 37,658
Allocation to M ember States 18,465
Change in Unrealized Gain on Investments Held for Resale (1,381)
Change in Net Position $ (1,38])

Multi-State Lottery Association

The Maine State L ottery became a member of the Multi-State Lottery Association (MUSL) in July 2004. The
MUSL currently has 36 member State lotteries, including the District of Columbia and the United States
Virgin Islands. The MUSL is managed by a board of directors, which is comprised of the lottery directors or
their designee from each of the party States, and authorized to initiate, promulgate, administer and carry out
one or more lottery product offerings that will enhance the participating parties’ |ottery revenue.

Participating lotteries sell Powerball tickets, collect al revenues, and remit prize funds to the MUSL, net of
lower tier prize awards. The operating costs of the board are divided equally among all of the participating
lotteries. Jackpot prizes payable in installments are satisfied through investments purchased by the MUSL.
The MUSL purchases US government obligations which are held in irrevocable trusts established by the
MUSL for the benefit of participating State lotteries. Each week the MUSL allocates 50 percent of salesto the
prize pool. If no winning ticket is selected, the available jackpot is carried over to the following jackpot
drawing.
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The Multi-State Lottery Association’s financia report for fiscal year 2014 which may be obtained from the
Bureau of Alcoholic Beverages and Lottery Operations, 8 State House Station, Augusta, ME 04333-0008,
includes the following selected information:

Multi-State Lottery Association
(BExpressed in Thousands)

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 469,342
Investments in US Government Securities 69,335
US Government Securities Held for Prize Annuities 140,912
Due from Party Lotteries 15,717
Patent, net of accumulated amortization 10,140
Other Assets 705
Total Assets $ 706,151
Amount Held for Future Prizes $ 552,055
Grand Prize Annuities Payable 141,057
Other Liabilities 2,836

695,948
Net Position, Unrestricted 10,203
Total Liabilities and Net Position $ 706,151
Total Revenue $ 3170
Total Expenses 4,991
Excess of revenue over expenses (1,821)
Net Position, beginning 12,024
Net Position, ending $ 10,203

NOTE 14 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

The State of Maine entered into memoranda of understanding with the Wells National Estuarine Research
Reserve Management Authority, a jointly governed organization, through the Bureau of Parks and Lands.
These agreements outline each entity’s responsibilities in relation to the operation of the Reserve and the
management of the property included within the boundaries of the Reserve. The Authority’s responsibilities
are generaly to manage the Reserve consistent with the Wells National Estuarine Research Reserve
Management Plan dated 2013 to 2018.

COMPONENTUNITS

The State provided appropriations and grant monies to the following discretely presented component units:
University of Maine System, $224.2 million; Maine Community College System, $64.2 million; Maine
Municipal Bond Bank, $43.0 million; Finance Authority of Maine, $11.0 million; and Maine State Housing
Authority, $14.2 million.
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FAME administers severa revolving loan funds on behalf of the State of Maine. FAME recorded these funds,
which total $29.7 million at June 30, 2014, as a liability in Amounts Held Under State Revolving Loan
Programs in their fiduciary financial statements. The state reports the asset as a receivable in the Specid
Revenue Fund. During fiscal year 2014, the State expended $2.6 million to FAME for State revolving loan
funds. The State also transferred $1 million from its Loan Insurance Reserves to FAME. |n fiscal year 2014,
State statute required FAME to return $1 million of the Loan Insurance Reserves. As of June 30, 2014, $1
million was owed to the State.

Title 20-A MRSA Chapter 419-A established the Maine State Grant Program as a fund under the jurisdiction
of the Finance Authority of Maine. All grant revenues under this fund must be distributed by FAME to
students who mest the eligibility requirements for a grant under this chapter. During fiscal year 2007, the
NextGen College Savings grant funds and the Maine State Grant funds were pooled into the new State of
Maine Grant. FAME paid approximately $5.8 million in grants to the University of Maine System (UMS) on
behalf of eligible students. The UMS reflected these as grant revenues from the State.

The Maine Turnpike Authority (MTA) pays the State for services rendered by the Maine State Police (MSP).
MSP has a separate troop responsible for patrolling the Maine Turnpike. MTA pays all costs associated with
that troop. For fiscal year 2014, the amount billed totaled $6.0 million.

NOTE 15 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

LITIGATION

The State of Maine, its units, and its employees are parties to numerous legal proceedings, many of which are
the result of normal governmental operations. In the opinion of the Attorney General and other legal counsel
representing the State, in al of the cases listed, the State or its agencies or employees have valid defenses.
Certain cases have the potential for ligbility in excess of $1 million. Evenif liability is found, the State should
not expect to pay out the full amounts being sought against it in all of the cases. In any given case, however,
the State could incur alarge judgment.

Aldrich v. LePage. This matter involves the provision of home- and community-based servicesto persons with
intellectua disabilities and/or autism. The case is before the Superior Court of Maine. The case has just been
settled. It will cost the State more than $1 million in the provision of services.

John F. Murphy Homes v. Sate of Maine (Me. Superior Court). The claim is in the amount of $7+ million for
payments allegedly due for educational services over the last dozen years. Discovery is ongoing. We estimate a
low-medium chance of losing more than $1 million.

In various lawsuits, Plaintiffs seek damages in excess of $1 million against the State or against State officials,
and various notices of claim also specify damages in excess of $1 million where no lawsuit has been filed. In
none of these lawsuits, in the view of the Attorney General, is there any reasonable possibility that the State's
liability could reach or exceed $1 million. Therefore, these suits have not been individualy identified.

Numerous workers' compensation claims are now pending against various State agencies. Since most claims
involve the possibility for significant long-term damages, and since the test for demonstrating a causal
relationship between the employment and the illness or injury is not asrigorous asin ordinary civil cases, these
cases involve the possibility of significant liability for the State. Since possible damages include future
medical costs and wage replacements for the employee (and in some cases spouse), it is difficult to estimate
the total potential liability to the State.

All other legal proceedings are not, in the opinion of management after consultation with the Attorney General,
likely to have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the State.
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ENCUMBRANCES

Encumbrances are reported in the restricted, committed, and assigned fund balances of the governmental
funds. General fund, highway fund, federal fund, other specia revenue fund and other governmental funds
balances are $28.2 million, $2.3 million, $115.0 million, $23.6 million and $1.8 million, respectively.

FEDERAL GRANTS

The State receives significant financial assistance from the federal government. The receipt of grants is
generally dependent upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements and applicable federal
regulations, including the expenditure of resources for allowable purposes. Grants are subject to the Federal
Single Audit Act. Disalowances by federal officials as a result of these audits may become liabilities of the
State. The amount of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor agencies cannot be determined at this
time.

POLLUTION REMEDIATION

The Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) and Department of Transportation (DOT) have pollution
remediation obligations as defined by Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 49.
The State’s total amount of pollution remediation obligation as of June 30, 2014 is $20.3 million. Superfund
sites account for approximately $9.4 million. Superfund is the federal government program to clean up
hazardous waste sites.

The following are Superfund sites for which the State has recorded a liability for pollution remediation
activities:

Eastland Woolen Mill — The State recorded a liability for pollution remediation activities of approximately
$1.1 million. Currently the State shares the costs with Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) in a cost-
sharing ratio of 10 percent State, 90 percent EPA. Beginning in September of 2018, the State will assume 100
percent of the operation and maintenance and long-term monitoring costs.

Eastern Qurplus — The State recorded a liability for pollution remediation activities of approximately $1.4
million. Beginning in August of 2012, the State assumed 100 percent of the operation and maintenance and
monitoring costs. As of June 30, 2014 the State has received $2 million in recoveries from the Department of
Defense. The State expectsto recover additional costs of $321 thousand.

Callahan Mine — The State recorded a liability for pollution remediation activities of approximately $6.9
million. Currently the State shares the costs with EPA in a cost-sharing ratio of 10 percent State, 90 percent
EPA. The State will assume 100 percent of the cost for the operation and maintenance of the site.

The State recorded a liability for pollution remediation activities of approximately $11.5 million (net of
unrealized recoveries of $671 thousand) related five uncontrolled hazardous substance sites. The State expects
to recover $2.9 million in costs. The Uncontrolled Hazardous Substance Sites Program was created in
response to the threats and potential threats to human heath and the environment posed primarily by
abandoned hazardous waste sites. The Uncontrolled Hazardous Substance Sites program is the State's
equivalent to the Federal Superfund Program.

The State has the knowledge and expertise to estimate the remediation obligation based on prior experience in
identifying and funding similar remediation activities. The standard requires the liability to be measured
using the expected cash flow technique. The remediation obligation estimates are subject to change over time.
Cost may vary due to price fluctuations, changes in technology, changes in potential responsible parties, results
of environmental studies, changes to statues or regulations and other factors that could result in revisions to
these estimates. Prospective recoveries from responsible parties may reduce the State’ s obligation.
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MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE L ANDFILLS

Dolby Landfills — On September 16, 2011 the State entered into an agreement with Katahdin Paper Company
(KPC) to acquire the Dolby Landfill, a solid waste disposal facility, located in the Town of East Millinocket.
The State, as a holder of the permits, is responsible for closure and post closure monitoring and maintenance
activities and costs.

The State will recognize a portion of the estimated total current cost of closure and postclosure care as an
expense and a liability on the Statement of Activities and Statement of Net Position, respectively, in each
period that the landfill accepts solid waste. The $7.4 million reported as landfill closure and postclosure care
liability at June 30, 2014, represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on the use of 94 percent of
the estimated capacity of the landfill. The State will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and
postclosure care of $465 thousand as the remaining estimated capacity is filled. Based on estimated annual
disposal volumes of 500 cubic yard to 1,000 cubic yards per year, the estimated remaining landfill life would
be 400 to 800 years. Actua costs may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology or changes in
applicable laws or regulations.

Cost-Sharing Program — Title 38 M.R.S.A., 81310-F establishes within the Department of Environmental
Protection (DEP) a cost-sharing program for the closure and remediation of municipal solid waste landfills that
pose an actual or potential hazard to the environment and public health.

The State has an obligation to provide cost sharing for remediation and closure activities to municipalities;
however this obligation is subject to the availability of funds approved for that purpose. Until fiscal year 2013,
there was no solid waste funding available to reimburse municipalities for closure or remediation activities. In
2013, a fee on disposal of Construction and Demolition Debris (CDD) earmarked for landfill closure and
remediation came into effect under 38 MRSA §2203-A for these obligations as discussed below. The fee
effective January 1, 2013 was $1.00 per ton of CDD and doubled to $2.00 effective January 1, 2014. In fiscal
year 2014, during which both rates applied, the CDD fee generated $530 thousand. A full year of that fee at
$2.00 per ton is expected to generate $770 thousand.

Regarding landfill closures, changes per PL 2011, ¢.544 to landfill legislation at 38 MRSA §1310-F(1-B)(E)
extended DEP's obligation to reimburse 75% of landfill closure expenses at municipa landfills that incur
eligible closure costs until 2015. In fiscal year 2014, $203 thousand was reimbursed to municipalities for
closure expenses. As of the end of fiscal year 2014, the DEP has received applications from four municipalities
and has a total outstanding obligation, after fiscal year 2014 payments, of $5.2 million in closure expenses.
This closure obligation will increase in fiscal year 2015 as one landfill is still undergoing closure construction
and will incur additional costs and several other municipalities have landfills that will be €ligible for
reimbursement of closure costs if they elect to close by the 2015 deadline.

Regarding landfill remediation, under the law the State is obligated to pay up to 90% of the cost of remediation
for threats posed by municipal landfills to the public health and the environment after closure. Remediation
expenses are ongoing and have no specific timeframe. In fiscal year 2014, $256 thousand was reimbursed to
municipalities in remediation expenses. As of the end of fiscal year 2014, the DEP obligation for remediation
expenses after fiscal year 2014 payments, total $2.6 million. In light of ongoing investigations at closed
landfills that show additional work is necessary and the increasing frequency of residential development near
closed municipal landfills, the State’ s obligation for landfill remediation is expected to increase.

As of June 30, 2014, the DEP's total landfill closure and remediation obligation to municipalities is $7.8
million. A full year of the CDD fee at $2.00 per ton is estimated to generate $770 thousand, indicating that at
the current funding rate and obligation, it will take approximately 10 year for the DEP to fully fund its closure
and remediation obligation. However, the financial obligation is expected to increase as additiona eligible
landfills close prior to the 2015 deadline; and as remediation expenses at closed landfills continue, extending
thistimeline for repayment.
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SAND AND SALT STORAGE PROGRAM

The State estimates the potential aggregate cost to comply with the environmental requirements associated
with the Sand and Salt Storage program to be $6.4 million. This consists of approximately $2.1 million for
State-owned facilities and approximately $4.3 million for the State’s share, under a cost sharing arrangement,
for municipal facilities.

POLLUTION ABATEMENT PROGRAM

Title 38 MRSA § 411, § 411-A, 8 412 establishes within DEP cost-sharing programs for pollution abatement
projects. Subject to funding by the Legislature and the approva of the Commissioner, the State may
contribute to the planning of municipal pollution abatement facilities; the design, engineering and construction
of private, commercial and municipal pollution abatement facilities; and make payments to the Maine
Municipal Bond Bank to supply the State's share of the revolving loan fund established by Title 30-A §6006-
A. During the 2014 fiscal year, $5.6 million of genera obligation bond funds were expended for pollution
abatement projects. As of June 30, 2014, amounts encumbered for pollution abatement projects totaled $620
thousand; and genera obligation bonds authorized for these projects, but not yet encumbered or expended,
totaled $320 thousand. As of June 30, 2014, DEP estimated the total cost (federal, State, and local) of future
projectsto be $1 hillion.

GROUNDWATER OIL CLEAN-UP FUND

The Ground Water Oil Clean-up Fund is established in Title 38 MRSA 8§ 569-A. Fund activities include, but
are not limited to, providing insurance to public and private entities for cleanup of oil spills. The program is
funded by a per barrel assessment on petroleum products imported into the State. Coverage is up to $1 million
per occurrence for both aboveground and underground storage tanks. Third party injury coverage may not
exceed $200 thousand per claimant.

A report to the legidature dated February 15, 2007, submitted by the Maine Department of Environmental
Protection (DEP), identified 359 long-term remediation sites as of January 2007 that are covered by the
insurance program. As of August 28, 2007 there were 377 sites on the long-term remediation priority list.
Since it is not possible for the DEP to estimate the cost of remediation, the State has not accrued a liability in
the financial statements.

CONSTRUCTIONCOMMITMENTS

A portion of the payment that is made to municipalities for General Purpose Aid to Loca Schoolsis alocated
for debt service. Although the outstanding indebtedness for school construction projects is debt of the
municipalities, the State subsidizes 46.8 percent of the annual payments. As of June 30, 2014, outstanding
commitments by municipalities for school bond issues that are eligible for State subsidy totaled $904.3
million.

At June 30, 2014, the Department of Transportation had contractual commitments of approximately $182.8
million for construction of various highway projects. The State’'s share of that amount is expected to be
approximately $40.3 million. Of these amounts, $5.2 million has already been accrued. Federa and State
funds plus bond proceeds are expected to fund these future expenditures.

TOBACCOSETTLEMENTS

On November 23, 1998, Maine along with 45 other states and six civil jurisdictions (collectively known under
the MSA as the "Settling States'), entered into a Master Settlement Agreement (MSA) with certain
Participating Tobacco Manufacturers (PM’s). The MSA is a settlement of lawsuits brought by many States
againgt the four largest tobacco companies alleging multiple counts of misconduct and claiming punitive and
compensatory damages, including a claim for all the State's Medicaid costs caused by or related to tobacco use.
The MSA includes provisions to annually compensate the State for smoking-related Medicaid costs and to
impose marketing and advertising restrictions on PM's to protect public health. In this settlement, the PM’s
agreed, among other things, to make annual payments to the states and jurisdictions based on their allocable
share of the market. In return, the states agreed to relinquish claims to further damages resulting from, among
other things, Medicaid costs. Annual payments fluctuate subject to various adjustments and are partially
contingent on the passage and enforcement of a State statute imposing economic conditions related to the
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State's public health claims on the Nonparticipating manufacturers (NPM’s) in the form of an annua escrow
payment due from each NPM with in-state sales. The NPM Adjustment is set forth in the Master Settlement
Agreement (MSA). If the PM’s claim an NPM Adjustment for a given year and prove that they lost market
share to the NPM’s and it is determined that the MSA was a significant factor contributing to that lost market
share then an NPM Adjustment ‘shall apply’ unless a Settling State passed a qualifying statute and ‘ diligently
enforced’ that statute. In effect this means that the Allocated Payment to a Settling State that diligently
enforced will not be reduced, but a Settling State that did not diligently enforce its qualifying statute will be
subject to areduction in its payment due to the NPM Adjustment. NPM Adjustment Due to the provisions of
the MSA, a State that is found not to have diligently enforced its qualifying statute may lose up to its entire
annual payment amount due to the NPM Adjustment for a given year.

The NPM Adjustment may be claimed each year and has been claimed for each completed calendar year since
2003. Freguently PM's claim entitlement to the NPM Adjustment and either withhold the amount from their
annual payments, or place the amount in what is known as a 'disputed payment account'. Each year beginning
in 2003 Maine's annual payments have been lower than calculated because many of the PMs have claimed
entitlement to the NPM Adjustment and either withheld money or routed it to the disputed payments account.
For the year 2003, the Adjustment claimed by the PM's, and calculated as set forth in the MSA, was
approximately 18 percent of the total amount paid by the PM's and distributed among the Settling States.
However, the total amount related to the NPM Adjustment to which the PMs are entitled is dependent on the
number of non-diligent states.

In addition, in the MSA, the PM’s agreed to pay $8.6 billion in Strategic Contribution Payments (SCP) to
certain states and jurisdictions as compensation for their contribution to the overall settlement. Maine's share
of this total amount is approximately $114 million. Maine will receive this amount through ten annual SCP
payments starting in 2008. In April 2014, Maine received a total of $56.4 million including both the annual
payment amount and the strategic contribution amount.

ESCHEATPROPERTY

The State Abandoned Property Statute requires the deposit of certain defined and unclaimed assets into a state-
managed Abandoned Property Fund (Private Purpose Trust Fund). The State Statute provides that whenever
the cash balance of the fund exceeds $500 thousand at fiscal year-end, the excess must be remitted to the
General Fund whereit isreported as operating transfers from other funds. At June 30, 2014, the Fund included
$4.6 million of securities not yet liquidated that were not subject to transfer to the General Fund. Net
collections from inception (1979) to June 30, 2014 of approximately $200.6 million represent a contingent
liability to the State since claims for refund may be filed by the owners of such property.

A liability representing the probable amount of escheat property that will be reclaimed and paid to claimants
and other third parties is reported in the Fund. To the extent that the assets in the Fund are less than the
claimant liability, a receivable (due from other funds) is reported in that Fund and an equal liability (due to
other funds) is reported in the General Fund. At June 30, 2014, the amount reported in the Fund for claimant
liability is$29.1 million. The General Fund shows a $24 million payable to the Escheat Fund.

CONSTITUTIONAL OBLIGATIONS

The State of Maine's constitutional obligations represent nonexchange financial guarantees, as defined by
GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial Guarantees. The
State acts as the guarantor for these ongoing insurance and loan programs operated by 2 discrete component
units. The Finance Authority of Maine's mission covers commercial financing and loan insurance to Maine
businesses and assistance to Maine students and their parents to finance costs of attendance at institutions of
higher education. Maine State Housing Authority’s mission encompasses loans to Maine veterans and
members of Indian tribes or reservations. Details of the nonexchange financial guarantees are provided below.

Article 9, § 14-A, C, and D of the Maine State Constitution provides that the State may insure the payment of
mortgage loans for industrial, manufacturing, fishing, agricultura and recreational enterprises; mortgage loans
for the acquisition, construction, repair and remodeling of houses owned or to be owned by members of two
tribes on severa Indian reservations, and mortgage loans to resident Maine veterans of the Armed Forces of

B-94



Sate of Maine Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

the United States, including loans to a business organization owned in whole or in part by resident Maine
veterans. The aggregate of these obligations, at any one time, may not exceed $90 million, $1 million, and $4
million, respectively. At June 30, 2014, loans outstanding pursuant to these authorizations are $74.4 million,
less than $1 million, and less than $1 million, respectively. The State has not paid, nor does it expect to pay,
any amounts as a result of these authorizations as of June 30, 2014.

Article 8, § 2, of the Maine State Constitution provides that the State may secure funds, through the issuance of
bonds authorized by the Governor, for loans to Maine students attending institutions of higher education. The
amount of bonds issued and outstanding shall not at any one time exceed $4 million in the aggregate. At June
30, 2014, no bonds were outstanding. The State has not paid, nor does it expect to pay, any amount as a result
of this authorization as of June 30, 2014.

MORAL OBLIGATIONS

The State of Maine, through statute, enables certain Authorities to establish capital reserve funds. These funds
may be used to secure a variety of financial undertakings including the issuance of bonds. The minimum
amount of the capital reserve fund may be determined by statute or set by the Authority. The statutes may aso
limit the amount of debt that may be secured by the capital reserve funds, and allow the Authority to issue debt
that is not secured by these funds.

On or before December first of each year, the Authority is required to certify to the Governor the amount, if
any, necessary to restore any capital reserve fund to its required minimum. If there is a shortfall, the Governor
is required to pay first from the “Contingent Account” the amounts necessary for restoration. The Governor
shall certify any remaining unpaid amounts to the Legidature, which is then required to appropriate and pay
the remaining amounts to the Authority during the then-current State fiscal year.

These moral obligations are not considered to be “full faith and credit” obligations of the State, and voter
approval of the underlying bonds is not required. No capital reserve fund restorations have been made in the
current or previous years.

The following summarizes information regarding outstanding moral obligations:

Mor al Obligation Bonds
(Bxpressed in Thousands)

Required Obligation
Bonds Debt Debt
Issuer Outstanding Reserve Limit Legal Citation
Maine Health and Higher Educational
Facilities Authority $ 973,110 $ 86,316 no limit 22 MRSA § 2075
Finance Authority of Maine 38,043 - $ 642,000 10 MRSA §1032, 1053

- - 50,000 20-A MRSA §11449
- - 50,000 38 MRSA §2221

Loring Development Authority * - - 100,000 5 MRSA §13080-N
Maine Municipal Bond Bank 1,269,716 148,529 no limit 30-A MRSA 86006
Maine Educational Loan Authority * 132,635 13,848 225,000 20-A MRSA 811424
Maine Sate Housing Authority 1,275,590 98,147 2,150,000 30-A MRSA 84906
Total $ 3,689,094 $ 346,840

* Reported in combining non-major component unit financial statements.
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COMPONENTUNITS

CONSTRUCTIONCONTRACTS
At June 30, 2014, UMS had outstanding commitments on uncompleted construction contracts that totaled $9.2
million.

At June 30, 2014, MCCS had $5 million remaining in construction commitments primarily to improve existing
academic buildings.

At December 31, 2013, the Maine Turnpike Authority had $19.5 million remaining in on outstanding
construction projects for improvements and maintenance.

MORTGAGECOMMITMENTS

Mortgage commitments are agreements to lend provided there is no violation of any term or condition of the
agreement. Generally, once exercised, the loans made under the terms of such commitments are secured by a
lien on the related property and other collateral as deemed necessary. At December 31, 2013 Maine State
Housing Authority (MSHA) had outstanding commitments to originate multi-family loans of approximately
$24.0 million.

MSHA, under its single-family program, enters into purchase agreements to lenders to purchase mortgage
loans. At December 31, 2013, single-family loans being processed by lenders totaled $18.1 million.

INSUREDL OAN COMMITMENTS

The Finance Authority of Maine (FAME) insures loans made by financial institutions to qualifying businesses
under various insurance programs. FAME is contingently liable for the insured portion of payments due on
these loans. At June 30, 2014, FAME had insurance outstanding for commercial loans under the Loan
Insurance Program totaling approximately $101.3 million. At June 30, 2014, FAME was insuring loans with
an aggregate outstanding principle balance approximating $4.7 million which were 90 or more days
delinquent. The aggregate insured balance of these loans was approximately $2.7 million at June 30, 2014. In
addition, FAME has entered into commitments to insure loans at some future date. At June 30, 2014, these
commitments under the Loan Insurance Program were approximately $8.5 million.

NOTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

In September 2014 the State issued $38.1 million of Bond Anticipation Notes which mature in June 2015.

On November 14, 2014, the Maine Municipal Bond Bank issued $44.8 million of GARVEE grant anticipation
revenue bonds on behalf of the Maine Department of Transportation. The bonds bear interest rates from 2.0%
to 5.0%, and maturities from 2015 to 2026. The bonds are secured by future receipt of federal transportation
funds, subject to continuing federal appropriations of those funds. The bonds do not constitute a debt or
obligation of the State.

COMPONENTUNITS

Through March 20, 2014, Maine State Housing Authority (MSHA) redeemed at par $65.2 million of bondsin
the General Mortgage Purchase Bond Resolution. On February 27, 2014, MSHA issued, at par $51.6 million
of bondsin the General Mortgage Purchase Bond Resolution.

On July 24, 2014, Maine Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority issued series 2014A reserve

resol ution tax-exempt bonds in the amount of $43.2 million with an average interest rate of 4.43%. A portion
of the bonds was used to in-substance defease $47.6 million of outstanding reserve fund maturities within the
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1997B, 1998C, 2003A, 2003D and 2004A reserve bond series. The net proceeds of approximately $48.0
million were used to purchase U.S. Government securities that will provide for al future debt service
payments on the defeased bonds. The economic benefits associated with the refunding inure to the respective
institutions.

NOTE 17 - SPECIAL ITEMS

Pursuant to Public Law 2011, Chapter 649 Part A, the Marine Ports Enterprise Fund was converted to an Other
Specia Revenue Fund. Accordingly, the State transferred balances totaling $9.7 million from the Marine Ports
Enterprise Fund to the Other Special Revenue Fund. These transfers are recorded as Specia Items in the
Proprietary Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position ($9.7 million), the
Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances ($59 thousand), and
the Entity-wide Statement of Activities ($9.7 million).

Pursuant to Public Law 2013, Chapter 269, the State of Maine authorized the Maine Municipal Bond Bank
(MMBB) to issue Liguor Operation Revenue Bonds on behalf of the State for the purpose of making payments
to healthcare providers for services provided prior to December 1, 2012 under the Maine Care program. These
bonds were secured by the State of Maine's pledge of the profits from the Alcoholic Beverages Enterprise
Fund and the proceeds were deposited into the Health Care Liability Retirement Fund, an Other Special
Revenue Fund. The resulting loans payable to MMBB is recorded as aliability in the Governmental Activities
column in the Statement of Net Position. The transfer of the future pledged profits from the Enterprise Fund to
reduce this liability is recorded as a Special Itemin the Proprietary Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance and the Statement of Activitiesfor $183.5 million.
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STATE OF MAINE

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014
(Expressed in Thousands)

General Fund

Highway Fund

Original Variance with Original Variance with
Budget Final Budget Actual Final Budget Budget Final Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues
Taxes $ 2924349 $ 2929821 $ 2976515 $ 46,694 $ 210,011 211,815 $ 217,503 $ 5,688
Assessments and Other 95,956 97,666 100,317 2,651 88,699 89,384 90,202 818
Federal Grants 1,594 1,987 1,988 1 - - - -
Service Charges 41,118 47,767 48,564 797 6,314 6,045 6,204 159
Income from Investments 78 133 469 336 122 53 80 27
Miscellaneous Revenue 67,570 66,949 70,871 3,922 2,712 8,066 3,692 (4,374)
Total Revenues 3,130,665 3,144,323 3,198,724 54,401 307,858 315,363 317,681 2,318
Expenditures
Governmental Support and Operations 259,663 261,184 253,172 8,012 37,206 38,011 34,760 3,251
Economic Development & Workforce Training 32,230 32,138 31,656 482 - - - -
Education 1,422,651 1,424,825 1,409,592 15,233 - - - -
Health and Human Services 1,108,521 1,143,735 1,103,755 39,980 - - - -
Business Licensing & Regulation 1,562 4,210 4,200 10 - - - -
Natural Resources Development & Protection 69,493 68,681 66,450 2,231 33 33 33 -
Justice and Protection 302,144 308,239 288,890 19,349 25,927 25,742 24,103 1,639
Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment 7,664 7,668 7,405 263 - - - -
Transportation Safety & Development - - - - 242,357 297,516 287,295 10,221
Total Expenditures 3,203,928 3,250,680 3,165,120 85,560 305,523 361,302 346,191 15,111
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (73,263) (106,357) 33,604 139,961 2,335 (45,939) (28,510) 17,429
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating Transfers Net (81,105) (83,401) 21,934 105,335 - (5,096) 17,969 23,065
Proceeds from Pledged Future Revenues
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses) (81,105) (83,401) 21,934 105,335 - (5,096) 17,969 23,065
Excess of Revenues and Other Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures
and Other Uses $  (154,368) $  (189,758) $ 55538 $ 245296  $ 233§ (51,035) $ (10,541) $ 40,494
Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 190,661 58,774
Fund Balances at End of Yeal $ 246,199 $ 48,233
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Federal Funds

Other Special Revenue Fund

Original Variance with Original Variance with
Budget Final Budget Actual Final Budget Budget Final Budget Actual Final Budget
-8 -3 -3 - $ 293,507 $ 292,826 288,785 $ (4,041)
4 4 - (4) 171,172 180,115 158,057 (22,058)
3,236,042 3,541,143 2,761,743 (779,400) 11,373 11,448 9,707 (1,741)
434 435 352 (83) 205,083 231,839 219,650 (12,189)
- - 9 9 1,196 1,201 324 877)
5,553 5,479 9,406 3,927 363,832 363,366 293,198 (70,168)
3,242,033 3,547,061 2,771,510 (775,551) 1,046,163 1,080,795 969,721 (111,074)
6,293 8,819 5,432 3,387 138,349 148,300 138,174 10,126
112,064 142,932 97,372 45,560 46,145 50,654 38,115 12,539
279,940 291,457 193,762 97,695 38,334 45,670 38,208 7,462
2,464,369 2,606,691 2,100,903 505,788 734,559 746,890 674,891 71,999
244 20: 101 102 76,735 77,908 66,931 10,977
53,739 60,741 36,134 24,607 126,263 141,952 84,538 57,414
148,699 153,579 45,550 108,029 43,249 49,753 38,929 10,824
3,258 3,669 2,726 943 1,861 1,942 838 1,104
192,685 283,304 198,839 84,465 53,305 119,671 73,351 46,320
3,261,291 3,551,395 2,680,819 870,576 1,258,800 1,382,740 1,153,975 228,765
(19,258) (4,334) 90,691 95,025 (212,637) (301,945) (184,254) 117,691
(76,353) (77,137) (89,158) (12,021) (11,864) (11,703) (112,259) (100,556)
220,035 275,035 230,884 (44,151)
(76,353) (77,137) (89,158) (12,021) 208,171 263,332 118,625 (144,707)
(95611) $ (81,471) $ 1,533 $ 83,004 $ (4,466) $ (38,613) (65,629) $ (27,016)

15,174 255,342

$ 16,707
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STATE OF MAINE

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

(Expressed in Thousands)

Fund Balances - Non-GAAP Budgetary Basis

Basis Differences
Revenue Accruals/Adjustments:

Taxes Receivable
Intergovernmental Receivables
Other Receivables
Inventories
Due from Component Units
Due from Other Funds
Other Assets
Unearned Revenues
Deferred Inflows - Taxes and Assessment Revenues
Deferred Inflows - Unearned Revenue from Enterprise Fund

Total Revenue Accruals/Adjustments

Expenditure Accruals/Adjustments:
Accounts Payable
Due to Component Units
Accrued Liabilities
Taxes Payable
Intergovernmental Payables
Due to Other Funds
Total Expenditure Accruals/Adjustments

Fund Balances - GAAP Basis

General Fund

Highway Fund

Federal Funds

Special
Revenue Fund

$ 246,199 $ 48,233 $ 16,707 $ 189,713
209,068 778 - 9,982
- - 256,452 -
42,756 2,650 65,140 64,027
2,048 - 689 -
1,000 25 40,330
16,854 21,690 9,796 398,336
1,759 55 330 214
- (4,916) (689) -
(213,232) (731) (722) (27,314)
- - - (183,482)
60,253 19,526 331,021 302,093
(145,594) (16,705) (232,871) (17,829)
(2,293) (1,618) (1,597) (321)
(20,352) (7,414) (6,817) (9,701)
(194,055) 8) - -
(12,972) - (73,598) -
(146,622) (4,224) (23,554) (47,682)
(521,888) (29,969) (338,437) (75,533)
$  (215436) $ 37,790 $ 9,291 $ 416,273
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NOTES TOREQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY REPORTING

Statutory/Budgetary Presentation

In accordance with statute, the Governor presents a biennial budget for the General Fund and special revenue
funds to the Legidature for enactment or revision. Effective November 27, 1995, a State Constitutional
Amendment provided the Governor a “line item” veto of dollar amounts, allowing a dollar substitution for
those amounts disapproved, as long as an appropriation or alocation is not increased (or a deappropriation or
deallocation decreased) either in the specified line or in any other line in the legislative document. Another
Constitutional Amendment requires the State to fund at least 90 percent of the annual cost of future mandates
imposed on local governments; any exception requires a two-thirds vote of the elected members of the House
and Senate.

Once passed and signed, the budget becomes the financial plan for the next biennium. It includes proposed
expenditures for al departments and agencies, interest and debt redemption charges, and expenditures for
capital projects to be undertaken and executed during each fiscal year. The budget also includes anticipated
revenues and any other means of financing expenditures. The State Budget Officer is required to use the
revenue projections of the Revenue Forecasting Committee in preparing the General Fund and Highway Fund
budgets.

Exceptional circumstances do not apply to new programs or program expansions that go beyond existing
program criteria and operation.

Detailed budgetary control is maintained at the program and line category level a which appropriations and
alocations are approved by the Legidature, principaly through a quarterly allotment system. The State
Budget Officer and the Governor must approve budget revisions during the year, reflecting program changes
or intradepartmental administrative transfers. Except in specific instances, only the Legislature may transfer
appropriations between departments. Increases in appropriation, alocation, or funding for new programs are
presented to the Legislature as a supplemental budget or separate pieces of legidation. For the year ended June
30, 2014, the legislature increased appropriations to the General Fund by $26.3 million.

Governmental funds use encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other
commitments for the expenditure of funds are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation or
alocation. Unencumbered appropriations in the General Fund and Highway Fund lapse at June 30 unless, by
law, they are carried forward to a subsequent year. In the State's accounting system, amounts carried forward
are shown as reservations of fund balance. For financial statement purposes, unless amounts would create
deficits, fund balance is classified based on existing resources, if any, which will liquidate the encumbrances
outstanding at June 30 (shown as restrictions, commitments or assignments of fund balance).

The State's budget is prepared primarily on a cash basis. Saes, income, corporate and fuel taxes include a
modified accrual basis adjustment to recognize revenues that are expected to be collected within 60 days of the
end of the fiscal year.

The Budgetary Comparison Schedule is presented as Required Supplementary Information (RSI) in this report.
Actual amounts in this schedule are presented on abudgetary basis. Because this basis differs from accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), a reconciliation between the budgetary
and GAAP basisis presented in the RSI.

The various funds and programs within funds utilize a number of different budgetary control processes.
Annual legidlative appropriations and revenue estimates are provided for most “operating” funds.
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The original executive budget and original |egislative appropriations provide general purpose (unrestricted)
revenue estimates in order to demonstrate compliance with constitutional provisions. Revenues restricted by
law or outside grantors to a specific program are estimated at a level of detail consstent with controlling
related expenditure accounts.

For programs financed from restricted revenues, spending authorization is generally contingent upon
recognition of the related revenue. Reductions of spending authority occur if revenues fall short of estimates.
If revenues exceed the estimate, supplemental appropriations are required before the additional resources can
be spent.

The budgetary comparison schedule presented for the General Fund, the Highway Fund, the Federal Fund, and
the Other Special Revenue Fund presents the original and final appropriated budgets for fiscal year 2014-2015,
aswell asthe actual resource inflows, outflows and fund balances stated on the budgetary basis.

The original budget and related estimated revenues represent the spending authority enacted into law by the
appropriation hills as of June 26, 2013, and includes encumbrances carried forward from the prior year.

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) require that the final legal budget be reflected in the “final
budget” column. Therefore updated revenue estimates available for appropriations as of June 30, 2014 rather
than the amounts shown in the original budget, are reported.

The final appropriations budget represents original and supplemental appropriations, carry-forwards, approved
transfers, and executive order reductions. Expenditures, transfers out, other financing uses, and encumbrances
are combined and classified by policy arearather than being reported by character and function as shown in the
GAAP statements. This policy area classification is used to better reflect organizational responsibility and to
be more consistent with the budget process.

Compliance at the Legal Level of Budgetary Control

The Budgetary Comparison Schedules by Agency depict budgeted to actual expenditures at the Department
level, which isthe legal level of budgetary control for all governmental funds. The schedules provide further
detail at the agency level within departments for transparency.
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Required Supplementary Information — State Retireméam P

Schedule of Funding Progress

(Expressed in Thousands)

(@) (b) (b-a) (a/b) © (b-a)lc)
UAAL (as a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued percentage of
Valuation Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) - Unfunded AAL Annual Covered covered
June 30, Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll payroll)
2014 10,083,707 12,382,225 2,298,518 81.4% 1,711,516 134.3%
2013 9,238,577 11,889,897 2,651,320 71.7% 1,671,668 158.6%
2012 8,939,788 11,605,891 2,666,103 77.0% 1,727,667 154.3%
2011 8,795,250 11,335,259 2,540,009 71.6% 1,652,576 153.7%
2010 8,369,772 12,676,367 4,306,595 66.0% 1,681,593 256.1%
2009 8,383,148 12,377,262 3,994,114 67.7% 1,678,931 237.9%
2008 8,691,076 11,721,272 3,030,196 74.1% 1,628,421 186.1%
2007 8,302,467 11,209,708 2,907,241 74.1% 1,595,200 182.2%

Magjor changes in actuarial assumptionsinclude the following:

Valuation date June 30, 2014 June 30, 2012 June 30, 20 June 30, 2008

Major actuarial assumption changes:

The Stateis
responsible for
funding all costs for

- Lowered to reflect the
its employees and

closing of the retirement

Retirement assumption the UAAL for . )
window for early retiree
teachers. School health
districts pay the th coverage
normal costs for
teachers.
Version of actuarial cost method New entrant
Additional
recognition of past
. investment gainsin
Asset valuation method the smoothing
balance FY 14
37.5%
Investment rate of return 7.125% 7.25% 7.75%
Projected salary increases 3.50% 4.75% - 10.00%
Includes inflation at 3.50% 4.50%
Cost of living adjustments 2.25% 3.75%
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The June 30, 2011 valuation included changes to the plan and actuarial assumptions. For members with fewer
than 5 years of creditable service on July 1, 2011, the normal retirement age increased to 65. Projected salary
increases include a 3.5 percent across the board increase at each year of service. Thefirst 2 fiscal years assume
aflat 1.5 percent pay increase across the board. The cap on annual cost of living adjustments was lowered
from 4 percent per year to 3 percent per year on the first $20,000 of annual benefit (indexed). No COLA will
be made until September 2014.

The Maine Public Retirement System (the System), which isa component unit of the State, is the administrator
of 2 large cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plans and an agent multiple-employer defined benefit
plan covering public employees. The June 30, 2014 report may be obtained from the Maine Public Employees
Retirement System, 46 State House Station, Augusta, ME 04333.

The System amortizes the unfunded liability of the State and Teacher Plan over a closed period that cannot be
longer than 31 years from July 1, 1997 but may be, and at certain times has been, shorter than that period. In
2000, the amortization period was reduced to a 19-year period from June 30, 2000. In 2004, the Legidature
relengthened the period to 25 years, the full extent of the then-remaining Constitutional years for the 2004-
2005 biennium, and reshortened the period effective July 1, 2005 to the 13 years that will then remain in the
earlier shortened period. In 2005, the State repealed the “sunset” provision, with the result that the period for
reduction of these unfunded actuaria liabilities continues to the full extent permitted by the State constitution,
or June 30, 2028. The contribution rate in effect for 2014 was determined by the 2012 valuation, and reflects
the relengthened amortization period. The unfunded actuarial accrual liability of the judicial plan is amortized
over aperiod of which 3 years remained at June 30, 2014.

Note: Unless plan changes occur, actuaria valuations are performed biennially on even years. Rollforward
valuations occur on odd numbered years. The latest actuarial valuation occurred June 30, 2014.
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Required Supplementary Information — Other Post-employrBentfit Plans

Schedules of Funding Progress

Healthcare Plans

(@) (b) (b-a) (a/b) © (b-a)fc)

UAAL (asa
Actuarial Annual percentage of

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Covered covered

Plan Valuation Date ~ Value of Assets Liability AAL (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll payroll)
June 30, 2014 167 1,224 1,057 13.64% 543 194.66%
State Employees June 30, 2013 150 1,166 1,016 12.86% 518 196.14%
(inmillions) June 30, 2012 136 1,316 1,180 10.33% 502 235.06%
Teachers June 30, 2014 0 684 684 0.00% 1,106 61.84%
(in millions) June 30, 2013 0 685 685 0.00% 1,194 57.37%
June 30, 2012 0 665 665 0.00% 1,156 57.53%
June 30, 2013 0 22,369 22,369 0.00% 53,366 41.92%
First Responders June 30, 2012 0 23,442 23,442 0.00% 43,510 53.88%
(in thousands) June 30, 2011 0 21,921 21921 0.00% 42,242 51.89%

Group Life Insurance Plans
(Expressed in Thousands)

@) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (© (b-a)lc)
Actuarial UAAL (asa
Accrued Annual percentage of

Actuarial Actuarial Liability Unfunded Covered covered

Plan Valuation Date  Value of Assets (AAL) AAL (UAAL) Funded Ratio Payroll payroll)
June 30, 2014 31,800 87,300 55,500 36.43% 563,500 9.85%
State Employees June 30, 2013 27,000 83,800 56,800 32.22% 572,800 9.92%
June 30, 2012 24,700 80,900 56,200 30.53% 553,500 10.15%
June 30, 2014 45,100 75,600 30,500 59.66% 666,200 4.58%
Teachers June 30, 2013 36,000 74,200 38,200 48.52% 652,800 5.85%
June 30, 2012 30,100 71,000 40,900 42.3% 630,800 6.48%

B-106




Required Supplementary Information — Other Post-employrBenefit Plans (continued)

Schedule of Employer Contributions
(Expressed in Thousands)

State First
Employees Teachers Responders
Fiscal Annual Annual Annual

Year Ended Required Percentage| Required Percentage| Required Percentage
June 30, Contribution | Contributed | Contribution | Contributed | Contribution | Contributed
Healthcare - 2014 $99,000 63.87% $45,000 55.46% $1,769 33.52%
Healthcare - 2013 94,000 72.34% 44,000 56.82% 1,689 34.16%
Healthcare - 2012 126,000 57.94% 55,000 40.00% 1,350 32.15%
Group Life - 2014 4,768 88.07% 3,440 100.00% N/A N/A
Group Life - 2013 4,591 101.79% 3,099 100.00% N/A N/A
Group Life - 2012 3,250 144.13% 2,959 100.00% N/A N/A
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Required Supplementary Information —
Information about Infrastructure Assets Reported UdireggModified Approach

Asalowed by GASB Statement No. 34, the State has adopted an alternative process for recording depreciation
expense on selected infrastructure assets. Under this process, the State does not record depreciation expense
nor are amounts capitalized in connection with improvements to these assets, unless the improvements expand
the capacity or efficiency of an asset. Assets accounted for under the modified approach include 8,827
highway miles or 17,951 lane miles of roads and 2,964 bridges having a total deck area of 11.8 million square
feet that the State is responsible to maintain.

In order to utilize the modified approach, the State is required to:
1 Maintain an asset management system that includes an up-to-date inventory of eligible infrastructure.
(1 Perform condition assessments of eligible assets and summarize the results using a measurement

scale.

(1 Estimate each year the annua amount to maintain and preserve the assets at the condition level
established and disclosed by the State.
11 Document that the assets are being preserved at, or above, the established condition level.

Roads and bridges maintained by the Department of Transportation are accounted for using the modified

approach.

Highways

Measurement Scale for Highways
The Maine Department of Transportation (MDOT) uses six indicators to determine the condition of highway
adequacy. The six indicators and their relative point weighting are listed in the table below.

Point
Data Element Rating (%) Description

Pavement Condition 45 PCR is defined as the composite condition of the pavement on aroadway only, and

Rating (PCR) is compiled from the severity and extent of pavement distresses such as cracking,
rutting and patching. It isthe key indicator used to determine the optimum time to
treat a particular section of road. Points decrease as PCR decreases.

Safety 20 Statewide crash rates are used to allocate points. Locations with high rates get
fewer points.

Backlog (Built vs. 15 A “Built” road is one that has been constructed to a modern standard, usually post

Unbuilt roadway) 1950. Thisincludes adequate drainage, base, and pavement to carry the traffic load,
and adequate sight distance and width to meet current safety standards. “Unbuilt”
(backlog) is defined as a roadway section that has not been built to modern
standards. Yesor No (15 or 0).

Annua Average 10 Thisratio measures how intensely a highway is utilized. As ahighway facility’s

Daily Traffic AADT/C ratio increases, the average speed of vehicles on that facility tendsto

divided by the decrease. This decreasein average speed is evidence of reduced mobility. As

hourly highway congestion increases, points decrease (0-10).

capacity (AADT/C)

Posted Speed 5 Lower speeds equal fewer points.

Paved Shoulder 5 In general, roadways with paved shoulders perform at a higher level and last longer
than those without shoulders or with only gravel shoulders. Yesor No (5 or 0).

100
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Bridges

MDOT uses four separate factors to obtain a numerical value used to indicate the ability of bridges to remain
in service at the current level of usage. The numeric value is a percentage ranging from 0% to represent an
entirely insufficient or deficient bridge, and 100% to represent an entirely sufficient bridge. The four
indicators and their relative point weighting are listed in the table below. The composite numeric value is
based on the sufficiency rating formula in the Recording and Coding Guide for Structure Inventory and
Appraisal of the Nation’s Bridges.

Point Rating
Data Element (%) Description
Structural Adequacy 55 This category considers inventory rating, superstructure, substructure
and Safety and culverts.
Serviceability and 30 Serviceability and functional obsolescence that addresses the number
Functional of lanes, average daily traffic, roadway width, bridge width, deck
Obsolescence condition, under clearances, waterway adequacy, alignment, and
defense highway designation.
Essentiality for Public 15 This considers detour length, average daily traffic, and defense
Use highway designation.
Special Reductions (13) The sufficiency rating also includes consideration of specia reductions
for detour length, safety features, and type of structure.

Assessed Conditions
The following table shows adequacy ratings for maintenance levels from Excellent to Poor.

Adequacy Rating Total
Excellent 80-100
Good 70-80

Fair 60-70

Poor 0-60

MDOT intends to maintain highways and bridges at an adequacy rating of 60 or higher. The following table
shows adequacy ratings achieved by MDOT.

Fisca Year | Highways | Bridges
2014 755 78.0
2013 76.0 78.0
2012 75.4 79.0
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Comparison of Estimated-to-Actual Preservation Costs

The following table presents the State's preservation costs for the past five fiscal years. It aso shows the
estimate of spending necessary to preserve and maintain the roads and bridges at, or above, a sufficiency rating
of 60 for both highways and bridges (in millions).

Actual Preservation Costs
(Expressed in millions)

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Highways $1630 ' $ 905 $ 915 $ 1014  $686
Bridges 710 ' 147 13.2 9.3 9.2
Total $2340 $1052 $1047 _$ 1107 $77.8

Estimated Preservation Costs
(Expressed in millions)

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Highways $ 247 $ 841 $155.0 $ 86.1 $48.5
Bridges 3.1 13.7 30.0 7.9 6.5
Total $ 278 $ 97.8 $185.0 $ 940 $55.0

! Asrestated

In 2014 it was determined that preservation costs were understated due to an incorrect process for determining
the associated cost. The actual costs have been restated. The 2014 Estimated Preservation Costs are
understated due to the incorrect process.

Transportation Bonds
Transportation bonds, approved by referendum, are issued to fund improvements to highways and
bridges. Of the amount authorized by Chapter 697, PL 2011, $26 million in General fund bonds were

spent during FY 2014.
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINED STATEMENT OF RESOURCES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGEBE$FUND EQUITY
For the Years Ended June 30

(thousands $000's)
2010 2011y 2012 2013 2014
Revenues
T axes
Sales, Use and Service Provider Tax 1,073,443 1,095,072 1,154,480 1,164,216 1,227,734
Individual Income T ax 1,368,185 1,490,879 1,513,710 1,607,831 1,414,110
Corporate Income T ax 183,751 251,345 271,943 217,338 211,854
Cigarette and T obacco T ax 149,067 145,229 139,729 137,952 136,160
Inheritance and Estate T ax 31,210 49,323 44,866 79,083 23,962
Gasoline, Use Fuel and Motor Carrier T ax 241,424 239,184 242,123 236,763 239,988
Insurance T ax 109,689 93,029 112,291 103,549 110,909
Public Utilities Tax 46,340 49,555 39,418 40,301 39,888
Other Industry or Occupation T axes 226,940 216,974 217,902 247,246 256,199
Real Estate Transfer Tax 19,186 19,621 18,644 22,449 24,777
Unorganized T erritories Property Tax 27,062 26,700 26,309 26,692 27,031
Other T axes 35,679 11,740 11,027 13,950 14,015
Tota Taxes 3,511,976 3,688,651 3,792,442 3,897,370 3,726,627
From Federal Government 3,139,053 3,064,954 2,705,040 2,616,027 2,763,077
From Cities, Towns and Counties 13,448 13,890 8,409 9,624 31,213
From Private Sources 184,425 207,509 231,132 230,134 235,794
Service Charge for Current Services 181,276 138,689 132,505 129,563 134,208
Fines, Forfeitures & Penalties 44,684 39,476 37,477 37,291 37,284
Vehicle Registration and Drivers Licenses 82,619 100,483 103,635 108,811 102,128
Hunting, Fishing and Related Licenses 18,124 17,934 18,235 18,464 18,380
Trangferred from Bureau of Alcoholic Beverages - - - - -
Transferred from Lottery Commission 52,202 49,548 53,786 52,909 51,845
Transferred from Other Funds 20,515 16,255 22,130 34,078 37,182
Transferred for Revenue Sharing (122,809) (131,302) (137,228) (140,241) (139,369)
Transferred for Tax Relief (2) (113,605) (113,935) (115,336) (111,674) (65,358)
Income from Investments 1,339 501 1,650 674 961
Other Revenues 24,149 483 21,611 412 5,539
3,525,420 3,404,485 3,083,046 2,986,072 3,212,885
Other Financial Resources
Proceeds of General Obligation Bonds 58,391 120,331 55,775 - 8
Other 103,736 121,312 94,433 103,447 514,882
Total Revenues and Resources 7,199,523 7,334,779 7,025,696 6,986,889 7,454,402
Expenditures
Governmental Support & Operations 431,744 388,285 410,477 448,340 431,538
Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment 11,772 10,848 11,620 10,306 11,025
Business Licensng & Regulation 76,125 65,781 63,967 64,295 71,232
Economic Development & Workforce Training 434,770 412,673 339,837 241,055 170,785
Education 1,731,496 1,713,750 1,609,206 1,560,404 1,648,218
Health & Human Services 3,440,041 3,351,536 3,419,603 3,390,838 3,887,234
Justice & Protection 401,711 393,314 373,338 379,876 397,543
Natural Resources Development & Protection 220,084 207,649 203,326 207,717 194,333
Transportation Safety & Development 567,864 672,108 630,384 618,551 597,442
Tota Expenditures 7,315,607 7,215,944 7,061,758 6,921,382 7,409,350
Excess Resources Over (Under) Expenditures (116,084) 118,835 (36,062) 65,507 45,052
Fund Equity July 1 of preceding calendar year 583,822 390,479 509,315 473,253 538,760
Fund Equity June 30 $ 467,738  $ 509,314 $ 473253 $ 538,760 $ 583,812

(1) Fund Equity for Highway Fund asrestated.
(2) Prior to 2010, transterred amountstor tax reliet programswere reported as a net amount In the Individual Income Tax line. Prior year amounts

were not restated. T herefore, comparisons between 2010 and prior years may not be possible in thisinstance.
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GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF RESOURCES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUNDQUITY
For the Years Ended June 30

(thousands $000's)
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Revenues
Taxes
Sales, Use and Service Provider Tax 954,025 976,359 1,029,513 1,036,888 1,156,332
Individual Income T ax 1,298,036 1,415,284 1,434,217 1,521,863 1,406,118
Corporate Income T ax 175,292 241,225 260,452 208,452 211,854
Cigarette and T obacco T ax 149,067 145,229 139,729 137,952 136,160
Inheritance and Estate T ax 31,210 49,323 44,866 79,083 23,962
Insurance T ax 80,019 76,930 82,986 79,609 83,204
Public Utilities T ax 17,524 17,668 10,870 10,076 6,843
Other Industry or Occupation T axes 59,597 52,270 50,783 60,661 50,055
Real Estate Transfer T ax 12,181 13,816 8,935 11,667 10,695
Unorganized T erritories Property Tax 13,218 13,382 10,727 13,333 12,448
Other Taxes 30,792 6,449 6,419 5,514 5,186
Total Taxes 2,820,961 3,007,935 3,079,497 3,165,098 3,102,856
From Federal Government 9,308 10,379 1,904 414 416
From Cities, T owns and Counties 187 219 282 248 274
From Private Sources 8,697 8,923 9,650 10,175 11,688
Service Charge for Current Services 33,329 30,557 35,957 28,728 26,629
Fines, Forfeitures & Penalties 32,787 28,513 25,121 23,749 23,474
Vehicle Registration and Drivers Licenses 16,277 15,864 15,875 16,079 0
Hunting, Fishing and Related Licenses - - - - 15,988
Transferred from Bureau of Alcoholic Beverages 52,202 49,548 53,786 52,909 51,845
Transferred from Lottery Commission 17,868 37,396 45,725 48,635 84,613
Transferred from Other Funds (122,809) (131,302) (137,228) (140,241) (139,369)
Transferred for Revenue Sharing (113,605) (113,935) (115,336) (111,674) (65,358)
Transferred for Tax Relief (2) 265 278 156 148 301
Income from Investments 23,456 7,998 (4,932) (6,196) (10,866)
(42,038) (55,562) (69,040) (77,026) (366)
Other Financial Resources
Proceeds of General Obligation Bonds - - - - -
Other 76,823 (32,959) 110,144 (61,588) 118,168
Total Revenues and Resources 2,855,746 2,919,414 3,120,601 3,026,484 3,220,658
Expenditures
Governmental Support & Operations 251,522 234,222 259,280 266,830 253,172
Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment 7,392 7,078 7,068 6,932 7,405
Business Licensing & Regulation 26 - - 578 4,200
Economic Development & Workforce Training 35,788 34,495 33,529 31,728 31,656
Education 1,419,788 1,387,720 1,365,933 1,341,083 1,409,592
Health & Human Services 802,461 845,417 1,103,849 1,079,612 1,103,755
Justice & Protection 276,030 268,880 261,702 264,824 288,890
Natural Resources Development & Protection 67,360 64,864 65,763 63,852 66,450
Transportation Safety & Development - 7,000 - - -
Total Expenditures 2,860,367 2,849,676 3,097,124 3,055,439 3,165,120
Excess Resources Over (Under) Expenditures (4,621) 69,738 23,477 (28,955) 55,538
Fund Equity July 1 of preceding calendar year 131,021 126,401 196,139 219,616 190,661
Fund Equity June 30 $ 126,400 $ 196,139 $ 219,616 $ 190,661 $ 246,199

(1) Governmental Support & Operationsincludesthe Governor’s Office, the Sate Treasurer’s Office and the Attorney General, Audit, Finance and

Administration, Judicial, Legislative and Sate Departments.
(2) Education includes the Education Department, the Maine Community College System, the Maine Maritime Academy and the University of Maine System.
(3) Health & Human Servicesincludes the Human Services, Mental Health and Retardation and Corrections Departments.

(4) Transportation Safety & Development includes the Transportation Department.

(5) Prior to 2010, transferred amountsfor tax relief programswere reported as a net amount in the Individual Income Tax line. Prior year amountswere

not restated. T herefore, comparisons between 2010 and prior years may not be possible in thisinstance.
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HIGHWAY FUND
STATEMENT OF RESOURCES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BQY
For the Years Ended June 30

(thousands $000's)
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Revenues
Taxes
Gasoline, Use Fuel and Motor Carrier Tax $ 219,191 $ 217,034 $ 219,728 $ 214,800 $ 217,757
Other Taxes 952 1,291 1,030 4,329 4,355
Tota Taxes 220,143 218,325 220,758 219,129 222,112
From Federal Government 4,796 4,304 4,270 4,455 4,205
Service Chargesfor Current Services 1,440 1,145 1,044 1,030 976
Fines, Forfeitures & Penalties 80,965 83,886 86,628 89,550 84,616
Vehicle Registration and Drivers Licenses - - - 4,402 4,880
Transfer from Other Funds 162 125 141 105 80
Income from Investments 3,684 3,458 4,120 1,509 271
91,047 92,918 96,203 101,051 95,028
Other Financial Resources
Proceeds of General Obligation Bonds - - - - -
Other 16,558 2,173 17,804 5,215 18,510
Total Revenues and Resources 327,748 313,416 334,765 325,395 335,650
Expenditures
Governmental Support & Operations (2) 35,452 3,227 3,639 2,614 34,760
Economic Development & Workforce Training - - - - -
Justice & Protection 30,720 29,262 28,634 28,584 24,103
Natural Resources Development & Protection 38 33 33 33 33
Transportation Safety & Development (1)(2) 234,579 295,073 304,735 296,491 287,295
Total Expenditures 300,789 327,595 337,041 327,722 346,191
Excess Resources Over (Under) Expenditures 26,959 (14,179) (2,276) (2,327) (10,541)
Fund Equity July 1 of preceding calendar year 127,857 77,556 63,377 61,101 58,774
Fund Equity June 30 $ 154,816 $ 63,377 $ 61,101 $ 58,774 $ 48,233

(1) Includes payment of debt service on bonds of the Sate previously issued for highway purposes.

(2) Beginningin fiscal year 2011, the Sate reported expenditures for the Bureau of Motor Vehicles ($30.7 million) within the Transportation Safety
& Development function. Previoudy, these expenditures were classified as Governmental Support and Operations.

(3) Fund Equity asrestated.
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OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
STATEMENT OF RESOURCES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BQY
For the Years Ended June 30

(thousands $000's)
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Revenues
Taxes
Siles, Use and Service Provider T ax $ 119,417 $ 118,713 $ 124,967 $ 127,328 $ 71,402
Individual Income Tax 70,149 75,595 79,493 85,968 7,992
Corporate Income T ax 8,459 10,120 11,491 8,885 -
Gasoline, Use Fuel and Motor Carrier T ax 22,234 22,150 22,395 21,963 22,231
Insurance Tax 29,670 16,099 29,305 23,939 27,705
Public Utilities T ax 28,816 31,886 28,548 30,225 33,046
Other Industry or Occupation T axes 167,343 164,704 166,162 185,650 205,249
Real Estate Transfer T ax 7,004 5,805 9,709 10,782 14,081
Unorganized T erritories Property Tax 13,844 13,319 15,582 13,359 14,583
Other Taxes 3,936 3,999 4,535 5,042 5,370
Total Taxes 470,872 462,390 492,187 513,141 401,659
From Federal Government 3,129,745 3,054,575 2,703,136 2,615,613 2,762,661
From Cities, Towns and Counties 13,146 13,657 8,127 9,376 30,937
From Private Sources 175,728 198,586 221,482 219,960 224,086
Service Charge for Current Services 143,151 103,828 92,278 96,380 103,374
Fines, Forfeitures & Penalties 10,457 9,818 11,312 12,512 12,834
Vehicle Registration and Drivers Licenses 1,654 16,598 17,007 19,261 17,512
Hunting, Fishing and Related Licenses 1,847 2,070 2,360 2,386 2,392
Transferred from Other Funds 2,647 (21,142) (23,595) (18,959) (52,310)
Income from Investments 625 481 343 341 333
Other Revenues (2,535) (11,216) 22,334 5,036 16,137
3,476,465 3,367,255 3,054,784 2,961,906 3,117,956
Other Financial Resources
Proceeds of General Obligation Bonds - - - - -
Other 10,355 152,098 (33,515) 159,820 251,084
Total Revenues and Resources 3,957,692 3,981,743 3,513,456 3,634,867 3,770,698
Expenditures
Governmental Support & Operations 134,660 144,061 145,563 178,877 143,606
Arts, Heritage & Cultural Enrichment 3,606 3,546 4,466 3,275 3,564
Business Licensng & Regulation 76,099 65,781 63,967 63,717 67,032
Economic Development & Workforce Training 384,632 347,309 288,545 208,407 135,487
Education 298,371 321,605 233,603 215,969 231,970
Health & Human Services 2,637,580 2,502,719 2,315,489 2,311,226 2,775,794
Justice & Protection 94,459 94,928 83,002 86,168 84,479
Natural Resources Development & Protection 144,562 134,371 131,028 137,662 120,672
Transportation Safety & Development 299,105 302,170 300,593 317,090 272,190
Total Expenditures 4,073,074 3,916,490 3,566,256 3,522,391 3,834,794
Excess Resources Over (Under) Expenditures (115,382) 65,253 (52,800) 112,476 (64,096)
Fund Equity July 1 of preceding calendar year 260,968 145,585 210,840 158,040 270,516
Fund Equity June 20 $ 145,586 $ 210,838 $ 158,040 $ 270,516 $ 206,420
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GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINED BALANCE SHEETS

JUNE 30, 2014

(thousands $000’s)
Total Other
(Memorandum) General Highway Special Capital Debt
(only) Fund Fund Revenues Projects Service
ASSETS
Equity in Treasurer’s Cash Pool $ 317,289 $ 1173 % 26,503 $ 206,653 $ 77,134 3% 5,826
Cash - Other 438 105 117 216 - -
Accounts, Notes and Grants Receivable
Net of Reservesfor Uncollectible Accounts 271,272 232,795 21,377 17,100 - -
Due from Other Funds 9,632 8,497 70 1,065 - -
Working Capital Advancesto Other Funds (9,291) 111 - (9,402) - -
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 150 187 - 37) - -
TOTAL ASSETS 589,490 242,868 48,067 215,595 77,134 5,826
LIABILITIES AND EQ UITY
LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable 568 49 (166) 685 - -
Other Liahilities 5,110 (3,380) - 8,490 - -
TO TAL LIABILITIES 5,678 (3,331) (166) 9,175 - -
EQUITY:
Reserved for Encumbrances 168,912 28,233 2,299 136,563 1,817 -
Reserved for Authorized Expenditures 360,422 92,974 35,617 149,840 81,991 -
Reserved for Utility Loans 9 - 9 - - -
Working Capital Advancesto Other Funds 111 111 - - - -
Designated for Other Purposes 44,092 44,092 - - - -
Budget Sabilization Fund 68,271 68,271 - - - -
Unappropriated Surplus (58,005) 12,518 10,308 (79,983) (6,674) 5,826
TOTAL EQUITY 583,812 246,199 48,233 206,420 77,134 5,826
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 589,490 $ 242,868 $ 48,067 $ 215595 $ 77134 3 5,826
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2014
2013
2012
2011
2010
2009
2008
2007
2006
2005
2004
2003
2002
2001
2000
1999
1998
1997
1996
1995
1994

GENERAL FUND UNAPPRO PRIATED SURPLUS
For the Years Ended June 30

Genera Fund
Unappropriated
Surplus
(Million)

$12.5
77
54.0
19.2
(13.0)
12.9
265
17.6
145
337
14.9
28.9
0.0
388
300.9
229.2
98.3
211
25.8
4.4
3.8
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General Fund
Revenues
(Million)

$3,220.7
3,026.5
3120.6
2919.4
2855.7
2819.0
3109.4
3022.6
2931.8
2790.8
2683.5
2394.7
23317
2390.6
2500.9
2336.1
2111.9
1863.1
1766.4
1671.7
1623.8

Srplusas
Percentage

of Revenues

0.39%
0.25%
1.73%
0.66%
-0.46%
0.46%
0.85%
0.58%
0.50%
1.21%
0.55%
1.21%
0%
1.62%
12.03%
9.81%
4.65%
1.13%
1.46%
0.26%
0.23%
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STATE OF MAINE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

APPENDIX C

Certain Revenues of the State (Unaudited)
Page
Undedicated Revenues, General Fund, Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2011
AN JUNE B0, 2002 e e

Undedicated Revenues, General Fund, Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2013
ANA JUNE 30, 2004 oo e e e e

Undedicated Revenues, General Fund, Ten Months Ended April 30, 2015........ccccceeenn.....

Highway Fund Revenues, Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2011
ANA JUNE 30, 2002 ... e et b e e e e e e aeas

Highway Fund Revenues, Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2013
AN JUNE 30, 2004 ...ttt e e e e et aaaaaaaaaes

Highway Fund Revenues, Ten Months Ended April 30, 2015........ccccooviiiiiiieiviiiiicceee e
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STATE OF MAINE
UNDEDICATED REVENUES
GENERAL FUND

FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND JUNE 30, 2012

2011
Variance Percent
Actual Budget Over/ Over/ Actual Budc
(Under) (Under)

Sales and Use Tax $923,686,973 $916,746,307 6,940,666 0.8% $981,257,805 $973,2
Service Provider Tax 52,672,306 55,214,486 (2,542,180) (4.6%) 48,255,501 50,3
Individual Income Tax 1,415,283,534 1,392,702,302 22,581,232 1.6% 1,434,217,189 1,444,
Corporate Income Tax 208,996,598 193,182,264 15,814,334 8.20% 232,117,995 218,6
Cigarette and Tobacco Tax 145,229,303 146,209,555 (980,252) (0.7%) 139,729,147 1421
Public Utilities Tax - - - - B
Insurance Companies Tax 76,930,329 76,765,000 165,329 0.2% 82,985,771 79,2
Inheritance & Estate Tax 49,323,494 45,052,787 4,270,707 9.5% 44,865,567 38,2
Property Tax- Unorganized Territory - - - - .
Fines, Forfeits and Penalties 28,513,040 28,799,339 (286,299) (1.0%) 25,120,959 25,7
Income from Investments 277,770 245,127 32,643 13.3% 155,531 1
Transfer for Tax Relief Programs (113,934,585) (113,986,593) 52,008 (0.0%) -115,336,149 -114,4
Transfer to Municipal Revenue Sharing ~ (93,156,725) (91,930,345) (1,226,380) 1.3% -96,876,964 -96,8
Transfer from Lottery Commission 49,547,800 49,034,250 513,550 1.0% 53,785,567 50,7
Other Taxes and Fees 151,676,495 149,672,089 2,004,406 1.3% 131,943,407 132,C
Other Revenues 49,910,424 48,357,956 1,552,468 3.2% 53,316,896 51,3
Total Undedicated Revenue $2,944,956,756 $2,896,064,524 $48,892,232 1.7% $3,015,538,222 $2,995 4
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STATE OF MAINE
UNDEDICATED REVENUES
GENERAL FUND

FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND JUNE 30, 2014

2013
Variance Percent
Actual Budget Over/ Over/ Actual Budc
(Under) (Under)

Sales and Use Tax $ 986,747,637 $ 984,910,746 $ 1,836,891 0.2% $1,106,158,236 $1,107,37
Service Provider Tax 50,139,878 48,739,710 1,400,168 2.9% 50,173,388 49,37
Individual Income Tax 1,521,862,756 1,495,000,000 26,862,756 1.8% 1,406,117,705 1,380,68
Corporate Income Tax 171,987,073 171,021,732 965,341 0.6% 182,928,181 169,76
Cigarette and Tobacco Tax 137,951,824 138,180,000 (228,176) (0.2%) 136,159,833 135,90
Public Utilities Tax - - - . -
Insurance Companies Tax 79,609,419 80,715,000 (1,105,581) (1.4%) 83,203,879 80,78
Inheritance & Estate Tax 79,083,058 70,230,328 8,852,730 12.6% 23,961,911 27,55
Property Tax— Unorganized Territory - - - - B
Fines, Forfeits and Penalties 23,748,503 24,552,639 (804,136) (3.3%) 23,473,506 23,48
Income from Investments 148,434 83,883 64,551 77.0% 301,144 13
Transfer for Tax Relief Programs (111,674,333) (112,086,562) 412,229 (0.4%) (65,357,986) (62,25
Transfer to Municipal Revenue Sharing ~ (95,974,153) (95,086,810) (887,343) 0.9% (66,063,110) (64,83
Transfer from Lottery Commission 52,908,602 52,550,000 358,602 0.7% 51,845,477 53,50
Other Taxes and Fees 153,796,137 150,894,327 2,901,810 1.9% 130,140,462 128,65
Other Revenues 44,049,007 38,637,097 5,411,910 14.0% 50,454,306 44,42
Total Undedicated Revenue $3,094,383,842 $3,048,342,090 $46,041,752 1.5% 3,113,496,933 $3,074,36
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STATE OF MAINE
PRELIMINARY UNDEDICATED REVENUES
GENERAL FUND
TEN MONTHS ENDED April 30, 2015

Sales and Use Tax

Service Provider Tax

Individual Income Tax

Corporate Income Tax

Cigarette and Tobacco Tax
Insurance Companies Tax
Estate Tax

Fines, Forfeits & Penalties
Income from Investments
Transfer from Lottery Commission
Transfers for Tax Relief Programs

Transfer to Municipal Revenue Sharing

Other Taxes and Fees
Other Revenues

Total Undedicated Revenue

NOTES:

Month Year to Date

Variance Percent Va

Actual Budget Over/ Over/ Actual Budget C

(Under) (Under) (L

$ 88,771,129 $ 87,807,765 $ 963,364 1.1% $ 886,313,532 $ 888,613,999 $

3,927,848 4,166,782 (238,934) (5.7%) 36,060,782 37,294,101 (:

256,873,336 223,744,933 33,128,403 14.8% 1,222,233,460 1,145,374,833 U

23,576,375 27,993,858 (4,417,483) (15.8%) 127,596,167 146,231,769 (1
10,141,705 10,393,643 (251,938) (2.4%) 112,219,648 110,763,062

20,768,184 13,041,542 7,726,642 59.2% 48,044,195 43,067,863 ‘

600,189 2,295,000 (1,694,811) (73.8%) 24,157,939 29,344,951 (
1,340,488 1,770,490 (430,002) (24.3%) 18,167,796 18,704,671
35,870 (32,573) 68,443 (210.1%) 388,641 41,608

4,363,823 4,442,342 (78,519) (1.8%) 45,462,576 47,455,193 (:
(471,285) (144,371) (326,914) 226.4% (57,999,591) (58,891,426)

(3,255,523) (4,153,583) 898,060 (21.6%) (48,368,734) (46,324,964) (:

9,008,358 8,924,417 83,941 0.9% 111,765,205 107,407,230 ‘

3,394,996 5,036,814 (1,641,818) (32.6%) 24,041,129 25,498,015 (:

$ 419,075,491 $ 385,287,059 $ 33,788,432 8.8% $ 2,550,082,744  $2,494,580,905 $ 5

b

®)

Included in the above is $3,255,523 for the nhoand $48,368,734 year to date, that was set &midRevenue Sharing wit
The amounts set forth above under the headings ‘tMerBudget,” “Year to Date — Budget " and “T otaldgieted” reflect
provided by the Maine State Revenue Forecastingr@ittee in its Dec 2014 report, updated by PL 201380 and PL 20!
the revisions to the State’s fiscal year 2015 hydsge “Revenues of the State — General,” inclutliregtable therein, in Ap

This report has been prepared from preliminary rhaoarid figures and is subject to change.
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STATE OF MAINE
HIGHWAY FUND
REVENUES
FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2011 AND JUNE 30, 2012

2011

Variance Percent
Actual Budget Over/ Over/ Actual Budg

(Under) (Under)
Fuel Taxes $ 217,033,892 $ 215,546,404 $ 1,487,488 0.7% $ 219,463,118 $ 218,088
Motor Vehicle Registration & Fees 80,841,240 78,986,392 1,854,848 2.3% 83,563,402 82,73¢
Inspection Fees 2,977,702 3,032,500 (54,798) (1.8%) 2,997,951 2,982
Miscellaneous Taxes and Fees 1,358,069 1,325,823 32,246 2.4% 1,361,888 1,313
Fines, Forfeits & Penalties 1,145,044 1,205,049 (60,005) (5.0%) 1,044,271 993
Earnings on Investments 124,518 120,434 4,084 3.4% 141,082 121
All Other Revenues 7,870,691 8,072,531 (201,840) (2.5%) 8,630,697 8,734
TOTAL $ 311,351,156 $ 308,289,133 $ 3,062,023 1.0% $ 317,202,409 $ 314,971

Source: Revenue Highway General Accounting
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Fuel Taxes

Motor Vehicle Registration & Fees

Inspection Fees
Miscellaneous Taxes & Fees
Fines, Forfeits & Penalties
Earnings on Investments

All Other Revenues

TOTAL

Source:

STATE OF MAINE
HIGHWAY FUND
REVENUES

FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND JUNE 30, 2014

2013

Variance Percent
Actual Budget Over/ Over/ Actual Budge

(Under) (Under)
$ 214,539,829 $ 213,301,215 $ 1,238,614 0.6% $217,494,739 $211,81
89,333,202 87,785,489 1,547,713 1.8% 84,815,991 84,09
3,495,704 2,982,500 513,204 17.2% 3,109,258 2,98
1,309,810 1,276,365 33,445 2.6% 1,307,949 1,29
1,030,267 1,039,868 (9,601) (0.9%) 976,084 1,00
105,414 99,513 5,901 5.9% 80,299 5:
9,011,474 8,920,662 90,812 1.0% 9,292,645 9,01
$ 318,825,700 $ 315,405,612 $ 3,420,088 1.1% $ 317,076,965 $ 310,267

Revenue Highway General Accounting
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STATE OF MAINE
PRELIMINARY HIGHWAY FUND

REVENUES

TEN MONTHS ENDED April 30, 2015

Month Year to Date
Variance Percent Varianc
Actual Budget Over/ Over/ Actual Budget Ovi
(Under) (Under) (Under
Fuel Taxes $ 17,468,315 16,845,751 $ 622,564 3.7% $ 163,988,569 $ 162,449,151 $ 15
Motor Vehicle Registration & Fees 8,723,606 8,487,094 236,512 2.8% 71,860,614 68,647,349 3,2
Inspection Fees 217,757 289,952 (72,195) (24.9%) 2,543,672 2,402,604 1
Miscellaneous Taxes & Fees 107,025 99,727 7,298 7.3% 989,666 988,552
Fines, Forfeits & Penalties 55,558 79,727 (24,169) (30.3%) 740,350 828,259 (8
Earnings on Investments 23,470 9,418 14,052 149.2% 112,246 86,687
All Other 783,003 498,415 284,588 57.1% 8,746,511 8,565,316 1
Total Revenue $ 27,378,735 $ 26,310,084 $ 68,851 4.1% $ 248,981,627 $ 243,967,918 $5,01
Note: This report has been prepared from prelirgim@onth end figures and is subject to change.

The amounts set forth above under the headingsmtMe Budget,” “Year to Date — Budget ” and “ToBaldgeted” reflect est
provided by the Maine State Revenue Forecastimgn@itee in its Dec 2014 report, updated by PL 20130 and PL 2015 c.1.
the revisions to the State’s fiscal year 2015 midgee “Revenues of the State — General,” incluttie table therein, in Apper
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STATE OF MAINE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

APPENDIX D

Selected Information Regarding Authorized
And Outstanding Debt of the State

Authorized Expenditures

General Fund Bonds, Debt Service Requirements to Maturity,
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014 ........uiiiiie et e e e e e
Highway Fund Bonds, Debt Service Requirements to Maturity,
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014

Information Regarding Lease Financing Agreements

Debt Ratios

Debt Ratio Statistics

Debt Service Paid Over Past Ten Fiscal Years

Bonds Outstanding at June 30 of Certain Fiscal Years

D-1

D-2

D-4

D-4
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AUTHORIZED EXPENDITURES

The purpose for which authorized expenditures may be made, the expending el@partagency,h
the balances of authorized expenditures were as of the date hereof as follows:

Agency Law Description

DAG 2009 PLCh 414 Agricultural water source develepirgrant program.

DEP 2013 PL Ch 589 Stream crossing, culvert upgradesther public improvement projects
DEP 2013 PL Ch 589 Restoration of state wetlands

DEP 2013 PL Ch 589 Wastewater treatment facilities

DHHS 2009 PL Ch 414 as amd by Ch 645 Health and DE€fitac Upgrades

DHHS 2013 PL Ch 589 Drinking water systems

DOC 2009 PL Ch 414 as amd by Ch 645 Land acquisifiensonservation, water access, outdoor recreatiibdiife, e
DOC 2009 PL Ch 414 as amd by Ch 645 Working farmfaegervation

DOC 2009 PL Ch 414 as amd by Ch 645 Working watetfpo@servation

DOC 2011 PL Ch 696 Land for Maine's Future Board

DOT 2011 PL Ch 697 Transit buses

DOT 2011 PL Ch 697 Port investment/development atspeat, Mack Point, and Sears Island
DOT 2011 PL Ch 697 Equipment for Mack Point port

DOT 2011 PL Ch 697 Aviation facilities

DOT 2011 PL Ch 697 Lifeflight

D-2



Agency Law Description

DOT 2013 PL Ch 429 Highway and bridge construction

DOT 2013 PLCh 429 Highway and bridge construction

DOT 2013 PL Ch 429 Ports, harbors, marine transpuidtion, freight, and passenger rail and trat
DVEM 2013 PLCh 432 Armory Upgrades

DVEM 2013 PL Ch 432 Land for Training Facility

FAME 2013 PL Ch 596 Loans to small businesses toisgastment and innovation
FAME 2013 PL Ch 596 rural economy

MCCS 2013 PLCh 431 Facility upgrades at MCCS cangpuse

Pres 2009 PL Ch 414 as amd by Ch 645 Downtown riezatein

MTI 2013 PLCh 568 Human Health research (through DEC

MTI 2013 PLCh574 Expansion of biomedical reseathtoigh DECD)

MTI 2013 PLCh592 sustainability in the marine ecogdthrough DECD)

UMS 2009 PL Ch 414 as amd by Ch 645 Maine Marine VEEimelrgy Fund R&D

UMS 2013 PLCh 430 Updating and improving lab andsilaom facilities of UMS
UMS 2013 PLCh572 Animal/plant disease & insect oalrfiacility at UME Co-op Ext

TOT,




FISCAL YEAR

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024

FISCAL YEAR

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

GENERAL FUND BONDS

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY
June 30, 2014

PRINCIPAL INTEREST

$ 65,670,000.00 $ 11,674,237.79%
50,335,000.00 10,078,820.80
39,385,000.00 8,371,339.20
36,005,000.00 6,928,067.10
31,385,000.00 5,468,019.30
22,945,000.00 4,027,831.80
22,655,000.00 3,063,500.00
16,030,000.00 1,930,750.00
11,295,000.00 1,129,250.00
11,290,000.00 564,500.00

$ 306,995,000.00 $ 53,236,315.99%

TOTAL

77,344,237.79
60,413,820.80
47,756,339.20
42,933,067.10
36,853,019.30
26,972,831.80
25,718,500.00
17,960,750.00
12,424,250.00
11,854,500.00

360,231,315.99

HIGHWAY FUND BONDS

PRINCIPAL

15,275,000.00 $
15,300,000.00
21,015,000.00
18,285,000.00
12,500,000.00
7,610,000.00
2,210,000.00

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TO MATURITY
June 30, 2014

INTEREST

3,914,653.56%
3,265,078.56
2,600,578.56
1,691,210.10
905,540.30
389,668.00
110,500.00

92,195,000.00 $

12,877,229.08%

TOTAL

19,189,653.56
18,565,078.56
23,615,578.56
19,976,210.10
13,405,540.30
7,999,668.00
2,320,500.00

105,072,229.08

GF + HF

$

399,190,000.00%

66,113,545.07$%

465,303,545.07
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INFORMATION REGARDING LEASE FINANCING AGREEMENTS

Principal Principal &
Original Amount Interest
Principal Outstanding Due 5/1/2015 -
Agency Date of Amount 04/30/15 06/3015
Agreement
Administrative & Financial Services July, 2010 $10,000,000 $3,003,829 $-
Administrative & Financial Services October, 2010 5,000,000 1,865,525 387,655
Administrative & Financial Services May, 2011 5,000,000 1,556,986 -
Administrative & Financial Services May, 2012 4,600,000 2,312,501 1,165,711
Administrative & Financial Services January, 2013 15,000,000 9,723,436 1,117,172
Administrative & Financial Services March, 2013 2,100,000 819,344 315,110
Department of Education March, 2013 5,400,000 2,713,735 -
Department of Education March, 2013 4,250,000 2,580,876 -
Department of Education August, 2013 71,560,416 40,252,733 4,472,525
Department of Education September. 2013 891,324 501,368 55,708
Department of Education September. 2013 1,682,978 862,048 -
Department of Education September. 2013 67,646 34,651 -
Department of Education October, 2013 550,176 309,474 34,386
Department of Education February, 2015 146,642 108,790 -
Department of Education March, 2015 91,840 67,830 -
Department of Education April, 2015 22,850 16,951 -
Administrative & Financial Services August, 2014 8,736,160 7,098,130 546,010
Administrative & Financial Services October, 2014 109,600 94,987 7,307
Administrative & Financial Services December, 2013 900,000 647,583 -
Administrative & Financial Services December, 2013 11,500,000 9,076,866 -
Administrative & Financial Services March, 2014 2,100,000 1,048,697 -
Administrative & Financial Services April, 2014 4,800,000 3,609,766 -
Public Safety March, 2015 2,100,000 1,879,961 -
Public Safety March, 2015 4,800,000 4,501,211 -
Public Safety April, 2015 2,700,000 2,492,000 -
Totals $164,109,632 $97,179,277 $8,101,584




Debt Ratios

The following table sets forth the certain ratios relating to the State’s general obligation
debt as of June 30, 2014.

Debt to
Estimated Debt to
Amount of Full Personal
Debt (Pé&I) Per Capita @ Valuation®  Income
General Fund $ 360,231,316 $ 270.83 0.23% 0.64%
Highways & Bridges 105,072,229 79.00 0.07% 0.19%
Total $ 465,303,545 $ 349.83 0.29% 0.83%

(1) Based on population estimate of 1,330,089 for 2014 by the U.5. Department of

Commerce, Bureau of the Census.

(2) Based on assessed property valuation at full value by the Maine Revenue Services
as of January 2015 of $159,770,050,000.

(3) Based on State of Maine total personal income reported by the U.5. Department of
Commerce for 2014 of $55,958,042,000.

Debt Ratio Statistics

June 30, 2014

Debt to Full Value
2012 0.34%
2013 0.27%
2014 0.29%

Debt to Personal Income

2012 1.04%

2013 0.78%

2014 0.83%
Per Capita Debt

2012 $409.46

2013 $318.77

2014 $349.83

D-6



DEBT SERVICE PAID OVER THE PAST TEN FISCAL YEARS HNNG JUNE 30

Fiscal General Fund General Fund Highway Fund Highway Fund Total Total
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2005 $ 53,440,000 % 12,525,813 $ 13,280,000 $ 2,477,535 $ 66,720,000 $ 15,003,348
2006 57,915,000 15,253,937 13,950,000 2,007,306 71,865,000 17,261,243
2007 69,280,000 17,364,513 10,415,000 1,387,084 79,695,000 18,751,597
2008 66,230,000 16,057,428 10,750,000 2,050,995 76,980,000 18,108,423
2009 65,685,000 15,179,120 13,505,000 3,848,227 79,190,000 19,027,347
2010 74,905,000 15,451,420 11,820,000 4,803,042 86,725,000 20,254,462
2011 72,905,000 13,609,228 15,100,000 5,312,205 88,005,000 18,921,433
2012 81,055,000 14,015,648 16,385,000 5,698,368 97,440,000 19,714,016
2013 85,595,000 12,924,559 16,735,000 5,151,841 102,330,000 18,076,400
2014 67,445,000 10,159,578 16,035,000 4,544,279 83,480,000 14,703,857
BONDS OUTSTANDING AT JUNE 30
of Certain Fiscal Years
Compared to Total Governmental Funds Revenue
Year ) Self- Total Governmental Percent of
Ended GeneralFund Highway Fund Liquidating Total Funds Revenue State Revenues
1991 $ 277,710,000 $ 102,870,000 $ 14,840,000 $ 395,420,000 $ 2,533,777,000 15.6%
1992 308,890,000 107,395,000 13,395,000 429,680,000 2,995,325,000 14.3%
1993 405,823,000 136,320,000 2,562,000 544,705,000 3,178,491,000 17.1%
1994 383,618,000 143,355,000 2,312,000 529,285,000 3,311,809,213 16.0%
1995 377,055,000 136,950,000 2,055,000 516,060,000 3,381,332,000 15.3%
1996 369,457,945 144,440,000 1,792,055 515,690,000 3,598,717,000 14.3%
1997 339,620,600 129,060,000 1,529,400 470,210,000 3,756,557,734 12.5%
1998 337,575,000 139,180,000 1,290,000 478,045,000 4,168,141,000 11.5%
1999 334,725,000 133,700,000 1,115,000 469,540,000 4,257,340,458 11.0%
2000 341,205,000 111,230,000 940,000 453,375,000 4,604,954,195 9.8%
2001 297,405,000 108,635,000 765,000 406,805,000 4,608,742,000 8.8%
2002 260,790,000 85,335,000 600,000 346,725,000 4,808,788,859 7.2%
2003 293,990,000 64,120,000 445,000 358,555,000 5,114,542,674 7.0%
2004 355,025,000 61,105,000 290,000 416,420,000 5,902,866,220 7.1%
2005 439,110,000 47,825,000 160,000 487,095,000 6,114,225,943 8.0%
2006 433,585,000 33,875,000 90,000 467,550,000 6,336,819,316 7.4%
2007 398,280,000 50,460,000 20,000 448,760,000 6,230,265,000 7.2%
2008 378,575,000 97,260,000 - 475,835,000 6,406,301,524 7.4%
2009 408,925,000 121,065,000 - 529,990,000 6,827,986,832 7.8%
2010 365,775,000 134,325,000 - 500,100,000 7,083,733,435 7.1%
2011 378,880,000 141,350,000 - 520,230,000 7,190,530,232 7.2%
2012 347,090,000 124,965,000 - 472,055,000 6,947,865,367 6.8%
2013 261,495,000 108,230,000 - 369,725,000 6,959,425,993 5.3%
2014 306,995,000 92,195,000 - 399,190,000 7,315,154,917 5.5%

D-7
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APPENDIX E

The information contained in this Appendix E is derived from infolmnatontained in
the actuarial valuation reports for the year ended June 30, 2014 for teeEStployee and
Teacher Retirement Program, the Legislative Retirement ProgitemJudicial Retirement
Program, and the Group Life Insurance Program. These actuariaioaliggiorts are available
atwww.mainepers.org/bonds.hir8ee also “Defined Benefit Retirement Programs” in Appendix

A hereto.

Maine Public Employees Retirement System
State Employees and Public School Teachers
Actuarial Balance Sheet, June 30, 2014

ASSETS
(Present Value of expected income)

(1) Invested Assets
(a) Members Contribution Fund

(b) Retirement Allowance Fund
(c) Total Invested Assets (a + b)*

(2) Future Contributions
(@) Member Contributions

(b) Actuarial Costs
(c) Total Contribution Income (a + b)

3) Present Value of Total Income (1 + 2)
LIABILITIES
(Present Value of expected benefit payments)
(1) Active Employees

(a) Current Accrued Benefits

(b) Future Benefit Accruals

(c) Total Active Benefits (a + b)
(2) Inactive Employees

(a) Total Inactive Benefits

(3) Present Value of Total Benefits (1 + 2)

*Actuarial Value

State
Employees

$ 798,885,490
2,532,306,077

$3,331,191,567

$ 308,476,325
1,201,621,905
$1,510,088)2

$4,841,289,797

$1,209,333,810
752,791,177
$1,962,124,987

$2,879,164,810

$4,841,289,797

E-1

MTRA
Teachers

516,190,415
5,170,130,024

All
Employees

$ 2,315,075,905
7,702,436,101

$ 6,686,320,439

$ 536,811
1,493,103,186

$10,017,512,006

$ 844,326,336
2,694,725,091

$2,028,953,197

$8,715,273,636

$ 3,539,051,427

$13,556,563,433

$2,62%473 $ 3,835,113,283
1,396,620,688 2,149,411,865
4,022,400,161 $ 5,984,525,148

$4,692,873,475

$8,715,273,636

$ 7,572,038,285

$13,556,563,433



Maine Public Employees Retirement System
Judicial Plan
Actuarial Balance Sheet, June 30, 2014

Assets
(Present Value of expected income)

(1) Invested Assets

(a) Members Contribution Fund
(b) Retirement Allowance Fund
(c) Total Invested Assets (a+b)*
(2) Future Contributions

(a) Member Contributions

(b) Actuarial Costs
(c) Total Contribution Income (a+b)

(3) Present Value of Total Income (1+2)

Liabilities

(Present Value of Expected Benefit Payments)

(1) Active Employees

(a) Current Accrued Benefits
(b) Future Benefit Accruals
(c) Total Active Benefits (a+b)

(2) Inactive Employees

(a) Total Inactive Benefits

(3) Present Value of Total Benefits (1+2)

*Actuarial Value

E-2

$ 9,466,378
45,952,639
$55,419,017

$ 2,045,830
3,038,280
$ 5,084,110

$60,503,127

$23,429,073
8,288,517
$31,717,590

$28,785,537

$60,503,127



Maine Public Employees Retirement System
Legislative Plan
Actuarial Balance Sheet, June 30, 2014

Assets
(Present Value of expected income)

(1) Invested Assets

(a) Members Contribution Fund
(b) Retirement Allowance Fund
(c) Total Invested Assets (a+b)*
(2) Future Contributions

(a) Member Contributions

(b) Actuarial Costs
(c) Total Contribution Income (a+b)

(3) Present Value of Total Income (1+2)

Liabilities

(Present Value of Expected Benefit Payments)

(1) Active Employees

(a) Current Accrued Benefits
(b) Future Benefit Accruals
(c) Total Active Benefits (a+b)

(2) Inactive Employees

(a) Total Inactive Benefits

(3) Present Value of Total Benefits (1+2)

*Actuarial Value

E-3

$ 2,464,847
8,310,854
$10,775,701

$ 1,039,668

(2,072,117)
($1,032,449)

$ 9,743,252

$ 2,286,918
2,382,946
$ 4,669,864

$ 5,073,388

$ 9,743,252



Maine Public Employees Retirement System
State Employees and Public School Teachers
Actuarial Balance Sheet for Group Life Insurance, June 30, 2014

ASSETS State
(Present Value of expected income) Employees

(1) Invested Assets

(a) Members Contribution Fund $ 0
(b) Retirement Allowance Fund 31,330,556
(c) Total Invested Assets (a + b)* $ 31,330,556

(2) Future Contributions

(a) Member Contributions $ 0
(b) Actuarial Costs 61,204,277
(c) Total Contribution Income (a + b) $ 61,204,277

3 Present Value of Total Income (1 +2) $ 92,534,833

LIABILITIES
(Present Value of expected benefit payments)

(1) Active Employees

(a) Current Accrued Benefits $ 19,790,312
(b) Future Benefit Accruals 14,134,488
(c) Total Active Benefits (a + b) $ 33,924,800

(2) Inactive Employees

(a) Total Inactive Benefits $ 58,610,033

(3) Present Value of Total Benefits (1 + 2) $ 92,534,833

*Actuarial Value

E-4

MTRA
Teachers

$ 0
45,071,053
$ 45,071,053

$ 0
35,698,037
$ 35,698,037

$ 80,769,090

$ 20,902,798

11,386,135

$ 32,288,933

$ 48,480,157

$ 80,769,090

All
Employees

$ 0
76,401,609
$ 76,401,609

$ 0
96,902,314
$ 96,902,314

$173,303,923

$ 40,693,110
25,520,623
$ 66,213,733

$107,090,190

$173,303,923



Maine Public Employees Retirement System
Judicial Plan
Actuarial Balance Sheet for Group Life Insurance, June 30, 2014
Assets
(Present Value of expected income)

(1) Invested Assets

(a) Members Contribution Fund $ 0
(b) Retirement Allowance Fund 524,668
(c) Total Invested Assets (a+b)* $ 524,668

(2) Future Contributions

(a) Member Contributions $ 0
(b) Actuarial Costs 1,055,058

(c) Total Contribution Income (a+b) $ 1,055,058
(3) Present Value of Total Income (1+2) $ 1,579,726
Liabilities

(Present Value of Expected Benefit Payments)

(1) Active Employees

(a) Current Accrued Benefits $ 578,452
(b) Future Benefit Accruals 185,052
(c) Total Active Benefits (a+b) $ 763,504

(2) Inactive Employees
(a) Total Inactive Benefits $ 816,222

(3) Present Value of Total Benefits (1+2) $ 1,579,726

*Actuarial Value
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Maine Public Employees Retirement System
Legislative Plan
Actuarial Balance Sheet for Group Life Insurance, June 30, 2014
Assets
(Present Value of expected income)

(1) Invested Assets

(a) Members Contribution Fund $ 0
(b) Retirement Allowance Fund 10,356
(c) Total Invested Assets (a+b)* $ 10,356

(2) Future Contributions

(a) Member Contributions $ 0

(b) Actuarial Costs 18,053

(c) Total Contribution Income (a+b) $ 18,053
(3) Present Value of Total Income (1+2) $ 28,409
Liabilities

(Present Value of Expected Benefit Payments)

(1) Active Employees

(a) Current Accrued Benefits $ 0

(b) Future Benefit Accruals 0

(c) Total Active Benefits (a+b) $ 0
(2) Inactive Employees

(a) Total Inactive Benefits $ 28,409
(3) Present Value of Total Benefits (1+2) $ 28,409

*Actuarial Value
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STATE OF MAINE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

APPENDIX F

Selected Economic Information
with Respect to the State

Maine Population

Year Population Rank U.S. Percent Change Per Square Mile
1920 768,000 35 - 2419
1930 797,000 - 3.80% 25.8
1940 847,000 35 6.30% 21.5
1950 914,000 35 7.90% 29.6
1960 969,000 36 6.00% 314
1970 992,000 38 2.40% 32.2
1980 1,126,000 28 13.50% 36.5
1990 1,227,928 28 9.10% 39.8
2000 1,274,923 40 3.80% 41.3
2001 1,284,470 40 0.70% 41.6
2002 1,294,464 40 0.80% 42.0
2003 1,305,728 40 0.90% 42.3
2004 1,317,253 40 0.90% 42.7
2005 1,321,505 40 0.30% 42.8
2006 1,321,574 40 0.01% 42.8
2007 1,317,207 40 -0.30% 42.7
2008 1,316,456 40 -0.06% 42.7
2009 1,318,301 40 0.14% 42.7
2010 1,328,361 41 0.76% 43.1
2011 1,327,930 41 -0.03% 43.1
2012 1,328,592 41 0.05% 43.1
2013 1,328,702 41 0.01% 43.1
2014 1,330,089 41 0.10% 43.1

Source: US Census Bureau




Personal Income and Earnings by Industry in Maig£022014

" 2010 © 2011 2012 2013 2014
Personal income (thousands of dollars) 49,395,325| 51,523,515| 52,957,962 54,358,810| 55,958,042
Earnings by place of work 33,009,172] 33,561,283( 34,358,446| 35,344,912| 36,414,968
Farm earnings 200,888 178,118 192,111 216,336 224,157
Nonfarm earnings 32,808,284| 33,383,165| 34,166,335| 35,128,576| 36,190,811
Forestry, fishing, related activities, and other 405,436 378,645( confidential 429,992 555,927
Mining 13,611 16,374/ confidential 16,082 17,398
Utilities 201,381 189,952 186,220 197,458 211,632
Construction 2,014,196| 2,104,788 2,169,079| 2,294,215| 2,378,364
Manufacturing 3,437,093| 3,474,621 3,483,825| 3,535,930| 3,561,155
Wholesale trade 1,302,405| 1,350,010| 1,417,487 1,468,146 1,536,109
Retail trade 2,774,087| 2,803,715 2,819,896 2,904,811| 2,999,769
Transportation and warehousing 863,709 884,165 899,397 933,373 980,898
Information 578,540 524,536 518,039 516,725 511,155
Finance and insurance 1,892,430| 1,940,807| 1,982,377| 2,065,979| 1,975,803
Real estate and rental and leasing 460,314 568,444 671,608 706,873 722,787
Professional and technical services 2,065,290 2,172,783 2,231,001 2,333,462| 2,452,763
Management of companies and enterprises 569,660 615,238 683,620 684,067 816,423
Administrative and waste services 1,127,689| 1,202,291| 1,216,927| 1,286,816 1,389,908
Educational services 596,440 626,381 665,399 686,791 740,312
Health care and social assistance 5,432,348 5,531,796 5,642,837 5,759,950| 5,916,396
Arts 278,640 283,077 311,788 330,079 320,602
Accommodation and food services 1,177,374| 1,229,029| 1,292,470 1,344,077| 1,413,116
Other services, except public administration 1,139,385| 1,170,518| 1,214,742 1,282,992| 1,322,578
Government and government enterprises 6,478,256| 6,315,995| 6,316,005 6,350,758| 6,367,718

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis
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us
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014

Per Capita Income

31,522
31,800
32,677
34,300
35,886
38,127
39,80<.
40,873
39,379
40,144
42,332
44,200
44,765
46,129

Maine us NE
38,215 28,271 89.7%
38,253 29,009 91.2%
39,145 30,251 92.6%
41,304 31,7.5 92.5%
42,974 32,259 89.6%
46,048 34,106 89.5%
48,362 35,53 89.2%
49,407 36,661 89.7%
48,213 36,842 93.6%
49,398 37,2.3 92.7%
51,860 38,802 91.7%
54,156 39,863 90.2%
54,797 40,924 91.4%
56,642 42,071 91.2%

Per Capita Personal Income
Maine, New England, and US

Maine as a Percent of

74.0%
75.3%
77.3%
76.3%
75.1%
74.1%
73.4%
74.2%
76.4%
75.3%
74.3%
73.5%
74.7%
74.3%

Source: U.S. Department of Commercerdgau of Economic Analysis

Annual Reinerease

us

NE

0.9%
2.8%
5.0%
4.6%
6.2%
4.4%
2.7%
3.7%
1.9%
5.5%
4.4%
1.3%
3.0%

Maine

0.1%
2.3%
5.5%
4.0%
7.2%
5.0%
2.2%
2.4%
2.5%
5.0%
4.4%
1.2%
3.4%

PP PED e O D D NN

.6%
.3%
.8%
1%
1%
1%
.2%
.5%
.0%
.3%
1%
1%
.8%

State Valuation of Taxable Real and Personal Property

January 1991
January 1992
January 1993
January 1994
January 1995
January 1996
January 1997
January 1998
January 1999
January 2000
January 2001
January 2002
January 2003
January 2004
January 2005
January 2006
January 2007
January 2008
January 2009
January 2010
January 2011
January 2012
January 2013
January 2014
January 2015

Source: State Revenue Services.

The State valuation of taxable property is equal to 100% of value.

The State valuation filed in January of each year is based ealte of property as of April 1, 21 months prior to the fildege.
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$

64,905,350,000
68,471,100,000
67,751,400,000
66,565,550,000
66,425,500,000
67,102,925.900
68,286,600,000
69,691,900,000
71,779,350,000
74,260,000,000
78,389,400,000
84,874,550,000
94,034,050,000

104,219,950,000
118,038,020,000
133,628,600,000
148,946,200,000
162,744,550,000
168,006,150,000
170,336,350,000
166,990,700,000
163,424,200,000
160,011,900,000
158,661,600,000

159,770,050,000



Selected Labor Market Information for Maine

Annual Average

2009 2010 2011 2012
Nonfarm Wage and Salary Employment 596,300 593,000 597,700 598,100
Manufacturing Employment 52,300 50,800 50,700 50,800
Nonmanufacturing Employment 544,000 542,200 547,000 547,300
Average Weekly Hours of Manufacturing Production 40.0 41.7. 40.3 413
Average Hourly Earnings of Manufacturing Production $19.97 $20.18 $20.21 $20.50
Unemployment Rate 8.1% 8.1% 7.9% 7.5%
Number Unemployed 56,270 56,550 55,080 52,430

Source: Maine Department of Labor, Center for Worké Research & Information.

2013

601.700
50,400
551.300
41.7
$20.86

6.6%
46,930

2014
604,400
50)200
554,200
$2p.55

39|880
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Civilian Labor Force
Employed and Unemployed by Labor Market Area, Not Seasonallysteiju

March, 2015
Maine Labor Force Estmates for Labor Market Areas
Civilan Labor Force Employment Unemployment Unemployment Rate
LABOR MARKET AREA Mar-15  Feb-15  Mar-14  Mar-15  Feb-15  Ma#  Mar-15 Feb-15  Mar-14  Mar-15  Feb-15  Mar-14
Acton, ME LMA 4,327 4,305 4,375 4,065 4,027 4,069 262 278 630 6.1% 6.5% 7.0%
Augusta, ME Micropolitan 40,769 40,708 41,831 38,694 538 39,255 2,075 2,188 2,576 5.1 5.4 6.2
Bangor, ME Metropoltan 70,874 71,560 72,474 67218 667, 67,968 3,656 3,903 4,506 5.2 5.5 6.2
Belfast, ME LMA 14,128 14,015 14,273 13,144 13,073 13,147 984 942 1,125 7.0 6.7 7.9
Boothbay, ME LMA 3,055 3,018 3,137 2,773 2,724 2,782 282 429 355 9.2 9.7 118
Bridgton-Paris, ME LMA 14,267 14,296 14,596 13,285 1227 13,458 982 1,024 1,138 6.9 7.2 7.8
Brunswick, ME Micropolitan 33,244 33,132 33,752 31,737 31,535 31,883 1,507 1,597 1,669 4.5 4.8 55
Calais, ME LMA 5,521 5,463 5,659 4,989 4,913 5,051 532 550 08 6 9.6 10.1 107
Conway, LMA ME part 3,799 3,835 3,889 3,610 3,530 3.656 918 205 233 5.0 5.3 6/0
Dover-Durham, Metropoltan ME part 11,617 11,661 1163 11,080 11,073 10,999 537 588 632 4.6 5.0 5.4
Dover-Foxcroft, ME LMA 9,317 9,3C8 9,578 8,675 8,621 8,77 642 687 807 6.9 74 84
Elisworth, ME LMA 27,097 26,766 27,837 24,607 24,188 231 2,490 2,578 2,736 9.2 9.6 .8
Farmington, ME LMA 18,611 18,641 19,109 17,542 17,471 722, 1,069 1,170 1,387 57 6.3 7.3
Houtton, ME LMA 7,721 7,672 7,868 7,131 7,104 7,228 540 568 660 7.0 7.4 8.4
Lewiston-Auburn, ME 55,4€9 55,939 56,670 52,548 52,860 3,081 2,921 3,129 3,579 5.3 5.6 6.3
Lincoln, ME LMA 3,28€ 3,274 3,425 3,011 2,980 3,036 275 294 389 8.4 9.0 11.4
Machias, ME LMA 7,882 7,645 8,035 7,169 6,923 7,190 713 722 845 9.0 9.4 10.p
Madawaska, ME LMA 2,921 2,896 3,085 2,755 2,722 2,875 166 74 1 210 5.7 6.0 6.8
Milinocket, ME LMA 3,574 3,594 3,874 3,163 3,137 3,298 141 457 576 11.5 12.7 14,9
Pittsfield, ME LMA 7,414 7,464 7,770 6,757 6,765 7,031 657 699 739 8.9 9.4 9l5
Portland-South Portiand, ME Metropolitan 195,363 088, 199,420 187,291 186,829 188,560 8,572 9,239 10,860 44 7 4 54
Portsmouth, Metropolitan ME part 15,694 15,357 16,040 5,262 15,190 15,248 632 667 792 4.0 4.2 4.9
Presque Isle, ME LMA 22,304 22,169 23,169 20,672 20,433 1,17 1,632 1,736 2,032 7.3 7.8 8.8
Rockland-Camden, ME LMA 20,309 20,067 20,724 19105  2®,7 19,336 1,204 1,297 1,388 5.9 5.5 6.7
Rumford, ME LMA 9,307 9,415 9,563 8,657 8,737 8,764 640 678 799 6.9 7.2 8.4
Sanford, ME Micropolitan 11,560 11,560 11,838 10,735 660 10,805 825 900 1,033 7.1 7.8 8.7
Skowhegan, ME LMA 14,349 14,312 14,734 13,156 13,021 48,3 1,193 1,291 1,385 8.3 9.0
Waldoboro, ME LMA 8,831 8,727 9,031 8,329 8,290 8,425 502 375 606 5.7 6.2 6.7
Watervile, ME Micropoltan 22,762 22,819 23,227 2741 21,387 21,675 1,345 1,432 1,552 5.9 6.3
Wels, ME LMA 8,094 8,067 8,1¢2 7,565 7,485 7,535 529 582 765 6.5 7.2 8.
Maine 679,352 679,456 694,099 641,103 638,759 647,353 33,249 6970, 46,746 5.6 6.0 6l7
United States(000) 156,318 156,213 155,627 147,635 147,118 145,090 3,682 59,0910,537 5.6 5.8 6/8
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‘_J orda APPENDIX G

PROPOSED FORMS OF APPROVING OPINIONS OF BOND COUNSEL

[Date of Delivery]

The Honorable Terry Hayes
Treasurer of State

The State of Maine

39 State House Station
Augusta, Maine 04333

$14,200,000
State of Maine
General Obligation Bonds, 2015 Series A
(Federally Taxable)
Dated Date of Delivery

We have acted as bond counsel to the State of Maine (the “State”) in connection with the
issuance by the State of the above-referenced bonds (the “Bonds”). In such capacity, we have
examined the law and such certified proceedings and other papers as we haceroamssary

to render this opinion.

As to questions of fact material to our opinion we have relied upon representations and
covenants of the State contained in the certified proceedings and otheratienti$ of public
officials furnished to us, without undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation.

Based on our examination, we are of the opinion, under existing law, as follows:

1. The Bonds are valid and binding general obligations of the State and the full faith
and credit of the State are pledged for the payment of the principal of and interesBondke

2. Interest on the Bonds is included in the gross income of the owners of the Bonds
for federal income tax purpose¥/e express no opinion regarding any other federal t
consequences arising with respect to the Bonds.

3. Interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for State of Maine income
tax purposes. We express no opinion regarding any other State of Maine tax consequences
arising with respect to the Bonds or any tax consequences arising with respe@dodbe
under the laws of any state other than the State of Maine.
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The Honorable Terry Hayes
[Date of Delivery]
Page 2

This opinion is not intended or written by Locke Lord LLP to be used and cannot be used by you
for the purpose of avoiding penalties that may be imposed under federal tax law in connection
with the Bonds.

This opinion is expressed as of the date hereof, and we neither assume nor undertake any
obligation to update, revise, supplement or restate this opinion to reflect any actioortake
omitted, or any facts or circumstances or changes in law or in the intiqureéhereof, that may
hereafter arise or occur, or for any other reason.

The rights of the holders of the Bonds and the enforceability of the Bonds may be &®ubject
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecéditors’
rights heretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent constitutionallyadpeliand their
enforcement may also be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in apjeropses.

LOCKELORD LLP
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Locke Lord Edwards
111 Huntington Avenue

1LLUOCKC

[Date of Delivery]

The Honorable Terry Hayes
Treasurer of State

The State of Maine

39 State House Station
Augusta, Maine 04333

$88,355,000
State of Maine
General Obligation Bonds, 2015 Series B
Dated Date of Delivery

We have acted as bond counsel to the State of Maine (the “State”) in connection with the
issuance by the State of the above-referenced bonds (the “Bonds”). In such capacity, we have
examined the law and such certified proceedings and other papers as we haceroamssary

to render this opinion.

As to questions of fact material to our opinion we have relied upon representations and
covenants of the State contained in the certified proceedings and otheratienti$ of public
officials furnished to us, without undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation.

Based on our examination, we are of the opinion, under existing law, as follows:

1. The Bonds are valid and binding general obligations of the State and the full faith
and credit of the State are pledged for the payment of the principal of and iotetiestBonds.

2. Interest on the Bonds is excluded from the gross income of the owners of the
Bonds for federal income tax purposes. In addition, interest on the Bonds is not a specific
preference item for purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternativeum taxes,
although such interest is included in adjusted current earnings when calculatingteorpora
alternative minimum taxable income. In rendering the opinions set forth in this parageaph, w
have assumed compliance by the State with all requirements of the Internal Revdeaud C
1986, as amended, that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order that
interest thereon be, and continue to be, excluded from gross income for federaltexcome
purposes. The State has covenanted to comply with all such requirements. Failure &g the St
to camnl’ with cedaiv i RCRGRRUIICIMS RISy 02N C 2SR R IAIRAL 2RADS Brds. iR hrtudes! ine
in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds.
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The Honorable Terry Hayes
[Date of Delivery]
Page 2

3. Interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for State of Maine income
tax purposes. We express no opinion regarding any other State of Maine tax consequences
arising with respect to the Bonds or any tax consequences arising with respe@dodbe
under the laws of any state other than the State of Maine.

This opinion is expressed as of the date hereof, and we neither assume nor undertake any
obligation to update, revise, supplement or restate this opinion to reflect any actioortake
omitted, or any facts or circumstances or changes in law or in the indtiqreéhereof, that may
hereafter arise or occur, or for any other reason.

The rights of the holders of the Bonds and the enforceability of the Bonds may be tsubject
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws adffecaditors’
rights heretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent constitutionallyapeliand their
enforcement may also be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in apigropses.

LOCKELORD LLP
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STATE OF MAINE
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

APPENDIX H

Secondary Market Disclosure

Pursuant to the Municipal Securities Disclosure Rule, 17 CFR 8240.15chd2 (
“Rule”), promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission (teC”)S the
Underwriters shall not purchase or sell the Bonds unless the Unigeswhiave reasonably
determined that the State, as issuer of the Bonds, has undertaewritten agreement or
contract for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds to provide gertimrmation in the manner
and to the locations described below. In order to assist the Unitgeswn complying with the
Rule, the State has covenanted in the Bonds for the benefit of the Beneficial Owners that

A. Within one year after the end of each fiscal year of théeSthe State will
provide to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB#aficial information and
operating data, for the prior fiscal year, of the type set forth in Agipes B, D and E of this
Official Statement;

B. If not submitted as part of the annual financial information daestiin paragraph
A above, then when and if available, the State will provide to the BAS&lited financial
statements for the State prepared in accordance with ggreeceéipted accounting principles in
effect from time to time;

C. The State will provide in a timely manner, not in exceger{10) business days
after the occurrence of the event, to the MSRB notice of attyedbllowing events with respect
to the Bonds:

0] principal and interest payment delinquencies;
(i) non-payment related defaults, if material;

(i)  unscheduled draws on the debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties;

(iv)  unscheduled draws on the credit enhancements reflecting financial
difficulties;

(v) substitution of the credit or liquidity providers or their failure to perform;

(vi) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of
proposed or final determination of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue
(IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinatiatis w
respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material events affecting the
tax status of the Bonds;
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(vii)  modifications to rights of bondholders, if material;
(viii)  Bond calls, if material, and tender offers;
(ix) defeasances;
(x) release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment &fothas,
if material,
(xi)  rating changes;
(xii)  bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the State
(xiii)  the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the

State or the sale of all or substantially all of the assetseoftate, other
than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive
agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitiv

agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant tonss te
material; and

(xiv) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the chamgenaf of
a trustee, if material; and

D. The State will provide, in a timely manner, to the MSRB, naifcany failure of
the State to comply with paragraph A above.

The State expects to provide the information described in paragrapbove @y
providing an official statement or a preliminary official staént for its bonds, notes or other
obligations that includes such information for the preceding figeat or, if no such official
statement is available within one year after the end of such precedaig/ésc, by providing its
controller’s annual financial report within such one year.

The State may from time to time choose to provide notice of tharreoce of certain
other events in addition to those listed above if, in the judgment @ttie, such other events
are material with respect to the Bonds, but the State does natakedé provide any such
notice of the occurrence of any material event except those events listed above.

The covenants described in this Appendix H (the “Covenants”) arbddrenefit of the
Beneficial Owners and shall be enforceable by any Beneficial OwreBeNeficial Owner may
institute any suit, action or proceeding at law or in equityd¢Beding”) for the enforcement of

* As noted in the Rule, this event is considered to occur whenbfahg following occur: (i) the appointment of a receiver,disagent or similar
officer for the State in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptmye or in any proceeding under state or federal law in whicbug or

governmental authority has assumed jurisdiction over subdhargtihof the assets or business of the State, or if sudhdjation has been
assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officialsfmeos in possession but subject to the supervision and coflersourt or
governmental authority, or (ii) the entry of an order confirmanglan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by at@ugovernmental
authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantiallyf the assets or business of the State.



the Covenants, unless such Beneficial Owner shall have filed witfirdlasurer of State and the
Attorney General a written request to cure such breach, and teesB#dl have refused or failed
to comply within a reasonable time. Any assertion of beneficial ahipemust be included in
such written request and must be supported by independent evidence or dacumknts
Proceedings shall be instituted only in a State court located @ithef Augusta, Maine for the
equal benefit of all Beneficial Owners of the outstanding Bondsa d¢burt of competent
jurisdiction finds that the State has breached any of the Coverterighe sole remedy for any
such breach shall be an order of specific performance of the Cosearahthere shall be no
right of acceleration of the Bonds. Moreover, Proceedings filed by Bethe@wners against
the State may be subject to the defense of sovereign immunity whickuhstantially limit the
scope and nature of any legal action against the State or of any order of geefofmance that
may be granted against the State.

The Covenants may only be amended if:

0] the amendment is made in connection with a change in circurastémat arises
from a change in legal requirements, change in law, or change iotetitey, nature, or status of
the State, or type of business conducted; the Covenants, as amended, woutzres with
the Rule as of the date of issuance of the Bonds, after takingceworg any amendments or
changes in circumstances; and the amendment does not matemnply the interest of
Beneficial Owners, as determined by parties unaffiliated with the State; or

(i) all or any part of the Rule, as interpreted by thef stbfhe SEC at the date of the

adoption of such Rule, ceases to be in effect for any reason, andatkeefects that the
Covenants shall be deemed amended accordingly.
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APPENDIX |

REVISED JUNE 8, 2015 AS TO PAR AMOUNTS

REVISED NOTICE OF SALE
of the
STATE OF MAINE
relating to

$14,220,000
General Obligation Bonds, 2015 Series A
(Federally Taxable)

and

$86,565,000
General Obligation Bonds, 2015 Series B

Notice is hereby given that bids will be receiventilu
10:30 a.m., Eastern Daylight Saving Time, with extfo the Series A Bonds and Series B Bonds,
on Tuesday, June 9, 2015

via Parity®, subject to the terms and conditioneebg for the purchase of $14,220,0(ate of Maine
General Obligation Bonds, 2015 Series A (Federg#ixable) (the “Series A Bonds”) and $86,565,000
State of Maine General Obligation Bonds, 2015 SeBgthe “Series B Bonds” and, together with the
Series A Bonds, the “Bonds”).

Description of the Bonds

The Bonds will bear interest from the date of thdstivery payable semiannually on June 1 and
December 1 of each year, commencing December B, 201l payment of the principal of the Bonds.
Interest on the Bonds will be paid on the intepestment dates, and principal of the Bonds will b&l@at
maturity, to The Depository Trust Company, New Y,adew York (“DTC") or its nominee as registered
owner of the Bonds. Interest on the Bonds willicbenputed on the basis of a 30-day month and a 360-
day year.

Principal of and interest on the Bonds are pay#bie the General Fund of the State of Maine
(the “State”). Article V, Part Third, Section 5 tife Constitution of the State provides that iffisignt
funds are not appropriated to pay the principarmd interest on the Bonds when due, then the Treasu
of State (the “Treasurer”) is obligated to set ageom the first General Fund revenues received an
amount sufficient to make payment of principal nflanterest on the Bonds as such principal anadeste
become due.

" Preliminary, subject to change.



The Bonds are being issued (i) to pay at maturitywne 30, 2015 the principal amount of certain
bond anticipation notes issued by the State tanfiracertain capital expenditures of the State aneb(
finance certain additional capital expenditurethef State.

Details of the Bonds
The Series A Bonds will be dated their date ofwal and will mature on June 1 in each of the

years 2016 to 2017, inclusive, in the principal amte described in the table below, subject to any
adjustments described in “Adjustment of Maturityh&dule” below:

Year Principal Amount
2016 $10,080,000
2017 4,140,000

The Series B Bonds will be dated the date ofvaeji and will mature on June 1 in each of the
years 2017 to 2025, inclusive, in the principal amte described in the table below, subject to any
adjustments described in “Adjustment of Maturityn&dule” below:

Year Principal Amount
2017 $ 5,940,000
2018 10,080,000
2019 10,080,000
2020 10,080,000
2021 10,080,000
2022 10,080,000
2023 10,075,000
2024 10,075,000
2025 10,075,000

Authorization and Security

The Bonds will be general obligations of the Statd the full faith and credit of the State will be
pledged for the punctual payment of the principal anterest on the Bonds.

Redemption

The Bonds are not subject to redemption prior &bunity.
Adjustment of Maturity Schedule

The State reserves the right to change the ag@gregacipal amount of either or both series of
the Bonds and the maturity schedule for eitheresedfter the determination of the winning bid by

increasing or decreasing the principal amount ohematurity by such amount as may be necessaiy to (
produce sufficient funds for the purposes for which Bonds are being issued after taking into agtou

“Preliminary, subject to change as described herein.



any premium to be received by the State, and diipoduce substantially level annual payments of
principal on the Bonds. In such event, the finajragate principal amount of each series of the Bond
will be increased or decreased by the net amoustic change or changes in principal amount ofoone
more maturities, which net change will not excedtedn percent (15%) of the original aggregate
principal amount of each series of the Bonds. Stete anticipates that the final maturity schedvile

be communicated to the successful bidders by 3:00 Rastern Daylight Saving Time on the date of
award provided the State has received the reofgriites and yields for the Bonds from the successf
bidders within one hour after being notified of thwards of the Bonds. The adjusted bid prices will
reflect changes in the dollar amount of the undigews discounts and original issue premiums, bilit w
not change the per-bond underwriter's discountadsutated from the bid and reoffering prices regdir
to be delivered to the State as stated herein.stibeessful bidder for each series may not withdtaw
bid or change the interest rates bid or initialfiering prices as a result of any changes madé¢o t
principal amounts within these limits.

Book-Entry Only

The Bonds will be issued by means of a book-esystem with no physical distribution of Bonds
made to the public. One Bond certificate for eactiurity of each series will be issued to The Deoogi
Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC"), and iminitized in its custody. A book-entry system
will be employed, evidencing ownership of the Bomdprincipal amounts of $5,000 or integral mukigl
thereof, with transfers of ownership effected oa tcords of DTC and its participants pursuanutesr
and procedures established by DTC and its partit§palhe successful bidder of each series, as a
condition to delivery of the Bonds, shall be regdito deposit the Bond certificates with DTC, réayisd
in the name of Cede & Co.

Interest on the Bonds will be payable semiannualty June 1 and December 1, beginning
December 1, 2015. Principal of the Bonds will leédpannually on June 1, as set forth in the fonegoi
maturity schedules subject to adjustment as desti@bove under “Adjustment of Maturity Schedule,” t
DTC or its nominee as registered owner of the Bofldansfer of principal and interest payments to
participants of DTC will be the responsibility ofTE; transfer of principal and interest payments to
beneficial owners by participants of DTC will beetlesponsibility of such participants and other
nominees of beneficial owners. The record datepforcipal and interest payments will be the fiftden
day of the month next preceding the date on whitdrést is to be paid. The State will not be resjime
or liable for maintaining, supervising or reviewitige records maintained by DTC, its participants or
persons acting through such participants.

In the event that (a) DTC determines not to carito act as securities depository for the Bonds
or (b) the Treasurer determines that continuatibthe book-entry system of evidence and transfer of
ownership of the Bonds would adversely affect thterests of the beneficial owners of the Bonds, the
State will discontinue the book-entry system witli@ If the State fails to identify another qualifie
securities depository to replace DTC, the Staté awithenticate and deliver replacement Bonds in the
form of fully registered certificates.

It is anticipated that CUSIP identification numbaevill be printed on the Bonds, but neither the
failure to print such numbers on any Bond nor amgrewith respect thereto shall constitute cauge fo
failure or refusal by the purchaser thereof to ptcelivery of and pay for the Bonds in accordawith
the terms of its bid. No CUSIP identification nurrdbshall be deemed to be part of any Bond or agfart
the contract evidenced thereby and no liabilityllshereafter attach to the State or any of itsagffs or
agents because of or on account of such numbeesSTie shall pay all expenses in connection wiigh t
initial assignment and printing of CUSIP numbere Tinderwriter for each series will be responsdibte
applying for and obtaining CUSIP identification nibens for the Bonds.
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Bid Specifications

Bidders may bid on the Series A Bonds only, th6eSeB Bonds only or both series. Bidders
should state the rate or rates of interest thatSéwées A Bonds and the Series B Bonds are to brear,
multiples of 1/8 or 1/20 of one percent, but shall state (a) more than one interest rate for amydB of
a series having a like maturity or (b) any interes¢ greater than 5%. In order to fund its plahcapital
expenditures, the total proceeds payable to thée Sgar plus premium, if any) must be at least
$113,842,601. Accordingly, the par amount of tlei€s A Bonds and the Series B Bonds will be
adjusted, as needed, and as described aboveden thiat the total proceeds of the Series A Bomdk a
the Series B Bonds are as nearly as practicabléhitwi$5,000) to $14,230,000 and $99,612,601,
respectively. No bids for other than all of thei€g A Bonds and the Series B Bonds will be acakpte
No bid for less than 100% of the principal amounthe Series A Bonds or the Series B Bonds will be
accepted (subject to adjustments as provided abdwach bid for the Series A Bonds must be for the
entire issue at a price not less than 100% plugmipm of at least $50,000 but not more than $1@M,0
Each bid for the Series B Bonds must be for theeistsue at a price not less than 100% plus aipram
of at least $10 million but not more than $15 roifli All bids must be unconditional and submitted
electronically via Parity® in accordance with thistice of Sale.

Receipt of Bids

Sealed bids for the Series A Bonds and the S&i8onds will be received electronically via
Parity until 10:30 a.m., Eastern Daylight Savingn&j on Tuesday June 9, 2015 (or on such lateragate
may be established by the State and communicatedgh Thomson Municipal Market Monitor not less
than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the time thdsbare to be received). To the extent any insttns
or directions set forth on Parity conflict with shiNotice of Sale, the terms of this Notice of Sstiall
control. For further information about Parity, putiel bidders may contact |-Deal LLC at 1359
Broadway, 2nd Floor, New York, NY 10018, or telepbq212) 849-5021. The use of Parity shall be at
the bidder's risk and expense, and the State dsteale no liability with respect thereto. Only bids
submitted through Parity will be considered. Neepdlone, facsimile, mail, courier delivery or peison
delivery bids will be accepted. To participate,dd#cs must be a contracted customer of the BIDCOMP
Competitive Bidding System (the “System”). If theogpective bidder(s) do not have a contract with th
System, call (212) 849-5021 to become a customer tanobtain a list of the bidding rules and
procedures.

Basis of Award

The Bonds will be awarded to the bidder(s) offgria purchase the Bonds, as applicable, at the
lowest interest cost to the State. Separate aweitidse made with respect to the Series A Bonds e
Series B Bonds. Such award shall be determined tua interest cost (TIC) basis. True interest
cost (expressed as an annual interest rate) skalidiermined for each bid by doubling the
semiannual interest rate, compounded semiannuaklgessary to discount the debt service
payments from the payment dates to the date ofa@gliand to the price bid. In the event there is
more than one bid specifying the lowest such raéeh series of Bonds will be awarded to the bidder
whose bid is selected by the Treasurer by lot feonong all such bids. It is requested that eachbbid
accompanied by a statement of such interest costpated at the interest rate or rates stated ibithen
accordance with the above method of computatiomfeted to six decimal places), but such statement
will not be considered as part of the bid.

Bids will be accepted or rejected promptly afescaipt on the date of the sale.



The State reserves the right to reject any orpadiposals and to reject any proposals not
complying with this Notice of Sale. The State algserves the right, so far as permitted by lawyaive
any irregularity or informality with respect to apyoposal.

CUSIP Numbers

It is anticipated that CUSIP identification numberill be printed on the Bonds. All expenses in
relation to the printing of CUSIP numbers on then8® shall be paid for by the State. However, the
CUSIP Service Bureau charge for the assignmentdh sumbers shall be the responsibility of and be
paid by the successful bidder.

Expenses

The State will pay: (i) the cost of the prepanatad the Bonds; (ii) the fees and expenses of Bond
Counsel; (iii) the fees of the rating agenciestietato the Bonds, and (iv) the cost of preparationl
printing of the Official Statement.

Undertakings of the Successful Bidder (s)

The successful bidder(s) shall make a bona fiddipwffering of the Bonds. The successful
bidder(s) must, by facsimile transmission or deljveeceived by the Deputy Treasurer within 24 hours
after notification of the award, furnish the follmg information to Bond Counsel to complete the
Official Statement in final form, as described lyelo

A. Selling compensation (aggregate total anti@datcompensation to the
underwriters expressed in dollars, based on theaapon that all Bonds are
sold at the prices or yields at which the succéssfider(s) advised the Treasurer
that the Bonds were initially offered to the pullic

B. The identity of the underwriters if the sucdakbidder(s) is part of a group or
syndicate.
C. Any other material information the Treasureted@ines is necessary to complete

the Official Statement in final form.

On or prior to the date of delivery of the Sefe8onds, the successful bidder for the Series B
Bonds shall furnish to the State a certificate ptaigle to Bond Counsel to the State generally & th
effect that (i) as of June 9, 2015 (the “Sale Dpté#fie successful bidder had offered or reasonably
expected to offer all of the Series B Bonds to glemeral public (excluding bond houses, brokers, or
similar persons acting in the capacity of undemvsitor wholesalers) in a bona fide public offeratghe
prices set forth in such certificate, plus accrumerest, if any, (ii) such prices represent faarket prices
of the Series B Bonds as of the Sale Date, anda@iiof the date of such certificate, all of thei&eB
Bonds have been offered to the general public boma fide offering at the prices set forth in such
certificate, and at least 10% of each maturityhaf $eries B Bonds actually has been sold to thergkn
public at such prices. To the extent the certiftces described in the preceding sentence areactidlly
accurate with respect to the reoffering of the &eB Bonds, Bond Counsel should be consulted by the
bidder as to alternative certifications that wi# buitable to establish the “issue price” of thei€3eB
Bonds for federal tax law purposes. If a municipahd insurance policy or similar credit enhancenigen
obtained with respect to the Series B Bonds bystleeessful bidder, such bidder will also be reglice
certify as to the net present value savings onSbees B Bonds resulting from payment of insurance
premiums or other credit enhancement fees.



Delivery of the Bonds

The Bonds will be delivered on or about June ZB,52in New York, New York at DTC against
payment of the purchase price therefor in Fedaratlk.

Documents to be Delivered at Closing

It shall be a condition to the obligation of thecsessful bidder(s) to accept delivery of and pay
for the Bonds that contemporaneously with or befaceepting the Bonds and paying therefor, the
successful bidder(s) shall be furnished, withowt cwith (a) the approving opinions of the firmlafcke
Lord LLP, Boston, Massachusetts, Bond Counsel & Slhate, as to the validity and tax status of the
Bonds, substantially in the forms provided in AppienG to the Final Official Statement, referred to
below; (b) a certificate of the Treasurer to thieefthat, to the best of her knowledge, the Fficial
Statement referred to below does not contain arguerstatement of a material fact or omit to state
material fact necessary to make the statements th&dein, in light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading; and (c) an opimibthe Department of the Attorney General of the
State, dated as of the date of delivery of the Boital the effect that there is no litigation of amgture
pending or threatened to restrain or enjoin theasse or delivery of the Bonds or in any way caimgs
or affecting the validity of the Bonds or any oéthroceedings taken with respect to the issuandsale
thereof or the levy or collection of any taxes &y rincipal of or interest on the Bonds. In aidadit
such opinion will state that, based on consultatiaith certain officers of the State, there is itigdtion
of any nature now pending or threatened by or agdire State wherein an adverse judgment or ruling
could have a material adverse effect on the fireromndition of the State or adversely affect tever
of the State to levy, collect or enforce the cdltat of taxes or other revenues for the paymenitsof
Bonds which has not been disclosed in the Finatc@ffStatement referred to below.

In connection with the issuance of the Bonds, tteeSwill undertake in the Bonds to provide
annual financial information and notices of certawents pursuant to Municipal Securities Disclosure
Rule, 17 CFR §240.15c2-12 (the “Rule”), promulgagdhe Securities and Exchange Commission.

Official Statement

The Preliminary Official Statement dated June Q12 and the information contained therein
have been deemed final by the State as of itswiiilén the meaning of Rule 15¢2-12 of the Secusitie
and Exchange Commission ("Rule 15c¢2-12") with p#ediomissions, but is subject to change without
notice and to completion or amendment in the CifiGtatement in final form (the "Final Official
Statement").

The State, at its expense, will make availabléh®successful bidder(s) up to 75 copies of the
Final Official Statement, for delivery to each puial investor requesting a copy of the Final Qéfic
Statement and to each person to whom the biddan@)members of its bidding group initially sell the
Bonds, within seven business days of the awarchefBonds, provided that the successful bidder(s)
cooperate in providing the information requirecttmnplete the Final Official Statement.

The successful bidder(s) shall comply with theursgments of Rule 15¢2-12 and the rules of the
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, including abligation, if any, to update the Final Official
Statement.



Continuing Disclosure

In order to assist bidders in complying with Rafec2-12(b)(5) promulgated by the Securities
and Exchange Commission, the State will undertakgrévide annual financial information and notices
of certain significant events. A description ofstundertaking is set forth in the Preliminary O©ii
Statement.

Right to Change the Notice of Sale and to Postpofiering

The State reserves the right to make changedddtitice of Sale and also reserves the right to
postpone, from time to time, the date and time btistsed for the receipt of bids. ANY SUCH
POSTPONEMENT WILL BE ANNOUNCED NOT LATER THAN 1:0B.M. (E.D.T.) ON THE LAST
BUSINESS DAY PRIOR TO ANY ANNOUNCED DATE FOR RECEIPOF BIDS. If any date and
time fixed for the receipt of bids and the saléhgf Bonds is postponed, an alternative sale dateiare
will be announced at least 48 hours prior to surrzative sale date. On any such alternative date
and time, any bidder may submit a bid for the pasehof the Bonds in conformity in all respects it
provisions of this Notice of Sale, except for thatedand time of sale and except for any changes
announced at the time the sale date and time auaned.

Good Faith Deposit

The State is not requiring the submission of adgfaith deposit prior to the date of award of the
Bonds to the successful bidder. Rather, the sutddsisider, as determined by the State in accordanc
with this Notice of Sale, must submit a good faitposit in the amount of $142,200* for a bid on the
Series A Bonds, and in the amount of $865,650%ftid on the Series B Bonds. The good faith deposit
will secure the State from any loss resulting fritra failure of the successful bidder to comply witik
terms of its bid. The successful bidder shalld¢fanthe good faith deposit by wire transfer disetd the
State upon notification, but in any case, no laban 3:00 p.m., Eastern Daylight Saving Time, am th
date of award of the Bonds. The good faith depesitoe held by the State and applied toward aipor
of the total purchase price of the Bonds. No Bgeron the good faith deposit will accrue to the
successful bidder. Wire instructions will be praddto the successful bidder upon notification & th
Preliminary Award.



Additional Information

For further information relating to the Bonds, erefnce is made to the Preliminary Official
Statement dated June 1, 2015 prepared for and riagtidby the Treasurer. The Preliminary Official
Statement may be obtained by accessing the folgpwiebsite: _http://www.imagemaster.com/. For
further information, please contact Kristi Carlo@eputy State Treasurer, 39 State House Station,
Augusta, Maine 04333 (telephone: 207-624-7477 jtfisites 207-287-2367).

THE STATE OF MAINE

By Terry Hayes
Treasurer of State

Date: June 8, 2015

*Preliminary, subject to change.



Attachment A

INSTRUCTIONS TO SUBMIT A BID VIA Parity

* You must be a contracted customer of Parity’s Cditipe Bidding System. If you do not have a contra
with Parity, call (212) 849-5021 to become a cusinm

» In Parity select the State of Maine sale amondishef current sales.

» Go to the bid form page. Keep notice of the tinoelk and be sure to read all bid specifications on
bottom.

» Once you have created and saved a bid in Paritk ttle final bid button in Parity to submit thelkib
Parity.

« Upon clicking the Final Bid button, the bidder wskke a message box in Parity that states: “Do yaut w
to submit this bid to Parity? By submitting the lelectronically via PARITY, you represent and vaaitr
that this bid for the purchase of the Bonds is sttbohby the representative who is duly authoritzed
bind the bidder to a legal, valid, enforceable caxttfor the purchase of the Bonds. The Officiatibe of
Sale is incorporated herein by this reference.”

» If during bid calculation Parity warns you that yaurrent bid violates the bid parameters, ple&sage
your bid to meet bid specifications. The Paritgteyn will submit bids, which violate the bid paraers,
but the State does not intend to consider anythiatsdo not meet its parameters.

* You may choose to proceed with submission of tdeobichoose to cancel the submission.

» Contact Parity at (212) 849-5021 or with questionproblems.
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@Y  Mixed Sources
Product group from well managed
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